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‘SYLLABUS
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CHAPTER 1 MEANING AND SCOPE OF
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% Book-keeping

& Accounting

X Development of Accounting
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X Need of Accounting

% Types or Sub-Fields/Branches of Accounting Information

-Xx Persons/Parties Interested in Accounting -
X Basic Accounting Terminology )

BOOK-KEEPING

" Meaning

Book-keeping is the proper and systematic keeping or maintenance df the
books of accounts. Book-keeping starts from the identification of business transactions.
These transactions must be supported by the documents and they must be financial in
nature. For cxample, selling goods for cash is an accounting transaction, because cash
is received and goods are going outside the business. The transaction will increase
cash and reduce goods.
It will affect the finances of the business. There will also be documentary proof of
the transaction because cash memo must have been issued for sale. The book-keeper
after identification of the accounting transaction will record it in the proper books of
accounts.

Definition
Buok-keeping may be defined as the science and art of identifying and
recording accounting transactions systematically in the proper books of accounts.

According to North Cott, “Book-keeping is the art of recording in the books
of uccounts the monetary aspect of commercial or financial transactions.”
Prof. R.N. Carter delines, “Book-kecping as the science and art of correctly
recording in the hooks of accounts all those business Iransactions that result
in the transfer- of money or money’s worth.” .

Book-keeping is concerned with the proper maintenance of the books of accounts
i.e.. journal, ledger, cash book and other subsidiary books. If is not concerned with
disclosing or interpreting the results of the bu.sme.s.s Book-keeping involves the
following process :

Process of Book- ~keeping

1. ldcnh[ymg accounting transactions, All business transactions which arc {inancial

i natuee and have documentary proof are accounting tr amsactions. Non- -cconomic [

Meening and Scope of
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aclivities concerning emotions. of love patriotism and respect do not find place
in Book-keeping. _

2. Initial record of accounting transactions. The identified accounting transactions
‘are passed through subsidiary books. such as purchases book, sales book, returns
inward book, returns outward book, bills receivable book, bills payable book. cash
book and journal proper.

3. Prepara’tioﬁ of ledger accounts. All the transactions relating to a particular
person, party or item are put together at one place under one hcad. which is
known as its'ledger account. For example, information regarding sales to Ram,
amount received from Ram, discount allowed to Ram and so further sales and
receipt of the amount should be written in Ram’s Ledger Account. This will
enable us in understanding the actual position of Ram’s dealings at a glance. With
“the help of subsidiary books and journal proper all ledger accounts are prepared.

4. Balancing ledger accounts. Ledger accounts are balanced i.c., the difference

between the debit and credit side of the ledger accounts are ascertained. Persanal,
accounts show the amount payable to or receivable from them. Assets accounts

show the value of assets on a particular date. Ledger accounts, thus, reveal the
balances of expenses, revenue, liability, capital and assets.

5. Preparation of trial balance. Trial balance is prepared with the balances shown
by the ledger accounts. While passing journal entries and preparing subsidiary
books we take into consideration the dual aspect of every transaction. so the
debit and credit balance of the trial balance must tally. Trial balance is prepared
to check arithmetical accuracy. If the totals of the debit and credit .side of the
trial balance is not equal, there must be certain errors. The:-,e errors arc located

and rectified.

.

ACCOUNTING

Every business has profit motive. It has transactions of financial nature. such as,
purchasing goods, selling goods, incurring expenses, receiving income etc. Thesc lransactions
are financial in nature and affect the profit of the business. Accounting transactions
are both money transactions and money worth transactions. Credit transactions are
known as money worth transactions. It means that accountmg transactions may not
be necessarily cash transactions.

Transactions are classified as assets, liabilities, capital, revenues and ‘expenses. -

Income statements are prepared to ascerlain profit or-loss of the business. The
position statement is prepared to assess the value of assets and liabilities of the
business. Various statements are prepared and ratios are calculaled to measure the
actual performance of the business. Comparison of the actual performancc is compared
with previous performance or desired performance and effective plans for future is
made. I this way, accounting is ‘an art of identifying, classifving, recording,
summarising and mtc;pretmg business transactions of financial nature. The process
of maintaining accountancy records contains the following steps :

All financial transactions which have documentary evidence are identified as accounting
transactions. The elements of the transactions are classified as assets, liabilities. capital.
revenues and expenses, Thesc transactions are recorded in the appropriate books of
accounts. Income statements are prepared to ascertain profit or loss of the business

| during accounting period. Position statements are prepared to ascertain assets and
liabilities of the business. Finally, result of the business transactions are communicated.

’



Definition of .Accounting
In the words of Smith axd Ashburne, “Accounting is a means of measuring
and reporting the results of economic activities.”’ '

In the opinion of Bierman and Derbin, “Accounting may be defined as the
identifying, measuring, recording and communicating of financial information.”

Difference between Book-kecping and Accounting

Points of difference

Book-keeping

Accounting

1. Ohjective

The objective of book-keeping

accounts. It is restricted to journal,
subsidiary books and ledger
accounts only.

is 10 ‘prepare original books of-

The objective of accounting is 10
record; analyse and interpret the
business transactions.

2. Scope

"It has limited scope and is
concerned with the recording of
business transactions.

It has wider scope as compared
to book-keeping.

3. Level of work

1t is restricted to low level of
work. Clerical work is involved
in it.

It is concerned with low level,
medium level and even top level
management. Low level clerks prepare.
the accounts, medium level report it
and top level interpret it.

4. Mutual

dependence

of recording transactions, so it
has to depend upon accounting
which makes it more meaningful
and purposeful.

Book-keeping is only the art

Accounting is based upon book-
keeping which 1s its initial and vital
part. It depends upon book-keeping.

. Result of the

business

It does not show the net result
of the financial position of
business.

Accounting shows the net resull
of the business. It tells us about the
profit earned and also about the assets
and liabilities of the business.

6. Principles of

Accounting

In book-keeping, accounting
concepts and conventions are
followed.

The methods of reporting and
interpretation in accounting may vary

from firm to firm.

DEVELOPMENT OF ACCOUNTING

Meaning and Scope of
Accounting

NOTES

The role of accounting has changed from that of a mere record keeping during the
Ist decade of 20th century to the present stage, when it is accepted as information
systcm and dccision making activity. o
The term accounting is becoming gradually broader. It is evident from definitions of
accounting arranged in historical order : ’ .
() 1941. The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) defined
accounting as : .

_ The art of recording, classifying and summarising in a significant manner
and in terms of money transactions and events, which are in part, at least, |

of a financial character and interpreting the result thereof.

Self-Instructional Material 3
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(#) 1966. The American Accounting Association (AAA) defined accounting as :
The process of identifying, measuring and communicasing economic information
o permit informed judgements and decisions by uses of the information.
(i) 1970. Accounting. Principles Board (APB) and AICPA states : .
The function of Accounting is to provide quantitative information primarily
financial in nature, about economic entities, that is intended to be useful in
making economic decisions. , .
The above statements about Accounting show that the role of Accounting is
gradually widening. - .
The role of accounting at present is assumeg :
(i) To provide information for judging management ability to utilise resources effectively
in achieving goals.’

" (i) To provide factual and interpretative information by disclosing underlying assumptions

“on'matters, subject to interpretation, evaluation, prediction or estimation and -
(itf) To provide information or activities affecting society. '
Accounting in this way, identifies business transactions, records them in proper
subsidiary books and journal preper and prepares ledger accounts. Trial balance
is prepared with the balance of ledgqr accounts and finally finarciz! statements
are prepared, reported and communicated to parties concerned.

L3

OBJECTIVES OF ACCOUNTING

Followings are the objectives of accounting :
1. Maintaining proper record of business transaction.. The main purpose of
accounting is to identify business transactions of financial nature and enter them
* into appropriate books of accounts. Business transactions are classified as, assels,
liabilities, capital, revenues, expenses and accordingly passed through books. The
accounting records should be made properly and systematically, so that requisite
information may be obtained at a glance from the books of accounts.

2. Calculation of profit or loss. One of the main object of accounting is to
calculate the profit or loss of the business. Income statements are prepared with
the help of trial balance (prepared with the balances of ledger accounts). At the
end of accounting period, we prepare Trading Account and ascertain gross profit”
or gross loss. Afterwards Profit and Loss Account is prepared to calculate net
'profit or net loss. Accounting in this way, is the source to evaluate the performance
of the business in terms of profit. :

3. Depiction of the financial position. At the end of accounting period, we
prepare position siatement. The value of assets and liabilities are depicted in the
balance sheet, also known as position stat~ment.

The assets side of .the balance sheet shows the position of various assefs such
as cash in hand, cash at bank, sundry debtors, closing stock, building, machinery,
furniture, etc. The liabilities side shows creditors’ claim as creditors® for goods,
bills payable, loans, outstanding expenses and proprietor’s claim as capital, net
profit and reserves. Balance Sheet is said to be a mirror. reflecting the true
position of assets and liabilities on a particular date. - '

4. Providing effective control over the business. Accounting reveals the actual
performance of the business in terms of production, sales, profit, loss. cost of
production and the book value of sundry assets. The actual performance can be



compared with the planned or desired performance of the business. It can also M‘?"""‘l;fc;mif;"i"’ of

be compared with the previous performance. Compflrison reveals deviation in
terms of weaknesses and plus points, Causes responsible for the poor performance
are identified and efforts are made to remove them. Causes responsible for better
performance are reinforced. Accounting, in this way, enables the management to
adopt cffective control over the business.

5. Making information available to various groups. Business, these days is a
social institution. In addition to the owners of the business various groups, such
as, creditors, lenders, investors, researchers, government and even workers and
consumers have an interest in the performance of business. Accounting makes
information available to all these interested parties. Proprietors have interest in
the profit or dividend, debenture holders, lenders and investors are concerned
with the safety of money advanéed by them to the business and interest thereon.
Financial soundness of the business makes their loans secured. Employees have

: an interest in their increased wages and bonus. The object of the accounting is
to provide meaningful information to all these interested groups. :

NOTES

NEED OF ACCOUNTING

1. Replacing memory. Business transactions are innumerable, varied and complex,
as such it is quite impossible to memorise each and every transaction. Accounting
records these transactions in writing and thus it is not necessary that the businessman
should memorise all the transactions.

2. Assisting the performance of the business. Accounting keeps proper and
systematic record of all business transactions. Income statements are prepared
‘with these records and we are able to know the profit eamned and the loss
suffered by the business. Trading Account is prepared to find out gross profit or
loss ‘of the enterprise. Net profit or net loss can be known by preparmg Profit
and Loss Account. .

3. Assessing the financial status of the business. Financial position of the

* business is displayed through position statement i.e., Balance Sheet of the business.
Thé statement is prepared at the end of the accounting year and reflects the true
position of assets and liabilities of the business on a particular date.

4, Documentary evidence. Accounting records can also be used as an evidence V
in the court to substantiate the claim of the business. These records are based
on documentary proof. Every entry is supported by authentic vouchers. That is
why. the court accepts these records as evidence.

5. Assisting in realisation of debts. In ‘Accounts’ we prepare personal ledger
accounts of all the parties.” The personal account shows the exact amount due
from the debtors. We can send the debtors their statement of accounts and thus
enable them to verify entries and also to make-early payment of the amount due.
The account can also be used to prove the clalm of the business against the
debtors in the court.

6. Facilitating the Sale of the business. The position statement of the business
shows the value of assets and liabilities of the business. We can calculate the
‘Net Worth’ of the business on the basis of these statements. Accounting facilitates -
in the calculation of the consideration for which the business should be sold.

7. Preventing and detecting frauds. The proper accounting system and effective:

arrangement of internal check prevents leakage of goods and cash. In case,

Self-Instructional Materigl 5
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cheating takes place, theft or embezzlement is made and fraud is committed,
accounting helps in detection of these losses and also fixes responsibility for it.
Proper accounting prevents employees from committing fraud.

" 8. Helpful to management. Accounting is useful to the management -in various
ways. It enables the management to assess the achievements of its performance.
Actual performance can be compared with the desired performance or with the
performance of previous years. The weaknesses of the business can be identified
and corrective measures can be applied to remove them. Various profitability,
sales and liquidity ratios can be calculated, the actual performance can be evaluated
and effective liné of action can be decided for the future. Funds flow statement
can also be prepared to understand the additional funds earned during the- year
and their application. : )

Full Disclosure. The concept is also known as convention of full disclosure.
Accounting must disclose all material information. It should be honestly prepared,
free from any bias, favour or prejudice. Figures should not be manipulated. It should
be the sincere effort of the accountant to present facts, keeping in view the various
accounting assumptions. No material information should be concealed. Material information
means the information capable of changing the results of the busincss. Enterprises
have their existence separate from their proprietors. In case of companies, there is a

“divorce between ownership and management. In this context it becomes binding upon
the management to disclose all material information in. dccounts to its owners and

other interested parties.

Disclosure of material facts does not mean leaking out the business secrecy, but
disclosing all information of proprietors’ and investors’, interest. Accounting to this
principle, certain unimportant items are left and some of them are merged with other
items. The intention is not to over burden Accounting with information but present
facts without any malafide intention, .

TYPES OR SUB- FIELDS/BRANCHES OI< ACCOUNTING

INFORMATION

Accounting has at present three sub-fields or branches, mentioned as under :

1. Financial accounting. Accounting is a wider and comprehensive concept. It is
an art of identifying, classifying, recording, summarising and interpreting business
iransactions of financial nature. Accounting work involves low, medium and even
top level employees. Accounting as such is Book-keeping plus preparation of
financial statements, reporting the results of the business and interprefing the
accounting information in the forms of ratios, funds and cash flow statements,
schedules, charts and diagrams.

2. Cost accounting: It is that branch of accounting, which deals with cost of
production and its various constituents, It is concerned with the classification,

allocation, recording, summarising and reporting current and prospective costs.

Cost accounting, like financial accounting serves the needs of proprietors, managers
and interested outsiders. Cost accounting is the systematic process of determining

, unit cost at different levels of production. '
3. Management accounting. Management in the business is concerned with decision
making for the efficient working of the enterprise, so managcment accounting is
a system to assemble and furnish-the useful material and summiarised accounting



Meaning and Scope of

information to the management. Management accouriting as such is the effect_ive S nting

blending of financial and cost accounting together with financial management.

The ultimate end of marfagement is to maximise profit at the minimum cost and .

sacrifice. The management accounting serves as an effective tool for determining ’

right line of action in future.
NOTES

' PERSONS/PARTIES INTERESTED IN ACCOUNTING

Persons interested in Accounting

T T~

[nteenal users
. External users
management and staft : i

[ _ |

Users having direct interest Users having indirect interest
(Owners/shareholders, investors, {Regulatory agencies, researchers,
creditors, employees, customers, labour unions, stock exchanges,
lenders, management, 1ax authorities) public and others.)

. 1. Internal users. Top, middle and bottom level of management executives are the
internal users of accounting information. They need it for making their decisions.
These users are interested in the profitability, operational efficiency and financial
soundness of the business. The top level management is concerned with accounting
information relating to planning, the middle level is interested in planning and
controlling and the lower level with operational affairs.© .

2. External users. External users may have.direct interest or indirect interest.

(1) External users having direct financial interest. The existing and the prospective
creditors and investors have direct interest in the accounting information. The sources
of information for external users are financial statements and reports of directors and
aunditors. Investors assess the financial worth of the business so that they may decide .
about buying, selling or holding investment in the business. Creditors, such as banks, :
lenders, debenture holders and financial institutions assess the risk involved in granting
loans to the business. ) ‘

(#0) External users having indircct interest. These users, such as Department
of Company Affairs. Registrar of Joint Stock Companies, sales tax and income tax
authorities, labour unions, customers, stock exchanges, trade associations and others
are also interested in the affairs of the business. They have to make their own decision
on the basis of the financial reports of the business.

BASIC ACCOUNTING TERMINOLOGY

Every subject has got its own terminology. Accounting, as a subject has got its
own terms. These terms have their specific meaning in Accounting and used to express
flnancial nature of the business. ' '

Self-Instructional Material 7
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1. Business Transactions

The economic event thai relates to o business entity is called business transaction.

Every business activity is'not an Accounting activity. That is why, every acti vuy
1s not recorded in the books of accounting. We record only business (ransactions in
Financial Accounting. The first step in the accounting process is the identification of
business transaction. Every activity of financial nature having documentary evidence,
capable of being presented in numerical, monetury term causing effect on assets,
liabilities, capital, revenue and expenses is termed as business transactions.

Special features of business transactions are as under :

(1) Businecss transactions must be financial in nature.
(/7) Business transactions must be supported by documentary evidence.
(ifi) Business transactions must be presented in numerical monctary terms.
(iv) Business transactions must cause an effect on ‘assets, liabilitics, capital. revenue
and expenscs.

Business transactions as such refer to business activities involving transfer ol
money or goods or services between two parties or two accounts. Purchase and sale
of goods, receipts of income, etc, are business transactions. Business transactions may
be both cash or credit. :

2. Asscts

The valuable things owned by the business are known as assets. These are the
properties owned by the business. Assets are the economic resources of an enterprise
which can be expressed in monetary terms. In the words of Prof. R.N. Anthony,
“Assets are valuable resources owned by a business which were acquired at a
measurable money cost” The most important assets are :

(a) Fixed assets

These assets are acquired for long term use in the business. They are not meant
for sale. These assets increase the profit earning capacity of the business. Expenditurce

-on these assets js not regular in nature. Land and building, plant and machinery,

vehicles and furniture, etc. are some of the examples of fixed asscts.

(b) Current assets . '

These assets, also known as circulating, fluctuating or floating assets. They
change their values constantly. In the words of Institute of Certified Public .
Accountants, USA, “Current assets include cash and other assets or resources,
commonly identified as those which are -reasonably expected to be realised in.
cash or sold or consumed during the normal operating circle of the business.”

| 1t should be noted that certain assets, which are popularly known as tixed may prove

lo be current by virtue of their specific use such as :

(i) Land will be current assets in the hands of land developers and property
dealers.
' ‘(ii) Building with the builders and property dealers.
(iif) Plant and Machinery with the manufacturers and dealers of plant and machinery.
(iv) Furniture with the furniture dealers and furnishers.
(v) Shares and Debentures with the dealers in securities.
It should be taken care of that assets meant for regular purchase and sale are
always current assets.

Z




(¢} Fictitious assets , ' - Meaning and Scope of
- . Accounting

Fictitions assets are those assels, whzch do not have physical form They do
not have any real value. Actually, they are not the real assets but they are called
assets on legal and technical ground. These assets are the revenue expenditure of
capilal nature which are also termed as deferred revenue expenditure. The example . NOTES
of these assets are loss on issue of shares, advertising suspense and preliminary
expenses, etc. l*ictmous assets do not have real ‘value, 5o they are written. off in the

future.

. () Tangible assets .

Traditional View : Assets having physical existence which -can be seen and
touched are known as tangible assets. These assets are land building, plant, equipment,
furniture, stock ete.

‘Alternative Viéw : In a court testunony in USA, it was argued that tanglble assets
should not.be allowed to mean assets having physical construction only because there
are certain assets, such as c_ash cash equivalent and receivables which do not have
physical construction but even then treated as tangible assets. It finally emerged that
all assets where revenue generation is certain should be treated as tangible assets.
The examplés of these assets are building, plant, equipment, furniture, stock, receivable
cash, cash equivalents such as treasury bills, commercial papers and money market ' .
funds. , : , ' '

On the other hand, in the case of assets like goodwill, patent or copyright the
revenue generation is assumed to be uncertaip. That is why they are put in the
category of intangible assets.

" (e) Intangible assets

These are the assets which are ‘not normally purchased and sold in the open
market such as goodwill and patents. It does not mean that these assets are never
purchased and sold. They may be purchased and sold in spec1a1 circumstances. Payment
for patents can be made to reputed manufacturers of the country and abroad. Payments
for patents is mostly made in case of rredicines. While purchasing the business of
other firms payment for goodwill is made. Goodwill may also be raised in. case of
admission or retirement of partner. It is also preferable to write off goodwill and
patents accounts and not to show in the balance sheet.

() Wasting assets
Assets, ‘whose value -goes on declining with the passage of time are known as
wasting assets. Mines, patents and assets. taken on lease are its examples.

(¢g) Liquid assets ¢ o
Liquidity refers to convertlblhty in cash. Liquid assets, therefore are those assets,

which can'be converted into cash at short notice. The examples of liquid assets are

cash in hand, cash at bank, debtors, bills receivable, etc. In other words, liquid assets

are current assets less stock i.e.,

Liquid Assets = Current Assets — (Stock + prepaid expenses)

3. Capltal

It is that part of wealth' which is uscd for further production and thus capital
consists of all current assets and fixed assets. Cash in hand, cash at bank, building,
" plant and furniture. etc. are the capitel of the business. Capital need not necessarily
be in eash. It nay be in kind also. Capital may be classified as follows.

Self-lnstrucu:onal Muateriel 9
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‘| 4. Equity or Liglbility

(a) Fixe(i capftal

- The amount invested in acquiring fixed assets is called fixed capltal The money

is blocked in fixed assets and not available to meet fhe current liabilities. Thé amount
spent on purchase or extension or addition to the fixed assets is fixed capital. Plant

and machinery, vehicle, furniture and building, etc. are some of the examples of ﬁxed
capital. .
® I‘loating capital

Assets purchased with the intention. of sales such as stock and investments are
lermed as floating capital. - :

(©) Workmg capital

The part of capital avallable with the firm for day-to-day working of the business
is known as working capital. Sufficient funds are required for purchasing goods and
incurring direct and indirect -expenses. Operational expenses are met with working
capital. Current assets and current liabilities constitute working capitdl. Current assets
consmt of cash in hand, cash at bank, bills receivable, debtors, stock in hand, etc. and

¥

_credxtors bills payable,, short term loan, income received in advance and outstanding

expenses are the current liabilities. Working capital can also be expressed as under :-

Working Capital = Current Assets — Current Liabilities

Liabilities are the obligations or debts payable by the enterprise in future in the
form of money or goods. It is the proprietors’ and creditors’ claim against the assets
of the business. Creditors may be classified as creditors- for goods and crediters for
expenses. The business should have sufficient current assets to meet its current
liabilities and reasonable. amount of fixed assets to meet its fixed liability. Liabilities can
be classmed as under :

'|-Classification of:Liability--

O

Liability to Owners or Liability to Creditors
Owners Equity (Capital) or Creditors Equity

Creditors for goods Creditors for loan Creditors. for expenses

t L
Note. Accaumants in USA use the term equity to denote liabilities and capi:al )

(a) Llabllzty to owners. It is the owner’s claim against the assets of the business,
generally known as capital. It is technically known as internal equ1ty or shareholder’s
funds. It may also be expressed as under :

Owner’s equity or Internal equity = Capital + Profit earned + Retained earning
' (Shareholders’ funds) + Undistributed profit + Interest on Capital
- Drawings - Expenses.



(6) Creditors’ equity. It is creditors’ claim against the assets-of the busmess
These creditors may be creditors for goods and creditors for expenses :

(7)) Creditors ﬂ)l goods. Business has to purchase goods on credit, so the suppliers of
goods to the business on credit are known as creditors for goods. They may be C'tllcd
as creditors and bills payable.

i < editors Jor loan. These creditors are the parties, banks and other financial
institutions. The liability is named as Bank loan, Bank overdraft, Loan from Industrial
Finance Corporation, Industrial Development Bank of India and World Bank.

(#ii) Creditors for expenses. Certain expenses may concern the accounting period but |

may remain unpaid. These expenses may be outstanding salaries, rent due and wages
unpaid. It is the current liability of the business.”

Liabilities can also be classified as fixed, current and contingent liabilities.
(a) Fixed liability. These liabilities are paid after a long period. Capital, loans,
debentures, mortgage, ctc. are its examples. These are not current liabilities.

(b} Current habtlzrzes Liabilities payable within a year are termed as current
liabilities. The value of these liabilities goes on changing. Creditors, bills payable and
outstanding expens®s, etc.: are current liabilities.

(c) Contingent habzittte.s These are not the real liabilities. Future events can only
decide whether it is really a liability or not. Due to their uncertainty, these liabilities
are termed as contingent (doubtful) liabilities, Important examples of contingent ltabﬂttles
are as under : :

(i} Value of bills discounted.
(i7) Cases pending in the court of law.
(iif) Guarantees undertaken, .

The value of contingent liabilities is not shown in the amount column at the
iabilities side of balance sheet. It is clearly mentioned as a note inside/outside the
alance sheet.

_Liabilities are also classified as long term liabilities and short term liabilities :

(a) Long term liabilities. Liabilities payable after a period of one year such as term
loans and debentures are long term liabilities.

(b) Short term liabilities. Obligations payable within a period of one year, such as’
creditors, bills payable and overdraft, etc., are short term liabilities.

. Financial Statements/Final Accounts.

Statemnents prepared by an enterprise at the end of accounting year to assess the
atus of income and .assets is termed as Financial Statement/FinaI Accounts. It is
itegorised as Income Statement and Position Statement tradtt:onally known as Profit’
1id Loss Account and Balance Sheet.

Accounting Equation

- Accountiug rotales around three basic terms. These terms are Assets, Liabilities
d Capital. The true 1nter-relattonsh1p between these terms is represented as Accounting
juations i.e.,

Assets = Liabilities + Capital

Goods

Articles purchased for sale at profit or processing by the business or for use in

: manufacture of certain other goods as raw material are known as goods. In other

Mecaning and Scupe of
Accounting
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words, goods are the commodities, in which the business deals. Furniture will be good
for the firm dealing in furniture but it will be an asset for the firm dcalmg in stationern
Amiericans use the term ‘merchandise’ for goods.

8. Cost

Expenditures incurred in acquiring, manufacturing and processing goods to mak
it sale worthy are termed as cost of goods. It includes purchases of fradeable good:

raw materials and direct expenses incurred in acquiring and manufacturing goods.

9, Purchases

In its routine business, the firm has to either purchase finished goods for sale o
purchase of raw material for the manufacture of the article, being sold by the firn
The acquisition of these articles are purchases. The purchase of 10,000 metres of sill
by Naro, & cloth merchant is termed as purchases in the business. In the same way
the purchases of ten fans by Kevi, a dealer in electrical appliances for use in th
cooler being assembled in his factory will also be the purchases. It is immateriz
whether goods have been purchased for cash or on credit. They may be purchase
within the country or imported from abroad. Purchases of assets, are not the purchase
in accounting terminology as these assets are not meant for sale.- '

" Proper, complete and systematic record of the purchases is essential ‘as the cos
price of goods is based upon it. Purchases must be made at competitive rates.

10. Sales

The ultimate end of the goods purchased or manutactured by the business is thei
sales. It includes both cash and credit sales. In accounting terminology, sale
means the sale of goods, never the sale of assets, sales should have a regular feature
The sales of ten sofa sets by Amenla, a furniture is sales but sale of old furniture b
Akho, a stationery dealer' will not be a sale. Sales may be effected within the countr:
or exported abroad.

The maintenance of proper and complete record ‘of sales is necessary, because th
“profit or 1085 is associated with the amount of sales. It should be the sincere effos
of cvery business to purchase goods at competitive rates and make sales at rcasonabl
higher rates to earn more profit. Tl
11. Purcnases ieturn or Returns outward .

It is that part of the purchases of goods, which is returned to the seller. This retur
inay be due to unnecessary, excessive and defective supply of goods. It may als
result, if the supplier violates the terms and conditions of the order and agrcement. I

i
-—_—

" order o calculate net purchases, purchases return is deducted from purchases. Purchase

returns are, also known as returns outward, because it is the return of goods outsid
the business.
12. Sales return or Returns inward

It is that part of sales of goods which is actually returned to us by purchasers. Thi

return may also be due to excessive, unnecessary and defective supply of goods o
violation of terms of agreement. Sales return, also known as returns inward is deducte

from sales, in order to calculate net sales.
13. Stock

The goods available with the business for sale on a particular date is termed a
stock. It varies i.e., increases or decreases and goes on changing. In accounting, wi
use the term stock widely as opening and closing stock. In case of business which i



being carried on for the last so many, years, the value.of goods on the opening day
of the accounting year is known as opening stock. In the same way, the value of goods
on the closing day of the accounting year will be closing stock. For example, Avi and
Sons started their business on Jan. 1, 2006 and decided to close their books on 31st
December every year. The firm will not have any opening stock on Jan. 1, 2006,
_because the business did not exist before Jan.'1, 2006. If the firm has goods worth
‘Rs. 50,000 on 31st December, 2006, it will be the closing stock on this date. On

January 1, 2007, the closing stock of December 31, 2006 will be the opening stock of .

the year 2007. It should always be kept in mmd that stock is valued at cost price or
market price, whichever is lower.
In case of manufacturing enterprises-stock is classified as under :

(i} Stock of raw material. Raw material required for manufacturing of the product
in which the business deals is known as stock of raw material. Cotton in case
of cotton mlu is'its example.

(i) Work in progress. It is the stock of partly finished or partiy menufactured
goods just as price of thread and unfinished cloth in case of cotton mill..

(iii) Stock of finished goods. Manufactured and finished goods ready for sale are

known as stock of finished goods. Finished cloth is its example.

14. Expenses

Expenses are cost incurred by the business in the process of earming revenues.
Genlerating income is the foremost objective of every business. The firm has to use
certain goods and services to produce articles, sold by it. Payment for these goods and
services are called expenses. Cost of raw material for the manufacture of goods or
the cost of goods purchased for sale, expenses incurred in manufacturing o: acquiring

. goods, such as wages, carriage, freight and amount spent for selling and cistributing.

goods such as salaries, rent, advertising and insurance, etc. are known as expenses
in accounting terminology. According to Finney and Miller, “Expense is the cost of
use of things or services for the ‘purpose of generating revenue. Expenses are
voluntarily incurred to generate income”. '

15. Losses : .

Losses are unwanted burden which the business is forced to bear. Loss of goods
due (o theft or fire, or flood or storm or accidents are termed as losses in accounting.
Losses are different from expenses in the sense that expenses are yoluntarily incurred
" to generate income where losses are forced to bear. ’ :

Losses may be classified as normal and abnormal. Normal-loss is due to the
inherent weakness in the commeodities i.e., coal, cement, oil, ghee, ice, petrol. There
will be shortage in their weight due to leakage, meltage, cva'poration; spoilage and
wastage during the journey. Abnormal loss en the other hand, is an extra orcinary loss
duc to earthquake, fire, flood, storm, theft and accidents.

Losscs adversely affect the profit of the business, so it should be the sincere effort
of every firm to adopt preventive measures to minimise. logses.

16. Profit _
- Excess of revenue over expense is termed as profit. In other words excess of sale
proceeds over cost of goods sold is income. Here, sales means ‘net sales i.c., sales

less sales return. Cost of goods sold. also known as cost of sales is opening .,tock plus
net purchases plus direct cxpenses loss closing stock. Income must be- regular in

Meaning and Scope of
Accounting
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nature. It miust concern routine activities of the business. It is always the parl of
revenue receipt. It must relate to the business of the current vear, It is shown at the
credit side of profit and loss A/c. Profit is generated through business activities.
17. Income S

Increase in the net worth of the enterprise either from business activities or other
activities is termed as income. Income is a wider term, which includes profit also.
From accounting point of view, income is the positive change in the wealth of the
enterprise over a period of time.

18. Debtors - _ , .

The term ‘debtors’ represents the persons or parties who have purchased goods
on credit from us and have not paid for the goods sold to them. They still owe to the
business. For example, if goods worth Rs. 20,000 have been sold to Adi, he will
continue to remain the debtor of the business so far as he does not make the full
payment. In case, he makes a payment of Rs. 16,000, he will remain to be debtor for
Rs. 20,000 — Rs. 16,000 = Rs. 4,000. ' : '

In case, the firm is a service institution and the payment for service still remains
to be fea]iséd, beneficiaries of the service will also be known as ‘debtors’.

19. Creditors o

In addition, to tash purchases the firm has to make credit purchases also. The
sellers of goods on credit'to the firm are known as its creditors for goods. Creditors
are the liability of the business. They will continue to remain the creditors of the firm
so far the full payment is not made to them. Liability to creditors will reduce with the
payment made to them.

Creditors may also be known as creditors for expenses. In case, certain cxpenses

“such as salaries, rent, repairs, efc. remain unpaid during the accounting period, it will.

be termed as outstanding expenses. Parties rendering these services will be our creditors.
Creditors are current liability so the firm should have sufficient current assets to. make
their timely payment. ' ‘
20. Receivables )

- ‘Receivable means, what business has to receive from outside parties on revenue
account. When we sell goods on credit, purchasers are known as debtors. Certain
debtors accept bills drawn by us and become part of bills receivable. The total of
Debtors and Bills Receivable is-known as Receivables. These are current assets and
realised within a year. Receivables are showryat the assets side of the Balance Sheet.

21. Payables ,

Payable means, what the business has to pay to outside parties. When we purchase
goods on credit, sellers are known as creditors. We accept bills drawn by cert_ain _
creditors, which becomes a part of Bills Payable. The total of Creditors and Bills -
Payable is termed as Payables. It is shown at the liabilities side of the Balance Sheet. |

22. Proprietor

An individual or group of persons who undertake the risk of the business are
known as proprietor. They invest their funds into the business as capital. Proprietors
are adventurous persons who make arrangement of land, labouir, capital and organisation.
They pay wages to labour, rent to land, interest to capital and salary to organisation.



After meeting all the expenses of business, if there remains any surplus, it is known

as proﬁl The proprietor is rewarded with profit for the risk undertaken by him. If
cxpenscs exceed revenue the deficit is a foss to_be borne by the proprietor.

In casc ol profil, proprietor’s. capital increases and in case of loss the capital
decreases. Proprietor is an individual in case of sole trade, partners in case of partnership
firms and shareholders in case of company.

23. Drawings

Admount or goods withdrawn by the proprietor for his private or personal use-

is termed as drawing: The cost of using business assets for private or domestic use
is also drawing. Use of business car for domestic use or use of business premises for
residential purpose is also drawing. Acquiring personal assets with business funds is
also drawing. Certain «examples of drawings are as under :

{¢) Amount withdrawn by proprictor for personal use.

(b} Goods taken by the proprietor fqr domestic use.

{¢) Purchasing pocket transistor for proprietor’s son.

(¢/) Using business vchicles for domestic use,

(¢) Using business premises for residential purpose
24. Accounting Year

Books of accounts are closed annually. From the balances of different ledger
accounts we prepare income statement and posifion statement. Income statement
shows gross and net income of the business. Position statement, traditionally known
as Balancc Sheet is a mirror, which reflects the. true value of assets and liabilities on
a particular date. There is no legal restriction about the accounting year of sole
proprictorship and partnership firm. They may adopt the accounting year of their
choice. It may be between January st to December 31st of the same year or July
ist of the yeaf to June 30th of the next year or between two Diwalis or even financial
year, i.e., April Ist to March 31st of the next year. The only restriction is that the
accounting period must consist of 12 months. -

Companies must adopt financial year as their accounting year,

25. Entry '

An enlry is the systematic record of business transactions in the books of accounts.
While passing entries, the principle ‘every debit has got its corresponding credit’ is
adopted. Different accounts are debited and credited in the entry with the same
amount.

26. Vouchers

Accounting transactions must be supported by documents. These documentary
proofs in support of the transactions are termed as vouchers. It may be a receipt, cash
-memo, invoice, wages bill, salaries bill, deeds or any document as an evidence of
transaction having taken place. The contents of vouchers are date, amount paid,
purpose of the payment. pdyment passed by competent authority, payment made and
cancelled. Vouchers are the basis of accounting records. They facilitate accounting.
Vouchers are also-used for verification and auditing of business records. Vouchers
may afso b¢ used for detecting embezzlement and frauds.

. Meaning and Scope.of'
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27. Insolvent

All business firms who have bcen suffermg losses for the last many years and are
not even capable of meeting their liabilities out of their assets are fi inancially unsound.
Only the court can declare the business firm as insolvent if it is satisfied that the
continuation of the firm will be against the interest of the public or creditors. No firmi
can declare itself as insolvent. In case of solvency, the assets of the business are sold
and liabilities paid with the funds realised from the sale of assets. If the funds rcallsed _

fall short of the liabilities creditors are paid proportionately.

28. Solvent . _ . .

Solvent are those persons and firms who are capable of meeting their liabilities out
of their own resources. Solvent firms have sufficient funds and assets to meet proprietors’
and cfeditors’ claim. Selvency shows the financial soundness of the business.

29, Gam ' E : o .

) Change in the- net worth (equlty) due to change in_the form and- place of goods
and holding of assets for a long period, whether realised or unrealised is termed as
gain. It may | cither be of capital nature or revenue nature or both ' ;

30 Expcndlture

Expenditure is the amount of resources consumed. It is long term in pature. It is
the benefitto be derived i in future. It is the amount spent for the purchase of assels. -
Expendltures can be made through cash, or exchanged for other assets or commodities ‘
or a promise to make the payment is made. Expenditures increase the profit earning
capacity of the business and profit is expected from thcm in future. Expenditures arc
incurred to acqulre assets of the busmess

REVIEW QUESTIONS

i

A. Very Short Answer Type Queétions :

1. Define accountancy’
2. What is the accounting year of the company ’?
- 3. Mention two advantages of accounting.
4, Name the document, which is used as a source document for recordmg business
transactions. . '
5. ‘State the meaning of Book-keeping.
B. Short Answer Type Questiohs :
1. DefineBook-keeping.
. 2; Mention the objectives of Accounting in about 50 words.

3: Describe the steps in Book -keeping process

-| C.-Long Answer Type Questnons

1. Whatis accountmg 7 Explain its objectives. -

2, What is meant l?y ‘Book-keeping ? In ‘what respects book-keeping is dlfferen( from -
accounting ? .,

3. Explain whether accountil_lg-is science or art or both,

4. Explain briefly the advantages of accountanoy. o _ )

/



CHAPTER 2 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

% Introduction

tr Meaning of GAAP
¢ Basic Accounting Concepts

INTRODUCTION

The business today is large in size and complex in nature. There are various.

groups who_are interested in the performance of the business such as sharcholders,
debenture holders; investors, employees and consumers, etc. Accounting, in this way,

is required to report and present the facts of the business in such a way, which can |

meet the varied requirements of different groups. It is, therefore, necessary that the
language and terminology of accounting may be standardised so that there may be
‘uniformity in the presentation of accounts. The idea requires scientific study, analysis

and presentation of Accounts.

MEANING OF GAAP

Generally Accepted Accounting Principleé (GAAP) are the set of rules.and practices
that are followed while recording transactions and preparing the financial statements,
GAAP build sound theoretical foundation of Accounting. ' '

According to American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).
GAAP have substantial authoritative supphort and general acceptability. GAAP must be
relevant (meaningful), objective (feliable) and feasible (implemented without much
cost-and complexity).

Accounting is the systematised body of knowledge having cause and effect relationshi;i.
The subject has certain established concepts, conventions, standard language and
terminology to enable the interested parties in the subject to understand it in the same
sense as the accountant wants to communicate. These rules are usually called Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Accounting assumptions, rule of recording
and reporting business transactions are also known by terms like concepts, principles,
conventions, doctrines, tenets. axioms postulates, assumptions and modifying principles.

The Principles of Accounting are not static in nature. These are constantly influenced
by changes in legal, social and economic environment as well as the needs of the
users. The various terms for principles are inter-changeably used by different authors.
Generally the term ‘Basic Accounting Concepts’ is used to refer all these terms.

Accounting Principles
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BASIC ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS

The fundamental ideas or basic concepts underlying the theory and practice of
financial accounting and broad working rules for all accounting activities; developed by
professionals are listed and discussed below : - .

BASIC ACCOU-NTING' CONCEPTS

- 1. Business Entity Concept.
2. Money Measurement Concept.
3. Going Concern Concept.
4, Accounting Period Concept.
~ 5. Dual Aspect (or Duality) Concept.

These concepts are the foundation of systematic and’ proper accounting. Every
business enterprise must adopt these concepts, popularly known as pillars upon which
the sound structure of accounting stands. Let us discuss these basic concepts :

1. Business Entity Concept

In accounts, we distinguish between the business and its proprietors. Business is -

assumed to have distinct entity /.e., existence other than the existence of its
proprietors and other business units. As an accountant, we are concerned with
the business not the businessman, We have to record business transactions from firm’s
point of view and. never from the viewpoint of proprietors. We record transactions in
the books of shop. establishment, factory, firm, company and enterprise and never in
the books of proprietor, partners and shareholders. While making decisions regarding
asset, liability, capital, revenue and expense, business viewpoint is taken into consideration.

The capital introduced by the pfoprietor in its own business is considered liability:
from business point of view. It will not be a liability if proprietor’s viewpoint is taken.
The logic behind treatment of cépital as liability is that the firm has borrowed funds

|- from its own proprietors instead of borrowing it from outside parties. It would have
been a liability if the funds would have been borrowed from outside agency, then why

not, if it is being invested by the proprietor himself. We also allow interest on capital
lo the proprietors because capital is suppo;:ed to be a-liability. Interest on capital is an
expense of the business, therefore, it will reduce the profit of the firm. It is at the
same time proprietor’s claim against the business, so it will increase his capital.
Amount withdrawn by the proprietor for personal use, known as drawings_, is. assumed
to be the assets of the business and at the same time a liability to the proprietor.

The business as a distinct entity records all business transactions into the books
of Accounts and reports the result to the proprietor in case of sole trade; partners in

case of parlnersﬁip firn;{s and shareholders' in case of company. There is a legﬁl

divorce -between the ownershiip and management of a company. The company is’
owned by shareholders but managed by the elected representatives of the shareholders

i.e., directors. Accounts are prepared by the management and a copy of the financial
statemcnlts is supplied to the sharcholders, the owners of the company for information.



“Every accountant whether he is concerned with a petty shop or a firm or a compariy
or a big business house will have to compulsorily adopt the concept of business entity
in his accounting operations. - :
chaﬂy a sole proprietor or the partner of a parmersth firm are not .scparaze
from their business units but in Accounting the business units are assumed to
have distinct entity. Accountmg entity is different from business entity. Accounting

‘ent'it}.f is wider term including business, clubs, institutions, public enterprises, local |

bodies and government, etc.

2. Money Measurement Concept

In accounting, we identify and record only those business transactions which are |

financial in nature. Accounting transactions must have their monetary value. The
~ worth of the transaction must be measured in terms of money. In all the accounting

records. we have amount column showidg rupees and paise. There is never any
accounting record in metres, litres, kilograms and quintals. We evaluate the value of
the commodities in terms of money and accordingly record them in the books of
accounis. Recoréing transactions in monetary terms makes the mformation more meaningful.
For example, statement that the business was started with Rs. 50,000 cash and 20,000
metres of silk is mcaningless and fails to tell-us the capital of the business. If the value
of 20.000 metres of silk is estimated to be Rs. 5,00,000, we can safely say that the
business was started with Rs. 50,000 + 5,00,000 = 5,50,000, which will be meaningful.

‘The concepl of money measurement is not free from problems when we integrate the
financia! statements of an entity having operations in more than one nation.
3. Going Concern Concept '

While recording‘business transactions in the books of accounts, we assume that
the business will be carried on indefinitely. That is why, the business purchases
{ixed assets like land and building, plant and machinery, vehicles, furniture, etc. If the

concept of going concern is not there, we would have hired these assets and not -

purchased. These assets bave been acquired for use and not for sale, so we maintain
individua! assets account and charge necessary depreciation on it."

According to International Accounting Standard “The enterprise is normally

viewed as a going concern, that is as continuing in operation for the forescable
S It is viewed that the enterprise has an intention to be carried on for longer
period. The concept of assets, liabilities, capital, revenue and expenses used in the
accounting operation prove that the firm has to last long. Planning, organssing and
personne! policies substantiate the fact that the business has been assumed to be going
entity. It is binding upon every accountant to treat business activity as a continuing
process and record transaction accordingly.
4. Accounting Period Concept

Strictly speaking, the result of the business can be estimated at the end of its life.
If a firm was starled with a capital of Rs. 50,000 and at the end of its life thé capital
was Rs. 5,00.000 we can say that the firm earned a profit of Rs. 4,50,000 ie.,

5.00.000 - 50,000 during its life. In this way, business as a going eniity will continue
indefinitely and wé will have to wait for a very long period to estimate the financial

" Accounting Principles
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Financial Accounting - regult of the busmess It will be too late to wait for the results, so the life span of
accounting should be split into shorter and convenient period. At present, accountmg
periods are regarded as tWere months. According to the Companies Act and Bankmg

. Regulation Act, accounting period should consist of twelve months. The period of
_NOTES . twelve months is regarded as ideal and convenient period for accounting.

5. Dual Aspect {or Duality) Concept

Every business transaction has double éffect. There are two sides of every transaction,
This is evident when we study the accounting term re., assets, capital and liabilities.
(i) Assets. These are the valuable articles owned bi{ the business. Expenditure
“incurred in acquiring valuable things for the firmm is assets. Special features of
assets are that they arec meant for use in-the business and' will increase the
profit earning capacity of the business. Cash -in hand, cash at bank, land and
.buildings, furniture, vehicles; etc. are the assets of the firm. It has been an

* established fact that no business.can be carried on without .assets. Business as
. a separate entity and going concern must. possess certain assets. '

(z‘i) Capital. Capital is that part of wealth which is used for further producuon In
the context of dual aspect concept capital supplies necessary fiffids- to the
business to purchase certain assets. In the absence of capital,-there will bc no
funds with fhe enterprise and thus the question of acquiring assets does not -
arise. ‘If we ‘take it from business’ point of view, proprietor’s capital is the
liability of the busmess Capital réceived in cash represents two accounts, capjtal
and cash. Capital is the proprietor’s.claim against the assets of the business and-

o . the cash is the asset of the business itself. As the amount of the two '1ccounts

" are the same, we can safely conclude that : !

Al

rCapita‘l = Assets. —

.- ' . " | (i) Liabilities. If the capital invested by the proprietor falls short the business has
: to borrow funds. Thus the loan on the one side is the. liability of the firm and
on the other side.it will be in the form of cash or other assets. The amount
~ represented by both loan and assets are equal. This transac'tion enables us to
think about the two aspects so it is called dual aspect concept or double entry
system. All the assets of the business are acquired by the funds contributed by
the proprietors* and creditors, so it is always correct to.conclude as under : .

Capital + Liabilities = Assets.

The relanonshlp between assets, habllmes and capital is at present known as
Accounting Equat:on which can also be cxpressed as under :

| ) Assets = Capital + Liabilities
' ' . Or 7
Capital = Assets — Liabilities
Or
Liabilities = Assets - Capital

We record all the busmess fransactlons on the basis of dual aspect and call the system’
as double em‘ry system
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REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions :
1. Give an cxample of a transaction w.
businessman. '
2. Name the concept responsible for the origin of ‘Double Entry System’.
fention the concept on which the statement is based.

hich may be an expense for business and income for the

3 'Business. units last indefinitely’. Me
C. Short Answer Type Questions = L
1. tixplain Business Entity concepts. g
2. Lixplain the concepts of moneyimeasurcmenl.
3. Explain briefly the principle of Double Entfy System.
D. Long Answer Type Questions : 7
1. Explain the following : '
(@) Money measurement concept, (D) Accounting'
{) Dual aspect. ’
. 2. Explain the following with examples : .
(a) Money measurement concept, (b) Dual aspect, (c) Accounting period. v

period concept, () Going concern concept.

i
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CHAPTER 3 SOURCE DOCUMENTS.AND
' ACCOUNTING CYCLE

NOTLS

¥ Introduction:

v Source Doguments i
% Vouchers ' C |
vt Contents of Accdunting Vouchers

2 Accounting Equation/Cycle

% Computalion——CIas'siﬁcation of Transactions

INTRODUCTION

Origin of Transaction

We know that Accountancy is based upon verifiable objcctives. The assumption
cxplains that accounting deals with facts. There is no place for imaginatious, cxpectations
and possibilities in accounting, '

We record financial transactions in the books of accounts, when they actually
happen and that too supported by documents. There must be certain written and
authentic proof of the transaction, which has taken place. The written document is
known as *voucher’. the source docurnent upon which we basc our accounting records.

Source Documents/Vouchers _ ] i

. A document which becomes the basis for recording a transaction in the books
of account is called source document. These documents show the nature and amount
of the iransaction and named vouchers. '

. Youchers are the receipts, bills, cash memos, invoices, salaries bills, wages bills.
travelling allowance bills, counterfoils of cheques, regis{ralion deeds. and any other
form of written prool that the transaction has actually taken place and can be verificd
' from the documents. Whenever we sell goods. we prepare invoice for sending poods-

out of station, bills for credit sales, and cash memos for cash sales. The original copy
is handed over or sent to the purchaser but the duplicate copy is kept s record in the
business.” These duplicate copies are the source documents for making record in our
books of accounts. In the same way. while making purchase we receive original copy

1s received. Workers and employees affix their signature on wages and salaries bills
On receiving their wages and salaries. Insurance Company. Delhj Lleetric Supply”
Undertaking (DESU), Water Works issue receipts for having received the payment.
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Buses, railways and airlines issue tickets on receiving payments. We receive receipts
even for petty and insignificant payment. These receipts are¢ the source documents for
accounting.records. The first step in accdunting is to identify the origin of the transaction
which is undoubtedly based upon decumentary evidence known as source documents.

SOURCE DOCUMENTS

Meaning .
- As we know Accounting deals in facts; which actually happen-and can be verified
by documentary evidence known as source documents.

1t shows that source docutents are real, visible, legible and meaningful records certifying
_the actual happening of the transactions of financial nature. In Accountancy, every
journal entry must be supported by source documents popularly known as vouchers.
Some important documerits are discussed herewith :

1. Cash Memo. It is a document indicating the amount, date and details of cash
purchases and cash sales, We receive cash memo on cash purchases and issue
cash memo on sales. On the basis of these cash merhos, cash'purchases, cash
sales and cash payments are recorded in the books. ' '

2. Invoices and Bills. These documents i.e., invoices and bills are used for credit
purchases and credit sales. In case of credit sale of goods we issue invoices/bills,
which indicaté the date, amount and details of sale. We prepare‘three copies of
invoice. The first copy is sent to the purchaser through post office or bank, the
secand copy is kept in the bundles, packets or cases of the goods, the third copy
is retained with us. The third copy is used as source document for recording
credit sale. In case of credit purchases of goods, we receive invoice or bills and

record credif purchases on its basis. i

3. Receipt. In case of receiving amount, we issue a receipt indicating the date and
amount of payment, details ol the payer and the purpose of payment. The counterfoil
or the carbon copy of the receipt issued is used as source document for the
reccipt of the amount. In the same way, when we make the payment, we are
issued receipts and record the payment in the books of Accounts.

"4, Pay-in-Slip. In case of depositing cash and cheques in the Bank, we have to fill
up Pay-in-Slip {Deposit slip). The main body of the Pay-in-Slip is retained by the
bank and the counterfoil duly signed and stamped is returned to the customer.
The counterfoil is used as the source document for recording the deposits.

5. Cheques. We issiie cheques against different payments. The counterfoil of the
cheque or notes on the cheque book containing details of the payment is used for
recording the payment or.withdrawal for self. Cheques received are deposited
into the bank through Pay-in-Slip, which is used as source document.

6. Dcbit Note. In case of the return of goods purchased on credit we issue Debit
Note to the seller, meaning that the Sellers® Account has been debited with the
amount of purchases return. This debit note is used as source document for
recording purchase return. A format of Debit Note is given as under :

Source Dacuments and
Acconnting Cycle

NOTES
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Name of the Firm Issuing the Note . :
' Address of the Firm

. Date of Issue

No. _
DEBIT NOTE
Against ; Supplier‘s'Name
Goods returned as per Delivery - Anmunt (Rs)
Challan No. ' '
(Details of goods returned) ‘
(Rupees ............... dnlyj

Signature of the Manager with date

7. Credit Note, In case of sales return by our customers we issue Credit Note to
them, meaning that the Customers Account is credited with the amount of sales
return. The Credit Note is used as source document. A format of Credit Note
is given-as under :

. CREDIT NOTE
Against : Customer’s Name )
- Goods returned by the customer Amount (Rs.)
Challan No. ‘
(Details of goods received)
{Rupees ... Only)

Name of the Firm Issuing the Note
Address of the Firm
Date of Issue

No.

Signature of the Manager with date

used as .source documents.

8. Miscellancous. Correspondence, registration deeds, wages, salaries, water, electricity,
telephone bills, tickets, conveyance bills, counterfoils and reccipts, etc. are also

VOUCHERS

Meaning
A voucher may be defined as a written document to be used in support of entry
made in the books of accounts. _
In the words of J.R. Batliboi, “A voucher may be defined as documentary
evidence in support of an entry appearing in the books of accounts”.
According to Ronald A. Irish, “4 voucher may 'be a reccipt, an invoice, an
agreement, written requisition slip or in short any suiteble written evidence
which confirms a written transaction.” : .




VYoucher No

Debit account .
Credit account
Amount (Rs)
Narration :
Authonsed By 3

Special Features. ()f Vouchers

(f) Vouchers are documentary evidence.

(if) Vouchers are written -document.

Transaction Voucher
Name of Firm

Date :

Preparcd By :

(iii) Vouchers support the entry appearing in the books of accounts
{iv) Vouchers present full description of the transaction.

(v) Vouchers substantiate the accuracy of entries in the books of accounts.

Examples of Vouchers

(i) Cash Receipts. Various vouchers of cash receipts are counterfoils, carbon |
copies of receipts issued, carbon copies of contracts made, correspondence etc.

(¢if) Cash Payment. Various vouchers of cash payméms arc cash memos, wage

sheets, salary register, copies of contracts, correspondence etc.

(iii) Purchases. Vouchers regarding purchases are invoices, copies of order sent,
goods inward books, correspondence, etc.
(iv) Sales. Copics of orders received, records of goods supplied, goods outward

book, correspondence, etc.

(v) Purchases Return. Goods outward book, letter of credit, correspondence, elc.

Preparation of Vouchers :

[ i?ormat of Accounting Vouchers

P W e &
<5 &% | Laxmi Publications Private Limited
i p 8 £ M
f & § z S 113, GOLDEN HOQUSE, DARYAGANI, NEW DELHI-
928 g 110002
f s~
! g | g g Voucher No. .......... Dated ............ 20
! 2| & . ;
; o Rs,
F H
: ' = |DEBIT
! |
1] g
.
i o
E &
il : 2 TOTAL Rs.
- E ‘ 2 |crepiT
a o v
. oL
w | :é
IR
B i & .
§ ‘ £ TOTAL Rs.
f = :
l ré Accountant/Manager M.D
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NOTES

CONTENTS OF ACCOUNTING VOUCHERS

Voucher is a documentary evidence of the transaction, so it must be prepared

carefully and cautiously. The voucher must be preferably printed. It should contain the

following information about the transactions.

1.

2.

Name and address of the firm. Every voucher should bear the name and
address of the firm at its top. It is generally printed at the top of the voucher.

Voucher number. Every voucher must bear its serial number, so that it can be

" easily identified, differentiated with other vouchers and relerred in the books of

accounts. Vouchers are serially numbered and their number is mentioned against
the posting in the ledger, ca_gh book and subsidiary books. ‘

Date. The date of preparing the voucher must be written. 1t must bear the date,
the month and the year of the transaction.

Details of party to be debited. It contains the name and‘addréss of the party,
whom payment has been made. The purpose and the details of the payment is
also recorded therein. In modern big business enterprises, voucher is prepared for
every transaction. As such, in these enterprises the debit side may contain the
name of the party to whom payment has been made. It may also ¢ontain the héad
of ‘account against which the payment has been made. It may be Purchases
Account, Assets Account and Expenses Account.

Details of party to be credltcd The payment is made either through Cash or
Cheque/Bank Drafl, so we record Cash Account or Bank Account, with the
number and date of issue of the cheque and bank draft. We may, also usc the
account to be credited at the credit column. _ )

Proof of receiving the amount. In case the payment is made through cash to
someone, his signature is obtained with full details of the amount, the purpose and
the date of payment received by him. )

In case paymcnt is made through crossed Account Payee cheque, receivers
signature is not necessary.

Revenue Stamp. Revenue stamp must be affixed on every pavment of Rs. 500/-
and more as per law, so that the document may be legalised. The signaturc of

the receiver must touch certain part of the revenuc stamp.

"Signature of the accountant and officer of the firm. Voucher must be signed

by the responsible person of the firm. He may be an accountant or manager.
After verification and authentication it must be signed by the proprictor of the
firm or any authorised officer of the enterprise.




Types of Vouchers

Vouchers may be classified as under :

I (;Iassiﬁcation of Voucheﬂ

A [Supponing B Accoumi:ﬂ
Vouchers _ Vouchers
I [ Toternat | 2] External | | Cash Vouchers |2[ Non-cash]|
Vouchers | Youchers Vouchers
(0 Debit Voucher (1) | Credit Voucher

{Cash Payment) (Cash Receipt)

A. Supporting Vouchers

These vouchers are prepared as documentary evidence in sup

port of transaction

, hz{ving taken place. These vouchers are classified as internal and external vouchers.

1. Internal Supporting Vouchers. These vouchers are prepared by the organisation

itself but authenticated and validated by third parties, such as counter foils of
pay-in-slip and challan, etc. '

2. External Supporting Vouchers. These vouchers are prepared by third parties
and sent to us such as bills, cash memo and invoice received from supplier of

goods. It may also.be rent receipt received from tand lord, debit note and credit

b

note, etc.

B. Aceounting Vouchers

The subsidiary or secondary vouchers prepared on the basis of supporting vouchers
issued by third parties is called accounting vouchers. It is prepared by the Accountant
and must be signed by the authorised signatory of the enterprise. Accounting vouchers
are classified as cash vouchers and non-cash vouchers.’ '

1. Cash Vouchers. The documentary evidence of cash payments and cash receipis
is known as cash voucher. Cash vouchers are classified as debit (payments)
voucher and credit (receipts) voucher.

(i) Debit (Payment) Voucher. The documentary evidence of cash payment is

(if)

known as debit voucher such as cash payment of salaries, cash purchases
of goods and assets, payment to creditors, employees and bank, etc. The

debit voucher may be based on supporting voucher. In case supporting
voucher is not available, the Receipt portion of the veucher is filled in and

used as supporting voucher.
It should be noted that if the payment is worth Rs. 500 or more, revenue

'stamp of Re. 1 must be affixed.

Credit (Receipt) Voucher. The documentary evidence of cash receipt is
known as credit voucher, such as cash receipt of interest, rent or any other

-income, cash sales of goods, assets and investments, amount withdrawn

from bank, loans borrowed, collection from debtors, etc.
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ACCOUNTING EQUATION/CYCLE _

Meaning

There has been a revolution in every field of knowledge. Scientific approach
towards every subject has emerged as a basic consideration to decide its utility.
Scientific studies were also made in accounting and result was the discovery of
‘Accounting Equation’. The study revealed that accounting rotates round the three
terms {.e., assets, liabilities and capital. The entire accounting structure is based upon
these three terms. These terms are inter-related and inter-woven. Before explaining .

"accounting equation let us discuss these terms

Analysis of Transactions

Assets, liabilities and capital are constituents of business transactions. Let us
discuss’ these elements : '

(a) Assets. The acceptable meaning of assets is the valuable things owned by the
firm. Expenditure for acquiring these valuable articles for use in the business is
also termed as assets. The assets are acquired for constant future use. They are

. not meant for sale. These assets increase the profit earning capacity of the _
. business. Some of the assets are listed as under :

(i) Cash in hand (viii) Plant and machinery
(if) Cash at bank _ (ix) Equipments and tools
" (iff) Sundry debtors or Book debts (x) Furniture and fittings
(iv) Bills receivables (xi) Patents, trade marks, etc.
.(v) Investments (xii) Goodwill .
(vi) Closing stock ' (xiii) Prepaid cicpenses
" (vii) Land and building (xiv) Accrued income

(&) Liabilities. Creditors’ and proprietors’ claim against the assets of business is
termed as its liability. Proprietor’s claim is termed as capital, which we shall be
. discussing later on. Liabilities are -also known as equities or claims. The term
liability means the claim of cutsiders against the business such as creditors for
. goods and expenses. Liability is the account for which the firm is indebted to
outside parties. Certain external liabilities are mentioned as under :
(7) Creditors for goods—sundry creditors and bills payable
(if) Creditors for expenses :
(o) Outstanding salaries
(6) Unpaid wages _
(c) Rent due but not paid.
(iii) Other liabilities :
(@) Bank loan or overdraft
(b) Partner’s loan )
(¢) Loan from Financial Institution, i.e., IFC, IDB], etc.
(d) Debentures o ‘ :
. -{e) Employees Provident F].m‘d
(/) Workmen’s Compensation Fund, etc.

B



Liabilities also go on changing. Their value either increases or decreases. In case
of increase the business will have to pay more and in case of decrease the

business will have to pay lesser.
(¢) Capital. It is the proprietor’s claim against the assets of the business. In case

of one man business the capital is.contributed by the proprietor himself. In case |

of partnership, capital is contributed by partners and in case of companies, shareholders
contribute for capital. Owners of the business are the contributors of the capital.

Owners are the entr gpreneurs of the'Business. They get profit of the business for
the risk taken by them. If certain’ amount of profit remains undistributed or
retained as reserve and funds, it is also known as propnetor 5 claim. Proprietor’s

claim can be enumerated as under :

(i) Capital

(i) Reserve, general reserve or reserve fund
(iif) Profit or retained earning

(iv) Interest on capital.
Explanation of Accounting Equation. Business transactions are financial in

nature and so every transaction affects the financial position of the business. These

transactions increase or decrease the assets, liabilities or capital. Every business has
. certain assets. These assets are purchased with the funds supplied to the business by
its proprietors or creditors. Proprietors’ and creditors’ funds, in whatever form they
are, create assels. For example, if the business receives Rs. 1,00,000 as capital from
the proprietor and retains that in the firm, it will create an asset i.e., cash in hand.
If Rs. 80,000 are deposited into the bank, the total capital will be represented by two
assets r.e., cash Rs. 20,000 (due to deposit into the bank of Rs. 80,000 out of a cash
balance of Rs. 1,00,000) and cash at bank Rs. 80,000. If furniture, worth Rs. 20,000
are purchased and payment is made out of bank deposit, the assets will now consist
of cash in hand Rs. 20,000, cash at bank Rs. 60,000 (due to purchase of furniture,
bank balance has reduced by Rs. 20,000) and fumiture Rs. 20,000. As such accounting
equation is a statement of equality between debits and credits. These above

facts can also be presented in this way :

Capital Assets
(i) Rs. 1.00,000 == Cash (Rs. 1,00,000)
(7)) Rs. 1,00,000 = Cash (Rs. 20,000) + Bank balance (Rs. 80,000)
(7i7) Rs. 1,00,000 = Cash (20,000) + Bank (60,000) + Furniture (20,000)

The above facts are technically known as Accounting Equations in simple form
and reveal that capital which is always equal to assets.

Increase in capital will generally result in the corresponding increase in the assets
and in the same way, decrease in capital will result in the decrease of assets. If the
» proprietor introduces Rs. 40,000 as additional capital there will be corresponding increase
in cash balance. As both capital and assets are increasing simultaneously with Rs.
40,000, the capital will remain equal to assets. Amount withdrawn by the proprietor
for personal use will decrease capital and there will be decrease in the cash, an asset
al the same time. I drawings are worth Rs. 10,000 both the capital and assels will
decrease simultaneously with Rs. 10,000.

-
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Introduction of Creditors® Liability in Accounting Equations

It has been accepted fact that business does not possess anything of its own. The
business receives funds from proprietors and creditors and retains all of them in the
form of various assets. This shows that capital + liabilities are always equal to assels.
The fact can be presented in terms of accounting equation as under :

Equation. Capital + Liabilities = Assets or C+L=A

or Assets = Liabilities + Capital or A=L+C

or .  Liabilities = Assets — Capital orm L=A-C

or Capital = Assets — Liabilities™ or C=A-L

or Assets — Liabilities — Capital = Zero or A - L - C = Zero.

COMPUTATION—CLASSIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS

- Assets, liabilities and capital are the three basic elements of every business transaction.
The relationship between these terms, as mentioned above in the form of Accounting
Equation remains unchanged. It has been a mathematical truth. No business transaction
can upset the relationship between these items. The inter-relationship of assets, liabilities

and capital results into nine transactions. These transactions show that change in one

element results in corresponding change in the same item or in other ¢lement. These

nine basic transactions are as under :

(3] Increase i assets with corresponding increase in capital.
(if) Increase in assets with corrésponding increase in liabilities.
(éii) Increase and decrease in assets.
(iv) Decrease in assets with corresponding decrease in liabilities.
(v) Decrease in assets with corresponding decrease in capital.
(vi) Increase and decrease in liabilities.
(vii) Increase and decrease in capital.
(viii) Increase in liabilities and decrease in capital.
(ix) Increase in capital and decrease in liabilities.
(/) Increase in asscts with corresponding increase in capital. Commencement

_of business with Rs. 20,000 increases both the assets and tapital of the firm.
At the same time, it will affect the financial position of the business as under :

Financial Position (Balance Shcet)

Liabilities Amount Assets . . Amount
Rs. ) Rs.
Capital 20,000 " Cash _ 20,000
Creditors ) _ '
20,000 , 20000




(if) Increase in assets with corresponding increase in liabilities. Purchase. of
goods on credit for Rs. 7,000 will increase stock of goods with Rs. 7,000 and
also increase creditors’ liabilities. The transaction will affect the financial position

as under ;' ,
Financial Position (Balance Sheet) -
L_:‘abilitfes Amount. . Assets Antount
Rs. ' ' Ry,
Capital 20,000 . Cash 20000
Creditors 7.000 Stock in trade 7.000
27,000 | 27,Q00

The position can be presented alternatively as-under :

. Assets = Liabilities + Capital
27,000 = 7,000 + 20,000 -

{iii) Incrcase and decrease in asscts. Purchase of

furniture ‘worth Rs. 3,060

involves furniture and cash, the two assets. The transaction will increase furniture
as an asset and decrease cash, also an’ asset. Increase and decrease in the
assets with ‘the same amount will not upset the equation. The {ransaction can
be expressed as {ollows - ’

Cash +
. 17,000 +

(iv) Deérease in asscts with corresponding decrease

Assets = Liabilities + Capital
-Stock  + Furniture ‘= Creditors + Capital
7000+ 3000 =. 7000 + 20000

in liabilities. Payment of

Rs. 2.000 to creditors will decrease creditors, the liabilities of the business and
al the same lime cash an asset will decrease. The decrease in assets and
liabilities simultaneously with the same afount will hold the Accounting Equation
true. The transaction will effect the Accounting Equatién as follows :

. Assets = Liabilities + Capital

Cash + Stock  + Furniture = Creditors + Capital

17,000 + 7000 - + 3000 = 7000 <+ 20,000
S2000 + 0 -+ 0 = (92000 +« 0

15000 + 7000  + 3,000 = 5000 +° 20000

(v)

Decrease in assets with corresponding decrcase in capital. Rs.'4,00-0

withdrawn by the proprietor for personal use will reduce capital and also cash,

an assel simultaneously with Rs. 4,000. The transaction still proves the validity

of Accountirig Equation as under :

)
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Assels =" Liabilities +° Capital

Cash + Stock  + Furniture = Creditors + Capital
15000 + 7,000 + 3000 = 5,000 + 20,000
4,000 + 0 + 0 = 0 4,000
1000+ 7000 + 3000 - 5000 + 16,000

The financial position of the business upto 5th transaction will be as under :

‘Financial Position (Balance Sheet)

Liabilities - Amount Assets . Arﬁoum
Rs. ' Rs.
Capital’ 16,000 Furniture ) . 3,0_00
" Creditors < 5000 Stock 7,000
Cash 11,000
21,000 : 21,000

“(vi) Increase and decrease in liabilities. Creditors for goods sometimes draw a

bill of exchange on us as per the arrangement of the payment. After acceptance
of the bill, the payment becomes due for payment after the expiry of certain
specified period. Acceptance of the bill reduces creditor’s liability and creates
another liability, known as bills payable, the bill whose payment has to be made.
If we accept a bill for Rs. 1,500 creditors will be reduced to Rs. 5,000 - 1,500 =
3,500 and fresh liability known as Bills Payable will come into our records. The
transaction will affect the financial position of the business as under :
Financial Position (Balance Sheet) -

Liabilities Armount ' Assets Amount
" Rs. \ ) . Rs.
Capital 16,000 Cash , . 11,000
Creditors - 3,500 Stock in trade - 7,000
Bills payable 1,500 Fumniture . " 3,000
21,000 - 21,000,
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The above position can alternatively be presented as under :

Assets = Liabilities _ + Capital
Cash  + Stock + Furniture = Creditors = + Bills payable + Capital
11,000 + 7,000 + 3,000 . = 3,500 + 1,500 - + 16,000.

(vii) Increase and decrease in capital. Certain transactions involve capital only,
such as transfer of share of the company from one shareholder to another
shareholder. In this case, the capital of the company will increase and decrease
with the same amount and this will remain unchanged. There will be change in
the name of shareholder which will be recorded in the transfer register of the
company. Interest on capital is another item affecting capital only. Proprietors



capital w1ll Increase with the amount of intérest allowed to him. Interest on
capital is the expense of the business, so it will have to be borne by the’
proprietor and thus_charged out of capital account. The net result will be an
increase and decrease in capital simultaneously with the same figure and accounting
equation will still prove to be true, Fmanclal position of the business will remain

unchanged. .

(viif) Increase in liabilities and decrease in capital. In certain cases, capital may
" be converted into loan, as a liability. Such transactions may happen, when a
partner retires from the firm'and the capital refundable to him is transférred to
his loan- account. In this case, the firm will be showing partner’s loan as a
liability instead of partner’s capital. In case of death of a partner amount
payable to the legal inheritor of the deceased partner is transferred to partner’s
executor’s loan account. This transaction will also decrease capital and increase
liability. If Rs. 5,000 are transferred from capital account to loan account the
financial position will be as under : .

Financial Position (Balance Sheet)

Liabilities Amount Assets | Amount
Rs. . ] Rs.
Capital — 11,000 Cash T 1000
Creditors 3,500 Stock in trade 7,000
Bills Payable 1,500 Furniture 3,000
Loan . 5,000°

21,000 21,000

‘The above position can also be presented as under : ‘
Assets = Liabilities + Capital

Creditors + Bills payable + Loan + Capital
+5,000 + 11,000

Cash + Stock + Furniture
1 1000 + 7,000 + 3.000 = 3500 + 1,500

(ix) Increase in capital and decrease in liabilities, Conversion of loan into
capital reduces the liability of the business on one hand and increases capital
on the other hand. Conversion of debentures into share capital is an example
of such transaction. Creditors may also be converted into share capital. If
creditors for Rs. 1,000 are allotted shares against their loan, the financial position
will be affected as under :

Financial Position (Balarce Sheet)

Liabilitié.s‘ Amount Assets Amount
Capital 12,000 Cash 11,000
Creditors . 2,500 Stock in trade 7.000
Bills Payable 1,500 Furniture 3,000
1 ¢an | 5,000

21,000 - 21,000
- S — |
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. Financiol Accounting The financial position shows that capital has increased by Rs. 1,000 and is now
. . . Rs. 11,000 + 1,000 = 12,000 and at the same time creditors have been reduced to Rs:
' : 3,500 - 1,000 = 2,500. :

The fact. can éllernativ_ely be presented as under :

‘NOTES PR ? *
Assets = Liabilities - + Capital
' . Cash + Stock + Furniture-= Creditors + Bills payable.+ Loan + Capital
! ' ‘ " 11,000+7,000+3,000 = 2500 + 1,500  +5,000 +12,000 -
: The basic nine transactions discussed above are summarised through the following
. illustrations. . P '
. 3 - \“ B
Hllustration 1.. Develop accounting -equation from the following transactions :
Rs.
(1) Adi commenced business With cash .. .......cooeoivnnni i 50,000
(i) Purchased goods for cash ....i....cccoceeeies e retee e iteeneeeaiantaeaana e 30.000
(iii) Purchased- goods on'credit ............ooveeiioveniiii 20,000
- (iv) Sold goods (cost Rs. 10,000) fOF .....covuvuevravrccveciaicicciiiicins .. 12.000
c (v} Bought furniture on credil ...........ccoovimvenieeieen e e 2,000
(vi) Paid cash to a creditor ................ e eeren e essnee e s s e 15,000
Solution. _ _ .
' Accounting Equation '
Assets = Liabilities ~ +  Capital
Transactions N X - A : : —
N Cash + Stock + Furniture = Creditors + Capital ]
© () Adi commented hus'inws. i ) ‘
"with cash Rs. 50,000 50,000+ T 0+ 0= 0+ 50.000
- (i) Purchased goeds for cash . . . ’ .
‘ Rs. 30,600 (-)30,000 + 30,000.« . 0= 0+ 0
T New Equalion‘ 20,000 + 30,000 + 0= - 0~ ~ 50.00¢
(iif) Purchased poods on credit ’
Rs. 20,000 + . 20000 + 0= 20,000 - 0
- ) New Equation 30,000 + 50,000 + 0= 20,000 + 50,000
(iv) Sold-goods (cost Rs. 10,000 | _ '
for Rs. 12,000 +12,000) 10,000 + 0o-=- e 2.000 -
New Equation | 32000+ 40,000 + 0= . 20000 - 52,000
{+): Bought furniwre on credit . ) . i '
Rs. 2,000 L0+ 0+ 2,000 - 2,000 + f
" New Equation 32,000 + | 40,000 + 2,000 - 22,000 + 52.000
(vi) Paid cash to a creditor ' - ’ ’
Rs. 15,000 (315,000 + 0+ 0= (-)15000 + 0
New Eguation 17.000 + 40,000 « 2,000 = 7.006 + 52,000 -
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Treatment of Revenue Payments and Receipts

(a) Reveitue Payments . ; .

(@) Treatment of -expenses paid. The busmess had to pay certain expenses in its
day-to-day operations, such as payment of salaries, rent, insurance premium,
office expenses, wages, repairs, etc. These expenses are paid regularly These
business expenses are paid in cash, so cash will reéduce and thus payment of
expenses are reduced from cash balance. These expenses will alsc reduce net
income of the business. As the income is the‘reward paid to proprietor for the
risk undertaken by him so expenses will reduce proprietor’s reward. Proprietor

_is represented by Capital Account so the payment of expenses will decrease
capital. ' : ’

(ii) Treatment of outstanding expenses. If expenses relate to accourting penod
and remain unpaid, they are termed as outstanding expenses. OQutstanding salaries,
rent unpa1d wages due, repairs due but not paid are its certain examples. As

_these expenses relate to the accounting period, so they w:ll reduce capital of the

proprietor. Both the cases of expenses paid and expenses due are trzated at par |

as regards decrease in the capital of the proprietor. They are different in the
sense that expenses pald reduce cash balance but expenses outstanding do not

reduce cash balance. As these expenses are still payable, it is a liability of the |

business and thus increase liability.

(iti) Treatment of prepaid or umexpired expenses. There may be certain cases
where expense may have been paic in advance. In certain cases, expenses
relating to the next accountmg period may be paid during the current year.
These expenses are prepaid or unexpired Le., insurance and rent paid in advance
for the next following year. Prepaid expenses increase and decrease assets
simultaneously. The payment has been made in cash, so cash will be reduced.
As the expenses have been paid during the current year for the next vear, it will
be an asset for the current year because the amount has to be realised by the
current year from the following year :

Jilustration 2. Show the effect of following transactions on accounting equation

and also prepare a Balance Sheet :

, Rs!

() Started business with cash aﬁzounting fo Rs. 35,000 and goods ... 15,000
(if) Salaries paid s 2,000

(i:'i) Wages OUISIARAIRE ....oovuevencercneires st 200

(iv) Prepaid insurance ... SRS DO OT A 700

(v) Interest due but not pazd ................. eveaseaeereraanneaaaes e eree e 100

(vi) Rent paid in QAVANCE ...oiiiiiinn i 150

Source Documents and
Accounting Cycle
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Solution,
Accounting Equation
Assels = liabilities + Capital
* Transuctions Cash  + Swock +  Prepaid = Cutstanding -+ C&pim! ,
expenses expenses
(i) Started business with cash .
Rs. 35,000 .Goods Rs. 15,000 35000 + 15000 + . 0= 0+ 50,000
{if) Salaries paid Rs. 2.000 (-) 2,000 + 0+ 0= 0 (-) 2,000
' New Equation - 33,000 + 15,000 + 0= 0.+ 48,000 -
(#i) Wages owstanding Rs. 200 0+ 0+ 0= 260 (-) 200
New Equation 33,000 + 15000 + 0= 200+ 47.800
(/r} Prepaid Insurance Rs. 700 {-) 700 + 0+ 700 = 0+
New Equation . 32,300, - 15000 + 700 = 200 + 47,800
(v) -Interest due but not paid Rs. 100 0+ 0+ 0= 10 {-) 100
New Equation 32,300 + 15,000 + 700 = 300+ 43,700
(i) Rent paid in advance Rs. 150 (~) 150 + 0+ 150 = 0+ 0
New Equalion 32,150~ + 15,000 + 850 = 300 + 47,700

The accounting facts presented by the above accountin

“verified by the following Balance Sheel_ H
) Balance Sheet

Lz'a.bflities .

Amount
Ry,

Assets

Quistanding wages
Qutstanding interest
Capital

200
100
41,700

48,000

Cash

Stock in trade

Prepaid insurance
Rent paid in advance -

g equation can also be

(b) Revenue Receipts

earned during the year,

so the income earned is added to capital.

(1) Income received. The business receives certain income during its day-to-day
- operatidns. The income is received regularly. Rent received, commission earned
and discount received, etc. are its examples. As.the income is received in cash
it increases cash balance on the one hand and also increases proprrietor’s capital.
I’ropriet[;i"s’claim against the assets of business increases with every income;-

(i) Income due but not received or accrued income. The income has been

so proprietors capital will increase but as income is

accrued or still to be received it will be treated as assets. The income relates
to the current y—ear; so it will increase current year’s income. The income has
become due from other parties so the concerned party will be the debtor of the
{irm. Debtor’s being assets, accrued income will also be an asset.



(Jii) Unearned income or income received in advance. It is just possible that we
may have received certain income in advance. The income has been received -
during the current year, although it relates to the next year. As the income has
been received in cash, it will increase cash balance. The income actually belongs

to the next year but has been received by-the current year, as such it will be

a liability of the current year towards next year.

Hlustration 3. Show the effect of the following transactions on assets, liabilities
and capital using accounting equation. Also prepare Balance Sheet.

>

(1) Sturted business WIth COSH  co..ooooeeorei e eeeeeeeeeeee e s 60,000
(i) Rent received ........ccccocoveiiaeeceaaeerereasreeeieereseiiinnessans e tae s 2,000
(7if) Accrued iREerest ......oovoceeeeeeeeceeeserivveeeeer faterrreeearerenrarartabar e ieaares 500
(iv} Commission received In QdVanCe ...........ooecveveeeeecsrevirsiieessenens 1,000
Solution.

Accounting Equation
Assets = Liabilities - Capital
Transactions Cash + v Accrued = Connmission  + Capital
interest received in advance

(#) Started business with cash Rs. 60,000 60,000 + 0= 0+ 60,000
{ii) Rent reccived Rs. 2,000 + 2,000 + 0= 0~ 2,000
New Eguation 62,000 + 0= 0+ 62,000
(ff) Accrued interest Rs. 500 0+ = 0+ 500
New Equation 62,000 + = 0+ 62,500

(vv) Commission received in advance
+ 1,000 + = 1,600 + 0
New Equation 63,000 + = 1,000 + 62,500°

Accounting facts presented by the above accounting equation is also preserited in

- Rs. 1,000

the form of Bqlance Sheet.

Balance Sheet

a

Liabilities

Amount Assets. Amount

Rs. Rs.
Commission received in advance 1,000 Cash 63,000
Capital 62,500 Accrued interest 500
63,500 63,500

Treatment of Purchases and Sales

{a) Purchdses

(1) Cash purchases. Purchases of goods for cash affects assets only. It increases
stock of goods with the business and at the same time decreases cash, because
the payment for goods has been made in cash. '

Source Documents and
Accounting Cycle
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(i)

Credit purchases. The transaction increases stock of goods an asset but also
creates a liability. Payments to creditors have not been made. so far, as such.
liability to" creditors is still there. Credit purchases, therefore increase both
assets and liabilities at the same time. T

Payment to creditors in cash will reduce cash, an asset and also creditors, a
liability. If creditors draw a bill of exchange, the firm will accept the bill and
thus a liability, as Bills Payable will be created in place of creditors. In'this way,
the transactlon will decrease creditors and also create a liability as Bills Payable.
In certain cases, if the payment to, creditors is made immediately and creditors
allow us discount, the transaction will reduce .cash with actual amount paid,
increase capital with the amount of dis_count received and decrease creditors
with the amount'of actual payment plus discount. For-example. if we purchase
goods worth Rs. 1,000 from Anshu on credit and make a payment of Rs. 990
in full settlement. The payment will reduce creditors by Rs. 1 000 cash by Rs.
990 and also mcrease capital by Rs. 10.

(1) Sales ’ R .

(@

(i

Cash sales. It is the sincere effort of every business to sell goods al a price
more than its cost pnce Excess of sales price oveér the cost price is profit and
will increase capital. For example, if goods costing Rs. 1,740 are sold for Rs.
2,000, it will increase cash by Rs. 2,000, reduce stock of goods by Rs. 1,740
and the resultant profit i.e., Rs. 2,000 — 1,740 = 260 will be added to capital.

Criedit sales. In case goods costing Rs. 2,700 are sold for Rs. 3,000 on credit,
it will increase debtors, the assets of the firm by Rs. 3,000, reduce stock of
goods by Rs. 2,700 and also increase capital with Rs. 3,000 - 2,700 = Rs. 300.
In this case, if full payment is received from debtors, it will increase cash and
decrease debtors. Cash and debtors are both assets, so the effect of the transaction
will be restricted to assets only. In the above case, if we receive Rs. 2,900 from
debtors and aliow them Rs. 100 as discount, the transaction will increase cash
by Rs. 2,900, reduce capital with the amount of discount allowed i.e., Rs. 100
and at the same time decrease debtors, by Rs. 3,000. :

Treatment of Miscellaneous Transactlons

(a)

®

‘Amount withdrawn by the proprletor If the propnetor withdraws Rs. 2,000
for personal use, the transaction will reduce cash by Rs. 2,000 and at the same
time reduce proprietor’s capital. In case the proprietor takes certain goods for
domestic.use, it wil] decrease his capital and the stock of goods.

Depreciation on assets. Depreciation is the wear and . tear or loss in the value

- of assets due to its use, so it will reduce assets and capital at the same time. For

(e

(d)

example, if there is @ depreciation of Rs. 2,000 on plant, the transaction will
reduce plant by Rs. 2,000. As’depreciation is a loss it will also reduce capital.
Tnterest on capital. Capital is the liability of the business. Interest on a liability
is an expense and thus capital will be reduced. Interest on capital is.credited to
capital account, so capital will be. increased. The transaction will increase and
also decrease the capital. . ' ' )

Interest on drawings. Drawing is the amount withdrawn by the proprietor from
the business. In other words, it is the amount advanced by the firm to the
proprietor and thus interest on drawings will be received by the firm and capital



1 . .
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' k] " 3 B
will be increased. Interest on-drawings will be charged on proprietor’s capital, so :

. X . . . . g . Accounting Cycle
the capital will be reduced. This’ transaction will-also result in.the increase and '
decrease of capital. o

Tllustration 4. Show the accounting equation on the basis of the following

transactions : . NOTES
Rs.
(i) Ankita started business With Cash ... 30,000
(i) Purchased goods on credit ..........ooocvevrinieriens TR N |/ 1/
(iii)- Purchased gOOdS JOr CASH ...t s 1,000
(iv) Purchased furniture ............ TSR PSOPR PR oreersiaaas 500
(v) Paid rent ............................ reeranemesssenesenneenees 200
~(v) Withdrew for private USe ..........cccvinimininnns SRR eeeeenaenen 700
(vii) Received-interest ...........covevieiinns IR 100
(viii) Sold goods on credit (cost Rs. 500) JOF w.oovioreviivicemiicennenens e 700
(ix) Paid (0 CrEdItOFS ......coovuieiiiirerenniine it 400
" (%) Paid $QIQFIES oot e eeeee et ra e eoeteaareesaaareantans 200
Solution. ' ' v
Accounting Equation
" Assels . = Liabilities + Capital
Transactions . Cash . + Stack + Deblors + Furniture = Creditors +  Capital
of goods )
() Ankita started business with
Rs. 56,000 50,000 + 0+ 0+ 0= 0+ 50000
(if) Purchased goods on credit Rs. 4,000 0+ 4,000 + 0+ 0=- 4,000 + 0
New Equation 50,000 + 4,000 + 0+ . 0= 4,000 + " 50,000
(i#f) Purchased goods for cash Rs. 1,000 {-) 1,000 + 1,000 + : 0+ 0= 0+ ) 0
New Equation 49,000 + 5000 + 0+ - 4000+ 50000
{iv) Purchased furniture Rs. 500 {~) 500 + 0.+ ) 0+ 500 = 0+ 0
New ‘Equation, 48,500 + 5,000 + 0+ 500 = 4,000 + 50,000
)] Paid rent Rs. 200 . (=) 200 + 0+ 0+ . 0= 0 () 200
New Equation 48300 + 5,000 + 0+ T s0p=  4000% 49800
(vi) Withdrew for private use Rs. 700 (=) 700 + 0+ 0+ 0= 0= 700
New Equation 47,600+ 50004 T 0+ 500 = 4,000+ 49,100 -
{vii) Received interest Rs. 100 + 100 + 0+ 0+ ) 0= o0+ 100
New Equation ' | 47,700 + 5,000 + 0+ © 500 = 4,000 + 49,200
(viif) Sold goods on credit costing . ‘ ‘
Rs. 500 for Rs. 700 0@ 500+ 700 + o= 0+ 200
.. New Equation 47,700 + 4,500 + 700 + 500 = 4,000 + .49.400
(ix) Paid 10 creditors Rs. 400 ] () 400+ 0+ 0+ 0= (-)400+ 0
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{x) Paid salaries Ry, 200

New Equation ‘47,300 + 4,500 + 700 + 500= . 3,600+ 49,400
(- 200 + 0+ 0+ 0= 0 () 200
New Equation 47‘1(50 + 4,500 + 700 + 500 = 3,600 + 40,200
The above fzct can be presented by a Balance Sheet as under :
Balance Sheet
Liabilitics Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs.
) Creditors 3,600 Cash 47,100
Capital i 49,200 Debtors 700
Stock of goods 4,500
Furniture 500
’ ' 52,800 i 52,800

Illustmtwn 5. Show the effect of the Jollowing business transactions on assets,
liabilities and capital through accounting equation :

. Rs..

(i) Commenced business with cash oo 20,000
(i) Goods purchased on credit ..o 7,000
(i) Furniture purchased ..o 3,000
(3v) Paid 10 CreditOrs .........ooovvvoveveeeeoooeeeeeeeeooereoeoeeoooooo 2,000
(v} Amount withdrawn by the PIOPFICIOY ..o.oviivecvveviceneeeeeeeaaeie 4,000
i) Creditors accepted a bill for ...........ooovemmeroessiooo 1,500
(vii) Interest on capital Hee e ], 000
(viii) Transfer from cdpztal 10 10an .o Wresinee Cenene e 3,000
(ix) Allotted Shares 10 Creditors ...........ovpuveecosmenscoveesorsoeoeeeooaseeseonr, 1,000

Solution, The mter-relatlonshlp of nine transactxons may be summarised as under ;

Assets =, Ligbilities B +  Capital
Transactions . .
Cask  + Stock +  Furnitwre = Creditors + BP + Loan +  Capital
() Commenced business with .
* cash Rs., 20,000 20,000 + 0+ 0= 0+ 0+ 0+ 20000
(i/) Goods purchased on credit - .
Rs. 7,000 0+ 7.000 + 0= 7,000 + 0+ 0+ 0
- New Equation 20,00 + 7,000+ 0= 7,000+ 0+ 0+ 20000
(éff) Furniture purchased Rs..3,000 (-)3,000 + ¢+ 3,000 = 0+ 0+ g+ 0
New Equation 17,000 + 7,000 + 3,000 = 7,000 + 0+ 0+ 20,000
(i) Paid to creditors Rs. 2,000. (-)2,060 + 0+ 0= (2,000 + 0+ ‘ 0+ 0
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New Equation . 15,000 + 7,000 + 3.000 = 5,000 .+_ 0+ 0+ 20,000
(¥) Amount withdrawn by the ’ .
proprietor Rs. 4,000 (u)4,000‘+ . 0+ 0= " 0+ 0+ 0+ (-)4000
New Equation 11,000 + 7,000 + 3,000 = 5,000 + 0+ 0+ 16,000
“{vi) Creditors acccpted a bill for ' .
Rs. 1,500 ' 0+ 0+ 0= (1500 + [.500 + 0+ 6
. New Equation 11,000 + 7,000 + 3,000 = 3500 + 1,500 + 0+ 16,000
. ' ' : PO+ 1000
(vii) Interest on capital * Rs. 1,000 ' 0+ _ 0+ 0= 0+ 0+ . (-3 1,000
_New Equation 11,000 + 7.000 + 3,000 = 3,500 + 1,500 + 0+ 16,000
(viii) Transter {rom capital to I(;un ) -
) . Rs. 5.000 0+ 0+ 0= 0+ 0+ 5000+ (95000
: New Equation 11,000 + 7,000 + 3,000 = 3,500 + 1,500 + 5000+ 11,000
(ix) Aliottcd shares to creditors ) '
Rs. 1,000 0+ 0+ 0=. (-)1.000 + 0+ 0+ 1,000
New Equation 11,000 + 7,000 + 3000 = 2,500+ 1.500 + 5,600 + 12,000
The above accounting equation proves that. whatever the tran-saction, assets are
always equal to capital and liabilities. The fact can also be verified by the Previous
Financial Position (Balance Sheet). '
fllustration 6. Prove that the accounting equation is satisfied in all the folkowing
transactions. Verify the result with Balance Sheet of the last new equation :
. ) ‘ Rs.
. () Rajesh started business with :
CUSH oo e s 20,000
Goods ... ..12,000
MACHING oooooooviseeie et ettt rest e e r ettt eran e e e e v 8,000
(iiy He purchased BOOLS .ottt [ 3,000
(ii7) Sold goods (Costing Rs. 2,000) for Rs. ....... teeeneeee e s eaeaes 2,500
(iv) Purchased goods: on credit ............................................... 7,000
(v) Payment made to creditors in full settlement ....... ... porene s 6,900
(vi) Sold goods on credit (Costing Rs. 5,400} ...cccccoocvvvvnrveiiinvniencenenn 6,000
(vii) Payment received from debrors ..............icoceceiornnnieecenns S 5,800
Discount allowed ............oovevevimieiieneieiience et . 200 .
(viii) Salaries paid ............ r ................ oo e S e 4 ,000 .
(ix) Wages outstanding ........................ [T 400

(x) Prepaid insurance YOOI RPN 4 /L
(x)) Rent received 300
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~ (xv) Purchased goods on credit

Solution.

Accounting Equation

fransactions

Assets

= Liabilities

(xii) Amount withdrawn ............cc..ocvvuneen... e st e 3,000
(xiif) Interest on drawing '
(xiv) Depreciation on machinery

206

+  Capital

Cash + Stock + Machine + Debtors + Prepaid = Creditors + Quistanding + Capital

of goods expenses expenses
() Started business with
Cash Rs. 20,000
Goods Rs. 12,000
Machine Rs. 8,000 20,000 + 12,060 + 8,000 + 0+ 0= 04 0+ 40,000
(i) Murchased goods Rs. 5,000 | (-) 5,000 + 5,000 + 0+ 0+ - 0= 0+ 0+ 0
New Equation 15,000 + I7‘(')00 + 8,000 + 0+ 0= 0+ 0.+ 40,000
(i) Sold goods ' ,
(Costing Rs. 2,000) for )
Rs. 2,500 [ + 2,500 + (-)2,000 + 0+ 0+ 0= 0+ 0+ 500
New Equation | 17,500 + 15000 + . 8,000 -+ 0+ 0= 0+ 0+ 40,500
(1:0] Purchased goods on credit
Rs. 7,000 0+ 7000+ - 0+ 0+ 0= 7,000+ 0+ 0
New Equation 17,500 + 22,000 + 8,000 + 0+ ) 0= 7,000 + 0+  40.500
() Payment made to creditors ; . C
dn (el settdement Rs. 6,900 | (=), 6,200 + ) 0+ . 0+ 0+ = {-)7,000 + 0+ 100
- New Equation 10,600 + 22,000 + 3,000 + - 0+ 0= 0+ 0+ 40,600
tvi) Sold goods on credit ) . : B
(Costing Rs. 5400) for Rs. 6,000 0+ 5400 + 0+ 6,000+ 0= 0+ 0+ 600
New Equation 19,600 + 16,600 + 8,000+ 6,000 + 0= 0+ 0+  41.200
" (wi) Payment received [rom |
Deblors Rs. 5,800 : .
Discount allowed  Rs. 200 | + 5,300 + 0 0+ - 6,000 + 0= 0+ 0+ -200
New. Equation | 16,400 + - 16600 + 8,000 + 0+ = 0+ 0+ 41,000
{viii} Salaries paid Rs. 4,000 [ (%) 4,000 + 0+ 0+ 0+ = 0+ () 4,000
New Equation | 12400 + 16,600 + 8,000 + 0+ 0= o+ G+ 37.000
(iv) Wages outstanding  Rs. 400 0+ 0+ 0+ 0+ 0= 0+ 400 + (-1 400
New Equation 12,400 + 16,600 + 8,000 + o+ ) = 0 400 + 36,600
(¥) Prepaid Insurance  Rs. 100 | (=) 100 + 0+ 0+ 0+ 100 = 0+ 0+ . 0
New Equation | 12,300 + 16,600 + 8,000 + 0+ 100 = 0+ 400 + 36,600
(+1) Rent received Rs. 300 +300 +° 0+ 0+ 0+ = 0+ 0+ 300
"New Equation 12,600 + 16,600 + 8,000 + 0+ 100 = 0+ 400 + 36,900
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{(vii} Amount withdrawn Rs. 3.000 | (<) 3,000 + 0+ 0+ - 0+ 0= 0+ 04+ - 3.000
. New Equation 9,600 + 16,600 + 8.000 + 0+ 100 = 0+ 400 + 33,900
{xiii) Interest on drawings Rs. 200 0= 0+ 0 + 0+ 0= 0+ 0+ %200
New Equation . 9.600 + 16,600 + 8,000 + 0+ 100 = 0+ 400 + 33,900

{xiv) Depreciation on machinery .
Rs. 800 0 + 0+ - 800 + 0+ 0= 0 -+ 0+ - 800
New Equation 9,600 + 16,600 + 7,200 + 0+ 100 = 0+ 400 + 33,100

{xv) Purthased goods on credit

Rs. 17,000 "0+ 17,000 + 0+ 0+ . 0= 17,000+ 0+ 0
New Equation 9,600 + 33,600 + 7,200 + 0+ a0 = 17,000 + 400 + 33,100

Balance Sheet

Liabilities Amount Assets Amount

Rs. Rs
Creditors 17,000 Cash 2.600
Outstanding expenses a 400 Stock in trade 33,600
Capital ) 33,100 Machine - 7,200
Prepaid expenses 100
50,500 50,500

REVIEW QUESTIONS .

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions :
1. Ifwereceive Rs. 490 from our debtors in full settlement of a debt Rs. 500. What will be the
accounting effect of Rs. 10 on assets, liabilities and capital ? )
2. Ifcreditors worth Rs. 1000 are paid Rs. 980 in full settlement, what will be the accounting
effectof Rs. 207
3. How is income received in advance (unearned income) shown in the accounting
equation 7 ;
4. Ifgoods costing Rs. 9,500 are sold for Rs. 10,000, show how the capital will be affected ?
5. Point out one transaction which will affect capital only. '
B. Short Answer Type Questions :
1. Explain accounting equation in about 50 words.

2. What is meant by creditors for goods and creditors for expenses 7 How will these
transactions affect assets, liabilities and capital ?

3. Calculate total assets of the business if

Jacob starts business with Rs. 1,00,000. He earned a profit of Rs. 20,000. He has to pay his
ereditors for goods Rs. 7000 and outstanding salary amounts to Rs. 1000,




Financial Accounting 4. Explain the meaning of source documents with E:xémp_le.
5. Describe two basic purpose of source documents. '
C. Long Answer Type Questions :

1. Describe the fundamental accounung equation. How are the revenue and expenses account
related toit?

2, Discuss any seven basu: transactions resulting frorn the relationship of assets, liabilities
and capital. . ' -

NOTES

3. Name the items affecting capital and explain them briefly.
4.. How are the following items in accounting equation dealt with ?
(a) Outstanding cxpens;es (b) Prcpaid'expenses {€) Accrued income (<) Uneamed income.

5. Accounting equation remains intact under all circumstances. Jusufy the statement withthe =7
‘help of an example. :
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cuarterk 4  RULES OF DEBIT AND CREDIT
—JOURNAL

* STRUCTURE x

%% Introduction

& Definition of Debit and Credit (Modern American Approach)

x Books of Original Entry

i Rules for Debit and Credit (Accounting Equation Approach)
[Modem American Approach]

&t Summary of Rules of Debit and Credit {Modern Approach)

Z Traditional Rules {Engfish Approach) of Debit and Credit

Y« Meaning of Journal
% Summarised Presentation of Journal Entries
INTRODUCTION

Every accounting transaction has got two sides, ‘debit” and ‘credit’. These are the two
signs used in accounting to present and report the financial effect of every transaction. All
the business transactions must have debit and its corresponding credit of the same amount.
‘The term “debit’ and ‘credit’ is used in evefy walk of accounting. We use the term in our
journal entries, ledger accounts, trial balance, Trading and Profit and Loss Account. The

debit dnd credit can be said to be the only media to report the financial position of the .

business. We have been using the term as a convention and age old tradition. We simply
know that “left hand side is debit’ and the ‘right hand side is credit’. Keeping debit at the
lcft hand side and credit at the right hand side may be a convention but not the meaning of

the (wo words.

DEFINITION OF DEBIT AND CREDIT
(Modern Amencan Approach) -

Debit means decrease in proprietor’s equity and credit means increase in propri-
etor’s equily.  Business is the creation of the businessman. In other words, business is the
representative of the proprietors of the business. Whatever the business earns, has. to be
paid 10 its proprietors. [t will increase proprietor’s claim against the business or propri-
etor’s equity or capital and thus it has to be credited. In this way, we can say that income
increases proprietor’s equily, therefore it is to be credited. The word ‘credit’ refers to the
word “creditor’, whosc short form is known as ‘Cr’. Creditors are those.persons and parties
whom payment has to be made. In case of income proprietor is the creditor of the business

“heeavse the income carned by business. the representative of the proprietor baiznzs to the

'

Rules of Debit and Credut --
Journal

NOTES
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owner of the business. It increases proprietor’s capital as suck"®is 1o be credited. Al the

expenses are incurred by the business on behalf of the proprietors, therefore, proprietors are

liable to bear these expenses. It will decrease their equity and this debited in ste Sooks o
accounts. The word ‘debit’ refers to the word ‘Debtor’, whose short from is ‘Dr’. The

proprietor is the debtor for ali expenses, and thus he is rightly debited.

Conventional approach towards ‘Debit’ and ‘Credit’

In addition to accounting concepts and assumptions, there are certain accounting
conventions which we have to follow to make accounting u‘niform. comparable and
meaningful. We follow certain conventions regarding ‘Debit and Credit’ which are as under :

(i) The left hand side of every account is debit and the right hand side of the account is-
credit.
(i) Incase of Journal and Trial Balance the amount column is divided in two parts. The
left part of the amount column is Debit and the right part is Credit.
(iii) While passing journal entries, we use the term ‘Dr’, the short form of ‘Debit’, ‘Debtor’
‘ against the accounts debited but do not use the word credit against accounts credited.
(iv) All receipts-are debited and all payments are credited.
(v) All expenses and losses are debited but income and gains are credited.
(vi) Increase in the assets is debited, whereas increase in liability is credited.
(vii) The assets side of the Balance Sheet represents debit, whereas the liabilities side
shows credit. o

BOOKS OF ORIGINAL ENTRY

The book in which transactions are recorded for the first time is known as Journal or
Book of original entry. All the business transactions may be recorded in the Journal in the
order of occurance i.e., in the chronological order and posting can be made to Ledger Ac-
counts therefrom. In pructice business transactions are accommodated in the cash book and
subsidiary books. If the transaction does not find a place here it is recorded in the Journal
Proper. As such Books of original entry consist of Cash book, Subsidiary books and Jour-

nal proper.

-

RULES OF DEBIT AND CREDIT (Accounting Equation
Approach) [Modern American Approach]

’ | Classification of Accounts l

1 4
[ Assets Account Revenue and Profit Account|
2 5
[ Liabilities Account 3 Expenses and Losses Account |

| Capital Account |



1. Assets Rules of Debit and Credit—
Journal

‘Every business owns and possesses assets. The various assets and their value will differ
on the basis of size and nature of business. Generally firms own cash in hand, cash at bank, -
stock of goods, building, plant, machinery, furniture, vehicles and debtors, etc. The busi-
ness makes use of these assets for earning income. There are certain dealings in these assets NOTES
and the result is either increase in the value of assets or decrease in their value. The increase
or decrease in the assets must be recorded systematically and scientifically, so that true
financial position of the business may be assessed.

Business is the representative of the proprietors of the business: Whatever the business
spends, the proprietors have to reimburse and repay it back. In other words, proprietors
become liable for expenditure on acquiring assets and their-capital will be reduced. In this
way, increase in assets will be debited because it will reduce proprietor’s equity and debit
means decrease in the proprietor’s share in the business. In the same way, decrease in the
assets will increase proprietors’ equity and thus credited. The fact can be presented as

under :
Assets

"Debit Credit

Increase (+) _ Decrease (=)

While recording business transactions, we have to identify whether the transaction re-
lates to assets, liabilities, capital, expenses or losses and revenues or profits. If the transac-
tion relates to assets, we have to ascertain that the transaction increases assets or decreases
it. If it increases, the increase is debited and if it decreases, the decrease is credited. It can be

summarised as under :

Debit increase in the assets
. Credit decrease in the assets .

It has been an accepted fact that assets either increase or decrease. The increase in the
assets are debited and the decrease in the assets are credited. In case of commeéncement of
the business cash will increase, so cash account will be debited. While purchasing furniture
for business use, furniture will increase and thus furniture account will be debited. At the
same time as the payment for furniture has been made in cash, therefore, it will decrease
cash and thus cash account will be credited. In the same way, if a part of machinery is sold,
cash will increase because the payment has been received in cash and thus debited. The
balance of machinery will decrease as such machinery account will be credited. In case of
depreciation on fixed assets, the ba[ancc of assets will reduce and thus credited. While
recording, we have to identify assets account in the transaction and then satisfy ourselves
whether, there has been an increase in the assets or decrease in it. The assets, whose value
has increased will be debited with the amount of increase and the assets decreasing in the
value will be debited with the amount of decrease.

2. Liability
The liability of the business, like its assets either increases or decreases. An increase in
" the liability will increase proprietor’s claim against the business because the amount bor-
ywed has been received on behalf of the propnetor and will definitely increase propri-
or’s equity s such, mcrease in the fiability is to be credited and decrease in it will be ,
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debited. The fact regarding rules of ‘Deblt and ‘Credit’ in case of [iabilities can alsc
presented as under : '
Liabilities

Debit IR Credit

Decrease (=) Increase (+)

In case of borrowmg Rs. 7,000 from Mhabema, firm’s ]:dbthly will increase, theref
Mhabemo's account wiil be credited. If the payment is made to Mhabemo, lfability of.

.business towards him will reduce and thus his account wnll be debited, fhe tule can

summarised as under ;

Debit decrease in the liability
Credit increase in the liability

A

'3.. Capital

Capital répresents proprietor’s account. Amount introdueed by the proprietor as capi
will increase his claim against the business and thus capital account representing incres
in’ proprietor’s equity will be credited. In the same way, amount wuhdrawn by the propr
tor will reduce capital and thus debited. The rule regarding capital can be presented
under : .

Capital

Debit ) Credit
 Decrease (-) . Increase (+)
In case of commencement of the business the proprietor introduces capital. He m:

alse bring additional amount of capital in thé business. He may also be allowed interest
capital. His capital balance will increase with the initial investment, additional funds

| even with the interest on capital so capital account will be credited in these cases. If there

any loss or drawings made by the proprietor the capital will reduce and thus capital accou
will be debited. The rule can also be summarised as under: = - - - .

Debit decrease in capital
Credit increase in capital

4. Revenue and Profit

Proprietor’s equ‘ity“in(':reases due to increase of revenue, so revenue account is credite
with the increase. Decrease in the revenue will decrease proprictors’ claim against bus
ness, so revenue account will be debited with'the decrease. Receiving interest is a revenu
gain. It will increase proprietor’s capital, so interest accolnt will be credited. At the end ¢
accounting period, intérest account will be closed by transfer to profit and loss account an
thus in this case interest account will be debited. Decrease in the revenue or inerease in th
expenses are synonymous. In both cases proprietors equity decreases so increase in ex
penses-and decrease in revenue are deblted This rule of debit and cn:dlt can 1lqo be dis
played as under : -



Revenue and Profit )

Debit ) Credit
Decrease (=) . Increase (+)
Revenue received and profit earned is the liability of the business. The amount of profit

is Lo be credited to proprictor’s account, hecause profit is the reward for the risk taken by
the proprictor. so profit will be credited. The rule can be summarised as under :

Debit dccrcase in revenue and profit

Credlt increasc in revenue and pmf’ it

5 Expenses and Losses

Lixpenses and losses reduce proprietors’ claim against business so these accounts are
debited when they increase. Reduction in expenses or losses will increase proprietors’ equity.
as such it has 10 be credited. The rule regarding debit and credit concerning expenses and
losses can also be presented as under :

Expenses and Losses

DDebit Credit
Increase (+) "Decreasc (~)
In case of payment ol salaries 1o employees. salaries, as an expense will increase and
thus debited. The salarics amount will be closed by transfer to Profit and Loss Account.
The transfer will reduce or close salaries account and thus it will be credited. It can be

suinmarised as under :

Debit increase in expenses and losses

Credit decrease in expenses and losses

All business transactions can be classified as assets, fiability. revenuc, exoense and
capital. All the business transactions either increase or decrease them. The increase and
decrease is cither debited or credited on e basis of rules explained for different items. The

above rules can be put together as under :

SUMMARY OF RULES OF DEBIT AND CREDIT
(Modern Approach)

Debii : Credit
Increase in assets Decrease in assets
Increase in expense or loss Decrease in expense or lcss
Decreasc in liability Increase in lability
Decrease in capital | ’ Increase in capital
Decrease in revenue and profit Increase in revenue or profit

Rules of Debit and Credit—
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The above approach towards debit and credit is termed as American approach or mod-
ern scientific approach. The rules have been developed after scientific study and analysis.-
They have been tested and verified in the real situations of accounting and, therefore prove
to be-true for accounting record of all business transactions. The earlier conventional or
traditional approach towards recording business transactions and its rules for debit and
credit were different. The traditional approach of recording transactions are discussed as
under :

TRADITIONAL RULES (English Approach) OF DEBIT AND
CREDIT

In the conventional approach, accounts were classified as personal, real and nommal
and different rules of debit and credit for different accounts were developed. The clasmﬁca-
tion of accounts and rules of debit and credit are discussed as under :

CLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

h 4

l Personal accounts ' ‘ ' [ Impersonal accounts

[ ) }

Natural Personal Afc Artificial Personal Afc Representative Personal Alc

y

| )
[ Real accounts ] . ]Nonﬂnalhccouutsl

l (Revenuc and Expenscs accounts)

(Temporary accounts)
Tungible Real accounts - Intangible Real accounts

Meaning of Account
An account s the systematic presentation of all material information regarding a par-
ticular heading at one place, under one head. T ransacnons recorded in the account also

show the nature and direction of the lnformanon

Personal Accounts

Thete are two types of persons.i.e., natural and artificial. Accounts is related to both
these types of persons. Natural persons mean human beings, such as John, Jack, David and
James. Artificial persons do not have physical construction as human beings but they work
as personal accounts. These accounts are related to firms, companies. institutions, factories
and establishments, such as Gupta & Sons Account, Michael & Bros Account, Bank of
India Account, Congress Party’s Account, Bata Shoe Company’s Account and Nagaland
Sporting Club’s Account, Debtor’s Account, Creditor’ s Account, Capital Account and Draw-

ings Account. .



Representative Personal Accounts represent a particular person and group of persons,
such as outstanding wages A/c. Here, instead of using the names of workers whose wages
is outstanding, we shall be crediting outstanding wages A/c which represents workers, whose
wages are payable. In this way, Outstanding salaries, Prepaid expenses, Accrued and un-
earned income are Representative Personal Accounts.

Rules of Debit and Credit

Personal accounts either receive something or give something in the business. When
goods are sold to them or amount paid to them, they are the receiver. In the same way,
personal accounts are giver, when goods are purchased from themn or amount is received
from them. According to this nature of personal account, the rule of ‘debit and credit’ in the

personal account are as under :

Debit the receiver
Credit the giver

Ilustration. Goods sold to Kunal. Here, in this transaction, Kunal is a personal ac-
count as being the name of human beings. He is receiving goods because it has been sold to
him. He will be debited in the entry as receiver. In the same way, in case of goods pur-
chased from Kishore, the giver of goods i.e., Kishore will be credited. Bank A/c will be
debited in case of deposits into the Bank, because Bank will be the receiver of the deposit. If
the amount is withdrawn from Bank, the amount will be given by the Bank. The Bank wil] be the
giver, as such credited in the book. It shows that we have to identify the personal account, which
will be in the name of persons, firms, companies and institutions. After that, it should be veri-
fied, whether the account is a receiver or giver in the transaction. If it is a receiver, it should be
debited and in case-of giver, it should be credited.

Examples :
Transactions
() Goods sold to Kunal for Rs. 10,000
Kunal A/e Dr. 10,000
To Sales Alc 10,000

(Being goods sold to Kunal) :
Note. Here Kunal's A/c has been debited as per rule of personal Afc. (Debit thc Receiver)

(i) Goods purchased from Kishore for Rs. 8,000
Purchases A/c ' Dr. 8,000 .
To Kishore A/c : 8,000
(Being goods purchased from Kishore)
~ Note. Here Kishore’s Afc has been credited as per rule of personal A/c. (Credit the Giver)
(ifi) Amount deposited into the Bank Rs. 20,000
Bank A/c . Dr. 20,000
To Cash Afc o 20,000
{Being amount deposited into the bank)
Note. Here Bank A/c has been debited as per rule of personal A/c. (Debit the Receiver)

Rules of Debit and Credit—
Journal

NOTES

Self-Instructional Material

51



52

Financial Accounting

NOTES

Sﬂ[f-!ustruc.f.i;ma[ Material

the increase in assets).

* (v) Amount withdrawn from the Bank Rs. 4,000
Cash Afc ~ Dr 4,000
- To Bank A/c ' 4,000 .
(Being amount withdrawn from the bank) ' .
Note. Here Bank A/c has been credited as per rule of personal A/c. (Credit the Giver)

- We should also take into consideration the following rule in case of Personal Accounts.

Debit the debtor |
Credit the creditor

The traditional rule of debltmg and crediting personal accounts may somenmcs prove
to be incorrect. It is, therefore, advised that learners should develop an attitude for applying
the modem Ameucan Accounting equation approach for journalising transactions.

In order to debit or credit representative personal accounts, the ‘rule of Debiting the
Debtor and Crediting the Creditor is applied. For example, in case of outstanding salaries,
salaries will be payable to those employees, whose salaries for the current year is due. They
are our creditors, so outstanding salaries A/c, representative of ‘such employees will be ‘
credited. In the same way; prepaid expenses, representing those partics who have been paid
expenses in advance will be debxted because they are our’debtors. As prepaid expenses
represent the debtors, so prep."ud expenses A/c will be debited. According to American
approach prepaid expenses are assets, so it will be debited, because it is increasing (Debit

Examples :
Transactions ) .
(i) Goods sold to Vijay for cash Rs. 10,000
Cash Ale _ Dr. 10,000
. To Sales Alc ' _ ' 10,000
(Being goods sold to Vijay for cash) . ) ) .
Note. Here Vijay’s A/c.has not been debited because we have sold goods to him for cash and
Vijay is not our debtor. though he is the receiver of the goods.

(i) Goods purchased from F.«,_Jrnaf_rdes for cash Rs. 8,000
Purchases Afc : Dr. 8,000_
To Cash A/c . o 8.000
{Being goods purchascd frorn Fernandes for cash) '

Note. Here Fernandes’s Afc has not been credited because he has made cash purchases and is
not our crcd:tor. though he is the giver of the goods. . .

It should be noted that if any prefix or smux: e., outstanding, due, unpaid, owing,
prepaid, unexpired, accrued, unearned etc. is added to nominal account, it becomes
‘personal A/c as commission accrued A/c, unearned rent A/c, unexpired insurance and -
wages owing A/c. '

Impersonal Accounts’ x

All those accounts, which are not personal accounts are termed as impersonal accounts.
These accounts may-be related to assets, losses, expenses, incomes and gains. In other
words, impersonal account may be classified as Real and Nominal Accounts.



Real Acmunts. It is classified as (@) Tangible and (b) Intangible. 2

(a) Tangible Real Accounts. This account is related to property. In other words tangible
real accounts are generally those accounts which are concemed with the things which re-
ally exist. All those things which can be seen, touched and have physical construction,
shape, form and size are Real Accounts. In this way. Cash A/c, Building Afc, Plant Afc.
Fumiture Afc, Goods A/c, Machinery A/c etc. are real accounts. )

" () Intangible Real Accounts. These real accounts are intangible Le., they do not have
any physical construction, form, size, shape. They can neither be seen nor touched. The
value of these accounts are measured in pecuniary terms. Goodwill. trade marks and patent
rights are its example. ) ’

Rules of Debit and Credit .
Real accounts are related to lifeless properties which cannot do anything at their will.

They are either purchased or sold. They either come into the business or go outside the

business. On the basis of this nature of real account, the following rules have been ascer-

tained :

Debit what comes in
Credit what goes out

According to this rule, whenever any property comes into the business i.e., owned by
the business, it is debited and property account is credited, when it goes outside the busi-
ness. In case of purchasing furniture for cash, furniture will be coming under the ownership
of the firm, therefore, furniture account will be debited but cash account wiil be credited
because cash is going outside the business against the payment for fumiture. :

Examples :
Transactions
(£) Furniture purchased for cash Rs. 15,000
Fumiture A/c Dl;. lS,O{i{)
To Cash Ale . 15,000

(Being furniture purchased for cash)
Note. Here furniture A/c has been debited and cash A/c has been credited as per rule of Real
Account. .
(if) Machinery sold for Rs. 5 000
Cash A/c Dr. 5,000
To Machinery Alc 5,000
(Being amount received from the sale of machinery)

Note. Here cash A/c has been debited and machinery A/c credited as per rule of Real Account.

Nominal Account

This account is just reverse to the Real account. Real accounts generally have exist-
ence, but Nominal accounts do not have any existence. These accounts do not have any
form, shape and physical construction. In other words, these accounts are related to In-
come and Expenditure or Gains and Losses. Wages A/c, Salaries A/c, Rent Afc, Interest
Alc, Discount A/c and Advertisement A/c are some of its examples.

Nomina} Accounts are also known as Revenue and Expenses Accounts, because they
deal with revenae and expenses. These accounts are also known as Temporary Accounts,
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specially in America because these accounts are closed at the end of every accounting year
by transfer to Trading or Profit and Loss A/c. These accounts do not have any opening or
closing balance.
Rules of Debit and Credit .
Nominal accounts are expenses or losses and incomes or gains. According to this na-
! ture of Nominal accounts, the following rules for their debit and credit have been deter-

mined :

Debit all expenses or losses
Credit all incomes or gains

According to the above rule, wages Afc, salaries A/c, insurance A/c and interest Alc
etc. are debited when these expenses are met. Discount A/c, commission Afc, interest A/c,
- elc. are credited, whenever they are received. In case of payment of salaries to workers,
salaries are an expense, so salaries account will be debited. While receiving rent from the
tenant, rent will be gain and thus credited in the books of accounts.

Examples:
Transactions
(i) Salaries paid Rs. 25,000
Salaries A/c Dr. 25,000
To Cash A/c ’ ~ 25,000
(Being salaries paid)

Note. Here salaries ‘A/c has been debited as per rule of Nominal Account. (Expenses are
debited)

{if) Rent received Rs. 5.000

Cash A/c Dr. 5,000
To Rent Ale - , 5,000
‘(Being rent received)
Note. Here rent A/c has been credited as per rule of Nominal Account. (Income is credited).

MEANING OF JOURNAL

The word ‘Journal’ has been derived from the French word ‘JOUR’ meaning daily
records. Journal is a book of prime record for small firms. Big concerns prepare Cash
Book, Purchases Book, Sales Book and other subsidiary books in addition to Journal proper.
Small firms record their business transactions in Journal and post them to the concerned
ledger accounts. Big concerns record their business transactions in subsidiary books and
Journal and post them from these prime books to respective ledger accounts.

According to Professor Cartor, “The Journal is originally used, as a book of prime
entry in which transactions are copied in order of date from a memorandom or waste book.
The entries as they are copied are classified into debits and credits, so as to Sacilitae them
being correctiy posted, afterwards in the ledger”. :

.Business transactions of financial nature are studied and classified as assets, liabil ities,
capital, revenues and expenses and accordingly debited or credited in the J ournal. Accounts
are debited or credited according to rules of debit and credit applicable to the specific account.

Joumnal entries are passed on the following format :



‘Format of Journal

Date Particulars , . | LF Amounts
Debit Credit
Rs. Rs.
h ) 3) 4) (5)

The journa! is sub-divided into five columns. These columns as per above format are
Date, Particufars, Ledger Folio, Amount (Debit), Amount (Credit) and narration. These

columns show the following informations :

1. Date

'This is the first column of the Journal. It records the date of the transaction with its
month and year. We need not repeat the year against every entry because the vear is almost
the same. In the same way, months should also not be repeated but the date should change
because the dates of transactions ordinarily differ. The sequence of the dates and months
should be strictly maintained i.e., transaction taking place on January 1, 2005 will be re-
corded in Journal first and afterward the transaction taking place on January 2, 2005. In the

_ same way, transaction for the month of January, 2005 will be recorded before the transac-

tions of February, 2005. Date should be recorded in the Journal as under :

Date
2005 o
Jan. 1
» R 20
Feb. 1

2. Particulars

This column is used for recording the details of the business transaction. As we know
every transaction has got double effect and there are always two or more accounts to be
debited and credited. We write the name of account to be debited and also write ‘Dr’ against
the account. Account to be credited is written below the account to be debited. The credit
account starts after leaving certain space and we do not write ‘Cr’ ‘against this.account.
After the Journal Entry ‘Narration’ is written, just to explain the journal entry. If furniture
is purchased, furniture account will be debited, because the transaction will increase the

“value of fumniture and cash account will be credited because cash will decrease due to the

payment for furniture. This transaction will be recorded in the Particulars column of the

_journal as under :

Particulars

Furniture A/c Dr.
To Cash A/c
(Being furniture purchased) ‘

The important feature of the above Journal entry are using ‘Dr’ against Furniture Afc,
leaving space while writing Cash A/c and not using ‘Cr’ against Cash Afc. Narration is
preceded by the words ‘Being', ‘For' can also be used instead of ‘Béing’. Presenting Jour-
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nal entry as above is the convention of Accounting. It should be honoured to establjsh
norms of the subject ardd to bring uniformity-in the presentation.

3. Ledger Folio (L.F.)

Journal is the original record of the business transactions. On the basis of Journal entries
posting in the ledger accounts are made. It shows that journal and ledger are intet~relatec
and the ledger posting is based upon Journal. It is. therefore., necessary that there should be
certain reference as regards the page number of ledger, where the account in the journal is
being posted. This will facilitate in understanding and checking the ledger posting at &
glance. In the above journal, if we write *7’ in the L.F. column against furniwure, it will
mean that the Fumiture A/c is prepared at page *7” of the ledger. We can turn page ‘7" of the
ledger and check the posting in the ledger account. The posting can be verified from the
Journal and if necessary from the source document, wherefrom the Journal is recorded.

4. Amount (Debir) and (Credin) _

Every transaction has got debit and its corresponding credit of the same amount. It is
therefore, necessary that the amount column should be divided into debit and credit col-
umns. The amount of the account debited is written against the debit column of the amount
and the amount of the account credited is written at the credit column of the amount.

5. Narration ,

After passing journal entry, we have to explain briefly the wansaction for which the
entry has been passed. It enables everyone going through the journal eniry Lo have an idea
about the transaction. It is customary to start the statement with the word ‘Being™ or “For' -
denoting the reason for which entries have been passed. This statement is:known as "narra- ]
tion” meaning description, because it narates briefly the transaction for which the entry

- has been passed. It is also customary to write the narration within small brackets. After the

narration, horizontal line is drawn in the particulars column only. just 1o separale the journal
entry from the other entry.
Compound or Composite Journal Entries

‘ Sometimes a particular transaction involves more than two accounts. Many transac-
tions are related to specific account on a‘particular date. There may be certain transactions

of the same nature on a certain date. In these cases, we prefer to pass only one entry instead
of passing two or more entries. Such entries can be passed in either of the following three

ways : .
(a) By debiting cne account and crediling two or more accounts. *

(b) By crediting one.account and debiting two or more accounts.

(¢) By debiting. two or more accounts and crediting two or more accounts.
Hlustration 1. Pass necessary Journal entries in the Jollowing cases :

() Amount received from James Rs. 1,980
Discount allowed " Rs. 20

(i) Amount paid to John Rs. 2,920
Discount received " Rs. 80

(i i) Salaries amounting to Rs. 3.000 and wages amounting to Rs. 5,000 were paid on
31st Dec. 2001 - :

Journal Entries : b

(i) Cash Afc _ ' Dr. 1,980
Discount Afc : Dr. 20

To James A/c . 2.000
(Being amount received from James and discount allowed) :




A Al ' pr. 3000
To Cash Afc ) o 2.920
To Discount received Alc : : 30

(Being amount paid to Adi and discount received from him)

(if) Salaries Adc - Dr. . 3,000
" Wages Afc - D - 5000
To Cash Ade . 8,000
(Bcing payment of salaries and wages) t . .

Opening Journal Entry

Business. according to going concein concep[ is supposed to be carried on mdeﬁmtely
Al the end of the-accounting year different accounts are closed but the business has to be
- carried on, so previous year's assets and liabilities are to be brought into account of the

current year. Passing journal entry in the beginning of the current year with the balances of

assets and liabilities of the previous year is opening journal entry. In this entry assets accounts
are debited because assets always show debit balance. Liabilities and capital accounts are

credited bcwuse they show credit balance. =

Hlu.stratwn 2. The f irm of M/s Garg and Gupta has the fol!owmg balances in their
drffr:renr ledger accounts on January I 2006. .

Cash ’ " Rs. 20,000
Closing. Stock ) Rs. 20,000,
Building - Rs. 60,000
Debtors : Rs. 20,000
Creditors Rs. 16,000
Capital Rs. 1,08,000
Pass the opening Journal Entry.
Solution. ’
Journal Entry »
. Amsunt !
Date | Particulars | LF
’ : - Debit Credit
. Rs) Rs.
2006 .
Jan. | Cash A/¢ Dr. ' 20,000
Goodwill Alc (difft.arence) Dr. 4,000
© Stock Alc o Dr. 20,000
Building Afc Dr. | 60,000
Debtors Avc ‘Dr. | 20,000
To Creditors Afc | B _ ' 16,000
To-Cupital Afc. ' 1,08,000 .
(Being previous year's balance brought into .
books)
- ; ; 3
Nole. Excess of credit over debit has been assumed to be Goodwill. -
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Ilustration 3. Journalise the following transactions :

2002
Jan. 1 Started business with cash Rs. 10,000 and gooc{s Rs. 5,000.
Jan. 3 Paid into Current Account Rs. 4,000.
Jan. 5 Sold goods to Neeraj Rs. 2,000. )
Jan, ‘9 Goods returned by Neeraj Rs. 200.
Jan. 12 Goods purchased from Kapoor Rs. 3,000.
Jan. 15 Goods returned to Kapoor Rs. 150.
Jan. 18 Purchased goods from John for Rs. 10,000, 7
He allowed 10% Trade discount.
Jan. 21 Received a V.P.P. from Prem for Rs. 1,000.”
, Sent a worker to collect it who paid Rs. 7 as cartage.
Jan. 22 Paid interest on loan Rs. 30.
Solution.
Journal Entries
Amount
Da;e Particulars LF.
" Debit Credit
Rs. Rs.
2002 _
Jan. ! Cash Afc Dr. 10,000
Goods Afc i Dr. 5,000 _
To Capital A/c } 15,000
(Being started business with cash Rs. 10,000
and goods Rs. 5,000)
Jan. 3 Bank Afc Dr. 4,000
To Cash A/c ‘ 4,000
(Being amount deposited into bank)
Jan. 5 Neeraj Afe ' Dr. 2,000
To Sales A/c 2,000
(Being goods spld to Neeraj)
Jan. 9 Sales Return Afc Dr. 200
To Neeraj Afc 200
(Being goods returned by Neeraj)
Jaﬁ. 12 Purchases A/c Dr. 3,000 A
To Kapoor Afc 3,000
(Being goods purchased from Kapoor)'
Jan. 15 Kapoor Afc Dr. 150
To Purchases Return Afc ’ ' 150 .
{Being goods returned to Kapoor)
Jan, 18 | Purchases A/c . Dr. 9,000 .
To John Afc . X 9,000
(Being goods purchased from John Rs. 10,000.
He allowed 10% tr_ad? discount) ._ R ) )




Jan. 22

e — T S —— — — A — — — i ot Nt

Purchases Afc _ Dr. 1,000
_Cartage A/c ‘ Dr. 7

_ To Cash Alc _ 1,007
(Being V.P.P. received and cartage paid) .
Interest on Loan Afc Dr. 30 .

To Cash A/c 30

(Being payment of interest on loan)
Total 34,387 34,387

Hiustration 4. Record the following transactions in journal ;

(i) Received Rs. 975 from Mahesh in full settlement of his account for Rs. 1,000.
(ifi) Received a first and final dividend of 60 paise in a rupee from the Offi-

(i) Goods worth Rs. 500 given as charity.

cial Receiver of Mr. Mahesh, who owed us Rs. 1,000.

Solution. o o
Journal Entries
Amount
Date Particulars LF.
Debit Credit
Rs. Rs.
) Charity A/c Dr. 500
To Purchases A/c ’ 500
(Being geods given as charity) .
(i) Cash Afc Dr. 975
Discount A/c . Dr. 25
To Akato Afc ' 1,000
(Being amount received from Mahesh and
discount allowed) ’
(itd) Cash Ale ) Dr. 600
Bad Debts A/c - Dr. 400 .
To David Afc 1,000
(Beiﬁg 60% received from David in full
. settlement of account)

N

Notes. (i) Goods given as charity must have been charged at cost price, so they will reduce
purchases. This is why, Purchases Account has been credited instezd of Sales Account.
" (i) Rs. 25, received lesser from Mahesh is discount aliowed. It is an expense, so debited.

Hlustration 5. Pass necessary journal entries for the following transactions :

(i) Rs. 1000 was stolen from the safe of the firm.

(if) Received an order from Miss Ape for the supply of goods worth Rs. 40,000. In

(iiD) Goodr sold for cash Rs. 10,000. Alsp received 7% sales tax.

this connection we received Rs. 20,000 as advance.

Rules of Debit aM Credit—

Journal

NOTES

Self-Instructional Material

59



Financial Aceounting

~ NOTES

60 . Self-lnstructional Material '

(v) Given as charity : Cash Rs. 1 000 Goods Rs. 3, 000 and a Sofa-set’ worth

Rs. 4,000.

(v) Goods worth Rs. 700 stolen by an employee.
-{vi) Purchased two horses worth Rs. 20,000 for the busin'e;s.
(vii) Goods given to proprietor's daughter Rs. 300.

(viif) Goods worth Rs. 1,000 destroyed by fire. -

(ix) Goods worth Rs. 2, 000 distributed as sample.
(x) Bricks worth Rs. 1 00 000 purchased Jor the construction of bm!dmg
(xt) Received cash from Kiwalo against bad debts written off last year, Rs. 3,300.

Solution.
Journal Entries
-  Amount -
"Date Particulars : LF. =
) . Debit Credit
' Rs. ‘Rs.
(0 Loss by theft A/c Dr. | 1,000
To Cash Afc ’ 1,000
(Being cash stolen from the safe of the firm) o '
(i) Cash A/c L } Dr. 20,000 )
To Advances from Miss Ape Afc 20,000
(Being amount recewed fiom Miss Ape in .
advance) ’
i) | CashAfc ' , Dr. 10,700
' To Sales Alc 10,000 -
To Sales Tax Afc ) 700
(Beihg gaods sold for cash and sales tax
received)
(iv) _Charity Alc ~ Dr.. 8.000
ToCashAle - 1.000
To Purchases A/c 3,000
To Furniture A/c - 4000
(Being charity g{ven as cash, goods and
furniture)
) Loss by theft Alc ' " Dr. 700 _
To Purchases A/c ' ‘ 700 l
(Being loss of goods by theft) . - ‘
(vi) Livestock Afc .. - Dr. 20.000
To Bank Alc - 20,000
(Being purchuses of two horses) - -
e | S

I
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(viiy. | Drawings Afc Dr. 300 " Journal
: To Purchases A/c ' _ 300
(Being goods given to proprietors daughter) '
(viii) Loss by fire Afc Dr. 1,000 ' ) NOTES
= To Purchases A/c ' 1,000
"] (Being goods lost by fire) .
ix) Free samples A/c . Dr. 2,000
' To Purchases Afc . 2,000
(Being goods distributed as sample)
(£9] Building Afc’ Dr. 1,00,000
To Bank Afc 1,600,600
(Being purchase of bricks for the construction
of building}
- - ' \
(xf) Cash Afc Dr. 3,300
'To Bad Debts Recovered A/c 3,300
(Being amount recetved from Kiwalo against '
bad debts previously written off)

Hlustration 6. Journalise the following transactions :

() Sold furniture to M/s Satish & Sons at the list price of Rs. 20,000.and allowed
them 5% trade discount. We deal in furniture. _
(if} M/s Satish & Sons cleared the account and we allowed them 3% cash dis-
count. - ' ) .
(i) Furniture costing Rs. 2,000 was used in furnishing the office of the firms, we
deal in furniture. . :
(iv} Sold goods 1o Sony at the list price of Rs. 12,000, allowed trade discount
@ 10% and cash discount at the rate of 5%. Sony cleared the account.
(v) Supplied goods costing Rs. 4,000 to Jimmy at 20% above the cost price and
allowed 10% trade discount. '
(vi) Paid sweeper's salary Rs. 3,000.
(vil} Received interest on loan Rs. 250 from Anshu, the debtor.
(viiiy Goods used personally by the proprietor Rs. 350.
(ix) Purchased postcards Rs. 1 00 and envelopes Rs. 200.
(x) Paid cash to Mrs. Andrews on behalf of Mr. Andrews Rs. 1,050,
(xi) Received an order from Ramesh for supply of goods for Rs. 50,000 and re-
ceived Rs. 15,000 as an advapce. )
" (xif) Purchased bullocks of Rs. 4,000 for the business.

Self-Instructional Materiel 6l
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"Amount
Date Particulars LF -
NOTES Debir Credit
] Rs. - Rs:
)] M/s Satish & Sons A/c . Dr. 19,000
-To Sales A/c . 19,000
(Beirig furniture sold to M/s Satish &'Sons) . .
(#y | CashAl L Dr. -1 18,430
Discount allowed A/c - Dr 570
© To M/s Satish & Sons A/lc - 19,000
_ (Being amount received and allowed discount)
(i) Furniture and Filtings Al br. 2,(_)00
To Purchases Afc |, ' 2,000
- (Being furniture used in furnishing the office
of the firm)
(iv) (a) Sony A/c ' Dr. 10,800 .
. . To Sales Alc b : 10,800
(Bei.ng goods sold to Sony)
(b) Cash Alc Dr. 10,260 .
Discount allowed A/c Dr. | 540 .
) To Sony Afc . 10,800
(Being amount received from Sony and "\ '
discount allowed) ) '
) Jimmy Afc or. [~ | 4320
To Sales A/c 4,320
{Being goods sold to Jimmy) 1
(vi) Salaries Afc . Dr. 1 3,000 '
To Cash Afc : 3.000
) (Being salaries paid to sweeper) ' '
(vi) Cash A/c Dr. 250
" To Interest on Loan Afc 250
{Being interest on loan received) )
(viii) Drawings Afc - Dr. 350
- To Purchases Alc . 350
(Being goods used by the proprietor personally)
' {ix) Postage A/c . ' Dr. - 300
To Cash Alc ' _ o - 300
(Being purchases of postcards and envelops) _ .
. I et ————" ey ——— ——— NP e e — — |
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Mr. Andrews Afc Dr.
To Cash Afc '
(Being amount paid to Mrs. Andrews on behalf
of Mr. Andrews)

(xi)

Cash Afc ‘ . br
To Ramesh A/c
(Being amount received from Ramesh as an

advance against the order for the supply
of goods worth Rs. 50,000)

(xif)

Livestock Afe Dr.
To Bank Afc '
(Being purchased bullocks for the business)

e —— — — —— —

[,050
1,050
15,000
15.000
4,000
© 4,000

Closing Journal Entries

At the end of the accounting period, all ledger accounts pertaining to goods i.e., pur-
chases, sales, purchases return, sales return, stock and other accounts conceming expenses,
losses, incomes and gains are closed by transferring to Trading and Profit and Loss Ac-
counts. These transfered entries are termed as closing entries. In other words, the closing
entries concern all the items of the debit and credit side of Trading and Profit and Loss Alc

i.e., Nominaf Accounts.
It should be noted that clesing entries are made for Nominal Accounts only.

SUMMARISED PRESENTATION OF JOURNAL ENTRIES

or Credit purchases

To Supplier’s A/c

Transactions Journal Enny Rule Applicable
. Corinenced business Cash Alc Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
To Capital Alc ' Increase in capital is credited.
. Cash purchases-or Purchases Afc- Dr. | Increase in expense or assets is
debited.
Goods purchas_ed for cash To Cash Afc Decrease in assets is credited.
. Purchased goods on credit] Purchases Afc Dr. | Increase in expenses or assels is

debited.
Increase in liability is credited.

Increase in assets is debited.
Decrease in revenue or assets is
credited.

. Cash sales Cash Alc Dr.
To Sales Afc
. Credit sales Debtors Afc Dr.

To Sales Afc

Increase in assets is debiled.
Decrease in or assets is credited.

. Purchases return

Supplier’s Afc

Dr.
To Purchases return Alc.
or Returns outward Afc

Decrease in liability is debited.
Decrease in assets is credited.

Rutes of Debit and Credit-
Jotirnal ’

NOTES
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Hninetal Aocounting 7. Sales return Sales return A/c Dr. | Decrease in revenue is debite
or Returns inward A/c Dr. | Decrease in assets is credited
To Debtors Afc '
or 2. Rurchas&_e of assets -Asséls Alc Dr. Increase in assets is debited.
NOTES To Cash A/c Decreuse.in assets is credited.
' 9. Sale of aisets - Cash A/c Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
A To Assets Afc | Decrease in-assets is credited.
, 10. Payment of expenses Expenses Afc Dr. | Increase in expenses is debite
) _’I‘o Cash_ Alc Decrease in assets is credited.
1. Receipt of income CashAlc Dr. | Increase in assets is debited,
: ~ To Income Afc’ Increase in revenue is credited
12, Collection from debtors Cash A/c Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
{Discount allowed) ~ Discount A/c Dr. | Increase in expense is debited
Sl To Debtors Ale Decrease in assets is credited.
13. Payment to creditors . Suppliers Alc " Dr. Decrease'inliability is debited
{Discount Received) - To Cash A/c Decrease in assets is credited.
£ : - - -
To Discount A/c Increase in revenue is credited
14. Depreciation on assets Depreciation Afc Dr. | Increase in expenses is debited
To Assets Afc Decreasé in assets is credited.
I5. Interest on capital Interest on capital A/e Dr. | Increase in expenses is debited
To Capitai Afc Increase incapital is credited.
16. Ouistanding expenses Expenses A/c- .Dr. | Increase in expenses is debited.
' To Outstanding )
: : expenses A/c Increase in liability is credited.
I7. Prepaid expenses Prepaid expenses A/c  Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
) To Expenses A/c Decrease in expenses is credites
18. Withdrawal-of cash Drﬁwings Alc - Dr. | Decrease in capital is debited.
" for personal use To Cash Afc Decrease in assets is credited.
19, Withdrawal of g_oods- Drawings Alc . Dr. | Decrease in capital is ﬂebited.
© for personal use To Purchases A/c Decrease in expense or assets is
. N e credited.
20. Goods given as charity ' Charity Afc . Dr. Increase in expenses is debited.
’ | To Purchases Alc Decrease in expenses ot.assets i
T credited. ]
. 21., Insolvency of debtors Cash A/c Dr. | Ificrease in assets is debited. )
' ' ’ Bad Debts A/c Dr. | Increase in expenses is debited.
: “To Debtors Afc | Decrease in assets is credited.
-~ Bad Debis recovered- Cash Afc Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
To Bad Debts
recovered Afc Increase in revenue is credited.
23. Disrribm:'on of goods Free Samples or Increase in expense is debited.
' as free samples Advertising A/c Dr. '
1 To Purchases Afc Decrease in expense or assets is
b - : credited.
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Loss by theft Alc Dr.

Refind of Income Tax

To Capital Afc

24. Loss of goods by Increase in expenses is debited.
theftlfire or '
Loss by fire Afc Dr.| Increase in expense is debited.
To Purchases Afc Decrease in expense or assets is
o -| credited. ' N
25. Loss of cash by Loss by theft A/lc Dr.} Increase in expense is debited.
thefiffire or '
Loss by fire A/c Dr. | Increase in expense is debited.
To Cash A/c : Decrease in assets is credited.
26. licome Tax paid Capital Afc Dr. | Decrease in capital is debited. -
- To Bank/Cash A/c Decrease in assets is credited.
27. Cash Afc ™ Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.

Increase in capital is credited. -

. Interest-received on

(Income Tax surplus)

Cash A/c ' Dr.

To Capital Afc-

Increase in assets is debited.
Increase in capital is credited.

129,

Increase in assets is debited,

Bills drawn .Bills Receivable Afc Dr.
‘ To Drawee’s. Afc Decrease in assets (Debtors) is
credited,
30. Bills accepted Drawer’s Afc . Dr.| Decrease in liability is debited.
To Bills Payable A/c Increase in liability is credited.
31. Payment of the bill -Ca‘s'h Alc Dr. | Increase in assets (cash) is debited.
" received _ To Bills receivable A/c | Decrease in assets (B/R) is credited.
{ 32. Payment of the bill Bills Payable A/c- Dr. | Decreise in liability (B/P) is
made debited. .
To Cash A/c Decrease in asscts (cash) iy
_ credited. ’
"33, Bills Receivable Drawee’s Afc Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
dishonoured To Billsteceivable Afc | Decrease in assets is credited.
or Bank A/c Decrease in assets is crgditcd
) or Endorsee’s Afc Increase in-liability is credited:
34. Bills Payable dishonoured Bills payable A/c Dr. | Decrease in liability is debited,
' To Drawer’s Alc Increase in liability is credited.
35. Sale of Assets for more Cash Afc * Dr. | Increase in assets (cash) is debilt;d'L
than the book valiie To Assets Alc Decrease in assets is credited,
To Profit on Sale of
- ‘ Assets Alc Increase in revenue is credited.
36. Sale of Assets for lesser "Cash Afc Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
than the book value Profit & Loss A/c Dr. | Incredse in expenses is debited.
_ - To Assets Afc Decrease in assets is credited, -
37. Amount deposited into Bank A/c Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
Bank/opened a Bank To Cash Al Decrease in assets is credited.
Acconunt ’

" " Rules of Debit and Crodit--
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Cash Alc - Dr.

Increase in assets is debited.

Debited by bank

38. Amount withdrawn from
Bank ' To Bank Afc Decrease in assets is credited,
39, Cheque received and Cash Alc Dr.| Increase in assets is debited.
retained * ToDebtors Alc Decrease in assets is credited.
40. Cheque received previously| Bank Afc Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
deposited into Bank To Cash Afc _ Decrease in assets is credited.
41; Chegue received previously| Endorsee’s Afc Dr. | Decrease in liabilitly is debited,
and endorsed To Cash AJc Decrease in assets is credited.
42, Cheque received and Bank A/c Dr. | Increase in assets ts-debited.
_deposited into Bank To Debtors Afc Decrease in assets is credited.
143, Cheque issued Creditors A/c Dr. | Decrease in liability is debited.
To Bank Afc Decrease in assets is credited.
44, Interest allowed or Bank A/c - Dr. | Increase in assets is debited.
‘Credited by bank To Interest Alc Increase in revenue is credited.
-45. Interest charged or Interest A/c Dr. | Increase in expenses is debited.
To Bank Afc. Decrease in assets is credited.

46, Bank charges or
collection charges

Bank Charges A/c Dr.
To Bank A/c

Increase in expenses is debited.
Decrease in assets is credited.

47. Dishonour of cheques, Drawee’s Afc Dr.] Increase in assets is debited.
Discounted earlier To Bank A/c Decrease in assets is credited.
48, Sale of wastes or scrap CashA/c. ~  Dr| Increase in assets is debited.
To Miscellaneous
Receipts A/c Increase in revenue is credited.
49. Subscribing newspaper Miscellaneous Expenses )
- Alc Dr. | Increase in expenses is débiled.
To Cash A/c Decrease in assets is credited.
50. Treatment of Sales T ax {@) Cash Afc _ Dr. | Increase in assets i debited.
- l To Sales A/c - "Decrease in assets, revenue is
7 _ credited.
To Sales Tax Alc Increase in liability is credited.
(b).Sales Tax Alc Dr.| Decrease in liability is debited.
To Cash Alc Decrease in cash as assets is
credited,
51. Recéipf of VPP (value Purchases A/c Dr. | Increase in assets or expenses is
payvable post) debited, )
: To Cash Afc ﬁwrease in assets is credited.

Hiustration 7. Classrj‘y the following under three different types of accounts :

(i) Stock
() Cush

.-(r."i)_ Loan
(v) Drawings

(vif) Current Accounts of a pariner

(ix) Banks.

(iff) Fixture
- (vi) Salaries

{viii) Insurance




Solution.
Personal Account : Real Account Nominal Account :
(i) Loan . (i) Stock Afc () Salaries Afc

(i) Fixture Alc
(iif) Cash Afc

(if) Drawings ' (if) Insurance Alc.
(iii) Bank A/c '
(iv) Current A/c of a Partner.
Ilusiration 8. On st January, 2006 the following were the balances of Garg & Co. :
Cash in hand Rs. 900 ; Cash at bank Rs. 21,000 ; Gopi (Cr.) R.s:. 3,000 Anu (Dr.)
Rs. 2,400 ; Stock Rs. 12,000 ; Dharmendra (Cr.) Rs. 6,000 ; Keshav (Dr.) Rs. 4,500 ; Kunal
(Cr.) Rs. 2,700, .
Transactions during the month were—

2001 Rs.
Jan. 2 Bought goods from DRATMENALA ..........commemesesscssssssssssssmmsmsnsseones - 2700
Jan.3  Sold 10 Keshav .....oveecrecrvncernenn eeeeetesemeeseeearasesnesebtbesseesrasasrshtasa bR © 3,000
Jan.5  Sold to Kunal goods for cash ....vvnrnnnnininnns dvnretieissssanensnats 3600 -
Jan. 7 Took goods for PErSORAl USE .....cwivucmirmsicmsissimsssianssanen st 200
Jan. 13 Received from Anu in full settlement ......... e 2,350
. Jan. 17 Paid 10 Gopi in full SETLement ...t 2,920
Jan. 22 Paid cash for stationery ........... fere s arnerrerae s e ens st et s e m e e 50
Jan. 29 Paid to Dharmendra by chEGUE .....uecoreiereriest st o 2,650
DiSCOUNE QHOWEM .o rernsnsissisaes ettt preemneereinas 50
Jan. 30 Provide interest on capital ... iviemseninsonresicssisimssannasssnarens 100
Rent due 10 1analord ......eioeecorreece sttt e 200
Journalise the above transactions.
Solution.
Journal Entries
Amount -
Date Particulars LF.
Debit Credit
Rs. Rs.
2006 '
Jan, | Cash Alc Dr. 900
Bank Alc Dr. 21,000
Anu Alc’ Dr. 2,400
Keshav A/c Dr. 4,500
Stock Afc Dr. 12,000
To Gopi Afc 3,000
To Dharmendra Afc 6,000
" To Kunal Afc 2.700
To Capital Afc - 29,100*
(Being the various assets and liabilities are
brought to new books)
Jan. 2 Purchascs Afc Dr. 2,700
To Dharmendra A/c 2.700
L {Being good.? purchased from-Dharmendra) '
S e S RSP EEpE R
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. Fin?mwfécfwmmg " | Jan: 3 ] Keshav A/c - . Dr,
ToSales Al - R .3.000
" (Being goods sold to Keshav) )

Jan..S l Cash A/c ’ ' Dr. 3,600
. To Sales Afc . s 3.600

- NOTES
.. ) (Being goods sold to Kunal for cash) |

Jan. 7 " Drawings A/c - Dr. ’ 200
: To Purchases A/c . . .. 200
' (Being goods taken for personal use} - - )

Jan. 13 | CashAf - .. br. 2,350
Discount allowed Afc ' Dr. . 50"

To Anu Afc - 2.400
(Being cash received from Anu in full
" settlement of tlje account)

Jan. 17 | GopiAfke .. . pr |, | 3000
: To Cash Alc B | 29
To Discount received Afc - . ' . 86

(Being cash paid to Gopi in full settlement of ' - '

‘the account)

Jan. 22 Stationery Afc . k D . 50 )
|  ToCashAle - . ' , . 50
(Being stationery purchased) ’

] .Jan. 29 { Dharmendra A/c ’ Dr. 2,700 f .
' . ) To Bank A/c : ) 2,650
T(; Discount received Alc . ) 50
(Being amount paid to Naro by cheque and - T
h she ailowed discount) .

Jan. 30 |- "Interest on Capital Ale - S Dr | 100
' ToCapital Ac~ * - . 100
(Being interest on capital is provided) -

. Jan: 30 '| RentAfc ' . Dr. ’ 200
- . To Rent Outstanding Afc - . 200
(Being rent due to landlord)” '

Al

" *Excess of debit opening,bafances over credit opening balances will be assumed to be capital.

88  Self-Instructional Material ’
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Alternate of Iflustration No. 8

Analysis of Transactions

According to According to
8.Ne, Transactions Related Accounring Equation Traditional Classification
Account {American Approach) (English Approdch)
Nature of How Kind of . Account Account
Account Effected Accounts Effect of Rule to be debited | to be credited
I. | Comimenced business with cash | Cash Asset Increased Real Cash comes in Cash —
Capital Capital Increased Personal Proprietor is giver — Capital
2. | Goods purchased Goods Asset Increased Real Goods comes in Goods —
on gredit from Avi Avi Liability | Increased Personal Avi is giver {Purchase) Avi
3. | Received Interest Cash Asset Increased Real _ Cash comes in - Cash —
] Interest Income Increased Nominal Interest is income _ Interest
4. | Purchased machinery for cash | Machinery Asset Increased Real Machine comes in Machinery —
Cash Asset Decreased Real Cash goes out Cash
" 5. | Rent Paid Rent Expense Increased Nominal Rerit expense Rent —
) Cash Asset Decreased Real Cash goes out — Cash
6. | Rent Received Cash Asset Increased Real Cash comes in Cash —
' Rent Revenue | Increased Nominal Income — Interest
7. | Soid-goods to Kevi . Kevi Asset Increased Personal Receiver Kevi —
Goods Asset Decreased Real Goods goes .out — . Goods
, . ' (Sales)
8. | Depreciation on Depreciation| Expense | Increased Nomipal Expenses Deprecia- —
Machinery Machinery Asset Decreased | Real Goes outside ation
o (Decreasing in value)| — Maéhinery

Note. Analysm of transactions and their Accounting treatment to the modern American approach and Traditional Epglish approach as per above statement shows the

same Accounting trcatment. Learners of the subject should base their understanding on Accounting Equation Approach in order to develop scientific outlook ‘towards
" Accounting. It may also be noted that purchases A/c can also be treated as an cxpense and sales A/c can be treated as revenue, According to this approach, rule of debit and
credit regarding expense and revenue will apply in case of purchases and sales but lead to the same entry as discussed above.
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" Illustration 9. Record the following rransacnons in the Journal of NOIDA Furniture

Mart :
- 2006
Jan. 1 Started business with cash Rs. 10,000.
Jan. 2 Deposited into bank Rs. 9,000. .
Jan. 3 Purchased machinery for Rs. 3,000 from Miss Jolly and gave her a cheque for
) ) the amount. '
Jun. 15 Paid installation charges of machinery Rs. 100.
Jan. 20 Purchased timber from Romi of the list price of Rs. 2,000. He allowed 10%
Trade Discount.
Jan. 23 Furniture costing Rs. 500 was used in Jurnishing the office.
Jan. 25 Sold furniture to Ramesh of the list price of Rs. 1,000 and allowed him 5%
i Trade Discount.
Jan. 31 Paid wages Rs. 350 and rent Rs. 200.
Solution.-
Journal Entries
Amount
" Date Particulars LF-
Debit Credit
Rs. Rs.
2006 )
Jan. | Cash A/c - Dr. 10,000
To Capital A/c - 10,000
(Being business started with cash)
Jan.2 | BankA/c Do 9,000
To Cash A/c ' l 9,000
EBeiilg amount deposited irito Bank)
Jan.3 Machinery A/c ' - Dr 5,000
To Bank Afc . 5.000
(Being machinery purchased and paid by cheque)
Jan. 15 | Machinery Ale - Dr. 100
To Cash Asc ' 100
(Being installation charges of machinery)
Jan. 20 Purchases Afc ; Dr. 1,800
. To Romi Alc 1,860
(Being timber purchased from Romi Rs. 2,000 '
at a-trade discount of 10%)
Jan. 23 Office Furniture Afc Dr. 500
To Purchase Afc ’ 500
{Being furniture costing Rs. 500 used in
furnishing the office)
SRS g s P —— IV I L _]
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Jan. 25 Ramesh Afc ) . .Dr 950

To Sales Afc 950

(Being fumniture sold to Ramesh for Rs. 1,000
and allowed him 5% trade discount)

Jan. 31 Wages Afc Dr. - 350
) Rent Alc Dr. 200
'To Cash Ajlc ~ 550
(Being amount paid for wages and rent)
Grand Total | 30.650 30,650

Notes. (i) Installation charges on machinery is capital expenditure. It will increase the
value of machinery, so it will be debited to machinery account not charges account.

(ify Timber will be treated as goods, because West Point Furniture Mart, the firm con-
cerned has been dealing in furniture. _
(iii) No entry regarding Trade Discount is passed.

Advantages/need of Journal

Journal has got the following advantages !

1. Reducing the chances of error. The double effect of every transaction is recorded
in the same journal entry at the same place. It becomes easicr to check and compare it. In
case, direct posting is made, there is possibility of omission, posting at the wrong side and

writing wrong amount in the two accounts.

2, Permanent Record. The Journal has permanent record. It has date-wise record of |

every transaction and can be used for auditing, whenever required.

3. Narration. Journal entries bear narration, which provides complete information about
the transaction. Tt enables us to understand the entry. :

4, Convenient distribution of work. Division of Journal into subsidiary books helps
the administration in the distribution of work among emp[oyees

5. Location of errors. Brrors can be easily located through journal.

Limitations of Journal

Journal inspite of its above advantages suffers from the following limitations :

1. Huge and bulky size. A single journal for the entire business will be bulky and
difficult to operate and handle.

2. Balance of accounts at a glance not available. The actual position of ledger bal-
ances as purchases, sales, returns. bills etc. is not known on a particular date from journal.

3. Difficulty in reconciling cash balance. In case all transactions including cash trans-
actions are recorded in the journal and no cash book is maintained, it will be very difficult
to reconcile daily cash balance.

In order to overcome the limitations of Journal, business units sub-divide the journal

into convenient parts and prepare subsidiary booksi.e., Purchases book, Sales book, Returns
Inward and Qutward book, Bills receivable and Payable book. Other transactions which do
not find a place in the subsidiary books are recorded in journal,

Rules of Debit and Credit—
Journal .

NOTES
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REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions :

1.
2.

3.

4.

5.

Name the types of Personal Accounts. _

"What is the classification.of Impersonal Account ?

Every transaction has two aspects debit and credit: How is it trie in case of Nominal
Accounts ? . .

Write short notes on any two of the following (&) Compound entries. (4) Opening entries,

(¢) Trade discount. )

State to which class of account does each of thé following belong ?

(i) Trade mark (if) Commlssmn received in advance (i) Accrued commission (iv) Com-

- mission received.

B. Short Answer Type Questions :

1.
2.
3,
4.
5.

Name basic accounting terms which are debited for increase.

Mention basic accounting terms which are debited for decrease.

Name and state three types of accounts.

Explain the meaning and purpose of the ledger folio (L.F.).

Why are the rules of debit and credit same for both liability and capital ?

C. Long Answer Type Questions :

I.

What are the different types of accounts ? Explain with examples-their rules of debit and
credlt

Explam the term :

(@) Opening journal entry (&) Compound journal entry )
{¢) Narration {(d) Ledger folio.

_‘Every debit must have its corresponding credit.” Discuss this statement.

- Explain the procedure of recording the journal entries in a journal. le, specimen of a-

journal thh five transactions recorded in it.
Explain the double entry mechanism with an illustrative example.



caapter 5 SUB-DIVISION OF JOURNAL

- . % STRUCTURE % |

w Sulisidiary Books

% Special Journal

vr Purchases Book -

¥ Sales Book

% Purchases Return Book
# Sales Retun Book

< Journal Proper

< Debit Note and Credit Note

SUBSIDIARY BOOKS

We know that all cash transactions are recorded in the cash book. In addition to these
cash transactions, theie are innumerable credit transactions. These credit transactions are
classified as credit purchases of goods, credit sales of goods, purchases returns of goods
and sales retums of goods. Instead of over-burdening journal with all the credit transactions
of goods, we prepare subsidiary books separately. These subsidiary books are Purchases
Book, Sales Book, Purchases Return Book, Sales Return Book.

Business, these days have been greater in size. They have got innumerable transac-
tions. It is quite impossible to record all the transactions in journal or ledger direct, because
this approach will not allow division and sub-division of work and speedy working. The
easy, convenient, speedy and appropriate maintenance of accounts requires that journal
should be sub-divided in convenient and requisite parts. Separate books should be used for
each type of transaction. These books are known as special journal or books of primary
record or books of primary entry or subsidiary books. :

These subsidiary books having non-cash transactions may be enumerated as under :

- 1. Purchases book or Purchases Journal

2. Sales book or Sales Journal
3. Purchases return or returns outward book
4. Sales return or returns inward book

Advantages of Subsidiary Books or Sub-division of Journal :
The uses, importance and advantages of the subsidiary books or sub-division of journal
are discussed herewith :

1. Proper and systematic record of the business transactions. All the business
transactions are studied and classified as cash and non-cash transactions, which are
further classified as purchases, sales and returns. The individual transactions are
praperly and systersatically recorded-in the specific concerned book.

Sub-division of Journal

NOTES
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Convenient posting. All the transactions of a particular-type are recorded at one
place i.e., in one of the subsidiary books. For example, all credit purchases of gqods,
are recorded in the purchases book and credit saies of goods are recorded in safes
book. It facilitates posting to purchases account, sales account and concerned personal
accounts, - ' :

Division of work. In case of entering all the transactions into journal, division of

work could not be possible. As there is only one journal, only one person can work on
it. If journal is sub-divided, or subsidiary books are prepared, the work will be-sub-
divided and different persons can work on different books at the same time and the
work can be speedily completed.

Availability of detailed information. Subsidiary books provide detailed information
about the transactions more than what is available from the narration of journal entry.
It is due to the fact that different.type of transactions are dealt in different subsxdlary
books.

Helpful in decision making. Subsidiary books provide complete details about every
type of transaction separately, so the management can use these information as a basis
for deciding its future line of action. For example, information regarding sales return
will enable the management to analyse the causes for return of these goods. The man-
agement can adopt effective measures to remove weaknesses responsible for the poor
performance, _

Availability of requisite information at a glance. In case ali the transactions are
recorded in the journal, it would have been very difficult and result in unnecessary
delay in obtaining requisite information regarding sales, purchases and returns. The
maintenance of subsidiary books helps in obtatning the necessary information at a glance.

Subsidiary books Journat proper
(Special Journal) . {General Journal)
’ or All Porpose Journal

Purchases book ' Purchases return book
(Purchases Journal) [ (Purchases Return Journal)

Sales boak Sales return book
{Sales Journal) (Sales Return Journal) . .

P

All non-cash transactions are recorded in subsidiary books or journal proper. If the

transaction does not find a place in subsidiary books, it is recorded in the journal proper.

i

SPECIAL JOURNAL (Subsidiary Books)

Special Journal, also known as Subsidiary Books or Day Books consists of Cash Book,

Purchase Book, Sales Book, Returns Inward and Returns Outward Book. 'Fhese are subsidiary
books having their own unique and specific features. All transactionls concerning these

books are recorded therein. In general, there are lot of transactions concerning these books |
hese books are separately prepared in our financial accountmg and pecnl treatment is

so, t

accorded to them. ) . X



Few transactions which do not find a place such as opening, closing, transfer, rectify-
ing and adjusting entries are recorded in General Journal.

PURCHASES BOOK (Or Purchase Journal)

it is one of the most important book, which records credit purchases of goods. As we
know, all cash purchases are recorded in the cash book. Credit purchases cannot be re-
corded in the cash book. The business wants to know the information about the credit
purchases of goods at a glance. The information can be made available, when purchases of
goods on credit are separately recorded. Purchases book does not keep record of the pur-
chases of assets even though it is on credit. Purchases of goods on credit only is recorded
in the purchases book. Goods, here means the articles in which the firm is dealing. In
other words, it is the item, which is purchased for regular sales. For example, furniture will
be treated as goods in case of the firm dealing in furniture. For other firms, which are not
(dealing in furniture, it will be an asset for them. Plant and machinery are generally assets
but if there is a firn which has been dealing in plant and machinery, it will be goods for the
firm. While recording transactions in the purchases book, we must ascertain that the credit
.purchases is relaied to the articles in which the firm is dealing. Purchases book is prepared

on Lhe following format :

Specimen format of Purchases Book/Purchases Journal

Amount
Name of Suppliers
Date Invoice No. {Account to be credited) LF. Details Total
. Rs. Rs.
(N 2 3) (4) (5) (6)

Explanation of Columns
(1} Date. The date column records the dates of the purchases of goods on credit.

(2) Invoice. Invoice is the statement prepared by the seller of goods. It contains details
about the goods, its price and other expenses incurred. Instead of writing complete
details about the goods purcha,sed only invoice number is mentmned The reqmsne
information, if any, may be obtained from the invoice.

(3) Particulars. This column bears the name of the supplier from whom goods have been
purchased. The details of goods purchased is also written in this column. It contains
the name, quantity, number and rate of the goods purchased. Any other specnﬂcatlon
and specialities of the goods is also written in this column.

(4) Ledger Folder. Ledger folio means the page number of the ledger. We have to post
the purchases of goods in the ledger accounts of suppliers. Purchase book contains the
page number of supplier’s account in the ledger. It facilitates in the posting and also in

c:hecking the records.

.

Sub-division of Journal
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(5) Amonnt (Detalls) This column is divided in two parts i.e., details and fotal. The

details column is used to write the individual total of the items purchased from a
particular supplier. This column is used. when we nucchase more tnan one item from
a particular supplier. This will aiso be used when we purcnase oy onc tem and trade

discoun s attowed to us. The column 15 used for additions auu subtractions.

(6) Amount (Total). The total column shows the net amount payable to the supplier of

goods. The purchases book can also be prepared in column form: The column pur-
chases book is prepared as under :

Ilustration 1. Record the following transactions in the Purchases Book :
2006 ) -
Mar. 1 Purchased from Garg Furnishers, Kirti Nagar (Invoice No. 516)
20 chairs @ Rs. 150 each )
2 tables @ Rs. 400 each
' Less ; Trade Discount @ 10%
Mar. 7 Bought of M/s Roy & Co., Kirti Nagar (Inveice No. 700)
2 stools @ Rs, 125 each
10 Collapsible chairs @Rs. 20 each
Delivery and cartage Rs. 15
Mar. 21 Purchased from Pa:el,‘Lajpar Nagar (Invoice No. 909)
10 chairs @ Rs. 150 each :
15 steel cabinets @ Rs. 150 each
Packing and delivery charges Rs. 25
Less : Trade Discount @ 10%
" Mar. 25 Purchased from Adi & Sons. Kirti Nagar (Invo:ce No. 1000)
2 Typewriters @ Rs. 7750 for Office use.

Soluticn.
Purchases Book/Purchases Journal
. Amount
Date Invoice Supplier’'s Name LF. - P—
No. {Account to be credited) Details Toral
; T ' Rs. Rs.
2006 -
Mar. I 516 . Garg Furnishers, Kirti Nagar
' 20 chairs @ Rs. 150 3,000
2 tables @ Rs. 400 800
3.800
Less : Trade Discount @ [0% : 380
' ' 3,420
Mar. 7 700 M/s Roy & Co., Kirti Nagar '
' 2sto0ls @Rs. 125 ‘ 250
10 Collapsible chairs @ Rs. 20 200
) 450 |
Add : Delivery and cartage 15 .
‘ ' ' 465




Mar. 21 [ 909 Patel, Lajpat Nagar
10 chairs @ Rs. 150 1,500
15 steel cabinets @ Rs. 150 - 2,250
‘ 3,750
Less : Trade Discount @ 10% . 375
3,375 .
Add : Packing and delivery charges 25 . 3,400
Purchases A/c Dr. 7,285 .
. Notes.

1. Purchases of typewriter will not be recorded in the purchases book, because typewriter
is an asset for a firm  dealing in furniture.
2. Trade discount is allowed on the purchase price of goods excluding delivery charges

and cartage.
3. Delivery charges and cartage is direct expense, chargeable from purchaser, so added to

. amount payable.

SALES BOOK (Or Sales Journal)

Sales book records credit sale of goods only. It does not record cash sales of goods.
Cash sales is recorded in the cash book. All the credit sales are not recorded in it. Credit
sales of assets are also not recorded in the sales book. We can summarise that :

" 1. Cash sales is not recorded in sales book. '

2. All salesare not recorded in it.

3. Credit sales of assets are not recorded.

4. Only credit sales of goods is recorded.

Goods means the articles in which the firm has been dealing. Goods are purchased for
regular sales. Raw materials used for manufacture of the articles, sold by the firm is also
goods. Articles produced, assembled, manufactured or purchased for sales are all goods.

The date column of the sales book shows the date of credit sales. Particulars column
contains the name of party purchasing goods or the party whom goods have been sold. It
also shows the details of goods as regards its quantity, specifications and aiso the rate of
trade discount allowed. L.F. column shows the page number of debtors‘account in the
ledger. The details column is used for additions and subtractions, if any. The total column
bears the net amount pay:ib[e by individual customers. The format of the sales book is as

under :

Sub-division of Journal
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Sales Book/Sales Journal

(2)

. Amouni
Dudte Invoice Name of the Customer L.F. ‘
No. {Account to be debited) | Details Total
. Rs. P. Rs.| P
(1 €)) 4 (5) (6)

Expianation of Columns :

(1) Date. It is the first column of the sales book. It records the dale.of actual credit sale. .
(2) Invoice No. Invoice is the statement sent by us to the customer containing details of

goods sold and dispaiched. Its number is mentioned in the sales book, so that neces-
sary information regarding sales may be obtained whenever required.

(3) Particulars. It records the names and addresses of persons or parties from whom
goods have been purchased. Names, types, size, number, quantities and other specific
features of the goods are also recorded.

(4y Ledger Folio (L.F.). The column records the ledger page number of. the persons/
parties mentioned in the sales book, so that posting in the concerned Purchases Afc
can be made.

{5) Amount (Details). This column records the amount of different items purchased from

single party and the total is transferred to the total column. This column will also
record the amount of sales, even if only one item has-been sold and trade discount is
allowed. This column is used for additions and subtractions.

()] Afnount (Total). This column records the net total of amount of sale to évery party.
Hlustration 2. Enter the following transactions in the Sales Book of M/s David & Co..

NOIDA :
2006

May 4 Sold to M/s Sharma Bros., NOIDA (Invoice No. 175) .

May 17 Sold old newspapers for Rs. 200 (Invoice No. 215)

10 dozens pencils @ Rs. 20 per dozen

14 gross rubbers Rs. 5 per dozen
May 14 Sold to M/s Verma & Co., Kirti Nagar (Invoice No. 200)

S.dozens gum bottles @ Rs. 5 per bottle
70 dozens rulers @ Rs. 15 per dozen

Less » 10% Trade Discount

May 21 Sold to M/s Sumit & Co., Moti Nagar (Invoice No. 253)

.10 reams of paper @ Rs. 60 per ream

Less : Trade Discount @ 10%




May 25 Sold 10 M/s Gupta & Co., Kirti Nagar for cash (Invoice No. 285)
10 dozens pens @ Rs. 120 per dozen for cash
May 30 Sold to M/s Cheap Stores, New Delhi (Invoice No. 299)
10 dozens pencils @ Rs. 18 per dozen )
Less : Trade Discount @ 10%
May 31 Sold old furniture to M/s Novelty Co., on credit for Rs. 1700. (Invoice No. 300}

Solution.
Sales Book/Sales Journal
Amount
Date Invoice Name of the Customers LF.
No. {Account to be debited) Details Total
Rs. Rs.
2006 .
May 4 | 175 M/s Sharma Bros, NOIDA
|0 dozens pencils @ Rs. 20 per dozen 200
14 gross rubbers @ Rs. 5 per dozen 840 1040
May 14 | 200 | M/s Verma & Company Kirti Nagar
5 dozens gum bottles @ Rs. 5 per bottle 300
70 dozens rulers @ Rs. 15 per dozen 1050
' 1350
Less : Trade Discount @ 10% 135 1215
. May 21 | 255 M/s Sumit & Company, Moti Nagar .
10 reams paper @ Rs. 60 per ream 600
Less : Trade discount @ [0% 60 540
May 30 | 299 M/s Cheap Stores, New Delhi
10 dozens pencils @ Rs. 18 per dozen . 180
Lesy - Trade discount @ 10% 18 162
Sales Alc a. | 2,957

Notes.

(i) Sale of newspaper will not be recorded in the sales book, because it is cash sales and the
firm has been dealing in stationery not newspaper. Sale of furniture also will not be
recorded..

(éi) Cash sales is recorded in cash book, not sales book.

PURCHASES RETURN BOOK (Or Purchases Return Journal)

Goods purchased on credit may be returned to the seller in case of certain defect or
violation of certain conditions. They may be returned, if they are not according to sample
and specification or if goods have been supplicd more than what they have been ordered.

Purchases return book is made in the same fashion as purchases book is prepared. In
the details column, it contains the names of those parties, whom goods have been returned.
It aiso contains the details of goods reiurned. If the supplier had allowed trade disccum it

the Lime of purchases. it will also be shown at the time of returning goods. Purchases return :

Sub-division of Journal
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. is also known as returns outward because goods brought inside the business at the tim
purchases-are being sent outside the business to supplier. This is the return of goods ot
the business, 50 it is also known as returns outward. In case of. gooas returned to supphe.
send a Debit Note to the supplier indicating that the Supplier’s A/c has been debited 1
price of goods returned. While preparing Purchases Return Book the Debit Note N
mentioned. It has got a separate column for Debit Note Numbers. Preparation of purch:

‘return book is explained by the followiﬁg illustration.

Hllustration 3. Prepare Purchases Returns Book/Journal from the fo[lowmg tran.
tions :

2006 -
March 4 Returned ro M/s Garg & Co., Chandigarh : (Debir Note No. 225)
2 Collapsible chairs @ Rs. 200 each
March 8 Returned to M/s Aggarwal Furniture, Chandigarh : (Debit Note No. 2
4 Chairs @ Rs. 150 each
.. Less: 10% Trade Discount
March 15 Returned to M/s Jain Ltd., Chandigarh (Debit Note No. 315)
— ! Steel Almiraf; of Rs. 4,000.

- Solution.
Purchases Returns Journal/Returns Outward Book
Amount
Date Debit Name of the Suppliers LF.
Note No., {Account-to be credited) Details Total
Rs. P. Rs. P
2006 '
Mar. 4 | 225 M/s Garg & Co. Chandigarh
2 Collapsible chairs @ Rs. 200 - 400 | -
Mar. 8| 245 M/s Aggarwal Furniture, ’
Chandigarh
4 chairs @ Rs. 150 . 600 | —
Less : Trade Discount 10% 60 | — )
540
Mar. [5 |. 315 M/s Jain Lid., Chandigarh
' 1 Steel Almirah 4,000
l Purchases Returns A/L Cr. | . 4,940 | —

80 Self-Instructional Material

SALES RETURN BOOK (Or Sales Return Journal)

Goods sold on credit to customers may be returned to us in the following cases :
1. Due to the defect in the goods.

2. Due to delay in the dispatch of goods.

3. Due to over-supply of goods.

4. Due to goods not being in accordance with the sample and specifications.
5.Due to violation of the terms of the contract.




.

bysiness.

Sales return book has got almost the sarne columns as sales book. This book records the
return of goods sold on credit only. This is not concerned with the return of assets or return
of goods sold for cash. After accepting the goods returned by customer. We issue a Credit
Note to him indicating that the customer’s A/c has been credited for the goods returned by

‘him. While Preparing Sales Return Book Credit Note No. is also referred, therein. The

preparation of sales return book has been explained with the help of following illustration.
lustration 4. Enter the following transactions in the Sales Returns Book :

- 2006
Jan. 9 Returned by M/s Gope & Co. (Credit Note No. 308)
20 bags Coffee @ Rs. 300 per bag
10 chests Tea @ Rs. 400 per chest
Jan. 17 Returned by M/s Ankita & Sisters (Credit Note.No. 412)-
15 tins Ghee @ Rs. 500 per tin -
Less : Trade discount 10%.

Goods returned by the customers to us may also be known as ‘Returns Inward’ because -
.goods once sent outward with the sales have been returned back and coming inside the

Solution.
Sales Return Book/Journal
. Amount
Date Credit Name of the Customer L.F.
Nete No. {Account to be credited) "Details Total
Rs. P. Rs. |- P
2006
Jan. 9 308 | M/s Gope & Co.
20 bags Coffee @ Rs. 300 per bag 6,000 | —
10 chests Tea @ Rs. 400 per chest 4,000 | — [10,000) —
Jan. 17 412 . | M/s Ankita & Sisters .
15 tins Ghee @ Rs. 500 per tin 7,500 —
Less : Trade Discount @ 10% 750 — 6,750 —
Sales returns Afc : Dr. | 16,750, —

Illustration 5. Enter the following transactions in proper Subsidiary Books of Ram :

2001 ' Rs.
Jan. 1 S0ld OOdS 10 JORN .....oovvvireniinnenscnie st 525

' Jan. 1 Bought 0f David .....coerieneiiircerecn s . 780
Jan. 2 JORR TEUINEA GOOLS o...oovcvneieereerecenecrimsimssasssesssesssenssrasssnssns 19
Jan. 2 Sold 10 ARt oo R SO, 550
Jan. 2 Purchased goods from Imtiyaz ‘700
Jan. 4 Returned got-)ds 0 IMEIVAT oot . 100
Jan. 4 Bought of Naresh ..........c.cooeveen. rrennanes ceree s 325
fan. 4 Sold mfﬁsnafc A T A s 350

Sub-division of Journal
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cJan. 5 Ashok returned BOOdS .........ovivvnmiiineenese e e
Jan. 6 SOIA 10 ABRAY ....o.eoeeeeeeeetereeeeereesreereresveseereerereseeenenes SDD)
Jan. 6 SOU 10 AL ...t resenissnsssssesnannss. 300
Jan. 7 Abhay returned goods ... S0
Jan. 7 Bought of Naresh ..........oecei v 700
Jan, 8 Returned goods 10 Naresh ... vveveeeervecnineescecesiceceevsecvninnes 75
Jan. 9 Purchased goods from Anshu subject to a trade discount of
) JOTB ettt e e e s st bs e sme s st oo rae e srnsan 1,000
Jan. 1D Sold to James goods subject to trade discount of 5%............ 500
Solution.
Purchases Book
Amount
Date Supplier’s Name L.F. -
(Account to be cr'edr'ted) Rs. P
2606
Jan. 1 Daviq 780 GO
Jan. 2 Imtiyaz 700 00
Jan. 4 Naresh 325 00
Jan. 7 Naresh . . 700 00
Jan. 9 Anshu £,000 .
Less : Trade Discount @ 10% 106 900 00
Purchases Afc Dr. 3,405 00
' Sales Book/Sales Journal
] Amount
Date Name of Customers LF.
(Account to be debited) Rs. P.
2006 -
Jan. | |John 525 _00 '
Jan. 2 | Ankit 550 o0
Jan. 4 | Ashok 350 00
Jan. 6 ) Abhay 500 00
Jan. 6 | Anil ) 300 00
Jan. 10 | James _ 500
Less : Trade Discount @ 5% 25 475 1,0]
Sales A/c , Cr. i ' 2,700 ; ) 60
! . i R




Purchases Return Book/Journal Sub-division of Journal

Amount
Date Parrictdars LF.
Rs. P
NOTES
2006
Jan. 4 Imtiyvaz 100 00
Jin.§ | Naresh . ‘ 75 00
' Purchases Return Afc . Cr. 175 00
Sales Return Book/Journal
" ' Amount
Date = Particulars LF.
) Rs. F
2006
Jan. 2 John 75 00
Jan. 5 Ashok 45 00
Jan. 7 Abhay 50 00
Sales Return A/c Dr. 170 00

JOURNAL PROPER (Or General Journal)

Business firms of smaller size may record ail their transactions in the journal, but in
practice most of the firms record their transactions in subsidiary books including cash book.
If the transaction does not find a place in the subsidiary books, it is recorded in the journal
proper. There are certain transactions, which cannot be recorded in either of the subsidiary
books. such as purchases of furniture on credit. If it would have been cash purchases of
furniture, it would have been recorded in the cash book. As purchases book-records credit
purchases of goods only, so the purchases of furniture, an asset will not be shewn in the
purchases book. The purchases of furniture will thus be recorded in the journal proper. The
following transactions are recorded in the journal proper :

1. Opening entries
2. Closing entries
3. Adjusting entries
4. Rectifying entries

5. Transfer entries
6. Special items, which do not find a place in any subsidiary book :

{a) Purchases of assets on credit

{5) Sales of assets on credit

() Interest on capital

() Goods taken by the proprietor for personal use .

{¢) Goods given as charity or free sample

' ' Self-Instructional Material 83
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" (f) Loss of goods
(g) Endorsement and dishonour of bills.

1. Opening Journal Entry

Business according to going concem concept is supposed to be carried on indefinitely.
At the end of the accounting year different accounts are closed but the business has to be
carried on, so previous years assets and liabilities are to be brought into account of the
current year. Passing journal entry in the begmnmg of th? current yeay with the balance of
assets and liabilities of the previous year is opening journal entry. In this entry assefs ac-
counts are debited because assets always shows debit balance. Liabilities and capital ac-
counts are credited because they show credit balance.

. Hlustration 7. The firm of M/s Pandey and Goyal has the fo-!lowing balances in their
different ledger accounts on January 1, 2006,

Cash Rs. 40,000
Closing Stock . Rs. 40000
Building - : Rs. 1,20,000
Debtors Rs. 40,000
Creditors Rs. 32,000
_ Capital . Rs. 2,16,000
Pass the opening journal entry. .
Solution. '
. Journal Entry-
- Amonunt
Date Particulars LF. ' !
Debit Rs. | Credit Rs.
2006 '
Jan. 1 Cash Afc .~ ) Dr. .40.000
Goodwill Asc ‘ Dr. 8.000
Stock Alc Dr. | 40,000
Building Afc Dr. 1.20.000
Debtors Alc Dr. 40,000
To Creditors A/c 32,000
To Capital Alc 2,16.000
- {Being previous year’s balance brought into
books)

*Note. Excess of credit over debit'has been assumed to be goodwill.

2. Clo...ag Journal Entry
At the end of accounting period, all ledger accounts periaining to goods i.e., purchases,

sales, purchases return, sales return, stock and other accounts concerning expenses, losses,

income and gain are closed by transfer to trading and profit and loss accounts. These trans-
fer eptries are termed as closing entries. In other words, the closing entries concern all the
itemns of the debit and credit side of Trading, Profit and Loss A/c i.e., Nominal Accounts.



‘These entries are based upon Trial Balance and can be summarised as under : -
() Tor closing items appearing at the debit side of Trading A/c
Trading A/c Dr. :
To Opening stock A/c
To Purchases A/t
To Sales return Alc
To Direct.expe._nses Alc (individually by name)
(if) For closing items appearing at the credit side of Trading Afc

Sales Afc Dr.
Purchases Return A/c Dr.
Closing stock Afc Dr.
To Trading A/c -
(itfy For Transfer of Gross Profit to Profit and Loss Afc -
Trading Afc : Dr.

To Profit and loss Afc
- (iv) For Transfer of Gross Loss to Profit and Loss A/c

Profit & Loss A/c Dr.
. To Trading A/c
(v) Forclosing items (indirect expenses and losses) appearing at the debit side of Profit
and Loss Afc ' )
Profit & Loss A/c Dr.

To lndirect expenses and losses Afc
(Individual expenses Afc by name) -
(vi) For transfer of Income ard Gains A/c

Individual Income and Gains A/c Dr.
To Profit and Loss A/c ‘
(vif) For transfer of Net prof"it
" Profit and Loss Afc ) Dr.
To Capital A/c (In case of proprietorship and partnership)
OR

Profit & Loss Appropriation A/c (In case of Compény)
(viiiy For transfer of Net Loss

Capital A/c or Dr.

Profit & Loss Appropriation A/c - Dr.
| To Profit and Loss A/c _
! ‘It should be noted that closing entries are made for nominal accounts only.
\' 3. Adjusting Entries ' '

Business is going concern. It has to be carried on indefinitely. We cannot wait indefi-
nitely for the assessment of the performance of the business, so we distribute the life of the
business in equal and uniform periods, generally a year. At the end of every accounting
year, we prepate trading and profit and loss account and measure/the performance of the
business in terms of Gross profit and Net profit. We also prepare a Balance Sheet at the end

| of the year to assess the value of assets and liabilities.

Sub-division of r)oumal

NOTES

.Self-Instructional Material

BS



F::nam:ial Account.ing

NOTES

88 Self-Instructional Material

While preparing Final Accounts at the end of every accounting period, we come across
certain problems. The expenses of the current year are still payable or the expenses of the
next year have been paid durlng the current year. Semetimes, income of the currcnt ycar
remain still receivable and the income of the next year has been received durin g the current
year. Depreciation on assets, interest on capital and provision for bad and doubtful debts of
the current year has not been recorded in the books as yet. We are required to adjust these
amounts in the final accounts of the current year, so that the correct profit or loss of the
business may be ascertained. We will have to pass adjusting journal entries for all these
items, errors and omissions, not yet recorded in the books. These items do not -appear in the
Trial Balance. They are adjusted at two places in the final accounts.

4. Rectifying Entries
“To err is human”. This old statement is also true for accounting. We, as a human being

-are likely to commit mistake of omission, commission and principles in maintaining baoks

of dccounts. We may omit the entire transaction from being recorded wholly or partially.
We may commit mistake in calculation, i.e., addition, subtraction, division and multiplica-
tion. Mistakes may also be committed in carrying forward total from one page to other
page, posting from subsidiary books to ledger accounts. Sometimes capital expenditure
may be recorded as revenue expenditure or revenue expenditure may be recorded as capital
expeunditure. These mistakes are likely to be ommitted in the books of accounts.

Mistakes committed in the books of accounts must be rectified at the earliest. It should
be noted that errors in accounts are not rectified by removing mistakes by ink remover or

“rubbing it off or by éver-writing or cuiting or even by tearing off the page. Once errors are

committed, we boldly accept it and rectify the mistake by passing a rectifying entry. The
rectified entry will neutralise the effect of wrong entry and also bring the correct effect of

the transaction. Rectification of errors should be made at the earliest. While passing recti-

fying entry we will have to take into consideration the nature and type of errors.

‘| 5. Transfer Entries

At the end of accounting period, all ledger accounts pertaining to goods. i.e., purchases,
sales, purchases return, sales return, stock and other accounts concerning expenses, losses,
income and gain are closed by transfer to Trading and Profit and Loss Account. These
Jjournal entries are termed as transfer entries,

For transfer of gross profit to Profit and Loss Account

Trading Afc Dr.
To Profit and Loss A/c
For Transter of Net Profit ]
Profit and Loss Afc ' Dr.
To Capital Al '

6. Special items, which do not find a place in any subsidiary book
(a) Purchases of assets on credit. We know that credit purchases of goods are reco:ded
> inthe purchases book. Cash purchases of goods are recorded in the cash book. Goods
here, means the articles in which the firm deals. Stationery will be goods for station-
ery dealer and furniture will be goods for furnishers. In case assets are purchased on
) credit they can neither be recorded in the purchases book nor in the cash book. We
have to pass a separate Joumal entry for this transaction. It is recorded in the journal

proper.



(b) .Sales of assets on credit. This item also does not belong to any of the subsidiary -

book. It can neither be shown in the cash book nor in the sales book, because it is
neither cash transaction nor credit sale of the goods. It is therefore, recorded in the
journal proper or general journal and a séparate journal entry is passed for it.

(¢) Interest on capital. It is an item which does not find a place in any of the subsidiary
book. It.is credited to proprietors’ capital accounts at the end of the accounting pe-
riod. It is recorded in the journal proper.

(d) Goods taken by the proprictor for personal use. If goods are taken by the propri-
etor for personal use, it is neither a purchases nor the sales of the firm. As such it
cannot be recorded in the purchases or sales book. That is why, we have to pass a
separate journal entry in the journal proper, '

(¢) Goods given as charity or free sample. If goods are distributed as free sample or
given as charity, it cannot be treated as purchases or sales. That is why, it is also”
recorded in the journal proper as a separate journal entry.

() Loss of goods. If goods are lost by theft, fire, storm or by any natural disaster or
accident, it cannot be treated as purchases or sales. It must be recorded as a separate

journal entry in journal proper. :
(g) Endorsement and dishonour of bills. These items do not concern with any of the
subsidiary book. So, they do not find a place in the subsidiary books. A separate

journal entry is also requierd for these items in the journal proper.

DEBIT NOTE AND CREDIT NOTE

In case of purchases retumn and sales return, adjustment is required in the amount pay-
able or receivable. These 1d_|ustmems are made through notes, known as debit note and

’

credit note.

Debit Note. In case of purchases return, the purchases will reduce the amount payable
to sellér. When goods are purchased, the purchaser credits the seller’s account. If certain
part of goods are returned to the seller, the value of goods returned will not be paid to the
seller or will be deducted from the amount payable to seller or technically seller’s account
will be debited with the value of goods returned to him. In this case the purchaser will send
a ‘Debit Note’ to the seller meaning that the seller’s account is being debited for the value
of goods retumed to hiri. The seller after receiving the goods returned to him and the
enclosed debit note will send 2 credit note to the purchaser, which will mean that the seller
has credited purchaser’s account with the value of goods returned to him. Debit note can be
sent by the seller to the purchaser also, if the total of the invoice is cast short or the price of
certain goods is not included by mistake or price calculated at lesser rates.”In all these
cases, the seller will charge amount over and above the invoice value from the purchaser,
so he will send a debit note to the. purchaser, who will send a credit note to the seller in

return. _
We have got a separate column for Debit Note Numbers in our Purchases Return Book
indicating the details of goods returned to supplier.

Credit Note. In case of sales return, goods are received back, so atlowance lis to be
given to the purchaser for the value of goods returned by him. At the time of sales, pur-
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chaser A/c is debited for the value of invoice sent to him. As certain part of goods is being
returned by the purchaser, so the value of goods retumed by him should be deducted from
the invoice value of goods or tcchnicalfy credited to the purchaser’s A/C. The seller in this
case will send a credit note, so to adjust the amount debited in excess at the time of record-
ing sales. The purchaser will send debit note against the credit note sent by the seller. The
seller will also send credit note to the purchaser to rectify mistakes in the following cases :.

1. If the total of the invoice has been wrongily added more.

2. If the price of certain goods has been charged, which was not sent.

3. If goods have been charged at more than their price.

4. If certain part of goods prove to be defective.

The pufchéser will send debit note on receiving credit note from the seller. The debit

and credit notes are exchanged between purchaser-and seller for adjustments: of amount
payable or receivable. If one party sends debit note, the other party sends credit note and

vice versa. “
We have got a separate column for Credit Note Number in our Sales Return Book
indjcating the details of goods returned by customer.

A specimen of debit and credit note is given below :

Name of the Firm Issuing the Note
) Address of the Fiirm
Date of Issue
No.
DEBIT NOTE
Against : Supplier's Name
Goods returned as per Delivery Amount (Rs.)
Challan No.
(Details of goods returned)
(Ruf:ees NPT & )11 |
Signature of the Manager with date

Name of the Firm Issuing the Note
Address of the Firm
: Date of Issue
No.
. CREDIT NOTE
Against :-Customer's N_émc L
Goods returned by the customer “Amount (Rs.)
Challan No.
(Details of goods received)

{(Rupees .....ccuee. Only)
Signature of the Manager with date




REVIEW QUESTIONS

- A. Very Short Answer 'Tyll.le Questions :

Where will you record the foﬂowmg tmnsacnons

Credit purchase:. of goods

Credit sales of goods

Credit sales of assets

Credit purchases of assets

Sale of furniture by M/s Ram & Sisters, furmshers Delhi.

oA P

B. Short Answer Type Questions :

1. Enumerate the causes responsible for the return of goods from the purchaser to sellers.
Name the books, which record non-cash transactlons
Explain briefly the difference between purchases book and purchaSes account.

leferentlate between sales book and sales account.
Explam the term ‘Debit Note” and ‘Credit Note’ in five sentences

LTS

6. Describe journal proper in five sentences.

-C, Long Answer Type Questwns :

1. What is meant by sub-division of journal ? What are ltS advantages ?

2. Explain purchases book and sales book with their format. Why does a rader keep these
books ? .

3. What purpose do the purchases return and sales return books serve ? How are they prepared ?
In what respects they are different from each other ?

4. _ert?T notes on : .
{a) Debit note ’ . (&) Credit note.
5. Enumerate the possible causes for which goods are returned to the seller.

6. Enumerate books, where non-cash transactions are recorded. Exp]am the various columns
used in any one of them.

Ay
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CHAPTER 6 LEDGER ACCOUNTS

% STRUCTURE *

%¢ Meaning of Ledger Accounts
% Classification of Ledger Accounts

¥ Importance/Advantages of Ledger Accounts

Y¢ Relationship Between Journal and Ledger
Ledger Posting from Journal Entries
Balancing of Ledger Accounts

o

MEANING OF LEDGER ACCOUNTS

‘We have discussed that business transactions of financial nature are recorded in the
books of original records. These books are cash book, purchases book, sales book, pur-
chases retum book, sales return book, bills receivable book, bills payable book and journal.
Business transactions are first recorded in these books. The proprietor of the business ex-
pects from accounting to let him know the position -of individual debtors and creditors
account. He would also like to know the value of individual assets and other material infor-
mation. The answers to these questions cannot be given unless, we prepare individual par-
ty’s and asscts accounts separately. Collection of requisite information concerning a
particolar account and presenting them under one head is known as ledger posting. In
the words of Carier, “An Account is a ledger record in a summarised form of all the
transactions that have taken place with the particular person or things specified.”

Ledger accounts are prei:ared on the following format.

CLASSIFICATION OF LEDGER ACCOUNTS

Ledger Accounts are classified into five categories. These categories are (a) As-
sets Accounts, (b) Liabilities Accounts (¢) Capital Accounts (d) Revenue Accounts and
{e) Expenses Accounts. These ledger accounts may be grouped as : (/) Permanent Ledger
Accounts and (if) Temporary Ledger Accounts. Permanent Ledger Accounts have their
opening balances except in case of newly started business. These accounts show a closing -
balances at the end of accounting year and are also carried forward to the next accounting
year. Temporary Ledger Accounts do not have any opening and closing balance. These ac-
counts are closed at the end of the accounting year by transfer to Trading or Profit and Loss
Accounts. Purchases, Sales and Direct Expenses Accounts are closed by wransfer to Trading

| Asc. Selling, Distribution, Indirect Expenses and Losses Accounts are transferred to the debit

side of income and gains accounts at the credit side of Profit and Loss Alc.



Format of Ledger Account

Page No. ......

Ledger Accounts

Name of Account (Title)
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars Folio Amount Date Particulars Folio Amounfr NOTES
r RS. RS.
48 (2) 3) 4 (63)] (6) €] 8)
To ...... Alc - By.. Alc

This format of Ledger Account resembles English Capital letter ‘T, so it is sometimes .
called ‘T’ shape account. As teachers generally use this type of Ledger Account while
taking classes, so this account is also known as ‘Classroom Account’. Practically T |
shape Ledger Accounts are hot used in business houses. ' |

Ledger Accounts are divided in two patts. The left hand side is debit side and the righg
hand side is the credit side. All business transactions are classified as assets, liabilities,
revenue, expense and capital. While preparing these ledger accounts, we have to apply the
rules of debit and credit applicable to the particular category of account.

IMPORTANCE/ADVANTAGES OF LEDGER ACCOUNTS

Ledger Accounts are the most important record of business accounting. Every business
transaction whether it is recorded in journal or cash book or subsidiary books must be
posted inio Ledger Accounts. kts importance are summarised herewith :

1. Separate accounts, There are separate ledger accounts for different partics ana 1eads,
so the information regarding every account is collected at one place. For example, if we
prepare Ram’s A/c, information regarding Ram’s purchases, sales, payments and bills drawn
and accepted etc. will be brought to Ram’s Afc from purchases book, sales book, cash
book, bills payable book and bills receivable book etc.

2. Requisite information at a glance. The correct position and status of every account
can be ascertained at a glance by going through it. In case of personal accounts, we know
what we have (0 receive or pay to the particular party. Information regarding purchases,
sales and returns are casily available from their ledger accounts. ’

3. Preparation of trial balance. Ledger accounts facilitate the preparation of trial
balance, which is the test of examining arithmetical accuracy in the books of accounts.
Trial balance is prepared with the balances of ledger accounts.

4, Facilitating the preparation of financial statements. Ledger Accounts supply in-
formation for the preparation of Trading, Profit & Loss Alc and Balance Sheet. They also
help in identifying adjustraents, which are incorporated in Final Accounts.
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN JOURNAL AND LEDGER.

Accounting transactions need to be recorded in the bocks of accounts. The first step }s
to record journal entry of the transaction which is also known as original entry for the
transaction. Once journal entry is prepared, it is posted in the ledger account. :

In double eniry book keeping, every transaction will have debit and credit effect. Ledger
accounts are prepared for both debit and credit accounts. For example, goods purchased
from Ram for Rs. 3,000. The journal entry for this transaction is as follows :

Purchases A/c Dr. XXX
To Ram . XXX
From the above journal entry two ledger accounts will be prepared namely purchases

"Afc and Ram'’s A/c. This indicates that there is back to back relationship between journal

entry and ledger accounts where in ledger accounts are prepared after the journal entry is
made for the transaction. Journal entry is transaction specific and ledger account is based
ot individual account, ’

LEDGER POSTING FROM JOURNAL ENTRIES

Journal is the book of original record. In case of small firms, all business transactions
are recorded in the journal. Big firms record their transactions in subsidiary books and
those transactions which do not find a place in subsidiary books are recorded in the journal.
We cannot ascertain the position of different accounts at a glance through journal. Tt is,
therefore, necessary that we should prepare ledger accounts with the help of journal entries.
Let us take an example to éxP]ain ledger posting from journal entries.

Hlustration 1. Pass the following Journal entries and post them in the ledger accounts:

2005 ' Rs.
Jan. 1 Started business with cash ....... renerear e s , ..... _— .- 20,000
Jan. 3 Purchased 800dS from VIVEE ......ourmoeeoeeeeeeeereeosoereo 5,000
Jan. 6 Paid 10 VIVEk ..co.o.ovverreeereresceeeercsreeeeov s v ——— 4,900
Discount allowed .............covesre.. ettt 100
Jan. 9 Purchased fUurniture ... ooeeoeemeeoreosooeoeoeo " 2,000
LA A R 1,000
Jan. 15 . Rent received ...........cveomeeevvmeesroeeeeronseeeesesoees oo, 500
Jan. 18 S0ld 0OAS 10 VIRCET .courevveeeeerivvrveesreeeees oo 4,000
Solution.
Journal Entries
Amount
Date- ' Particulars LF. )
Debit Credir
Rs. Rs.
2005
Jan. 1 | Cash Al Dr. ' 20,000
To Capital Alc ) 20,000
(Being commencement of business) _L J “




—_——— T T T T T T T ]
Jan. 3 Purchases A/c’ - Dr. I- 5,000
To Vivek A/c . 5,000
(Being goods purchased from Vivek)
Jan. 6 Vivek's A/c Dr. 5000
To Cash A/c : 4,960
To Discount received A/c IOO' .
(Being amount paid to Vivek who allowed
discount) '
Jan. 9 | Furniture A/c Dr. 2,000
To Cash Afc - 2,000
(Being furniture purchased)
Jan, 12 Salaries Afc Dr. 1.000
To Cash IA/c 1,000
{Being payment of salaries). !
Jan. 15 | CashAk ' Dr. 500
To Rent Alc 500
(Being rent received)
Jan. (8 Vineet's A/¢ Dr. 4,000 :
To Sales A/c 4,000
(Being goods sold to Vineet)
Ledger Posting ,
Cash' Account
Dr. Cr.
Date Particuiars JFE. | Amount Date Particulars LF.| Amount.
Rs. Rs.
2005 | 2005
Jan. 1 | To Capital Asc . 20,000 | Jan. 6| By Vivek Afc 4,900
Jan. 15 | ToRent Alc 500 | Jan. 9{ By Furniture A/c . 2,000
Jan. 12 | By Salaries Afc 1,000
Jan. 31 By Balance c/d 12,600
20,500 20,500
Feb. || To Balance b/d 12,600
) Capital Account
Dr. . Cr.
Date Particuiars J.F. Amount Date Particulars LF. Amount
Rs. " Rs.
2005 2005
Jan. 31 | To Balance ¢/d 20,000 | Jan, i By Cash A/c 20,000
20,000 20,000
Feb. .1 By Balance b/d 20,000
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Dr. ' Cr.
Date Particulars JF. | Amoun Date Particulars LE| Amount
" Rs. _ ‘Rs.
. NOTES 2005 : 2005
Jan.3 | To Vivek’s Alc 5,000 | Jan. 31| By Balance c/d 5,000
5000 | : ] 5.000
Feb. ! To Balance. b/d 5,000 ’ -
Vivek’s Account '
Dr. ) Cr.
Date Purticulars JF. | Amount Date Pariiculars LFE. | Amount
Rs. Rs.
2005 2005 o _
Jan. 6 To Cash Afc 4,900 { Jan.3 | By Purchases A/c 5,000
To Discount
recetved 100
- : 5,000 _ 5000 .
A Discount Received Account .
Dr. i ) Cr.'
2005 _ 2005 '
Jan, 31 | To Balance c/d ' 100 | Jan. 6 By Vivek’s Alc oo
100 ' 100
Feb.{ | By Balance b/d 160
Furniture Account. .
Dr. . Cr.
Date Particulars JF | Amount | Date Particulars JFE.| Amount
Rs. Rs.
2005 . 2005 ’ ‘
Jan. 9 | To Cash Alc - 2,000 | Jan.31 | By Balancec/d 2,000
S 2,000 2,000
Feb. 1 | To Balance b/d , 2,000
Salaries Account
] Dr. Cr.
2005 2005 .
Jan. 12 | To Cash Afc - 1,000 | Jan.31| By Balance c/d 1,000
1,000 o 1,000 -
Feb.1 | Teo Balance b/d 1,600
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Rent Account

Dr. Cr.
2005 ‘ | 2005
Jan, 31 | To Balance c/d 500 | Jan. 15| By CashAfk 500
500 ' 500
Feb. 1 By Balance b/d 500
Vineet’s Account
Dr. . Cr.
2005 : ' 2005
Jan. 18 | To Sales Afc 4,000 Jan. 31 By Balance c/d 4,000
4000 | [ 4000
Feb. 1 To Balance b/d 4,000
. Sales Account
Dr. - N Ccr.
2005 2005 :
Jan. 31 | To Balance c/d 4,000 | Jan. 18| By Vineet Afc 4,000
(Transfer)
4,000 4,000
' Feb.1 | By Balance c/d 4,000
Explanation

We have been making cash, an asset’s account, which is debited for increase and cred-
ited for decrease. All the transactions resulting in the increase of cash will be posted at the
debit side of the cash book and those resuiting in decrease will be posted at the credit side
of the cash book. Alternatively following rules of posting should be noted :

1 We never use.the name of the same account which we have been preparing either at
the debit or credit side of the account. It should be verified from the previous cash account
that we have not written “To Cash Afc’ or ‘By Cash A/c’ in it anywhere.

2.1t should be seen that the account being prepared has been debited or credited. If the
account has been debited, posting will be made at the debit side of the account and if the
account being prepared is credited in the journal entry the posting will be made at the credit
side of the account. ’

3. We write the name of reverse account at the debit or credit side of the account, as we
do not use name of the same account. This is why, while making posting of the first journal
entry in the cash account, we shall write capital account, which is opposite to the cash
account being prepared. It means that we write the name of account to be credited for the
debit of the account being prepared. While preparing an account being debited in the jour-
nal eatry the name of the account credited in the entry will be written. In the same way,
while preparing an account being credited, in the journal entry the name of the account

" being debited in the entry will be written. This fact can'be verified from the previous cash
account,

Ledger Accounts
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4. In case of coripound entries the amdunt written against the account being prep:
will be written. With reference to Journal entry on Jan. 6, we have writien Rs. 4,900 in

" cashaccount and while preparing discount we shall write Rs. 100, the amount written aga

discount account.

BALANCING OF LEDGER ACCOUNTS
Ledger Posting- of Opening Journal Entry

Opening Journal entry as we know is passed to bring the previous year’s closing b
ances of assets and liabilities to the current year. While making ledger accounts of ass
and liabilities appearing in the opening journal entry opening balances as represented in |
Journal entry must be shown in the begirining of the ledger account as “To Balance b/d’
the debit side for assets and ‘By Balance b/d’ at the credit side of liabilities. Remaini
posting in the concerned A/c will be made as usual. '

Ledger accounts are categorised as assets, liabilities, capital, revenue and expens
according 16 modern American approach. The First three of them i.¢., assets, liabilities a

capital account have certain closing balance at the end of accounting period, so their valu

are to be carried forward to the next accounting period. This is why, they are closed as ‘F
Balance ¢/d’ or *To Balance c/d’. In the previous ledger accounts, ¢ash account, capil
account, furniture and Ram’s account have been closed in this way. The balances of the:
accounts are cartied forward to the next accounting period, because the firm has to carry «
its business with these assets, liabilities and capital in hand. While closing these accoun
we write the word ‘Balance c/d” to show the closing balance of the account. We can wril
c/d both at the debit or credit side, while closing personal and real accounts. ¢/d here mear
carried down to the next period. We can also use the word c/f which means carried forwar
or ¢/6 which means carried over. All these words c/d or ¢/f or ¢/o are synonymous and cart
the same meaning. It should be noted once more that the word e/d is not restricted 1o th
-debit or credit side. It can be used on both the debit and credit side.

The closing balance of the previous period i.e., balance ¢/d is brought forward (o th

T next accounting period as balance b/d, which means brought down from the previous pe

riod. We can also use the woid b/f, meaning brought forward or b/o which means brough
over. These words ie., b/d or b/f or b/o can be used both at the debit or credit side o
personal and real accounts to show the opening balance of the account.

While closing nominal accounts or those accounts which are either an eXpense or rev
enue, we do not use the word balance ¢/d because the balance of these accounts need not be
carried forward to the next period. Whatever has been paid on account of expenses has beer
paid once and forever. This is the expense of the business, 56 it should be directly posted ic
the debit side of the profit-and loss account or trading account. In the same way, accounts
relating to income or gain or revenues are also closed by transfer to profit and loss account.
Receipts i.c., rent, interest and discount are revenue of the business, so while closing thesé
accounts their balance will be transferred to profit and loss account. That is why, rent,
discount and salaries accounts. in the'example have been closed by transfer to profit and

loss account.

It should be noted that outstanding or prepaid expenses accounts and accrued or un-
earned Income Accounts are Representative Personal Accounts. That is why, these ac-

counts are closed as Balance c/d.



Ledger Posting ﬁ'ﬁm Cash Boolk

Cash book is the book of original record. All cash receipts and cash payments are
recorded in the cash book. Cash account need not be prepared when cash book is- main-
tained but all the other accounts from whom payment has been received or those accounts
whom payment has been made will be prepared with the help of cash book. Posting in all
the accounts appearing in the cash book is made through cash book. The procedure of
postmg is explained with the foliowing illustration.

Hlustrafion 2. Prepare a cash book [from,the following transactions and post them into
concerned ledger accounts. Also ‘explain the rule and procedure of preparmg ledger ac:
counts with the help of cash book. '

2006 : ‘ ' _ Rs.

Nov., 1 COSH it AN oo sersssessssssens e essssses s ssesssineensscsessos 10,000
Nov. 3 Cash PUFCRASES oc.e.cvvivvrvvveensi et e 5,000 .
Nev. 6 CUSH SALES wovvreerercvereeriessessaseceeeresssetseeasietssssssstesssssasansassansressnnns 4,000
NoV. O PGYMENt Of WAgES wovoveceemsrsssrnsscrsrmrisnne resrseseness 2,000
Nov. 15 Rent received .......... S et rrees 700
- Nov. 20 Furniture PUrcRASEd ...t veeae 1,000
Nov. 25 Goods SOIA 10 DAVI ... iecenvaevarecvssrinernirvsse i eennvnes ’ : 800
Nov. 28  Payment received from David ............oceceocnvivivnienerineieanens 800
Nov. 29 Goods purchased from John ..o 3,000
J\g’mi. 30  Payment made to John 3,000 ,
Solution. ’
Cash Book
or. - ' ) ' : ' 'Cr.
Date Particilars JF. | Amount Date Particulars JLF1  Amount
. ' Rs. ' . Rs.
2006 .. 2006
Nov. || To Balance b/d 10,000 | Nov. 3 (. By Purchases Afc 5,000
Nov, 6] ToSales Afc 4,000 | Nov. 9 | By Wages A/c ’ 2,000
Nov. 15 | To Rent Afc 700 | Nov.20{ By Furniture A/c - 1,000
Nov. 28- To David's A/c " BOOQ | Nov.30| By John's A/c 3,000
© | Nov.30| By Balance c/d . 4,500
15,500 . ' 15,500
Dec. | | Te ﬁalance b/d 4,500 ‘
Notes

' ({} Sales of goods to David has not been shown in the cash book, because it is credit sales
and credit transactions are not recorded in the cash book.

(¢0) Purchases of goods from John is a credit purchases, so it will also not be shown in the

cash book. It should be once more noted that cash book records only cash transactions.

1. Ledger Posting from the Debit Side of the Cash Book

The debit side of the cash book records all cash receipts. The posting will be made in all
tha ladear necnunte annearing at the debit side of the cash book. Cash has been received

~ trougn these accounts, therefore cash account must nave been debited. The debit side :
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v

cash book shows that cash account has been debited for-all these receipts, so the accounts
appearing at the debit side of the cash book must have been-credited at the time of receiv-
ing cash. It is, therefore, suggested that posting in the accounts appcarfng at the debit side
will be made at the credit side of the accounts as ‘By Cash A/c’. This is due to the fact that
we cannot use the name of the same account in its own ledger account. In the previous cash
book sales account, rent account and David’s account have been posted at the debit side of
the cash book, so we shall be preparing these accounts through cash book and the posting.
will be made as under : :

. Sales Account
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars JF. | Amount Date | ° Particulars JF| Amount
Rs. Rs.
2006 2006 _
Dec. 31 | To Balance ¢/d ' 4,000 | Nov.l |. By Cash A/c . 4,000
4,000 _ - 4,000
2007 .
. Jan, | By Balance b/d 4,000
‘ Rent Account . .
Dr. . . cr.
2006 o 2006
Dec. 31 | To Balance c/d - 700 | Nov. 15 By Cash Alc ' 700
) 700 ' _ 700
- 2007
) Jan. 1 By Balance b/d ’ 700
David’s Account
Dr, Cr
Date
2006 2006 7 .
Dec. 31 | To Balance c/d 800 | Nov.28| By Cash Al 8GO
' 800 800
2007 EEEEE—
Jan. 1 By Balance b/d 800

2. Ledger Posting from the Credit Side of the Cash Book ) .

All -accounts appearing at the credit side of cash book will be separately prepared.
Posting will be made to the debit side of these accounts to complete double eniry record.
Credit side of the cash book shows cash payment to the accounts appearing at the credit
side of the cash book. Purchases account, wages account, fumiture account and John's
account must have been debited when payment would have been made to them, so the
posting will be made at the debit side of these accounts. While making posting from cash
book, it should be seen, whether the particular account has been posted at the debit side or
the credit side of cash book. If it is posted at the debit side of the cash book, posting will be
made at credit side of the account appearing there and vice versa.



Purchases Account Ledger Accounts

Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars JLF. | Amount Date Farticulars JF Amount
' » Rs. . Rs.
2006 - 2006 . NOTES
Nov.3 | To Cash Alc 5000 | Dec.3!| By Balancec/d 1 5.000
5,000 5.000
2007
Jan. | To Balance b/d 5,000
Wages Account
Dr. . . Cr.
2006 ) 2006
Nov.3 | To Cash Afc + - 2,000 Dec. 31{ By Balance c/d 2,600
2,000 ) 2,000
2007
Jan_ 1 By Balance b/d 2,000
Furniture Account
Dr. : Cr.
2006 2006
Nov. 20" To Cash Afc 1,000 | Dec.31| By Balancec/d 1,000
1,000 : 1,000
2007 '
Jan.1 | ByBalanceb/d | 1.000
~ John’s Account
Dr. Cr.
2006 2006
Nov. 31 | To Cash Afc 3,000 | Dec. 31| By Balance c/d 3,000
3,000 3,000
2007 —
Jan. 1 By Balance b/d 3,000
Ledger Pasﬁng from Purchases Book
Purchases book records only credit purchases of goods. Cash purchases are recorded in
the cash book. It is. therefore, necessary that purchases account showing the position of
total purchases both cash and credit should be prepared. Posting to purchases account will
be made through purchases book. It contains the names of those persons and parties from
'whom goods have been purchased on credit, so'the posting will also be made in these
personal accounts. The procedure of posting is explained with the help of following iilus-
tration. . .
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Financial Accounting lustration 3. Prepare a purchases book from the Jollowing details and also prepare -
concerned ledger accounts : '

2006
‘ _ Dec. 1 Purchased from Laxmi Publications, New Delhi : ‘
NOTES 100 Golden Accountancy for Class XIT @ Rs. 80 each -
" 50 Golden Commerce Jor Class XII @ Rs. 40 each
100 Golden Economics for Class XIT @ Rs. 50 each
- Trade Discount allowed @ 20%
Dec. 15 Purchased from Laxmi Kitab Ghar., Sonepat :
100 English Guide for Class X @ Rs 25 each
200 Hindi Guide for Class X @ Rs. 20 each
Dec. 20 Cash purchases of books Jrom Ankita & Sisters Rs. 300.
Solution. - .
Purchases Book/Purchases Journal
. - Amount
Date Particulars ; LF
Debir Credit
Rs.  Rs.
J 2006
Dec. !| Laxmi Publications, New Dethi : _
100 Golden Accountancy for Class XII @ Rs, 80 each 8.000
50 Golden Commerce for Class XTI @ Rs. 40 each 2.000
100 Golden Economics for Class XII @ Rs. 50 each -5.600
o , | 15000
Less : Trade Discount @ 20% ' .| 3.000
' ) . ) ' 12,000
Dec. 15| Laxmi Kitab Ghar, Senepat :
100 English Guide for Class X @ Rs. 25 each ' 2,500
200 Hindi Guide for Class X @ Rs. 20 each 4.000
' ] 6,500
Purchases A/c - ‘ Dr. . 18.500
.Purchases Account
Dr. Cr.
Date. Particulars JLF.| Amount Daze _ Particulars LF)  Amount
) ' Rs. ’ . o Rs.
2006 2006 " o
Dec. 31 {.To Total Amount | 12,500 | Dec.3I{ By Balance ¢/d 18.500
as per Purchases A :
Book ) o -
18,500 18.500
2007 _
Jan, | To Balance b/d 18,000
) _ Explanalion. The total of the purchases book is posted to the purchases account. The
total of the purchases book represents the total of all credit purchases of goods. We need
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not show every credit purchases individually in the purchases account. The total will be
posted at the debit side as “T'o Total Amount as per Purchases Book’. Cash purchases are
also posted at the debit side of purchases account. The balance of this account will be

transfefred to the debit side of Trading account.
Laxmi Publications Account

Dr. cr.
2006 2006
Dec. 3i | To Balance c/d 12,000 | Dec.1 | By Purchases Afc 12,000
12,000 12,000
2007 o
Jan. | By Balance b/d 12,000

Explanation. Laxmi Publications Account appears in the purchases book. As the pur-
chases book has a debit balance, so the posting will be made at the credit side of parties
accounts appearing in the purchases book. The name of the supplier of goods on credit is
recorded in the purchases book, so all the accounts appearing therein are suppliers. Sellers
of gobds on credit or suppliers are always credited for supplying goods, so posting is made
at the credit side of Laxmi Publications Account as ‘By Purchases Account’. The closing
balance of the account will be carried forward to next period.

Laxmi Kitab Ghar’s Account

Dr. - cr.
2006 2006,
Dec. 31 | To Balance c/d 6,500 | Dec. 15| By Purchases A/q 6,500
6,500 6,500
2007
Jan. I By Balance b/d 6,500

Explanation. The account of Laxmi Kitab Ghar appears in the purchases book which
shows a debit balance, so the posting will be made at the credit side of firm’s account.
Posting will be made at the credit side of ail the accounts appearing in the purchases book.
Laxmi Kitab Ghar is the supplier of goods on credit. The firm is our creditor, so the posting
will be made at the credit side and we shall be writing ‘By Purchases A/c’. The firm’s
account will show a credit balance so its closing balance will be transferred to the next
accounting period as ‘By Balance b/d" and treated as opening balance of the next period.

Ledger Posting from Sales Book

Sales book records credit sales of goods only. Cash sales are recorded in the cash book.
Itis, therefore, necessary that sales account should be prepared to show the overall picture
of sales. It should include cash and credit sales. Sales has always a credit balance, so post-
ing in case of sales will be made at the credit side. The persons and banies,'whom goods
have been sold must have been debited, so posting will be made at their debit side. Sales
account will be closed by transfer to trading account but personal accounts will show a
balance and closed as ‘By Balance c/d’. The procedure of postmg to personal accounts
through sales book ts explained as under :

Ledger Accounts
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concerned cccounts

IHustration 4. Prepare a sales book Jrom the following information and post them into

2000
Dec. 1 Sold goods on credit to Novelty Book Depot, Chandigarh
NOTES 200 Copies of Golden Accountancy for Class XII @ Rs. 80 each
Dec. 5  Sold to Standard Book Depot books worth Rs. 2,000 for cash
Dec. 25  Sold 10 Adi Book Depot, Chandigarh
200 Copies of Golden Economics for Class XII @ Rs. 50 each
300 Copies of Golden Accountancy for Class XII @ Rs. 80 cach
Trade discount allowed @ 20%.
Solution.
Sales Book/Sales Journal
Amount
Date Particulars L.F.
Debit Credit
Rs. Rs.
2005
Dec. 1| Novelty Book Depot, Chandigarh :
200 Copies of Golden Accountancy for Class XII
: @ Rs. 80 each : 16.000
‘ Dec. 25| Adi Book Depot, Chandigarh :
200 Copies of Golden Economics for Class XII
@ Rs. 50 each 10.000
300 Copies of Golden Accountancy for Class XII
@ Rs. 80 each 24,000
34,000
Less : Trade Discount @ 20% 6,800
27,200
- Sales Afc Cr.’ 43,2000
Note. Salesto Standard Book Depot is not.credit sales, so it will not be shown in the sales
book.
Sales Account
Dr. Cr.
. Date Particulars JF | Amount Date Particulars LF|  Amount
. Rs. Rs.
2005 2005
Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 43,200 | Dec.31| By Total amount 43,200
: as per Sales
Book
43,200 43,200
2006 )
Jan.1 | By Balance b/d 43,000
Explanation. The total of sales book is transferred to the credit of sales account. Sales
book always shows a credit balance, so its posting will be made at the credit side of sales
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account. Sales book records all credit salés of goods. Cash sales are recorded in the cash
book. Both credit sales as per sales book and cash sales as per cash book are posted at the
credit side of sales account, which shows total sales of the period. The balance of sales
account is transferred to the credit side of trading account. .

Novelty Book Depot Account

Dr. Cr,
2005 ; 2005
Dec. | | To Sales Alc’ 14,000 Dec. 31} By Balance c/d 16,000
. 15,000 ’ 16,000
2006 - —
Jan. | - | By Balance b/d 15,000

Explanation. The account of Novelty Book Depot appears in the sales book which
shows a credit balance, so the posting will be made at the debit side of Novelty Book
Depot’s Account. Posting in all the accounts appearing in the sales book will be made at the
debit side. Parties appearing in sales book are the debtors of the firm, as credit sales was
made to them. Debtors as assets have debit balance so the posting will be made at the debit

side as ‘To Sales A/c’.

Adi Book Depot Account
Dr. _ ' Cr.
2008 . 2005
Dec. 25 | To Sales Afc 27,20b Bec. 31 By Balance cfd 27,200
27,200 ‘ . . 27,200
2006 ' —
Jan. 1 To Balance b/d 27,200 -

Explanation. Posting will be made at the debit side of Adi Bock Dep:t’s Account
because it appears in the sales book as the rule goes. ‘Posting will be madz at the debit side,
of every account appearing in the sales book’. Adi Book Depot is the debtor of the firm, so
the posting will be made at the debit side of Adi Book Depot. The account will show a debit
balance and its balance will be transferred to the next period as opening balancz and shown

as “To Balance b/d’.

Summary of Rules of Posting from Subsidiary Books

1. Posting from the debit side of the cash book. Posting in all the accounts appearing
at the debit side of the cash book is made at the credit side of the account. No cash
account is prepared, if cash book is maintained by the firm.

2. Posting from the credit side of the cash book. Posting in all acccunts appearing at
the credit side of the cash book will be made at the debit side as “Te Cash A/c’, Cash
account is not prepared, if cash book is maintained by the firm. '

3. Posting from purchases book. Posting from purchases book is madz in the purchases
account and supplier’s éccopnt from whom goods have been purchased. Fosting in
the suppliers account is made at the credit side as ‘By Purchases A/c” and in purchases
account posting is made at the debit side as total amount as per Purchase Book. -

4. Posting from sales book. Posting is made at the debit side of debtors’ accouat, whom
soods have been sold on credit and which appear in the sales booi. The posting in the
sales account is made at the credit side as By Total Amount as Per Sales Book.

Ledger Accounts
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5 Posting from purchases return baok. Posting is made at the debit side of suppliers’
* accour:ts witich appear in the purchases return book. Posting is also made at the credit
side of the purchases return account.

6. Posting irom sales return book. Posting is rhade at the credit side. of the debtors
accounts whose account appear in the sales return.book. Posting in the. sales return
account is made at the debit side.

Distinction beiween Journal and Ledger

All business ‘ransactions are tecorded in the sutsidiary books. If the transaction does
not find a place in subsidiary books. it is recorded if the journal proper. With the help of
subsidiary books and Journal, Ledger Accoun's are prepared. Ledger Accounts are known
as Principal books. Ledger Accounts are maintaired with the help of Yournal, which is of
the initial record of business transactions. This is why, Journal is knowx as the initial
book of original record. Though Journal and Ledger both keep the record of Business
transactions but, even then they are different from each other in the followmg respects

Difference between Journal and Ledger

Points of Differerce Journal . . Ledger
1_. Primary record Journal is the primary récord of It is the principal book of
business transactions, business transactions, not primary
) record.
2. mfo”ﬁaﬁon Information regarding diffzrent Information regarding particular
Accounts are shown’at one-place. | Account is shown at one place.
3. Basis Ledger Accounts are prepared | - Ledger Accounts are used as a
taking Journal entries and subsidizry | basis for preparing Trial Balance.
books as basis. v
REVIEW QUES TIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questmns
" 1. Mention the balance of Sales A/c and Purchases A/c. How are these accounts closed ?
2. What is meant by ‘Nét Purchases” ?
3. What is the balance of Sales A/c and where its balance is transferred 7

B. Short Answer Type Questions :
1. Prepare the format of an account. ‘
2. Is the balance of Nominal Accounts calculated. if not ? How is it closed ?
3. “Ledger is the principal book of business 2" Explzin.
4. What is the meaning of an account ?
" 5. What is the purpose of a ledger 7

C. Long Answer Type Questions : ‘ .

1. What is meant by Ledger Posting ? Explain its importance in Accounting.

2. ‘Expla:n the procedure for preparing Ledger Accounts thrc;ugh Journal entry.

3. How cre Ledger Accounts of items appearing at the credit side of Cash Book prepared ?

4, Why is it necessary to prepare Ledger Aceounts, when there are Subs:duuy Books and
Journzl ? . '

5. Whick accounts can be prepared on the basis of Purchases book and Sales book ? Explam
the process of preparing these accounts.



cuarter 7 TRIAL BALANCE

* STRUCTURE *

% Meaning 6f Trial Balance
¥ Purpose and Functions of Trial Balance
7 Limitations of Trial Balance

¥c Preparation of Trial Balance

% Methods of Preparing Trial Balance

All the transactions of financial nature are recorded in the books of accounts. Journal
proper and subsidiary books record all business transactions originally. With the help of
subsidiary books and journal, we prepare ledger accounts. These ledger accounts have the
debit and credit sides. The ledger accounts are balanced. If the credit side exceeds the debit
side, the excess is known as credit balance. In the same way, excess of debit side of an

account over its credit side shows debit balance. After balancing ledger accounts, we would

like to check the arithmetical accuracy of our accounts and for this purpose trial balance is
prepared.

MEANING OF TRIAL BALANCE

Trial balance is a statement, prepared with the debit and credit balances of ledger
accounts to test the arithmetical accuracy of the books. It may also be prepared with
debit and credit totals of ledger accounts and also with the balances and totals of ledger
accounts. Books of accounts are maintained according to the ‘Double Entry System’,
where every debit has its corresponding credit, so the total of the debit and credit columns
of the amount column must tally. If the total of debit and credit amount column is equal, we
assume our books of accounts to be arithmetically correct, but it should noi be,_ taxen it as
the conclusive proof of arithmetical accuracy.

Special Features of Trial Balance
Trial balance has the following special features :

1. The trial balance is prepared on a specmc date. That is why, we use the word ‘as
on......" with its heading.

2. Trial balance contains the list of all ledger accounts including cash account.

3. Trial balance mdy be prcpared with the balances or totals or balances and totals of
ledger accounts.

4. The total of the debit and credit column of the amount must be equal.

5. In case the debit and credit side of the trial balance are equal, we assume that the
principles of ‘Double Entry System’ and the assumptions of accounting equauon have
been observed.

6. The difference between the debit and credit side of the trial balance points out that
certain mistakes have been committed somewhere.

T¥ial Balance
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7. If both the debit and credlt sides have the same total, it does not mean that there is no
mistake in accountmg

PURPOSE AND FUNCTIONS OF TRIAL BALANCE

The Trial balance is prepared with the following purpose : )
1. Test of arithmetical accuracy. Trial balance is the test of accuracy-of arithmetical
" calculations. If correct posting has been made from subsidiary books and ledger ac-
counts and correct figures have been recorded and copied, the debit and credit total of
the trial balance must taily, ' _

2. Summarised information of ledger accounts. Trial balance contains a. list of all
ledger accounts. It presents the names of ledger accounts and the amount of their debit
or credit balance. The summarised position of ledger accounts can be obtained at a
glance from the trial balance. It would have been very difficult to assess the position
of different ledger accounts from subsidiaty books and ledger accounts. _

3. Basis for preparing final accounts. The ultimate end of maintaining books of ac- -
counts is to ascertain the result of the business in term of profit and the value of
different assets and ]iabililicé. For this purpose, we prepare a profit and loss account
and balance sheet on the basis of information supplied by the trial balance. It is, in this
way, a source statement for preparing final accounts. ' )

4. Helpful for making adjustments. While making final accounts certain adjustments
regarding closing stock, outstanding and ;'Jrepaid expenses, accrued and unearned in-
come are to be made. While identifying items for adjustments, we will have to study
{the information furmshed by the trial balance.

¢

'LIMITATIONS OF TRIAL BALANCE (Errors not Aﬁecimg or

Undetected by Trial Balance) :

Trial balance is taken as test of arithmetical accuracy. If both the debit and credit
columns of trial balance are equal to each other, we assume that there is no mistake in the .
posting of journal and subsidiary books to ledger accounts, in carrying forward balances of
ledger accounts to trial balance and even in the balancing of ledger accounts. This assump-
tion is correct but should never be taken as conclusive proof of accuracy. It means that there
are certain errors which remain undetected by trial balance. Both the debit and credit col-
umns of the trial balance may be equal inspite of certain mistakes of omlssmns and prmr:l-

‘ ples These errors may be mentioned as under :

1. Errors of omission in the books of original record

2. Errors of principle .

3. Compensating errors

4. Incorrect account in the original books
- 5. Posting to wrong éccount. ‘

1. Erroxs of omission in the books of original record ’
The entire transaction is not recorded in the books of accounts, we omit to record the

‘tr_ansaction. For example, goods rétumed by Mohan were taken into stock but the return



was not entered in the books. The mistake cannot be discovered by trial balance, because
equal amount could not be written at both the debit and credit sides of the trial balance as
the entire transaction was not passed through due to omission. The error will affect the
result of the business, so it should be rectified at the earliest.

If the omission is made in posting only one part 6f journal entry or omission is made in

posting the total of the subsidiary books to ledger accounts or the total of ledger accounts to

trial balance itself, the mistake will be detected. The trial balance will fail to discover the
error, if the entire transaction has not been passed. through journal or subsidiary book or a
particular journal entry has not been posted in the ledger accounts completely.

. 2. Exrors of principle
We maintain books of accounts accqrding to double entry system. According to this
system, every debit has got its corresponding credit. The accounts will be arithmetically
correct, if the same amount is written at the debit and also at the credit side. Errors of
principles may be committed, if we debit or credit a wrong account due to our ignorance.
The accountant does not have the understanding of the accounting concepts and commits
errors. For example, purchases of building is capital expenditure and building account should
be debited but if the accountant debits purchases account instead of building account, er-
rors of principle will be there in the accounts. The trial balance will tally. Double entry
“record will be completé but the mistake will continue to remain in its accounts. Errors of
“principles in this way are not detected by the trial balance. In the same way, if salary is paid
to the Managing Director but instead of debiting salaries account, Managing Director’s

personal account is debited, the errors of principle will be committed. The error will not at |

all be detected by the trial balance. Accountants and auditors should never take it as granted
that there are no mistake after the agreement of trial balance, i.e., trial balance should not be

taken as final proof of accuracy.

3. Compensating errors -

It i just possible that the effect of certain error is neutralised by the effect of another
error. The combined effect of the two errors will equalise the debit and credit side of trial
balance inspite of errors. It can be explained with the help of the following example.

Example. Sale of goods to Mohan for Rs. 100 was debited to Mohan’s account with
Rs. 10 only. .

Rs. 100 received from Sohan was credited to Sohan’s account with Rs. 10 only. .

In the first error, Mohan's account was debited with Rs. 10 only, whereas it should
have been debited with Rs. 100. It means that Rs. 90 was debited short. The effect of the
- error in the trial balance will be that the total of the debit side will be Rs. 90 lesser.

In the second error, Sohan’s account has been credited with Rs. [0, whereas it should
have been credited with Rs. 100. It shows that Rs. 90 have been written lesser at the credit

side of Sohan’s account. As per the effect of this error, the total of the credit column of trial

balance will be lesser by Rs. 90.

The combined effect of the.two errors on the trial balance is that the first error has
reduced the total of the debit side by Rs. 90 and the second error has reduced the total of the
credit side of the trial balance by the same amount i.e., Rs. 90: Reduction of Rs. 90 from
both sides will not affect trial balance. Both sides of trial balance will tally inspit'é of the
Lwo errors. .

]
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4. Incorrect account in the original book

If the name of wrong account are used in the Journal of subsidiary books, trial balance
will not be able to detect it. For example, goods sold to Ramdhari tor L{s 300 was wrongly
debited to Namdhari with Rs. 300. The mistake will not affect trial balance because post-
ing at the debit side of the trial balance has been made against Namdhari's account though
instead of Ramdhari’s account. In the same way, debltmg or crediting wrong personal ac-
counts cannot be detected by trial balance.

5. Posting to wrong account

If the posting from the debit side or credit side of cash book or from purchases book or
sales book er returns book is made to wrong account but at the correct side and also with the
correct amount, both the debit and credit side of trial balance will be equal inspite of these
errors. .

Following ledger accounts have debit balance :

1. All assets account, i.e., cash, building and furniture etc.
2. All expenses and losses account, i.e., wages, salaries and bad debts etc.
_ 3. Purchases account '

4. Sales return or returns inward account

5. Drawings account

6. Debtors account

Following ledger accounts have credit balance :

1. Capital account

2. Liabilities accounts

3. Reserve and funds accounts

4. Revenue and income account

5. Sales account

6. Purchases return or returns outward account

7. Creditors account

o. liitctest on drawing account.

PREPARATION OF TRIAL BALANCE

The preparation of trial balance is the third step of recording business transactions in
the books of accounts. The first step is to record the business transactions in subsidiary
books and journal proper. The second step is to prepare ledger accounts on the basis of

- subsidiary books and journal. Trial balance is prepared on the following format :




Format of Trial Balance

‘ Amount
Name of the Accounts LF.
' Debit Credit
Rs. Rs.

(1) (2) (3) (4)

Explanation of Columns

(1) Name of the account. This column contalm list of all ledger accounts. Names of
accounts are written in this column. Accounts should not be omitted. Omission of any
account will throw trial balance out. ,

(2) L.F. (Ledger Folio). This column contains the page number of the dilferent ledger

" accounts in the ledger. If salaries account is prepared at page 17 of the ledger, 17 will

be written in the folio column against salaries account. J
Amount column. All accounts in the ledger must be enlisted in the trial balance and
their total or balance or both should be written in the amount column against them.

(3) Debit column, The amount column is divided as debit and credit. If the trial balance

. is prepared by total method, the debit total of every account or debit balance of ledger

accounts (in case the trial balance is prepared according to balance method) is written

in the amount column, Debit balance means excess of debit side of an account over its
credit side.

(4) 'Credit_column. If the ledger account shows a credit balance i.e., credit side exceeds
the debit side, the amount will be shown in the credit column (In case trial balance is
prepared according to balance method). We will have to write the total of the credit
side of the account if the trial balance is being prepared according to total method. -

METHODS OF PREPARING TRIAL BALANCE

"There are three methods of preparing trial balance. The total of both the debit and credit
columns of the trial balance must be equal in all the methods. The following nethods can
be used for preparing trial balance :

v

1. Balance method

2. Total method .

3. Total and Balance method

1. Balance Method .

Trial balance, as its name itself points out is prepared with the balance of ledger ac-

counts. Every ledger account. has got the debit and credit side. At the end of a certain
period, ledger accounts are balanced. Excess of the total of the debit side of an account over

i

~
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its credit side is known as debit balance and written in the debit column of the trial balanice. .
In the same way, excess of credit side of an account over its debit side shows credit balance
and will be written at the credit side of the trial balance. The total of both the debit and
credit side must be equal. "

2. Total Method

According to this method, the total of the debit and credit side of every account is
separately written in the debit and credit column of the trial balance. The total of both the
debit and credit must be equal. If it is not equal, there are defxmtcly certain errors which
should be located and rectified.

3. Total and Balance Method

This method presents both the balance and total method in the same trial balance. The

- ~

‘amount column is divided between total and-balance methods. Each method has further

two columns of debit and credit. The total of the debit and credit under each method must
be equal. There will be different totals according to the different methods but the total of
debit and credit of each method will be equal.

Hlustmtmn L. Pass journal entries with the following information. Also prepare ledger
accounts and trial balance. -

2005 o _ . Bs
Jan. 1 Michael started Busingss With CAsH ..eeeeoveeesroveeeevreeorosreecess oo 20,000
Jan. 3 ' He opened a current account in t}ge e . 171/
Jan. 7  Purchased goods on credit from Nancy .....vvevrvcvieceeccenes - 4,000
Jan. 10 Paid to Nancy in fitll SEHIEMERL .....vvvoererereeeeeeeers e 3,900
Jan. 13 Machinery pzirchased ................................................................... 2,000
Jan. 16 G0ods 501d 10 RANG oo eoeveeseerere. ettt eeneees 3.000°
Jan. 18  Amount received from RanG ........covvonniveeccnvcictonens ] T 1,000
Jan. 20 Salaries paid ....... serneerree e et e spereseereneannsenes 700
Jan. 23 Rent received .......veecvveeccininnnnns y e reneeneen et erenseeae 300
Jan. 28  Goods purchased from Rohit-.......... ' .................... 4,000
" Jan. 31 Interest on capital @ 10% for the month
Jan. 31 Depreciation on machinery ..........coeeeeciviinnimsiesinnn, creeerenns 100
Solution. ‘ ' ‘

Journal Entries - -

Amount
- Date ' Particulars LF.
Debir Credit
Ks. Rs.
2006 . . _
Jan, 1 | CashAfc " o Dr. 20,000
To Capital A/c 20,000
{Being Michael started business with cash)
Jan.. 3 | Bank Afc ) - . . Dr 5,000-
To Cash Afc . 3,000
{Being amount paid into Bank) _L _
e e e — e — T — ——— — — — — — e — —— — L —— e ke —— e



Jan. 7

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

Jan.

18

20

23

28

31

31

__——__-__—.—-—_...___-._.-_.—._..—.--—--

Purchases A/c . Dr.
To Nancy Afc _

(Being goods purchased from Nancy)

Nancy Afc Dr..
To Cash Afc

To Discount Received Afc
(Being amount paid to Nancy ‘who allowed discount)

Machinery Afc ) ' Dr.

To Cash Afc
(Being purchase of machinery)

Rana Afc : ' Dr.

To Sales Afc
(Being sale of goods to Rana)

Cash Alc l ' Dr.

To Rana Afc
(Being amount received from Rana)

Salaries Afc . Dr.

To Cash Afc
(Being payment of salaries)

Cash Alc Dr.

To Rent Afc
(Being rent received)

_ Purchases Afc _ . ‘ Dr.

To Rohit Afc
(Being goods purchased from Rohit)

Interest on Capital A/c . Dr

“To Capital A/c
(Being Interest on Capital allowed)

Depreciation A/c
To Machinery A/c
(Being depreciation on machinery)

' Dr.

o s —

4,000

4,000

2,000

3,000

1,000

4,000

167

100

4,000

3,900
© 100

2,000

3,000

- 1,000

700

300

4,000

100

167
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Ledger Accounts
Cash Account
" Dr. Cr
Date Particulars JLF. | Amount Date Farticulars JF|  Amount
) Rs. Rs.
2005 2005
Jan. ] To Capital Afc 20,000 | Jan.3 | By Bank A/c 5,000
Jan, I8 | To Rana’s Afc 1,000 | Jan. 10 | By Nancy’s Afc 3,900
Jan.23 | To Rent Afc 300 | Jan. 13 | By Machinery Alc 2,000
' Jan, 20 | By Salaries A/c 700
. “Jan, 31 | By Balance c/d 9.700
21,300 21,300
Feb. I | Ta Balance b/d 9,700
Bank A!c
Dr. .| Cr.
2005 2005 )
.Jan. 3 To Cash Afc 5.000 Jan. 31 | By Balance c/d 5,000
, 51000 [ 5000
Feb, | | To Balance b/d 5,000
Purchases A/c
Dr. ' Cr.
. 2005 2005 -
* Jan.7 | To Akali Afc 4,000 | Jan.31 | By Balance c/d 8,000
Jan. 28 | To Abeni A/c 4,000 ' .
' ' 8,000 8,000
Feb. 1 | To Balance b/d 8,000 ,
Nancy’s Afc
Dr. ' Cr.
2005 | 2008 BN
Jan. 10 | To Cash Alc 3.900 | Jan.7 | By Purchases A/c T 4,000
To Discount Afc 100 -
4,000 .4,000




Discount Received Alc

Dr. Cr.
2005 2005
Jan. 31 | To Balance c/d 100 | Jan. 10 | By Nancy Afc 100
100 100
| Feb. 1| By Balance b/d 100
Capital A/c .
Dr. cr.’
2005 2005 :
Jan. 31 { To Balance c/d 20,167 Jan. 1 By Cash A/c 20,000
' Jan.31 | By Interest on
Capital Afc 167
20,167 20,167
Feb. 1 By Balance b/d 20,167
Machinery Afc
Dr. : Cr.
2003 2005
Jan, 13 | To Cash A/c 2,000 | Jan. 31| By Depreciation
' Alc 100
Jan.31 | By Balance c/d 1,900
2,000 2,000
Feb. 1 | To Balance b/d 1,900
Rana’s AJc
Dr. Cr.
2005 2005
Jan. 16 | To Sales Alc 3000 | Jan. 18| By Cash Alc 1,000
' Jan.31 | By Balance ¢/d 2,000
3,000 3.000
Feb. | { To Balance b/d 2,000
Salaries A/c
Dr. Cr.
2006 2006
Jan. 20 | To Cash A/c 76_0 Jan.31 | By Balance c/d 700
\-
700 700
Feb.1 | To Balance b/d 700

Trial Balance

NOTES
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Sales A/c
Dr, . ' Cr.
- 2005 ' 2005 . .
NOTES Jan.31 .| To Ba!ance c/d 3,000 | Jan. 16 ‘_By Rana Afc 3‘.000
| . - 3000 ] ' 3,000
y ; Feb.1 | To Balance b/d 3,000
) . _ . . Rent A/c .
Dr. Cr.
-} 2005 ' 2005 : _
Jan. 31 | To Balance ¢/d : 300 | Jan.23 | ByCashA/lc - | . 300
_ 300 ‘ 300 .
' Feb.1 | ToBalanceb/d 300
’ Rohit’s A/c .
Dr. .Cr.
2005 ' | 2005 -
Jan. 31 | To Balance c/d 4,000 Jan.28 | By Pu(chases Al . 4,000
' 4,000 | - . ' . 4.000
Feb.! | ToBalancebdd | | 4000
_ Interest on Capital A/c .
Dr. '
2005 . R B ~ | 2008
Jan. 31 | To Capital A/c 167 { Jan.3! | By Balance c/d 167
167 | - | 167
Feb. | | To Balance b/d o167 | I
' Depreciation A/c
Dr. i Cr.
2005 . ' 2005 .
Jan.31 | To Machinery A/q [{U4] Jan. 31 " By Balance ¢/d " || 100
100 : ) . [ 100
Feb. 1" | To Balance b/d - 100 ' |
' \

ll%‘ Selﬁ!nslructional_ Material .

cr. +



1. Balance Method ' ) Trial Balance
C : Trial Balance
as on January 3!, 2005

Amount
Name of the accounts - . LF. NOTES
' : ' . Debit Credir
. Rs. - Rs
+ CAPIUAL ASCu v st st s g — 20,167
Bank A/C.v et eer e et st s sssas e s {5,000 -
PUrCHASES A/C..cceuveemsiee e issssnsnesesmsanrsansesensson s T ) 8,000 | —
DISCOUNE A/C.c.vree e reresusrreessassesares s ssrsssstsssnsson : — 100
MACRINETY ASC...ooecveoueemreseeemesssssnsessessesesrasmacessessanis 1,00 S—_
RANE’S AJC..crereeeecieteaciecessresesaesanssssasserm s savsens savasnssns ‘ 2,000 —
SAIALIES ASC..onereeeemmecsrrosssesessassensessascsesscessassssases e ' 700 —
Sales A/C...rowroncrsee - — | 3000
RN ALC.cvrererrcerrseceree e enere e _ — 300
DEPreciation A/C.. ... verssremsonmsiescassrisssssivnssssseseasas 100 —
ROBIE’S ASCovvcrrvrensenreesmaneramsssssssessasssensarssssnasess bersonsees ' .- 4,000
, Interest on Capital A/C.. .t 167 —
27,567 27,567

- 1
Explanation :
(/) The trial balance, prepared as above contains the list of all ledger accounts except
Nancy’s account which is closed and does not show any balance (the total of the
- debit and credit of Nancy's account are equal). A
(if) Cash account, bank account, purchases accouat, machinery account, Rama's account, |-
salaries account, dépreciation account and interest on capital account show debit
balance (excess of debit over credit) so the balance has been shown in the debit column.
Inthe same way, capital account, discount account, sales account, rent account and Rohit’s |
account show credit balance, so the amount has been written in the credit column.

(/i) The total of the debit and credit side each is Rs. 27,567 and is equal.

2. Total Method | : \
_ Trial Balance .
as on January 31, 2005 ' |
- Artount
Name of the accounts LF
Debit Creait
. Rs. Re
Cash AfC.u e manraene e eeatr s 21,300 F1L600
CUPIAL AJC..orvrerresiaeeseesessssesesee e ssssasisssas esesie ensne o — 20,167 -
Bank A/c ' L5000 10—
PUFCRASES AJCorerreeee o eeeeesceeseneee e erems e eemeesinns . ' 8,000 = -
Nancy's Alc . 4,000 -LO00
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T GOt Ad o T F T T T 00
Mac]_unely A e ' 2000 V. 100
Rana’s AfConneveeeeen, fertersrnesset e raen e as 7 3,000 1,000
) SAIATIES ASC.reeirecrrie st esee s eeesoeee e 00 —
NOTES S Y e _ — 3,000
RENE ALC..eccc ettt eereessene e f — 300
DEPIECIation A/C........vcuveemeeceoomeess oo oo = oo ~ 100 —
ROIIt™S ASC et e S - 4,000
Interest on Capital ASC ittt e -. 167 —
44267 | 44267

Explanation :

(f) Trial balance has the list of all the ledger accounts including Nancy’s account which
was dropped from the balance method. Cash account, Nancy’s account, machinery
account and Rana’s account have posting at the debit and also at credit side, so the
total of their debit side is written in the debit column and the total of the credit side

is written in the credit column. Bank account, purchases account, salaries account,
depreciation account and interest on capital account have posting only at their debit
side so their totals have been writters only at the debit side. In the same way. capital
account, discount account, sales account, rent account and Rohit’s account have
posting only at the credit side; so the amount has been written in the credit column.

(i) The total of debit and credit coiumns according to this method is also equal.
(iif) Total and Balance Method _
Trial Balance
as on January 31, 2005

Total Method | Balance Method

Name of the Accounts | L.F | Debit | Credit | Debir | Crodi

L oe Rs. Rs. Rs. | Rs

CaSh AVC e sesamraseeoe oo ereseeesenseon s . 21,300 | 11,600 | 9,700 —
Capital At e — { 20,167 — | 20,167
Bank AfC.. coovoeeeereveeeveeeeres e eees s, S 5,000 — 1 5,000 —
PUICHASES AL rmrveeeeeeeeeeeesess oo 8,000 — | 8,000 —
CNENCY’S AfCorvrerrereer oo et 4000 | 4000 1  — —
Discount Afc — 100 — 100
MACHINEIY ASCermuneeeneeceeeeeversvereesesossee e 2,000 100 | 1,900 .
Rana’s Afc..oviovevveeanane freteeeshesaeraeennene et e 3,000 1,000 | 2,000 o=
SAIATES ArCerreoosoeerse e emeres st oe o . 700 w00
SALES ASC.cnirinrrmicese et srnr s ‘ — 4 3000} -— | 3000
ROOLA/C..c. it oo sees s . —| 30| | 300
Depreciation A/C.....o v eevvvnniee e 100 —_— 100 -
RONIE'S A/C.ourveeromeressensoseesesiveroeessneessees  — | 4,000 — | 4,000
Interest on Cupltal ASC it , 167 e 167 -
44,267 | 44,267 | 27,567 |+27.567
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Explanation. The amount column is divided between total and balance methods. Each

method has got its own debit and credit column. Names of all ledger accounts are enlisted.

The debit and credit total of every account is posted in the total method. The balance of
accounts have been written in the balance method. The total of the total method is Rs.
44,267 as per both the debit and credit side. The total of the debit and credit columns under
balance method is Rs. 27,567 and are also equal. -

Hlustration 2. The following trial balance was drawn from the books of Rana Traders on

31-72-2006 :

Trial Balance
Debit Rs. - Credit Rs.

Building 60,000 Capital 73,600
Machinery 17,000 Fixtures 5,600
Returns outward 2,600 Sales 1,04,000
Bad debts 2,800 Debtors 60,000
Cash 400 Interest received 2,600
Discount received 3,000 .
Bank overdraft’ 10,000
Creditors ' 50,000
Purchases . 1,00,000

2,435,800 2,45,800

Even though the debit and credit sides agree, the trial balance contains certain mis-
takes. Redraft the Trial Balance.

Solution.
Redrafted Trial Balance
as on 31-12-2006
Amount
Name of the accounts LF.
Debit Credit
Rs. Rs.

BUIAINE AZCoreereeressssesenraeseessesssassssosessessoeeessose 60,000
Machinery AC..cviin v reetes s s 17,000
Returns UtWArd AfC ... . ooveeeeeeeeevecerseeeesaeeesessenseresees 2,600
Bad debts AJC.....cuiiiinseienienseerecressnnss e e e 2,800
Discount received A/C.. .. iieneveevnrcnnireecrnressnnens 3.000
Bank overdraft A/C. ..o i e 10,000
Creditors AfCu e sressasresnssesssesssssesesseees 50,000
PUIChESES ASC..ovriercnicreirerineserasssassansssas s snesessesneosesaes 1,00,000 :
CAPTEA] ASC.reeeerrerrisreee et eee e et sb st e : 173,600
FAXEUTES ASC.nreeeet et eea e e e s ans st e e et anine 5,600
SAIES AJC..ceeeceeee e e s 1,04,000
DEBEOIS ASC..cocrei s iveererermvae e rmarassacseenerassasesraresans 60,000
Interest received AJC......ooeivici e 2,600

245,800 | 2,45,800

Trial Balance
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LIST OF IMPORTANT ACCOUNTS AND THEIR BALANCES

Account ] Name of the Account Debir | Credi (
Code - . (Rs.) (Rs.)
Capital Account — v
Fixed Assets Accounts -
* Land and Buildings.......c........ enenereaneesuetesresarsenase R o —
* Plant and Machinery.......cocecocreeimms v cssnsssnssssrssmarsesssne 4 —
* ‘Fquipmcnt and Tools......cveeaenn eevmeseem s reesenes oo ssssens v —
Furniture, Fixtures and Fl'tmg........................' ........ - 4 —_
% GOOAWIL] covrcrremserremmerereemtssecsenenenne cereereseesaanae e e s v —
Current Assets Accounts :
# Cash iN NANG...c.. v ieenseereseesesesrrssersssssessenssesmsassssasenons s —
* Cash at Bank(Generally) . ./ —
* Sundry Debtors........ Ceverearans S - - -—
* Bills Receivable. ... i isminniinse e o —_
* Stock Of RAW MALETTalS..c.ov.veovervvervenmscessossssnenssssssesesessoses v S
D SUS L —— IR B v —
® St_ock of finished goods........cocccnene.e eesernesenannnsseneesen o+ —
Miscellaneous Accounts: :
* Purchases ......oeemne. ses i et R b e r s e —
* Carriage inWards.........coouvemerereenaned emmscasenbems st reaeenat . 4 —
* CAITIAE OUIWATS. ..ov.ovsr e vscrisssrssecnes eerveraseres e anmsnanaees ) v —
* Sales.......... eeverereereades P S errnsrerseaens . n v
* Sales REtUINS. ....ccveereeersecrsrcsemsssrentssrrasreransaenss teesrneenne 4 —
* Purchase REtUIDS. ..o cemvereereennens Cevanmrerans recaseinreserenessns — v
i * Interest due/outstanding ........ecevsiereenes resesrerassssmnensnsners — v
* Comm:sswn/Dlscount paid..inan peressssusssrsanenssnans " v —
* Interest on drawings... ... S — - s v
o Long term Loan........cvvicmeriiiemircsensscrssnenes R — v
" 5 Bills PAYADIC oo ~ %
. * Outstanding Salaries............ ............ — A
¥ Prepaid Insﬁ_r_anc_e ...... s besesmnesens SO : v -
% Loans advanced et gsane e e ke e - ¢
* Advances from CUSIOMETS. ...v.veceverrresrrcssrsessersasses Ceveieins — v
* Drawings.....cuveee. reepreceras s arans e ne sems e e s e s e nm nn s o —
* Reserves and SUTplus......v.eeerseceserees — ) /
* Provision for bad and doubtful debts..............I ............... — v
* Wages OWiNg, s — v
- 5




REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions :
1. Give four functions of trial balance.

2.
3.

Is it compulsory that the debit and credit side of triai balance must tally ?
How is the preparation of trial balance useful ?

B. Short Answer Type Questions :

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

How will an error be located if the posting is made at the wrong side of an account ?
Explain compensating error with a suitable example.

State the meaning of trial balance.

What is the purpose of preparing trial balance ?

-Write two objectives of preparing trial balance.

€. Long Answer Type Questions

1.
2.

Bring out clearly the purpose and limitations of trial balance.

“Is trial balance a conclusive proof of the accuracy of the books of accounts™ 7 (Hive exam-
ples in support of the answer.

“Ys trial balance a conclusive proof of the accuracy of the bouks of accounts.” If not, what
are the errors which remain undetected inspite of its agreement.

4. Ifa trial balance fallies, can it be concluded that there is no error ?

5. Explain the meaning and objective of trial balance.

Trial Balance
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cuartir 8 FINAL ACCOUNTS
| (WITHOUT ADJUSTMENTS)

Meaning. of Final Accounts/Financial Statements
Classification of Income :

Capital and Revenue Expenditure

Trading Account

Profit and Loss Account

Balance Sheet

Points to be considered while Preparing Final Accounts

Bor % o5 om oo

MEANING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/FINAL ACCOUNTS

Every firm likes to measure the performance of its business operations in terms of
profit or loss. It aiso likes to know the values of its assets and liabilities on the closing date
of accounting period. In order to ascertain its income and also to assess the position of
assets and liabilities statements prepared are known as Financial Statements. These state-
ments are also known with their traditional name as, "Final Accounts’.

Fmancaal statements are divided in two parts, i.e., income statements and position statc-
ments. The term incore statement is traditionally known as Trading and Profit and Loss
Account and position statements is known as balance sheet.

Business transactions are recorded in our original books, ie., subsidiary books and
journal proper. With the help of these original books of record, we prepare ledger accounts.
Trial balance is prepared with the balances of ledger accounts. With the help of Trial bal-
ance we prepare final accounts or financial statements. Final accounts consist of Trading
account, profit and loss account and Balance sheet. Trading account shows gross profit or
gross loss, net profit or net loss is available from Profit and foss account. The Balance sheet
exhibits the position of assets and liabilities on a particular date.

 CLASSIFICATION OF INCOME

Income can be broadly classified into two heads :

. (1) Capital income '(2) Revenue income

(1) Capital Income

In this case, any irchular income earned will be classified as capital income. For exam-
ple, a huge amount of donation received in the case of non-profit organisation. Also in the
case of profit-making organisations, if some capital assets is sold and a large amount of
gain is realised on that sale. It will be classified as capital income.



(2) Revenue Income - _
-This refers to regular business income by sale of goods and services in the market. For
example. if a television manufacturing company sells T.V. sets then income realised on

that sale will be known as revenue income.

‘CAPI'I.'AL AND REVENUE EXPENDITURE .

Classification of Expenditure
Expenditure incurred in the business are classified as :
(a) Capital expenditure (b) Revenue expenditure
(¢} Deferred revenue expenditure. |
{a) Capital cxpe'nditure. Expense& z'nc-urred in acquiring and increasing the value of
[ixed assets are’ terined as capital expenditure. Amount spent on the purchase of land
and building, plant and machinery, vehicles, furniture etc., is capital expenditure. The
-expenses incurred for addition and extension of fixed assets are also capita! = xpend1~
ture. Special features of capital expendlture is as under : -
Special Features : ]
(i) Capital expenditure is r‘nade for acquiring fixed assets.
(ri) This expenditure increases the value of assets.
(#if) T'hese expenditures increase the profit earning capacuy of business.
(iv) These expend:tuxcs are casually incurred.
(v) The assets acquired through these cxpendltures are not meant for sales.
(vi) These expenditures are shown at the assets side of the Balance Sheet.
Certain examples of capital expenditure :
() Purchasing fixed assets. .
(i) Purchase of material for construction of building.
(i)Y Payment of wages for construction or extension of building.
(v} Payment of wages for addition of rooms or erection of sheds in the building.
{v) Carriage, cartage and freight paid on acquiring assets such as plant and machin-
ery. furniture etc.
(vi} Installation charges of plant and machine.
(vii) Repairs of assets, purchased second hand. '
{viii) Payment for goodwill. : ‘
Accounting Treatment of Capital Expendirure. On acquiring or increasing, the value
of fixed assets through capital expenditure assets account is debited becanse these

expenses increase the value of assets. (Assets are always debited.for increase). These
assets are shown at the asests side of the balance sheet. These expenses are not shown

at the debit side of profit and loss account. The distinction between capital and rey--

enue experiditulfe is important because revenue expenditures are debited 0 profit and
loss account and capital expenditures are assets recorded in the Balance sheet.

{(b) Revenue expenditure. These expenses are incurred as routine business expense. They
e concerned with our day-to-day transactions. These expenses are incurred usually

Final Accounts
(Without Adjustments)
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‘in the ordmary life of busmess They maintain the assets but do not increase thelr
value. Special fealures of these expenditure is as follows :
Special Features :
() These are routine expenses.
(if) These expenses are usually incurred.
‘(iii) These expenges do not add to the value of assets but maintain it, ie., white-
washing and repairs.
(iv) Revenue expenditure does not increase the profit earnmg capacuty of the
firm but s:mply maintains it.

(v) Currcnt assets acquired through these expendnures are meant for sale.
(vi) Revenue expenses are shown at the debit side of the trading and profit and loss A/c.
Certain examples of revenue expendlture :
(" Purchase of goods.
(éf) Payment of expenses in acqumng or manufacturing goods, i.e., carriage and
wages etc. :
(#if) Payment of selling and distribution expenses.
(iv) Repairs and maintenance of plapt, machines, furniture, equipments etc.
(1{) White-washing of building. '

It must be understood that ekpendinire is a wider term and includes expenses as well as assels.
There is a difference between expenditure and expense. Expenditure is any outlay made or
inicurred by the firm. The part of expendllure which is perceived to have been used or con-
sumed in the current year, is termed as Expense of the current year.

‘Accounrmg Treatmem of revenue expenditure. Expenses accounts are debited for these
expenditures. These accounts are shown at the debit side of Trading account or Profit
and loss account. For example, purchases account is debited for purchasing goods and
shown at the debit side of Trading account. Other accounts concerning direct ex-
penses, ie., Carriage, cartage, freight, manufacturing expenses are recorded at the
debit side of Trading account salaries, rent insurance, printing, stationery and other
selling, administrative and financial expenses are shown at the debit side of profit and
loss account. Revenue expenditures vitally affect our Gross Profit and Net profit, so

they should be distinguished from capital expenditure.
. Distinction between Capital Expenditures and Revenue Expenditures

FPoints of Distinction

Capital Expenditures

Revenue Expenditures

1. Meaning Expenses incurred in acquiring and | Expenses incurred as routine
increasing the value of fixed assets | business expenses are known as. |-

) are termed as capital expenditure. | Revenue Expenditure.

2. Purpose . These are incurred in purchasingof | These are incurred for conducting

- fixed assets.

‘of business affairs.

3. Where are they

‘These are shown at the assets side

These are shown at the debit side

year.

shown ? of the Balance Sheet. of trading profit and loss account.

4. Capacity ‘It increases the earning capacity of | These are incurred for’earning
’ " the business, profit.

5. Period Its benefits extend to more thanone | Its benefits are restricted to.only

one year.




(¢} Deferred revenue expenditure. The expenditures which are incurred likely to give
benefit for more than one accounting period are terined as deferred revenue expendi-

Firal Accounts
(Without Adjestinents)

ture. These are revenue expenditures of capital nature. Expenses are very huge, so .

instead of charging the whole amount of expenditure in the year of the sctual expense,
the expenditure is split and written off over certain period. Preliminary expenses and
advertising suspense are its examples. ' . i
Special Features : '
() Expenditures for developments, improvement and alierations are evenue ex-
penditure but treated as capital expenditure.

(if) These expenditures are not immediately writen off ir the year of actual expendi-
ture but split over a period of certain years as per the decisions and policies of

the management.
(/i) These expenditures are treated as asscts and shown ai the assets side of Balance
sheet.

Certain examples of deferred revenue expenditures : '

(/) Advertising suspense—Huge expenditure on advertising, benefits of v dich erI
be availed of during certain following years.

(#f) Preliminary expenses. -

(i) Underwriting commission.

(iv) Discount on issue of shares or debentures.
(v} Loss on issue of shares or debentures.

( vq') Cost of issue of shares and debentures.

Accounting treatment of Deferred revenue expenditure. These expenditurcs are capi-
talised. so they are treated as assets in the Balance sheet like other assets. As these assets
are not tangible, therefore, they will have to be written off over a certain period. Whenever
a part of these expenditures will be charged out of profit and loss zccount, we shall debit
profit and loss account and credit specific assets account. The amount written off will also
be deducted from the book value of assets. The treatment will be made just as we treafc

depreciation on assels.
Cla;s‘siﬁcation of Receipts
Receipts are also classified as :
(a) Capital recéipts
(b) Revenue receipts

(a) Capital receipts.Amount received from sale of fixed assets is capital receipts. Amount
received through capital, lonc-tcrm loans or by issue of shares and debentures i is capi-
tal receipts. Capital reccnpls are not current liabilities. These receipts show a credlt
balance, they are capitalised and shown at the liabilities side.

(6) Revenue receipts. These are the routine receipts of the business just as receipt from
sale of goods. Routine receipt of rent discount, interest, commission is also revenue

receipts. These receipts are shown either at the credit sndc of Trading account or

profit and loss account,
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Distinction between Capital-Receipts and Revenue Receipts

Point of distincrion

Capital Receipts-

Revenue Receipiy

l.'Meam'ng

The amount received in form of
capital introduced, loans taken and
sale proceeds of the fixed assets is
known as Capital Receipts.

The amount received mainly by
selling of goods and services is
known as Revenue Receipts.

2. Nature

These receipts are capital in nature.

These receipts are Revenue (i.e..
day to day activities) in nature.

3. Where are these
shown ?

These receipts are shown in the Li-
abilities side of Balance Sheet only.

These receipts are shown at the credit |
of either trading account or Prof" t and
Loss account,

4. Examplex

Sale of fixed assets, capital contri-
bution and loans taken etc. )

Profit on sale of assets, sile of
goods, interest received on loans

(advanced), royalty etc.

Hlustraiion 1. Point out wkezher the following transacnom are capital expenditure or
revenue expendtmre and also explain the treatment of these transactions in the Jfinal ac-

counts :
®

(i
(iii)
()
)

Purchase of new maten'al for the construction of factory bu'ildz'ng Rs. 2.00,000.
Payment of wages amoummg 1o Rs. 2,50,000 for construction of bmldmg

Cost of furnishing the newly constructed building Rs. 20,000.

Cost of electrical installation in the new bmldmg Rs. 30,000.

Expenses in connection with obrammg the licence for the faum 'y Ry, ] 0 000,

(vi) Cost of acquiring machines Rs. 1,00,000.
(vit) . Payment of fire insurance premium Rs. 1,260.
(viif) Renewal fee of licencé Rs. 200.
(ix) Distribution of free goods costing Rs. 40,000 to introduce the goods in the market.
(x) Cost of purchasmg old machinery for Rs. 12,000 and cost of its repair Rs. 10,000.
The machinery was installed in the factory at a cost of Rs. 3,000.
(x0) Cost of, whzte-washmg building and maintenance of machmery Rs. I 2,000,
Solution. )
(1) Cost of material for construction of building Rs. 2,00,000. Cost of material will
form part of the valug of building, 56 it is a capital expenditure and will be shown
at the assets side of the Balance sheet. . o
(i Payment of wéges for construction of building. Wages are the part of the vahie
of building so it is a capital expenditure and thus added to the vatue of building and
treated as an asset. :
(éif) Cost of furnishing new building. The value of building will increase with cost of
the furniture so it will be capital expenditure and treated as an asset.
(iv) Cost of electrlca! installation in the new bmldmg Electrical installation will add

to the value of new building, so it is a capital expenditure and will be shown at
assels side.

1



(v) Expenses for obtaining licence of the factory. It is capital expenditure, because
benefits of this expenditure are not restricted to the current year only. The expense
was necessary for the formation of factory. It will be treated as an assel.

(vi} Cost of acquiring machines. It is capital expenditure and shown at assets side.
(vii) Payment of fire insurance premium is revenué expenditure, because the expense
~will be paid'regularly every year. It will be shown at the debit side of P/L. Afc.
(viii) Renewal fee of the licence. It is revenue expenditure and posted at the debit side of

profit and loss account. Renewal fez is regularly paid whenever due.
(ix) Cost of distribution of free goods, Cost of distribution of free goods with-a view

to introduce the item in the market is a type of advertising, Rs. 40,000 the cost of
goods should be capitalised, treated as assets and written off within next 3 to §

years.
(x) Cost of purchasing repairing and installing of old machiﬁerff. It is capital ex-
-" penditure and treated as an asset. Amount spent in the repairs and erection of old
machinery will add to its value. It should be noted here that normal repairs and
maintenance are revenue expcriditurc. '
(xi) Costof white-washing of Building and maintenance of machinery. It is revenue
expenditure, so it will be debited © profit and loss account. It i3 nprmal, regular
and usual expenditure incurred with a view 10 maintain building and machinery.
Hustration 2. ldentify whether following receipts are capital or revenue. How will
they be treated in final accounts : )
(f) Sale proceeds of goods Rs. 20,000.
(ii) Commencement of business with Rs. 60,000.
(ii) Rent received from premises sublet Rs. 4,000.
(iv) Profit on sale of land and building Rs. 5,000. : .
(v) Amount received from sale af assets Rs. 80,0'00.
(vi) Amount received from sale of scraps, i.e., newspapers, boxes, grass, bottles elc.
Rs. 300.
Soluiion. .
- (i) Sale proceeds of goods. It is revenue receipt and credited to Trading account.
Sales of goods 1s normal and regular feature.

(i) Commencement of business with Rs. 60 ,000, It is Caplta[ receipt and whown at
the liabilities side of the Balance sheet.

(/i) Rent received from premises sublet. It is revenue receipt, because it is a regu!ax
income. It will be posted at the credit side of profit and loss account. '

(iv) Profit on sale of land and building. It is revenue receipts and posted at tke credit
side of profit and loss account. It should not be treated as opelatmg income

(¥) Sale proceeds of assets. Amount received from the sale of an asset is capital re-

ceipt. Excess of amount received over the book value of asset is revenue reczipt.
Loss on sale of asset is treated as revenue loss. :

(vi) Sale proceeds from scraps. It is revenue receipts and posted at the creditsidz of
profitand loss account because its amount, is very nominal and it is rautiné aftair.

Final Accounts
(Without Adjustments}

NOTES
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also differ. Accounting is criticised for izs convention of conservatism i.e., showing
I

|

\

¥
Financial Accounting I fmitations of Final Accounts/Financial Statements ‘
Inspite of being very useful to the business financial statements suffer from the follow-
ing limitation :

OTES 1. Ignores qualitalive aspect. The notable weakness of financial statements is to present
N quaniitative facts of the business in terms of money. Qualitative aspect however im-
portant are completely ignored. Administrative efficiency of the management and
harmonious relations between management and labour are very significant factors in

the success of the business but do nct find a place in financial statements.

2. Based upon convention and practices. Financial statements are prepared according
to the practices adopted by individual firms. Different identical firms may adopt dif-
ferent methods of charging depreciation. Different methods of depreciation will de-
pict different performance in the identical situations. Methods of valuating stock may

expected losses but ignoring expected incorhe. Stock is valued at cost price or mar-
- ket price whichever is lower. In the same way, we do not show appreciation in the
assets gznerally but we do not miss 1o show depréciation.

3. Ignores human resource. Human element is essential, active and sensitive factor of
production. Physical factors, ie., land, material, money, machines and equipments
are meaningless without human fzctor. Financial statements do not accord any
weightage to human-reosurces. ‘

4. Ignores price level changes. Change in the price affects cost of production, sales and
value of assets. Changes in the price are quite obvious under inflation but financial

" statements ignore it. Changes are not incorpoi‘ated in financial statements.

5. lgnores interest of all concerned parties. Financial statements are prepared taking
into considerations proprietors interest. The Interest of other interested parties such as
workers, investors, debenture holders. creditors, stock exchanges, economists and taxa-
tion authorities is ignored. S

Preparation of Final Accounts (Financial Statements) _
- There are three following stages of preparing final accounts of a trading concem :

1. Tradil;g account - 2. Profit & Lcss Account and 3. Balance Sheet.

TRADING ACCOUNT .

| Meaning

An Income statement prepared with cost of raw material, purchases and direct expenses
(expenses on acquiring and manufacturing goods) with a view 10 ascertain gross Profit or
Loss is known as Trading Account.

Direct Expenses
"(/) Expenses on acquiring goods
Carriage and cartage (inward)
Freight inward
Octroi and local taxes
. Excise duty ) .
Import duty, landing and clearing charges.
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(iiy Expenses on manufacturing goods
Coal, gas. water and fuel '
Wages (Productive)

Fuel, power and motive power
Consumable stores

Manufacturing expenses

Factory expenses.

Direct expenses form part of the cost of goods .purchased or manufactured. It does not

include selling and distribution expenses.

Need/Importance and Purpose of Trading Account

1.

The purpose and importance of preparing trading account is summarlsed as under :

Ascertaining gross profit/gross loss. The main -purpose of preparing Trading
' account is to ascertain £ross proﬁt or gross loss. Excess of credit side over the debit
side of Trading account is gross profit and the excess of debit side over the credit side
is gross loss. The gross profit ratio between 20% to 30% is treated as standard. Gross
profit should be sufficient to cover selling and distribution expenses. The adequacy of

" gross profit is measured with reference to sales.

"Ascertaining ratio of direct expenses to gross profit. Trading account shows the
details of direct expenses incurred in acquiring and manufacturing goods. Cost of
production increases with the increase in direct expenses. The margin and the amount
of profit is vitally affected by direct expenses. The ratio of direct expenses to gross
profit is calculated and compared with the desired and previous performance and
efficiency is measured.

Ascer!ainfng ratio between purchases and direct expenses. Relationship betwesn
purchases and direct expenses is ascertained through Trading account. The amount of
purchases and direct expenses are available from Trading account. Direct expenses
add to the cost of purchases. .

The relationship between purchases and direct expenses indicates how-far direct ex-
penses are reasonable and adequate. .

Calculation of cost of goods sold. Gross profit or loss is based upon cost of goods
sold. It is based upon the information available from Trading account. Cost of goods
sold is ascertained by adding opening stock, purchases and direct expenses. and de-
ducting closing stock from it. It can also be calculated by deducting gross profit from
sales. Cost of goods sold helps us in calculating profit of the firm. .

Calculation of gross profit ratio, The firm calculates g_ro.ss profit ratio and measures
the efficiency of its performance. Gross profit ratio is calculated by comparing gross
profil to net sales. Gross profit ratio should be sufficient to cover expenses. The ratio
is compared with the desired ratio or with the ratio of previous year and performance

evaluated.

5

£
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Proforma of Trading account

Trading Account
- (for the period ending December 31, 2006)

Returns ountward
Less : Goods taken by proprietor
(if in adjustment)
Less : Goods given as charity
(ifin adjusm.lem)
Less : Goods given as free sample.
) -(:f in adjustment)
To Carriage or c:artuge or
Carriage inward or
Carriage on purchases or -
-Carriage and freight
To Octroi or local taxes
To Import duty, custon'is,‘
Landing charges; clearing charges
Te Wages or p;oduct_ive '
Wages or manufacturing
Wages or direct wages or wages
" and salaries
To Coal gas and water
To Fuel
"To Heating and Lighting
To Power or motive power:
- To Manufacturing expenses
T¢ Consumable stores

To Packing charges

3

By Gross loss—transferred to P/L
- Afe .

(If debit side exceeds the credit side)|

Dr. . .
Expenses/Losses Amount Revenue/Gain Amous
. Rs. ~ Rs.
- To Opening Sfo(_:k- By Sales
Or : ' Less : Sales return
Stock (1-1-2003 or opening date Or
of accounting perind) or " Returns inward”
Stack in'the'bcginning or By Closing stock
To Siock : ) Or
Raw material................ Stock on 31-12-2003
Work in progress or - Or ‘
Semi finished goods or Stock at the end of the year
Partty manufactured goods L Or
Finished Goods ' By Stock :
To Purchases Raw material
Less : Purchases return Work in progress
' " Or - Finished goods




- — e e ——— — — — e — — -

To Assembling expenses

To.Direct expenses

To Factory Expenses

To Productive expenses:

To Royalty

To Gross Profit transferred to P/L A/c.
{If credit side exceeds the debit

side) . :

Hlustration 3. Prepare trading account only from the following Trial balance of Chi-

nese Corner Hotel as on 31" March, 2003 :

Dr; Cr.
. Rs. Rs.
Purchases............. reeeee ettt et et SR eestenes 15,750
SALES oot JSTRRSRDTOVO TN e -21,000
RENUINS (WAL . evoveeesvrresesreeennns T — renres 600
Opening stock.............. erreeen e s saee st e ass et 13,000
Freight QUNWATA..........cou.eceeesv s sinssnenens 65
o L N e I 1/ B
Salaries and wage.s“ .............. 572
Rent and taxes............. srernrraensenane ermeeeaeeee et eeens u— 226
' Travelling expenses.. e ceesinse e snesseesnanene 187 .
DESCOUL...cor.heeo e eeeeereeeese e eeesennar s seresms e s
COMRESSION. et e 108
B 1 /O O SRR T 6,647
Trade Creditors................. e 2,700
SURARY BeBIOFS ... oo ceeerssseerinsn e sia e v eareassnnsransas 4,380
' Capital Ao W R 20,000
Drawings Afe.....ccueeener, SO, FR— 2,000 A
' “ 43.700 43,700
Closing Stock was estimated at Rs. 12,000.
Solution. '
Trading Account of Chinese Corner Hotel
for the year ended 31° March, 2003
Dr. . | Cr.
" Expenses/Losses Amount - Revenue/Gain Amount
Rs. Rs.
To Opening Stock | 13,000 { By Sales 21,000
To Purchases - 15,750 Less : Returns 600
To Carriage Inward ' 50 . 20,400
' To Gross Profit transferred to P/L 3.600 | By Closing Stock 12.000
Alfc '
32.400 _32.'400

Final Accounts
(Without Adjustments)

NOTES
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Explanation. Information contained in the Trial balance refer to assets, liabilities and
indirect expenses, so these accounts have been omitted and not transferred to Trading ac-
count. Freight outward, salaries and wages, rent and axes, traveliiig eXpenses and Come
mission are indirect expenses. They are concerned with selling of goods. These expenses
will be transferred to the debit side of profit.and loss account.

Bank and debtors are assets and these accounts will be posted at the assets side of
Balance sheet. Drawings will be shown as deducted from capital at the liabilities side.

Creditors and capital represent liabilities so they will also be entered at the liabilities
side,

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Meaning

The income statement prepared with the ftems of expenses, losses, income and gain
with a view to ascertain the amount of Net Profit or Loss in the business is known as Profit
and Loss Account. :

Need/Purpose and Importance of Profit and Loss Account

The purpose and the importance of preparing profit and loss account is as under::

1. Knowledge of net profit or net loss. The purpose of preparing profit and loss ac-
count is to ascertain the amount of net profit or loss. This is the actual profit avaiiable
to the proprietor and credited to his capital account. In case of net loss proprieto”’s
capital account will be debited. The net profit is calculated after charging all indirect
expenses.

2. Ascertaining ratio between net profit and net sales. We get net profit from profit
and loss account. This net profit is matched with the net sales to calculate net profit
ratio. This ratio is compared with the desired net profit ratio and if there is any short
coming, that will be removed. This ratio can also be compated with the ratio of prevx-
ous years and effective future line of action can be taken. :

- 3. Calculation of expenses ratio to sales. Expenses tatio to sales is calculated. We can
calculate individual expenses to sales ratic and compare it with desired expenses ratio
and with the ratio of previous years. It will always be in the interest of the firm that the
expenses ratio should be the minimum, ’

4. Comparison of actual performance with desired performance. The actual per-
formance of the business is available with the profit and loss account as regards net
profit, individual expenses and individual income. We compare our actual perforin-
ance with our planned and desired performance, identify weaknesses and try to re-
move them.

5. Maintaining provision and reserves. We have to maintain certain reserves and pro-
vision to meet our future uncertainties. The amount of provisions, reserves and funds
to be maintained depends upon net profit earned by the firm. It is necessary to prepare

“profit and loss account to determine the net profit, so that effective provision for

uncertain future could be maintained.



Final Accounts

Proforma (Without Adjustments)
" Profit and Loss Account
Jor the year endmg ......
Dr. " Cr.
| NOTES
Expenses/Losses Amount Revenue/Gain Amount .
Rs. Rs.

To Gross loss—transferred from
trading Afc (if any)
To Salaries Or Salaries and wages
To Rent. rates and taxes or office rent
To Godown rent or storage or ware-
housing
To Office expenses or establishment
To Miscellaneous, or sundry expenses
To Insurance
-To Stationery
To Printing and stationery
To Staff Welfare Expenses
To Lighting '
"To Water and Electricily
To Establishment expenses
To Postage and telegrams
To E-mail and Fax charges
‘To Courier Services charges
To Telephone expenses
To Law charges or law cost or litiga-
tion expenses or legal charges
To Repairs and renewal or Mainte-
nance or upkeep
To Distribution expenses
To Travelling expenses/Conveyance
To General expenses
To Stable expenses
To Selling expenses .
To Carriage or freight Outward
To Carriage on sales
To Indirect or unproductive wages
To Audit fee

To Entertainment expenses

To Interest paid or interest (debit) or | -

interest on overdraft or interest
on loans borrowed

To Discount allowed or discount.on

debtors

By Gross pfofit transferred from
trading A/c
By Imerest‘received
or
Interest {credit) -
) Or
Interest on Investment
Or
Interest on fixed deposit
or
Interest on Loans and advanced
- Or
By Rent recetved
or
Rent {credit)
or
Rent from tenant
By Discount received
' Oor
Discount (credit)
By Commission received
By Dividends Received
By Profit from sale of assets
By Refund of tax
By Compensation received
By Apprenticeship pi'emium
By Difference'in exchange (credit)
By Interest on drawings
By Discount on creditors
By Bad debts recovered
By Miscellaneous receipts
By Appreciation or increase in the
value of asséts . ..
By Income from Investment -
By Reserve for bad and doubtful
debts (old reserve—if not treated
at the debit side of P/L. A/c

By Net loss—Transferred to Capital !

Self-Instructional Matericl
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Financial Accounti : -
- inanea m.un e To Bad debts or Bad debts written off] Alc (If debit side exceeds credit

. side)
To Reserve or provision for bad and | _ i —Balancing Figute
doubtful debts ' . :
NOTES (New reserve—in adjustment). )
To Depreciation -
To Interest on Capital

To Discounting charges
To Bank charges or Collection
.charges
To Export charges
‘To Trade expenses
To Administrative expenses
To Financial expenses
To Commissiun paid
To Advertisement . ] Lo .
To Charity and Donation )
To Sample expenses '
To Licence fes
To Delivery charges | ’ ‘
To Brokerage '
To Sales tax paid .
To Loss on sale of agsets
To Loss by fire/theft/accident ,
To Upkeep or Maintenance of asses
To Commission :
To Net Profit—-Transferred to Clapital
Alc - \ _
{If credit side exceeds debit side)
-~ —Balancing Figure

Hlustration 4. Prepare Profit and Loss A/c from the following information :

; Rs. . o Rs.

Carriage orn Purchase. . - 2,000 Salaries-factory’s manager 2200.
_Carriage on Sales 1,000 Office manager : . 1,500
.Duty on Exports . . 2020 * . Gross Profi | 15200
Lighting 1050 Rent veceived 1500
Wafer and electricity 2120 Rent paid - 500
Advertisement . 100 Commission (Cr.) ' 1 20'0
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" Solutiort. *  Profit & Loss Alc
Dr. Cr.
Expenses/Losses Amount Revenue/Gain Amount
To Carriage on sales ' 1,000 | By Gross Profit 15,200
To Duty on Exports - 2,020 | By Rent received .' 1,500
To Lighting 1,050 | By Commission 1,200
To Water and electricity 2,120
~To Advertisement ' 100
To Salaries—Office ’ 1,500
To Rentpaid . 500
To Net-profit transferred to capital Afc 9,610
' 17900 | ' 17,900

IHustration 5. From the following Trial balance of Sri Ram & Sons, prepare the Trad-

_ing and profit and loss account for the year ended 31st March, 2002.
' " Trial Balance

) as on 31% March, 2002
Name of Account i . Debir
. | ' ,/' ‘ Rs.
Ram's Capital ............oomenecriccenn Lrreree e
Ram’s Drawings ............ . everesteeresmnnnssessnrssnnnrars 760
Purchases and.Sales .........evivcrseseneninivsssesesesrssesnes 8,900
- Sales and Purchases RO oo 280
SEOCK (14-2001) ..oereeeeeeerenenecemreverecnsseresesssensrassnranaones 1,200

WAZES .ooeeevorreeeaectraremsneimessemsmsssssossasssssssscsssessrecmnecseenee 800
P BUIAING oot 22,000
Freight and Carriage ............ooccvvnvcrvcvvvrcrvesseccrirnnnens 2,000

Trade EXpenses ........ouweveene. ererenreareaeseenrens e esnanens 2000
AdVErtiSEMENT .......ooeeeereeeveerveeeraesaens S S -24;10
1 £ O eeeeesaenn

Taxes and InSUPANCE ........cceecreveiirieccrcrree e oo 130
Debtor..s and C redir;)rs vrrreserereiaaer st riae e e T et e s arra e eerraesarer 6,500

Bills Receivable and Bills Payable ..., 1,500
CAST A BANK ...ove.ceveveerereesiveressessssseseesseesssssesessossessossenrnes 1,200

CasSHIRRAN ......oooeeeeeeeeeeeereee e riee e st s e e s e cnmeeenn 190
Salaries..........................: .................................................. 800
46,700

Adjustments. (i) Stock on 31st March, 2002 was valued at Rs. 1,500.

Credit
Rs:
29,000°

15,000
450

350

1,200
700

46,700

Final Accounts

(Without Adjustments)
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Solution.
Trac_iing and Prefit and Loss Account of Sri Ram & Sons

Dr. Jfor the year ended 31" Mareh, 2002 Cr.
Expenses/Losses - Amoint Revenue/Gain " Amount
Rs. Rs..
Tq Stock (1-4-2001) 1,200 By Sales 15,000 .
To Purchases ! 8,900 Less : Returns 280 | 14,720
- . Less : Returns 450" 8,450 By Closing Stock 1,500.
To Wages 800
To Freight & Carriage - 2,000
.To Gross Profitc/d’ 3,770
;6,220 16,220
To Trade Expenses 200 By Gross Profit b/d 3,770
To Advertisement 240 By Interest 350
To Taxes and Insurance 130
To Salaries 800 -
To Net Profit transferred to Capital A/c| 2,750
4,120 4,120

C)

Explanation. Purchases and sales have been given under one head purchases have
debit balance, so Rs. 8,900 placed at the debit side of Trial balance is purchases and Rs.
15,000 will be the amount of sales, because it is given at the credit side of Trial balance
(sales have credit balance) sales and purchases retumn ha_ve also been given under one head.
Purchases return shows credit balance and sales return shows debit balance. This is why,
Rs. 280 represents sales return and Rs. 450 is purchases return.

BALANCE SHEET

Meaning _
Balance sheet is a mirror which reflects the true position of assets and liabilities on a

' particular date. Trading and profit and loss account shows gross profit or gross loss and

net profit or net loss respectively. These accounts deal with expenses, income and receipts,
i.e., revenue receipts and payment. The firm also makes certain capital expenditure and
gets capital receipts. It owns certain assets and also.certain liabilities. These assets and
liabilities show that the financial position of the firm. This is why, Balance sheet is also
known as position statement. We adopt double entry system of accounting, where every
debit has got its corresponding ‘credit. According to our accounting equation also :

Assets = Liabilities + Capital. '

It means that the total of the assets side of Balance sheet must be equal to the total of
liabilities. Liabilities consists of creditors equity (liability) and proprietor’s equity. In other
words, creditors and proprietor's claim againts the firm must be equal to its assets. If assets
and liabilities of Balance sheet do not taily, there is definitely certain mistake. According to -
Freeman “A Balance sheet is an itemwise list of-assets, liabilities and proprietorship of a
business at a certain date”. ; '



Features/Characteristics of Balance Sheet
Balance sheet is the position statement which shows the position of assets and liabili-
ties. It has got the following special features :

1. Balance sheet is a statement. Though Balance sheet is an integral part of double
entry system, but it is not an account. It has got the balance of cerlaln ledger accounts.
The balance of all ledger accounts are not shown in it.

2. Prepared on a specified date. Balance Sheet is prepared on a specific date, .e., atthe
end of accounting period. It is common practice and also legal requirement to prepare
Balance sheet together with Trading and profit and loss account at the end of the

. accounting year. It may be prepared after every six months if the proprielors so desire,

- Accounting year may consist of calender year'or assessment year or its own account-
Jing year. Companies are required to adopt assessment year (April ! to 31st March) as
per legal requirement. Sole proprietorship and partnership can adopt accounting year
which suits them, i.e., Diwali to Diwali or Dussehra to Dussehra or assessment or
calender year. '

3. It is a statement of assets and labilities. Though the Balance sheet has debit and
credit balance but its sides are named as assets and tiabilities. The left hand side is a
liability representing credit balance. Right hand side is assets representing debit bal-

ances.

4. Knowledge about the nature of assets and liabilities. Balance sheet categorise as-

sets as liquid assets, current assets, fixed assets and fictitious assets. Knowledge of
liabilities as current liabilities, fixed liabilities and reserve and funds can be gained

from Balance sheet..
5. Knowledge of financial posmon Balance sheet depicts true financial posmon of the

business. The position can be ascertained by study of the Balance sheet. We can cal-

culate short-term and long-term financial ratios, proprietory and other ratios to have
the knowledge of the financial soundness of the business. '

6. Assets and liabilities tally each other. The total of assets must be equal to liabilities.
According to accounting equation, assets are always equal to creditors, and propri-
etor’s equity. If the total of assets and liabilities are not equal, there is likely to be

certain mistake.

Need and Purpose of Balance Sheet

Balance sheet is a vital part of final account. It has to be compulsorily prepared as per
legal provisions. Objects of the Balance sheet have been summarised as under :

Main objectives of Balance Sheet

The main object of Balance sheet is to assess the financial position of the firm. It is the
list of assets and liabilities of the firm on & specific date. The short-term and long-term
financial position of the firm can be obtained from the analysis of the Balance sheet.

Balance sheet is rightly said to be a mirror reflecting the true value of assets and liabili-
ties on a particular date.

Difference between Profit and loss accounts (Income Statement) and Balance sheet
(Position Statement)

Income statement (Trading and profit and loss account) and position statements (Bal-
ance sheet) can be differentiated as under : :

Final Accounts
(Without Adjustments)
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Points of Difference Profitand Loss Account "Balance Sheet
L. Types of account | Only nominal accounts are entered | It records personal and real ac-
" | in profit and loss aceount. counts.
2. Objective _The objectivé of prépa.ring profit | The purpose of preparing balance
y and loss account is to ascertain the | sheet is to understand the financial
net profit or loss of the business. |- position of the firm. .
3. Sides* The left hand side of the profitand | It has liabilities at its left hand side
| loss account is the debit and the | and assets at right hand side,
right hand side is credit, '
4. Nature - Profit and loss account is an ac- | Balance sheet is not an account, it
U count. We use the word ‘To’ be- | is a statement. We do niot use “To’
fore accounts at the debit side and | or ‘By” in it.
‘By’ at the credit side,

s, Balancing figure | The balancing figure of the | It does not show any balancing fig-
profit'and loss account is either | ure. The total of assets and liabili-
net profit or net loss. Excess of | ties are always equal.
credit side is net profit and the | -
excess of debit side is net loss.

— : :
6. Specific date/ Profit and loss account shows the | Balance sheet shows the position |
period -| position of the accounting period, | of assets and liabilities on a particu-
~generally a year. lar date.
7. Types of Revenue expenditures are recorded Capital expenditures are entered at
expenditure in the profit and loss account, the assets side of the Balance Sheet.
Proforma
Balance Sheet
v ason.....
Liabilities Améw;t Assets Amournt
\ "Rs. Rs.
Current Liabilities Current Assefs
Creditors Cashinhand
Bills payable Cash at bank

136 Self-Instructiona! Material

Bank overdraft
Outstanding expenses -
Income received in advance
Short-term loans
. Fixed Liabilities
- Loan
Mortgage .
" Loan from financial institutions
Debentures

. Debtors or sundry Debtors:

or book debts

" Stock or inveniory

Goods sent on consignment
Bills or Notes Receivable

- Short-term or Trade

investment =
Prepaid expenses
Accrued income
Sales Tax Collected




Capital

Add :
Add -

Add -

Less:
Less -
Less:

Less :

Net Profit
Interest on capital -
(if in adjustment)
Remuneration, i.e., salaries,
commission, fee payable to
proprietors
(if in adjustment)
Drawings
Interest on drawings
Nel loss
Income tax

Reserves and Funds

General reserve

Reserve funds

Contingency reserve .

Provident fund
Employees compensation fund

Provision for taxation

Investments
Details of investment
Long-term investment
Loans granted

Fixed Assets

Land and building
Or

Freehold premises

Machinery

: Or

Plant and Machinery

Equipments
Or

Tools and Equipments or

loose tools

Furniture or Fixtures
Or

Furniture and fittings
Or

Fixtures and fittings
Vehicles—truck, car, vans.
tempo, 'scooler, cycle etc.
Horses and carts
Live-stock (animals)
Goodwilt
Patents and Trade Mark
Miscellaneous Expenses
Advertising suspense
Discount on issue of shares
Discount on issue of

debentures

I

POINTS TO BE CONSIDE
ACCOUNTS

RED WHILE PREPARING FINAL

1. Preparation of Trial balance. Trial balance should be prepared before preparing
Balance sheet. If the debit and credit sides of trial balance do not taily the difference
should be provisionally transferred to suspense account and the suspense account

should be shown in the Balance sheet.

2. Showing items from Trial balance at one place. All the items appearing in the trial
" balance are shown at one place only whether at the debit side of trading account ot
profit and lass account or assets or at the credit side of trading account or profit and

loss account or liabilities. .
3. Posting (row: Trial balance, Accounts appearing at the debit side of Trial balance
are show at the debit side of Trading account or profit and loss or at the assets side of

Final Accounis
(Without Adjustments)
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the Balance sheet..In the same way, accounts appearing at the credit side of trial’
balance are shown at th_e credit side of Trading or profit and loss account. or ‘at the
liabilities side. :
-4, Posting of expenses. All direct expenses, i.e., expenses for manufacturing and ac-
quiring goods are written in Trading account. Indirect expenses and losses regarding
‘selling and distribution of goods are written in profit and loss account.
. 5. Personal and Real accounts. Al! the personal and real accounts are recorded in the
. Balance sheet.
6. Factory and office expenses. All factory expenses are duect expenses. They are
written at'the debit side of Trading account. Office expenses are indirect expenses and
- they are written at the debit side of Profit and loss account.
7. Treatmeént of rent, discount, interest and commission. Rent, discount; interest and
commission may be an income or an expense. If these expenses are paid they are our’
. expenses. If they are received it will be an income and posted at the credit side of
_ Profit and loss account. If there is no Trial balance or no specific word as allowed or
received these items should be treated as expense and posted to be debit of profit and’
loss account.
Illustratlon 6. From the follawmg Trial Balance extracted from the books of Mahmder
Smgh prepare Trading and Profit & Loss A/c for the year ending March 31st, 2004 and the
Balance sheet as on that date.© .

Name of Account Débff - Credit
' ' Balances | Balances
Drawing and Capzml ¢ . 20,000 1,99.000
Plant & Machinery : . 80,000 |
Debtors & creditors ' ' ' 70,000 | 50000
Purchases and sales . . - |-L10,000 | 220,000 -.
Returns o o _ 10,000 7,000
Wages o 40,000 :
* Cashin hand . : ‘ " 5,000
Cash at Bank 10,000
Salaries- - N ‘ | 30000,
. Repairs - . - ' 8.000 -
Stock ‘ B L. 45,000 :
Rent . o 10000 |
Manufacturing Expenses . : “ 7,000 .1 ¢
Bill receivable . : 12,000
Bill Payable ' ~ ' - | 20,000
Bad debts S . 5,000
Carriage : ) ‘ 9,000
Furniture ‘ . . . 15,000 .
Income tax. . _ . : 10,000 - S
o 4,96,000 - 4,96,000

Closing stock was valued at Rs. 50,000, T



Y

. Final Accounts
(Withou! Adjustments)

NOTES

Solution.
Dr. Trading and Profit and Loss Account Cr.’
Expenses/Losses Amonnt Revenue/Gain Amount
Rs. Rs.
To Opening Stock 45000 | By Sales 2,20,000
To Purchases. 1,10,000 Less : Returns _10,000 1 2,10,000
Less : Returns 7,000 1,03,000 By Closing stock 50,000
To Manufacturing Expenses 7,000
To Carriage 9,000
To Wages 40,000
To Gross Profit ¢/d 56,000
2,60,000 2,60,000
To Salaries 30,000 By Gross Profit b/d 56,000
To Repairs - 8,000
To Rent 10,000
To Bad debts 5,000
" To Net Profit transferred to Capital Afc 3,000 .
' ' 56,000 56,000
Balance Sheet
Liabilities Amoa‘mz Assets Amount
‘ Rs. Rs. .
Capital ) 1,99,000 Plant & Machinery 80,000
Add . Net Profit 3,000 Fumiture 15,000
2,02,000 . Bills receivable 12,000
Less : Drawings 20,600 Sundry Debtors 70,000
1.82,000 Closing stock 50,000
Less - Income tax 10,000 1,72,000 Cash at bank 10,000
Sundry creditors 50,000 | Cash in hand 5,000
Bills payable 20,000
2,42,000 2,42,000

Notes. It should be noted that Drawings, debtors and returns inward have debit balance, so
the amount of these items should be picked from the debit side of Trial balance. In the same way
Capital, creditors and returns outward have credit.balance, so picked up from the cradit side of

Trial balance.
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REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions :

NOTES

’ 5.

1L

Bowow

How will you show the following items :.

.(:') Dravlving s (i) Returns Inward (Bills returned) ; (/i) Returns outward.

Mention the stages of Final Accounts.

How will you treat éxpenses on acquiring goods ?

Where will you show goods in transit Afc?

Give any two difference between Profit & Loss A/c and a Balance Sheet.

. - B. Short Answer Type Questmns

| . . 1
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3.

4.

5.

C. Long Answer Type Questions :
1.

Point out any three pomts of d1fference between Profit and Loss Account and Balance
Sheet,

Mention the two formulae (except the preparation of Lradmg Account} for the calculation of
Gross Profit,

Explain briefly the object-of Trading Account.
Describe briefly three objectives of preparing Profit and Loss A/c.

Explain briefly the two characteristics of position statement.

What do you mean by Final accounts ? What are its constituents 7 Name them and briefly

_explain the purpose of each of them.
2. Explain the importance and purpose of final accounts.
3. Explain: (a) Current assets ; (&) Current liabilities : and (c) Working Laplta[

4, Explain the following statements : -

(a) Balance sheet is not an account but it is the list of assets and liabilities.

{b) Balance sheet and profit and loss account are inter-dependent.



CHAPTER 9 FINAL ACCOUNTS
(WITH SIMPLE ADJUSTMENTYS)

% Adjustments/Additional Information in preparation of Final Accounts
7% Depreciation in the Value of Assets

£ Appreciation in the Value of Assets

Qutstanding Expenses

Prepaid Expenses

Accrued or Outstanding Income

Unearned Income

L
-

LN [P Y
PR N

.S

7% Interest on Capital

#% Interest on Drawings '

& Interest and Dividend on Investment

X Intereston boan

?% Bad Debts {(Not in Adjustment)

2 Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts {Adjustment)

7« Further Bad Debts (Adjustment) '

% Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts (Given in the Trial Balance)
¢ Provision for Discount on Debtors

& Closing Stock

o

Summarised Presentation of Adjustments

ADJUSTMENTS/ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN PREPA-
RATION ON FINAL ACCOUNTS '

Business is going concern. It has to be carried on indefinitely. We cannot wait indefi-
nitely for the assessment of the performance of the business, so we distribute the fife of the
business in equal dnd uniform periods, generally a year. At the end of every accounting
year, we prepare Trading and profit and loss account and measure the performance of busi-
ness in terms of Gross profit and Net profit. We also prepare a Balance sheet at the end of
the year to assess the value of assets and liabilities.

While preparing Final accounts at the end of every accounting period, we come across
certain problems. The expenses of the current year are still payable or the expenses of the
next year have been paid during the curent year. Sometimes, income of the current year
remains still receivable and the income of the next year has been received during the cur-
rent year. Depreciation on assets, interest on capital and provision for bad and doubtful
debis of the current year has not been recorded in the books as yet. We are required to adjust
these amounts in the final accounts of the current year so that the correct profit or loss of the
business may be ascertained. We will have to pass adjusting journal entries for all these
items. errors and omissions, not yet recorded in the books. These items do not appear in the
Trinl balance. They are adjuscd at two places in the final accounts.

Final Accounts (With Simple

Adjustments)

NOTES
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DEPRECIATION IN THE VALUE OF ASSETS

The asscts acquired in the business are continuously used. Ttiéy will naturally be foamg
their utility, value and usefulness. In other words, there will be wear and tear. Loss in the
valiwe of assets due to iis constant use is termed as depreciation. It is necessary that loss dug
to depreciation must be accounted for. Certain provisions should be made, so that the assets
may be replaced vithout much financial problems.

Treatment in Final Accounts k ) _
(f)’...lf depreciation account appears in Trial balance. It will be posted to the debit
side of profit and loss dccount only, as it is an item from Trial balance. (Items from
. Trial balance.are posted only at one place). :

" ({) If depreciation is an item of adjustments, We shall first of all calculate the amount
of depreciation on the specific assets at the given rate. An adjusting entry (mentioned
as above) will be passed. Depreciation account will be transferred to the debit side of .
. Profit and Loss account. It will also reduce the value of the concerned asset, so the
value of asset will be shown at reduced price in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
furniture (mentioned i in the above example) w:ll be shown as under in the proﬁt and

loss account and Balance sheet

Profit and Loss Account _ ) Balance Sheet
Dr. | Cr. Liabilities . Agsets
To Depreciation ' Furﬁitur_e _ 10,000
on Furniture 1,000 ’ Less : Depreciation 1,000 9.000

APPRECIATION IN THE VALUE OF ASSETS

1t is just possible that value of certain assets such as land and bmldmg may increase.
ThlS increase in the value is gain, so it will be credited. It will also increase the value of _

assets, so assets account will be debited as the rule for assets goes ‘debit the increase’.

Treatment in Final Accounts . )
(/) If appreciation appears in Trial balance. It will be shown al the credit 31de of
profit and loss account only, because it is gain.
G 1If apprematmn appears in adjustment. All the items appearing in adjustments' are
shown at two places in the final accounts. Apprematlon is a gain so it will be shown
“at the credit side of profit and loss account on the one hand, and on the other hand. it
* will be added to the value of concerned assets in the Balance sheet. If land and
building worth Rs:1,00,000 appreciated @ 15% the following entry will be passed.

It will be shown in the Profit and loss account and Balance sheet as under :

Profit and Loss Account : ‘ Balance Sheet
Dr., - o Cr. Liabilities Assets
By Incredse in the . Land and building = 1.00.000
value of land ‘ Add : Appreciation 15,000
-and building 15,000 : . 1.15,000




Note. As a convention of conservatism firms generally do not show- the increase in the
value of their assets. as such appreciation is casual item, whereas depreciation is an usual item.

OUTSTANDING EXPENSES OR ACCRUED EXPENSES OR
EXPENSES OWING OR UNPAID OR DUE

These expenses are related (o the current year but remain unpaid. As they are the ex-
penses of the current year, so they must be debited and charged from the profit and loss
account of the current year. The expenses remained unpaid so far during the current year,
so they are he liability of the firm. For example, the firm pays Rs. 5,000 wages per month
to its workers. Wages are paid on the 1st day of every month, i.e., wages for the month of
March, 2003 will be paid on April {, 2003, the wages for October, 2003 will be paid on
November 1, 2003 so the wages of December, 2003 will be paid on January 1, 2004, The
accounting period ends on 3fst December, 2003 but only Rs. 55,000 have been actually
paid on account of wages. Wages for the month of December, 2003 is still to be paid. It is
outstanding. It is a liability. It has to be paid.

Treatment in final accounts. Outstanding expenses account may be available at two
places. It may be given in the Trial balance or it may be mentioned outside the Trial bal-

ance, i.e., adjustments. If outstanding salaries or wages owing account have heen men--
tioned in the trial balance, they will be shown at the liabilities side only (accounts appeart-

ing in the trial balance are shown only at one place in the final accounts).

In case, ouistanding expensés are in the adjustment, they will be shown at two places
(all items appearing in the adjustments are shown at two places). Outstanding expenses will
be added to the concerned expense at the debit side of tr'ading or profit and loss account
such as outstanding wages will be added to wages account at the debit side of trading
account and outstanding salaries will be added to salaries account at the debit side of profit
and loss account. Quistanding expenses will also be shown at the liabilities side of the
balance sheet.

PREPAID EXPENSES OR EXPENSES PAID IN ADVANCE OR.
EXPENSES RELATING TO THE NEXT OR FOLLOWING
YEAR OR UNEXPIRED EXPENSES '

There are certain expenses which may have been paid in advance, i.c., expenses for the
next year have been paid during the current year. For example, insurance premium of Rs.
2,400 was paid on April 1, 2002 for the whole year.-The accounting period ends on 31st
December, 2002 but insurance premium has been paid upto 31st March, 2003. The period
between Jan. | to March 31, 2003 belongs to the next year. It means that insurance pre-
mium paid for the 3 months of the next year is-prepaid, i.e., 1/4th of Rs. 2,400 or Rs. 600
has been paid for the year 2003. We will have to pass an adjusting entr y tor prepaid i msur—
ance as under :

I'reatment in the Final ALcounts

(i) Ifprepaid expenses appear in adjustments. Prepaid insurance show a debit balance,
so it will be shawn at the assets side of Balance sheet. The amount of prepaid insur-

ance will be deducted from insurance at the debit side of profit and loss account.

Final Accounts (With Simple
Adjustments)

NOTES
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Prepaid expenses are also known as unexpired expenses, because the part of ¢
penses relating to the current year have expired (benefit fiom the expondinue §
been availed of). The part of expenditure relating to next year is still unexpired, ;.
the benefit of the expenditure is to be availed of. Let us take an example. Remt for't
whole year amounting to Rs. 12,000 has been paid on 1st May, 2004. The rent
eight months (May 1.—Dec. 31) relates to the current year 2004, and the rest rent f
four months, i.c.. (from Jan. 1 to April 30, 2005) are concerned with the next ye:
Rs.. 4,000, the rent for four months is unexpired or the benefits of this rent are to |
availed of, so it is an asset. The current year should bear only Rs. 8,000 [of rent,.
Rs. 4,000 will be deducted from thesent, i.e., Rs. 12,000 at the debit side of pro
and loss account. It will be shown in the profit and loss account and Balance sheet

under :

Profit and Loss Account Balance Sheet
Dr. : Cr. Liabilities " Assels

I . _ |
'To Rent Afe 12,000 ) - Prepaid Rent A/ 4,001
Less : Prepaid Rent 4,000 Prepuid Insurance 600
) ) 3,000
To Insurance 2,400
Less : Prepaid Insurance 600

1,800

(if) If'prepaid expenses appear in Trial balance. Soinetimes items like unexpired re;
or prepaid insurance may be given in the Trial balance. In such case, unexpired rer
and prepaid expenses will be shown at the assets side only.

ACCRUED OR OUTSTANDING INCOME OR INCOME DUE
BUT NOT RECEIVED

Sometimes income of the current year may be due but not received just as expenses du
bul not paid. For example, the firm advanced a {oan of Rs. 20,000 at 12% interest on Janu
ary 1, 2004. Interesi on this loan for the month of November and December are accruec

12 2
, still to be recewed In thss case Rs 400, ie., 20,000 x ﬁ X — w1ll be accruer

interest. In the same way, if a portion of the building has been sublet on a monthly rent o
Rs. 700. One quarter’s rent (three months’, rent) has not been received so far. Rs. 700 x 3 -
Rs. 2.100 will be accrued income as rent.

Treatment in the Final Accounts

(i} If accrued income is in adjustment. Accrued income is the income of the curren
year. The income has not been received so far, but it will be treated as income ac
cording to our accrual concept. It will be added to the concerned income at the credi
side of profit and loss account and also shown-at the assets side, because the amoun
is to be received by the current 'year. Journal entry for accrued interest and rent a:
mentioned in the example will be passed as under :

The treatment of accrued income will be made in the profit and loss account anc
balance sheet as under :
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Profit and Loss Account

Balance Sheet

Dr. Cr. Liabilities Assets
By Interest 2.000 Accrued Interest 400
Adid - Accrued Interest 400 Accrued Rent 2,100 *
2,400
By Rent 6,300
Add : Accrued Rent 2,100
8,400

(i) Ifaccrued income appears in Trial Balance. Accrued income will be shown at the
assets side only because current year's income is still receivable (whatever is receiv-
able is an asset). As items from Trial balance are shown at one place only, so il is
enough to show it at the assets side.

UNEARNED INCOME OR INCOME RECEIVED IN

ADVANCE

It is just possible that we may receive the income of the next year during the current
year. Such income is also known as unearned, because the income-has not been eamed by
the current year. It relates to the next year, though received during the current year. It will
be deducted from concerned income at the credit side of profit and loss account and also

shown as a liability.
Treatment in Final Accounts

(/) If unearned income appears in the adjustment. All the items appearing in the-
adjustments are shown at two places, so unearned income will also be shown at
two places. Unearned rent amounting to Rs. 15,000 referred to in the above exam-

ple will be deducted from the rent at the credit side of profit and loss account and
also shown at the liabilities side. The treatment of this rent received in advance will
be made in the profit and loss account and the Balance sheet as under :

Profit and Loss Account

as on Decerber 31, 2003

Balance Sheet

Dr. Cr. Liabilities Amount | Assets
Rs.
By Rent 36,000 Rent received i
Lesy ) in advance 15,000
Rent received in {(Unearned Rent)
advance 15,000
| 21,000
21,000 |

Rent received account is debited, so it will reduce the amount of rent received at the
credit side of profit and loss account. Unearned rent account shows a credit balance
so it will be shown at the liabilities side (liabilities have credit balance).

Final Accounts (With Simple

Adjustments)

NOTES
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(i) Ifunearned income appears in Trial balance. Appearing in the Trial balance means
that it has been routed through double entry record (journal entries have already
been passed for it) so it will be shown only at one place. That only piace for f Wil pe
the liabilities side, simply because it shows a credit balance and the amouni received
in advance has to be paid by the current year to the next year.

INTEREST ON CAPITAL

Capital is the liability of the business. It is proprietor’s claim against the firm. The
business assumes capital as amount borrowed from the proprietors of the firm. Interest
payable on this liability will be an expense of the business. It will. therefore, be debited to
profit and loss account. Interest on capital at the same time will increase the balance of
proprietor’s capital, so it should also be added to capital account at the liabilities side. For
éxample, the firm started its business on January 1, 2004 with Rs. 2,00,000. It-was decided to.
charge interest on capital at the rate of 12%. The total interest on capital due to proprietors

. 12 .
will be Rs. 24,000, i.e., 2,00,000 x 100" ) .

Interest on capital has been debited as an expense, so it will be posted at the debit side
of profit and loss account. Capital account has been credited in the journal entry, so capital
will also increase with the amount of interest on capital at the liabilities side of the Balance
Sheet. )

If interest on capital account appears in the Trial bajance, it will be posted to the debit
side of profit and loss account only.

INTEREST ON DRAWINGS

The owners of business may sometimes draw cash or goods for their private or per- -
sonal or domestic use. Drawings, in this wa'y, is the amount advanced by the firm 1o its
proprietors. If the firm pays interest on capital, the funds invested by the proprietor, it is
fully justified that it should also charge interest on the amount withdrawn by the proprictors
from business. Interest on drawing will be received by the business, so it is an income. It
shouid, thercfore, be credited. The capital will reduce with the interest on drawing, so
capital account should be debited. In case of drawing and interest on drawing it will be
preferable to debit. Drawings account instead of capital account. : '

Interest on drawings will be posted at the credit side of Iiroﬁl and loss account, because
it is an income of the business. It will also be deducted from the capital at the liabilities side
of the Balance sheet. This treatment will be miade if it is an item in the adjustment.

- If the item of interest on drawings is given in the Trial balance, it will mean that the
balance of capital account has already been adjusted. Now. interest on drawings account
will b shown as income at the credit side of profit and loss account only. L

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND ON INVESTMENT

Investment is an asset of the firm. Funds of the firm may be invested outside in shares.
debentures and sccurities of other companies. The firm will receive dividends on,shares




and interest on debentures, loan and other securities. Interest/Dividend received is undoubt-
‘edly an income, so it will be posted at the credit side of profit and loss account. If the
interest/dividend has been received dur:ng the year in cash, the item will appear at the
credit of Trial balance and will be posted at the credit side of profit and loss account only.

If interest on investment is due for certain months, it will be treated as accrued income.
The item will appear in the adjustment and will be shown at two places in the final ac-
counts. Outstanding interest on investment is the revenue of the current year so it will be
credited. The value of investment will also increase with the amount of accrued interest, so
investrent account will be debited.

Interest on investment, if it is an item of adjustment will be shown at two places, These
places will be credit side of profit and loss account and the assets side of the Balance sheet,
where it will be added to the value of investment, appearing in the Trial balance.

Interest on investment will be shown at the credit side of profit and loss account only,
if it is an item from Trial balance.

INTEREST ON LLOAN

Loan is an ambiguous item. It may be borrowed or it may also be Jent. If loan appears
at the debit side of Trial balarice, it will-mean that the funds have been advanced to
outsiders. It is an asset. The interest reczived on it will be gain and thus credited to profit
and loss account. If this item appears in tae trial balance, it will be shown at the credit side
of profit and loss account only. In case the item belongs to adjustment it will be shown at
two places. It will be shown at the credit side of profit and loss account and aiso added to
loan at the assets side of the Balance sheet. '

Interest on loan borrowed, will be shown at the debit side of the profit and loss account
only, if it is an item from Trial balance. ‘ . '

Interest on loan account will be shown at the credit side of profit and loss account and
will also be added to loan account at the assets side of Balance sheet.

BAD DEBTS (NOT IN ADJUSTMENT)

It is just possible that debts may not be fully recovered from debtors. Certain amounts’
may prove to be bad. The irrecoverable amount is termed as bad debts. It is undoubtedly a
loss. so posted at the debit side of profit and loss account. If bad debts is declared during
the year the following journal entry will be passed :

Bad debts Afc ) Dr.
To Sundry Debtors Afc

The above journal entry reveals that t1e amount of sundry debtors has been recuced by
amount of bad debts, so debtors in the balance sheet will be shown at their value mentioned
in the Trial balance. Bad debts account will appear in the trial balance. It will show debit
balance and be posted at the debit side of profit and loss account only.

PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
(ADJUSTMENT)

1t has been the experience of businessmen that certain amount out of the entire athount of

debors will definitely prove to be bad. Amount may remain itrecoverable due to the dishonesty |-

Final Accounts (With Simple
Adjustments)

NOTES

Self-Instructional Material 147



- Financial Accounting

NOTES

148 Self-Instructional Meterial

or unsound financial position of the debtors. In such circumstance, it is advisable to firms tha
they should make certain provisions out of the profit and loss account of the current year, ¢
that the next year may not suffer the loss of bad debts relating to the current year. 1t 1s possib):
that current'year’s debtors may prove to be bad in the next year. Decision regarding mainlenance
for provisions of bad and doubtful debts is taken at the end of year, so it is an item from:
adjustment. For making provision for probable bad and doubtful debts and following g journal
entry will be passed : -

Profit and Loss Afc Dr.
To Provision for bad and doubtful debts
(Being maintenance of provision for bad and doubtful debts)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts account will be shown at the liabilities side, as it
shows a credit balance. It may also be deducted from sundry debtors at the assets side of
Balance sheet. It will also be shown at the debit side of profit and loss account.

FURTHER BAD DEBTS (ADJUSTMENT)

It may be ascertained at the end of accounting peried that certain amount have been
declared as bad. The following adjusting entry will be passed :

Bad debts A/c ' Pr.
To Sundry Debtors Alc

The above journal entry reveals that'bad debts accourit has been debited and it will be
closed by transferring to profit and loss account. In other words, it will be posted at the
debit side of profit and loss account. The item belongs to adjustment, so it will also be
shown at one more place, i.¢., deducted from debtors at the assets side of the Balance sheet.
If there is already an item of bad debts in the trial balance, further bad debts will be added
to it at the debit side of profit and loss account. ‘

PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS (GIVEN IN
THE TRIAL BALANCE)

' We maintain provision for bad and doubtful debts every year. Provision maintained is
the amount likely to prove bad. It is not the actual bad debts. If bad debts is lesser than the
amount of provision for bad and doubtful debts, there will remain a credit balance in the
provision for bad and doubtful debts account. The amount will appear in the trial balance,
50 it will be shown at one placé only. It will be either shown at the credit side of profit and
Joss account or it will be deducted from tk= total of bad debts. further bad debts and new
provision at the debit side of profit and loss account. It may also be shown at the l:ablhty
side. Only one of the three treatments will be made.

Calculation of Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Provision for bad-and doubtful debts is calculated on sundry debtors at given rate. In
certain cases, there are further bad debts in the adjustments and the provision is also to be
calculated at certain rate. In these cases, provision for bad and doubtful debts will be calcu-
lated on debtors after deducting the amount of bad debts or further bad debts (given in the

“adjustment). Calculation is explained as under.



IMustration 1. Calculate provision for bad debts in the following cases
ta) Create or mauintain .'or make plrow'sinn for bad and doubtful debts @ 7%.
(h) (i) There was u further bad debts of Rs. 350.
(i) Create reserve for bad and doubiful-debts @ 7%.
The balance of the sundry debtors as per Trial balance is Rs. 50,000 in both the cases.

' 7
Solution. (¢) Provision for bad and doubtful debts = 50,000 x 00 " Rs. 3,500.

(b) Rs. 350 have proved to be bad debts, so the amount due from debtors will reduce by
Rs. 350 and it is actually 50,000 — 350 = Rs. 49,650. Now, the provision will be made on
Rs. 49, 650 not on Rs. 50.000.

49 650x7

Provision for bad and doubtful debts = —g =Rs.3475.50.

PROVISION FOR DISCOUNT ON DEBTORS

It is common practice of the business to allow its debtors, cash discount, so that they
may be encouraged to make early and immediate payment. Discount is 2llowed to debtors.
We shall be receiving lesser amount from debtors after allowing them discount. It is,
therefore. a loss and debited to profit and loss account. If discount allowed appears in the
Trial balance, it will be shown at debit side of Profit and loss account only. It may be noted
that provision for discount on debtors is made only on good debtors.

We may be asked to make a provision for discount on debtors in the adjustment. In this
case, discount on debtors will be calculated at the given rate on debtors. It will be shown at
the debit side of profit and loss account and also deducted from debtors at the assets side of
" Balance sheet.

Calculation of discount on debtors. Discount on debtors is allowed to only those
debtors, who are going to make us payment. It means that it will exclude those debtors, who
have become bad and also those who are doubtful. Suppose we have been given further bad
debts, and asked to create a provision for bad and doubtful debts in addition to discount on
debtors. We shalt deduct the amount of further bad debts from’ debtors to calculate provi-
sion for bad and doubtful debts. Discount on debtors will be calculated after deducting
further bad debts and provision for doubtful debts both from debtors. .

If we are asked to create a provision for bad and ‘doubtful debts and also discount on
debtors, we shall calculate provision for doubtful debts first, deduct its amount from debt-
ors and calculate discount on debtors on deducted amount of debtors. Calculation and treat-
ment of discount on debtors is illustrated herewith.

Relationship between Bad Debts and Provisior for Bad Debts

Bad debts and bad debts provision are inter-related and interdependent. Bad debts pro-
vision is maintained to meet the loss due to bad debs. This is why, bad debts account is
closed by transfer to profit and loss account. Provision for bad debts account shows the
amount to be charged out of profit and loss account. The balancing figure of this account is
transferred to profit and loss account. Maintenance of these accounts has been illustrated as

under :

Final Accotints {(With Simple
Adjustments)
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CLOSING STOCK

It is also an item of adjustment. Closing stock does not appear in the Trial balacce,
Following adjusting entry is passed for closing stock.

Closing Stock Alc Dr.
To Trading Afc ’

It will be clear from the above journal entry that closing stock will be posted at the
credit side of Trading account. Closing stock account, if prepared will show debit balance
{every asset has a debit balance) and as such it wil] also be written at the assets side of the
balance sheet,

Closing stock may be in Trial balance, if it so, the closing stock will be wiitten only at
one place i.e., Assets side of the Balance sheet. ' '

Hlustration 2. The following balances were extracted from the books of Shri Brijesh
Chandra on 30th June, 2003 '

, Rs. : ' Rs.’
Capital 24,500  Bud debts ‘ 550
Drawings 2,000  Loan 7.880
General expensey 2,500  Sales 63,360
Buildings 11,000 Purchases 47,000
Machinery 9 340 Scooter 2.000
Stock 16,200 ~  Bad debts, provision 900
Power 2,240 Commission (Cr.) 1,320
Taxes and Insurance 1,315 Scooter Expenses 1,800
Wages 7,200 Bills payable 3,850
Debtors 6,280 Cash : i 80
Creditors 2,500  Bank Overdraft 3.300
Charity 105

Prepare final accounts for the year ended 30th June, 2003 after giving effect to the
Jollowing adjustments : ’
(a) Stock on 30th June, 2003 was valued ar Rs. 23,500. i
(b) Write off a further of Rs. 160 as bad debts and maintain the provision for bad debts
at 5% on debtors. '
{¢) Depreciate machinery at 10% and scooter 12%.
(d) Provide Rs. 750 for oi;tstanding interest on overdraft.

Solution, ' .
‘Trading and Profit and Loss Account of Sh. Brijesh Chandra

' for the year ended 30" June, 2003

Dr. Cr
Expenses/Losses Amount .Revenue/Gain “Amount
Rs. ' Rs.
To Opening Stock 16,200 By Sales 63,360
To Purchases 47,000 | By Closing Stock 23,500
To Power 2,240
To Wages 7.200



16.220

To Gross Profit transferred to
Profit and Loss A/c
88,860 88,860
To General expenses 2,500 | By Gross Prout transferred
To Taxes and Insurance 1,315 from Trading Afc 16,220
To Charity 105 | By Commission A/c 1,320
To Scooter expenses ’ 1,800
To Bad debts 500
Add : Further Bad Debts 160
Add : Provision for bad debtsL.é
1,016
Less : Old reserve 900 116
To Depreciation on : T
Machinery 934 .
Scooter 240 1,174
To Interest Outstanding T 750
To Net Profit transferred
to Capital account 0,780
17,540 17,540
Balance Sheet of Sh. Brijesh Chandra
as on 30" June, 2003
Liabilities Amount Assets Amount
" Rs. Rs.
Creditors 2,500 Cash 80
Bills Payable 3,850 | Debtors ~ 6,280 '
Loan 7,880 Less : Written off 160
Bank overdraft 3,300 6,120
~Add : Interest Outstanding 750 Less : Provision for B/D 306
" 4,050 5,814
Capital 24,500 | Closing Stock 23,500
Add : Net Profit 9,780 Buildings 11,000
Machinery 9,340
. 34,280 Less : Depreciation 934
Less : Drawings 2,000 | 8406
' T 32,280 | Scooter 2,000
Less : Depreciation 240
1,760
50,560 50,560

Note. Provision for bad debts has been calCulat_edron Rs. 6,120, ie., 6,@80 - 160.

Fina! Accounis (With Simple
_Adjustments)

NOTES
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Financial Accounting * Hlustration 3. The following is the trial balance of Mr. S. Kapur on 31st March, 2003.
Name of Accounts - _ ' Debit Credit
| s | FieA
No'fEs Cash in L B —— . e essee 1,080
Cash ln Bank .............covivovieecrreissesteseres v sssres s snssnens 5,260
© PUPCHUSES ..o reteeera et rrat et ramn e ranrans 81,350
Sales account ..........ooeeevveeeeveerenenns fanrersenessrsnionesrerssosasaosne 1,97 560
REHUIIS TIWATH oo eeeereseenes e emeeeses s anseesemnensanens 1,3(.50 )
Return aurwards - 1,000 .
WES. e et e e sarsn e enat e eas creveeeneraa 20,960 ’
Fuel and po»;zer ...................................... CR— Seveenene 9,460
Carriage on sales............ et e et e e p bt nn 6.400 .
Carriage omn PUrchUSes. .. veeccniirsirnicee s, 4,080
 S10CK (1-4-2002)...covvoeerseesseeeressensseeessseseessessssseresnee 11,520
T 17 T Y - £ X/ /.
Frechold Iand....cowurceoeeeevecesseresssecsnsssessssssensrenes SR ©20.000
Machmery 40, 000
SQLATTES..ccccevreeeeie ittt 30,000
~ PIENTS..overesereeseseseseseesssssessesesensmsossoesesnee 15,000
General éxpen.g‘es ......... OSSPSR veeeineens 0,000
Insurance....ccevcrenen. eersmverianieines S oo 1,200
L0717 771 O U SSTRU RPN SRR 142,000

DY QWINGS.eoeeeeoorereeesnesrrasmsesssmesssionsesssnssssesssssnsesssssssssssone 10,490

SURAEY deBIOTS..veceeoveeeeeeeeeteeveeceeeeviertieresesenessssamnenenns 20000
Sundry creditors.. . i e eaes 12,600

Rs. 353,160 - 353,160

" Taking into acgounr\rille following adjustments, prepare Trading and Profit and loss
account and the Balance sheet : e

(@) Stock in hand on 31" March, 2003 is Rs. 13,600. ‘ .

(b) Machinery is to. be depreciated at the rate of 10% and patents at the rate of 20%.

(¢) Salaries for the month of March, 2003 amount to Rs. 3,000 were unpaid.

(d) Insurance includes a premium of Rs. 170 for the next year.

(e) Wages include a sum of Rs. 4,000, spent on the erection of cycle-shed for employees
and customers.

A pr(;;vision for bad and doubtful debts is to be created to the extent of 5% on sundry
debtors.
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Solution. .
Trading and Profit and Loss Account of Mr. S. Kapur
. for the year ended 31st March, 2003
Dr. \ ’ Cr.
- Expenses/Losses Amount Revenue/Gain Amount
Rs. '
To.Opening Stock 11,520 | By Sales 1,97,560
'To Purchases 81,350 . Less : Return {(-) 1,360 | 1,96,200
Less : Return (- 1,000 80,350 . :
To Carriage on Purchasés 4,080 | By Closing Stock ' 13,600
To Wages 20,960
Less -Brection of a cycle (-) 4,000 16.960
 shed -
To Fuel and Powers 9,460
To Gross Profit transferred to.P/L $7.430
" Ak
2,09,800 | 2.09.800
To Carriage Outward - 6,400 | By Gross Profit ransferred
To Salaries 30,000 from trading Afc 87.430
Add : Outstanding 3.000 33,000
To General experises 6,000
To Insurance 1,200
Less : Pre-paid Insurance 170 1,030
To Depreciationon :
Machinery 4,000
" Patents 3,000 7,000
To Provision for bad and doubtful 1,450
debis
To Net Profit transfeited to Capital 32,550
Alc
87.430 87.430
Balance Sheet of Mr. S. Kapur
as on 31" March, 2003
Liabilities - Amount Assets Amount
Rs. Rs.
Creditors 12,600 Cash in hand 1,080
Qutstanding Salaries 3,000 | Cash at Bank 5,260
Capital 1,42,000 Debtors 29,000
Add : Net Profit 32,550 Less : Provision 1,450
- . 21,550
1,74,550 Insurance Prepaid 170.
Less : Drawings -10,490 Closing Stock 13,600
T 1,64.060 Building 60,000
Add : Cost of erection of
a cycle shed 4,600

64,000°

Final Accounts (With Simple
Adjustments)

NOTES .



Financiel Accounting Land. 20,000

Machinery 43,000
Less : Depreciafion ' 4,000

_ 36,000

Patents - 15,000

NOTES_- Less : Depreciation 3,000
’ (2,000
1,79,660 1.79,660

Note. Wages paid for erection of 2 cycle shed is capital expenditure, Cycle shed is a part of
building. It will increase the value of building, so.wages paid for construction of shed should be
‘added to the value of building. As it has been wrongly included in the wages, so it should be
subtracted from wages at the debit side of Trading account. .

Hlustration 4. From the following Trial Balance of M/s Shradha & Sons as on 3
December, 2003, prepare Trading emd Profit & Loss Account and Balunce Sheet :

Name of Accounts Dr. (Rs.) Cr. (Rs.)
Drawing and Capital ' : o 18,000 80,000
Purchases and Sales . . 82,600 .| 155000
Stock (1.1.2003) 42,000
Return owrward - 1,600
Carriage Inward ' : 1,200
Wages ' : 4,000
Power - o 6,000
Machinery ' 50,000
Furniture - . 14,000
“Rent , ' 22,000 -
Salary 15,000
Insurance 3,600,
|\ 8% Bank Loan ' 25,000
- _Debtors _ ' 2.0, 600 ;
Creditors | - 18,900
Cash in hand ' 1,500
~ 2,80,500 2,580,500

Adjustments :

(a) Closing stock Rs. 64,000.

(b) Wages Outstanding Rs. 2,400.

{¢) Bad debts Rs. 600 and r'r_t.ake Provision for bad and doubtful debts to be 5%.
{d) Rent is paid for 11 inonths. o

(e) Loan from the bank was taken on 1st July, 2003. .

() Provide depreciation on machine @ 10% & on ﬁtmfiure @ 5%.
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Solution.
Trading and Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31% December, 2003
Dr. Cr.
Particulars Amount Particulars Amount
Rs. Rs.
To Opening Stock 42,000 By Sales 1,55,000
To Purchases 82,600 By Closing Stock 64,000
Less : Returns - 1,600 | 81,000
To Power 6,000
To Wages : 4,000 )
Add : Qutstanding ) 2,400 6,400
To Carriage Inward 1,200
To Gross Profit-c/d 8?.,400
2.19,000 2,19,000
To Rent 22,000 By Gross Profit b/d 82,400
Add : Quistanding 2,000 | 24,000
- To Salary 15,000
To Insurance 3600
Less : Prepaid « (600) - 3.000 .
To Depreciation on :
Furniture 700
Machinery 5,000 5,700
To Interest on Bank Loan 1,000
~ Ouistanding ’
'To Bad debts 600
To Provision for bad debts 1,000
To Net Profit transferred to Capital A/c| 32,100
82,400 82,400
Balance Sheet of M/s Shradha & Sons
as on 31% December, 2003
Liabilities  Amount . Assets Amount
Rs. ' Rs.
* Creditors 18,900 | <Cashinhand 1,500
Outstanding Expenses ' Debtors . 20,600
Rent ) - 2,000 Less »Bad debts 600
Wages 2,400 4,400 : 20,000
‘ - Less : Provision for  (1000) | 19,000
. B/D
8% Bank Loan 25,000 Closing Stock ’ 64,000
Add : Unpaid Interest 1,000 | 26,000 Prepaid Insurance 600

Fingl Accounts (With Simple
Adjustments)

NOTES
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Financial Accounting

Adjfustments at a Glance

Capital

Less : Drawings

Add : Net Profit

Machinery 50,000
80,000 Less - Depreciation 30000 45000
18,000 Furniture 14,000
62,000 Less : Depreciation 7} 13,300
32,100 | 94.100 '
1,43,400 1,43.400

sheet,

HO0

8 6
25000 x — x —
12

has been added to Rent at the debit side of P/L A/

Notes. (i) Rent has been paid amounting to Rs. 22,000 for eleven months. It means that the
rent for one month amdunting to Rs, 22,000+ 11 = Rs. 2,000 is still outstanding. This is why, it
¢ and also shown as liability in the Balance

(i) The Trial Balance does not contain any amount of interest on Bank Loan, which is
undoubtedly due for six months.i.e., July I, 2003 to Dec. 31. 2003 @ 8%. It amouats to

= Rs. 1,000 and treated as outstanding interest on loan.

{iif) Provision for Bad debts will be calculated on 20,600 — 600 =-Rs. 20,000 @ 5%. Ii will
amount to Rs. [,000. This is based upon the logic that, why should provision be made on the
amount which has been declared as bad,

Adjustments © Journal Entry Adjustment in deing Adfustment in Balance
und P/L Ale Sheet
1. Closing Stock Closing Stock Al Dr. | Posted at the credit side of Trad- | Shown at the assets side
To Trading A/c ing Afc
2. Depreciation Depreciation Afc Di. | Posted at the debit side of P/L | Shown as deducted from con-
To Asset Alc Alc” cerned assets
3. Appreciation Asset Alc’ Dr. | Posted at the credit side of P/L | Shown as added to concerned.
To Appreciation Afc Ale asser
4. Qutstanding Expenses A/c Dr. | Added to the concerned cxpenée Shown at the liabilities side
expenses To Outstanding at the debit side of P/L or Trading
Expenses Afc Al .
5. Prepaid expense Prepaid Expenses A/c Dr. | Deducted from the concerned ex- | Shown at the assets side
To Expense. Alc pense at the debit side of P/L A/c.
6. Actrued Accrued Income Alc Dr. | Added to the concerned income Shown at the assets side
income To Income Alc at the credit side of P/L A/c
7. Uncarned Income Afc Dr. | Deducted from concernid income | Shown at the liabilities side
| income To Unearned Income Alc at the credit side

8. Interest on

capital

Interest on Capital Afc

To Capital A/¢

Dr.

Posted at the debit side of P/L A/c

Added to capital at the
liabilities side
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. Final Accounts (With Simple
' Adjustmenl!s)

9. Interest on-
drawings

Drawings Afc o Dr.
To Interest ¢n Drawings

Posted at. the credit side of P/L
Alc

Deducted from capital at the
liabilities side

10: Interest on

Investment A/c Dr.

Posted at the credit side of P/L
Alc

Added to invesgment at the
assets side

investment To interest on Investment

11. Interest on Interest on loans Afc Dr. | Posted at the debit side of P/L. Added to loan at the liabilities
leans (borrowed), To Loan Alc . Ale side

12. Interest on Loans Afc - -Dr. Added to loan at the assets gid}:

loans ‘(advanced)

To Interest on Loans A/c

Posted at the credit side of P/L
Alc .

13. Bad debts Bad Debts Afc Dr. | Posted at the debit side of P/L | Deducted from debtors at the

: ' TO Deb{ors Ajc NC ’ assets Side

14. Provision, for P/IL Alc Dr. | Posted at the debit side of P/L | Deducted from debtors at the
bad debis To Provision for Afc assets side

Bad debts Afc

15. Provision for- . P/L Alc . Dr. | Posted at the debit side of P/L | Deducted from debtors at the
discount on To Provision for discount Ale - assets side '
debtors on debtors

'16. Provision for

Provision tor Discount on credi-

Posted at the credit side of P/L

Deducted from creditors.at the

discount on tors Alc . Dr. Alc liabilities side
creditors To P/L Alc
17. Accidental loss Loss of Stock Alc Dr. | Deducted from Purchases or | No Effect
of stock To Trading Afc ) Posted at the credit side of Trad- | -
3 -

or To Purchases Afc .

ing Afc and also at the debit side
of P/L Alc

18. Accidental loss of
goeds (If Insured)
{Partial admission

" ofclaim)

Insurance Co. Alc Dr.
Loss of Stock Afe Dr.
To Trading Afc

Insurance Co. Afc wili be shown
with the amount of claim admit-
ted by Co., loss of stock will be
shown with the amount of the
claim not, admitted at the credit
side of Trating Afc. Loss of the
stock will also be shown at the

Insurance Co. Afc will he
shown at the Assets side with
the amount of claim admitled
as debtor

debit side of P/L Afc

19. Loss of Assets Loss by fire Afc " Dr. | Loss by fire A/c will be-shown at 'Loss will be deducted from the *
by fire . To Asset Afc the debit side of P/L Afc concerned asset at the assels
(If not insured) ’ . -side

20. Accidental loss Insurance Co. Afc Dr. | Loss by fire Afc will be shown at | Insurance Co. Afc will be |
of Assets | Loss by fire Alc pr. | the debit side of P/L. Afc shown at the assets side. Loss
(if insured) To Assets A/c by fire A/c will be deducted

. o ; from the Assets

(Partial admission
of claim} .
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21. Qutstanding P/L Alc . Dr. | Manager’s commission A/c will | Shown at the llabiies side of 1

Manager’s To Outstanding be shown at debit side:of P/L A/c | Balance sheet
. commission manager’s commission

22. Goods. sent on Sales A/c  Dr. 8000 Rs. 8000 will be deducted from | Rs. 8,000 deducted from
sale or return To Debtors Alc 8000 sales and Rs. 6000 will be added | debtors and Rs. 6,000 zdded to
basis treated as ' and to closing stock at the credit side | stock at the assets side .

. . of Trading A/c
sales (cost of Stock A/ Dr. 6000 ‘
goods Rs. 6000 Trading A/ 6.000
inclued in sales To Trading Afc ?

Rs. 8000)

23. Goods taken by Drawing A/c Dr. | Amount of goods taken by the | Amountof goods taken by the
the proprietor . To Purchases A/c 4 proprietor will be deducted from | proprictor will be deducted
for personal use purchases in Trading Afc from capital at the liabilities

) side. - '

24. Goods given as Charity A/c Dr. | Deducled from pl:ll‘ChElSC at the | Deducted frcfrn‘capitul at the
charity . To Purchases A/c debit side of trading A/c - liabilities side

23. Goods distribu- Advertising A/c ' Dr. | Posted at the debit side of P/L. | No effect
ted as free or Afc .
samples Free Samples A/c Dr. | Also deducted from purchases )

To Purchases A/c Alc

26. Wages paid for Building Afc Dr. | The amount will be deducted | The amount will be added to
construction of To Wages Afc . - | from wages at the debit side of | building at the assets side
building was ‘ Trading Afc
debited to
wages Alc

27. Goods in transit Goods in Transit Afe. Dr. | No-effect Goods in transit Afc will be
{Goods were not To Supplier’s Afc shown at the assets side.
received although Supplier’s Afc will be shown
titles to goods at labilities side
were received) .

28. Remuneration Salaries Afc Dr. | Added to salaries at the debit side | Deducted from debtors at the
paid to employee To Employee’s Personal of P/L Afc ' assets side
was debited to his Alc
personal Al ' .

29. Deferred (i) Advertising A/c Dr. | Debited to P/L Afc (with the am- | Shown at the assets side with
Revenae To Bank ortised value) unamortised amount.
expenditure (with tota]l amount) )
paid for future .
benefits {e.g., (i) P/L. Afc. Dr.

Advertisement To Advertising
expenditure) (with instalmen!

amortised or written off)
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.REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions :

1.

2,
3

4.
5.

Where wiil you show unearned income in the Fnancial statements, if it appear in the Trial
Balance 7 .
How will you treal wages owing in Final Accounts if it appears in the Trial Balance ?

"Name the account and its side, where from we may pick up the item of Net Loss. Also

mention its treatment in the Balance Sheet.
What adjusting entry will be passed for the prepaid rent ?
What journal entry will you pass for the recovery of bad debts previously written off ?

B. Short Answer Type Questions : -

1.
2
3.

Name any three current assets and four fixed assets.
Mention items to be added to and deducted from capital at the liabilities side.

Mention situation in which purchases A/c is credited.

C. Long Answer Type Questions :

L.

What do you mean by adjusting entries ? Why is it necessary to pass adJustmg entries at the
time of preparing final accounts ?
Why is it necessary to create prowsmn for bad and doubtful debts 7 How is it treated in final

.accounts 7

Explain the treatment of accidental foss of goods in the ﬁnal accounts, if

() Goods are not insured (5) Goods are insured and full clalm is admitted by the Insurance
Company.

Write short notes on the following :

(@) Expenses owing (b) Unearned income (c) Discount on creditors (d) Interest on draw-
ings (¢) Unexpired insurance (f) Increase in the value of assets.

Explain the rationale of making adjustments at the time of preparing the final accounts ?
Mention any three important adjustments that are made for the preparation of the profit and

Loss Account,

Final Accounts (With Simple

. Adjustments)

NOTES
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‘

cHAPTER 10 DEPRECIATION

"% STRUCTURE *

= Introduction

v Methods of Calculating Depreciation

INTRODUCTIDN

Meaning and Definition

Business is established for indefinite period. This is why, it acquires fixed assets for its’
use. These assets increase the profit eaming capacity. Fixed assets are constantly used in the
business. The assets lose their value gradually due to their constant use. Loss in the value
and utility of assets due to their constant use and expiry of time is termed as depreciation.
It has been our own experience that the furniture purchased for our own use in 2004 will
lose a part of its value and lustre in 2005, Its value will further decrease in 2006 and so
its effectiveness and value will go on decreasing with the passage of time, This “wear and
tear is known as ‘Depreciation’ in accounting :

According to R.N. Carter, Deprecmnon is gradual and permanem decrease in the

valué of an asset fiom any cause”

W. P:ckles views, “Depreciation may be definzd as per: manent and continuing diminution
in the quality, quantrly or the value of an asset”,

In the opinion of Spicer and Peglar, "Depreciation is the measure of exhaution of the
eﬁ”ecr:ve life of an asset from any cause during a given per iod”. '

According to Accounting Standard, “Depreciation is a measure of the wearing out,
consumption or other loss of value of a depreczable asset arising fiom use, effluxion of time
or obsolescence through technology and market changes"”.

According to Tnstitute of Cost and Management Accounting London (ICMA)
terminology, “The deprecranon Is the diminution in intrinsic value of the asset due to use
and/or lapse of time”. .

According to Accounting Standard-6 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants .
of India (in November 1987} every company is liable-to make provision for depreciation
on its fixed assets.

Special Features of Depreciation

1. Depreciation is loss in the value of assets.
2. Loss should be gradual and constant,
3. Depreciation is the cxhaution of the effective life of business.

4. Depreciation is the normal feature. -



5. Maintenance of assets is-not depreciation.
6. It is continuing decrease in the value of assets.
7. It is the allocation of cost of assets to the period of its life.

Accountants have developed certain specific words to denote the loss in the value of
particular assets, other than depreciation. These words are as under:

1. Obsolescence/Dilapidation

Sometimes new inventions throw away the existing machines and equipments as ebsolete
(useless) although the old machines and equipments are not completely useless. The firm
will have to replace the old machine and equipment with the latest, up-to-date and néwly
invented machine and equipment. Loss due to the obsolescence of the old machine and
equipment is known as ‘obsolescence’.

2. Depletion

The firm may possess certain mineral wealth such as coal, oil, iron ore efc. The more
we extract mineral wealth from these mines the more mines are depleted.” Decrease in
mineral wealth of the mines is termed as depletion. '

3. Amortisation

The word ‘ameortisation’ is used to show loss in the value of intangible assets. These
assets are goodwill, patents and preliminary expenses etc. These assets are written off over
certain period. ‘

4. Fluctuation

Increase and decrease’in the market value of assets is known as fluctuation. As we record
the value of these assets on historical Basis, we do not pass any entry for the fluctuations in
the market value of assets. In case of permanent fall in the value of investments fluctuation
may be recorded.

Causes for Depreciation

1. By constant use. The loss in the value, efficiency and utility of fixed assets due to
its constant use is termed as depreciation.

2. By expiry of time. The effective life of assets goes on decreasing with the passage
of time. If certain lease has been obtained for 20 years; for T 1,00,000, it will lose

1 i
its Z_Oth’ ie., (20 XI’00’000]= T 5,000 value at the end of the first year and so

on. At the end of 20th year it will become valueless.

3. By obsolescence. The old assets will become obsolete due to new inventions, improved
techniques and technological advancéments.

4. By depletion. Loss of mineral wealth due to constant working of mines is also
depreciation, but specifically known as ‘depletion’. Suppose a particular mine has
got1.00,000 tons of coal during Ist yeai’, coal worth 5,000 tons have been extracted.
The loss of 3,000 tons of coal from mines is loss .due to depletion. This is why,
we charge depreciation on these mineral wealth according to depletion method.

5. Permanent fell in price. Though fluctuations in the market value of fixed assets is
not recorded in the books. Sometimes we have to account for this loss such as
permanent fall in the value of investments.

Depreciation

NOTES
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6.

By Abnormal factors. Depreciation may also be due,to the loss'in the value of assets
by accidents and damage. . : )

Depreciation in the value of assets in all the above cases is, accounted for in the books
of accounts.

Objectives of Charging Depreciation

Recording depreciation, in the books of accounts is essential due to the following

rcasons:

1.

For determination of net profit or net loss. Loss.in. the value of assets is undounbtedly

a business expense. It must be recorded and shown at the debit side of the profit
and loss account for the correct calculation of net profit or net loss. The ultimate
objective of accounting is to determine the correct net income. This objective will
not be achieved, unless we account for depreciation in the books of accounts,

For showing assets at fair and true value in the Balance Sheet. If depreciation is not
charged, the assets will be shown at value more than its actual value. The purpose
of recording assets is to show them at their true value. Provision for depreciation
reduces the value of assets w1th the amount of depreciation and assets are shown
at their true and fair value.

Provision of funds for replacement of assets. The assets acquired and used in the

"business wijll become useless after expiry of its estimated life or even before that,

we will have to replace the obsolete assets with another fresh asset. The replacement
will require funds. Proper method of depret:latlon will make the funds available for
the purchase of fresh assets.

Ascertaining accurate cost of production. Depreciation on factory plant and machinery
is factory overhead. It will increase the cost of production and the price of ‘the
commodity will be fixed at higher rates. In the absence of provision for depreciation,
the sales price of the commodity will be fixed at lower rates, because cost of
production will also be lower due to ignorance of deprec:latlon. Profit will thus be
reduced. '

Distribution of dividerid put of profit only. Depreciation is charged out of Profit and
loss account, so the profit after charging depreciation will be lesser. Sharcholders
will get dividend out of this profit. If depreciation is not charged, the profit will be
more and the excess dividend will be paid out of capital, which should have been
paid. out of profit.

Avoldmg over payment of income tax. If depreciation is not charged, profit and loss
account will show more profit’We will have to pay more income tax on this profit.
In this way, the payment of tax will be definitely more than what it should have
actually been. The profit will réduce with the amount of depreciation, so lesser or
the actua! income tax due will be paid. Provision for depreciation in this way, avoids
over payment of income tax. - '

Factory Affecting the Amount of Depreciation

It is quite impdssiblé to calculate the actual and accurate amount of depreciation. It can
always be estimated, though we try our best to be more accurate and correct. Following
factors have to be considered before estimation of the amount of depreciation.

1.

Total cost of the assets. Value of assets is determined after adding all expenses of
acquiring, installing and constructing the assets. We should take into consideration
the total cost of assets for determining the rate and the amount of depreciation.



2.

Estimated useful life of assets. The estimated working life of the asscts may be
measured in terms of years, months, hours, output (units) or kilometres (for trucks).
In case of depreciation the value of assets is allocated over the estimated useful
life of the asset. If expected life is more, the rate of depreciation will be lesser
and vice versa.

Useful life of asset depends upon the following factors

(i) Predetermined by legal or contractual limits e.g., in case of leasehold asset, the
useful life is the period of lease. '

(ify The number of shifts for which asset is to be used,
(iif) Repair and maintenance policy of the business ofganisation.
{iv) Technological obsolescence,

(v} Innovation/improvement in production method.

" (vi) Legal or other restrictions.

Estimated scrap ralue. It is the residual value, which is expected to be realised even
if the asset becomes obsolete. We shall have to make provision of the amount which
is the value of assets less its scrap value, Suppose we purchase a machine for
T 10,000, whose expected life is ten years. If the scrap value is ¥ 1,000), we will
have to arrange ¥ 9,000, ie., 10,000 — 1,000 in ten years. Every year will bear
a depreciation of T 900, i.e., 9,000/10. If the scrap value in the above case is
€ 2,000 depreciation to be charged will be T 800 only.

Chances to obsolescence. If the asset acquired is expected to be obsolete within
5 years, we will have to split its value over 5 years. If it will be obsolete within
four years the value will be split over four years. It shows that the amount of
depreciation charged every year will decrease with comparatively remote chances
of obsolescence. .

Addition to assets. Depreciation should be charged on the additions to the assets
also. If book value of furniture on Jan. 1, 2006 is ¥ 10,000 and additions worth
¥ 5,000 are made on July 1, 2006, Depreciation is to be charged @ 10%, We
shall be calculating depreciation on ¥ 10,000 for the whole year and on 5,000
for six months.

Legal provisions. The rate and method of depreciation being used must be subject
to legal provisions. Companies have to honour the legal provision with regard to
depreciation. '

DEPRECIATION

Causes

Objectives

Factors Affecting

1. By constant use

2. By expiry of time

1. For determination of
net profit or net loss

1. Total cost of the
Assets

3. By obsolescence

4. By depletion

5. Parmanent fall in
price

2. For showing asset at
fair and true value in
the Balance Sheet

2. Estimated useful life
of the assets

6. By abnormal factors

3. Provision of funds for
replacement of assets

3. Estimated scrap value

4, Ascertaining accurate
cost of production

4, Chances to
obsolescence

5. Addition to asscts

5. Distribution of dividend
out of profit only

6. Legal Provision

6. Avoiding over payment
of Income Tax

Depreciation
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METHODS OF CALCULATING DEPRECIATION

1. Fixed or Equal Instalment or Straight Line Method or Depreciation on
Original Cost .

It is the simplest method of charging depreciation. The original cost of the asset is
divided by the estimated life period of the asset. For example, if the value of asset is
¥ 20,000 and its useful life is estimated to be 10 years, the amount of depreciation to be
charged every year will be ¥ 2,000 i.e, 20,000/10. Deprecmt:on to be charged every year )
will be ¥ 2,000 or in other words, it will be fixed at % 2 000 for every year. If we draw a
graph of depreciation of 10 years, we shall find it to be a straight line because depreciation
every year is the same i.e., T 2,000.

In cenam cases, we are also given the scrap or residual value of the assets. The term
residual or scrap value means the amount realised from the sale of obsolete asset.

In these cases, we use the following formula for the calculation of depreciation :

Annual depreciation
_ Cost of asset — Scrap value or Residual value or Breakup or salvage value

Expected or estimated life of asset -

Under straight line method, depreciation may also be determined by applying a ﬁxed
rate to the original cost of the asset. :

Explanation of formula

Cost of the assets. Cost of the assets means the original cost or the historical cost of the
asset. The cost includes the purchasé price and the expenses incurred in acquiring (carriage,
cartage, freight on newly purchased asset), installation charge (in case of fixtures, plant and
machinery) construction charges (in case of building).

. Scrap or residual or breakup or salvage value. The asset being used will definitely
become obsolete sooner or later. The asset can be disposed off, even if it is obsolete (useless)
as a scrap. The amount fetched by scrapped asset is known as its residual value.

Estimated life of the asset. Whenever asset is acquired, the manufacturer generally
mentions the estimated working iife of the asset. It may be in years, months, days or hours
(in case of machines and equipments) in tons (in case of coal mines) in kilometres (in case
of truck) so on. If the estimated life is not mentioned by the manufacturer we can assume
it on the basis of our past experience or any scientific method.’

Advantages of S’tmight Line Method . !

Stl.'aight line method of providing depreciation has got the following advantages :

1. Simplicity. This is the simplest method of providing depreciation: This can be easily
understood even by ordinary person. Calculation of depreciation according to this
method is also very simple.

2. Assets can be completely written off. According to this method, assets can be written
"off to' zero. The depreciation is calculated on the original cost of the asset at the
specified rate, so the value of asset is fully split over the useful life of asset,

3. Knowledge of total depreciation charged. The amount of total depreciation charged
can be easily known by multiplying the yearly amount of depreciation with number
of years, the asset has been used.



6.

.

Saitable for small firms. Straight line method is the most suitable method for small |

firms. These firms use this method, because it is easy, simple and suitable to the
size of the firms.

Suitable for firms having large number of old and new machines. The weaknesses
of this method are removed, if the firm has both old and new machines. More
maintenance charges on old machines and lesser on the new machines balance each
other.

Useful for assets having lesser value. This method is the most suitable for charging
depreciation on assets of lesser value such as furniture, fixture and patents ete.

Disadvantages or-Limitations of Straight Line Method

Straight line method suffers from the following weaknesses :

1.

Undue pressure on final years. The final years of the life of the asset have to bear
more repairs and maintenance charges and also the same amount of depreciation,
whereas initial years have to suffer lesser repair charges.

No provision for replacer‘nent.‘The amount charged as depreciation is retained in
the’ business and used in the routine affairs. The firm has to bother for making
arrangement of funds for the replacement of assets although depreciation has been
charged every year, :

Loss of interest The amount of depreciation charged every year is not invested
outside the firm, so no interest is received. In certain methods of depreciation, the
amount of depreciation is invested outside the business in securities and interest
is received. ’ ' ' '
Illogical method. It seems illogical to charge depreciation on the original cost of the
asset every' year when the balance of the asset is declining year after year.
Unsuitable for assets having long-life and more value. This method is not suitable
for those assets which are subject to additions and extension from time 'to time,
such as land and building and- plant and machinery. It is not suitable for assets
having more value also.

Uses of Straight Line Method

Straight line method is suitable for those assets, which require lesser expenses on repairs *

and maintenance. The method is also useful for assets of lesser value such as patients,
furniture etc. This method is also useful for those big manufacturing concerns who have
got a large number.of machines. Some assets are very-old and some of them are fresh. The
combined result of the depreciation on both the old and new machines and also repairs and
maintenance charges balance each other. In case of old machines, maintenance charges are

more but in case of new machines charges are lesser. More maintenance charges on old

machines and lesser repairs on new balance each other.

The method is very simple, so most appropriate for small firms and assets of small value.

Its Accounting treatment is as under :

According to this method following journal entries are passed : P

1.

(3]

For purchase of assets
Assets Afc . Dr.

" To Bank or Cash A/c

For depreciation on assets
Depreciation A/c Dr.
To Assets Afc '

For sale of assets .
Bank or Cash'A/c Dr.

- To Assets Afc

Depreciation
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4. For loss on sale of assets

CPILAE - Dr.

To Assuets Alc .

The third and fourth entry regarding sale of asset or loss can be combined together:
Bank or Cash A/c Dr.

Loss on Sale of Assets A/c Dr,

To Assets Alc ; .

Loss on sale of assets account will be closed by transfer to profit and loss account;
For profit on sale of assets

© Assets Alc - : Dr.

To P/L Afc

Hlustration 1. (Straight Line Method: When, rate is given). The purchase of furniture
amounted to T 4,000 and it is decided to write oﬂ' 5 per cent an the original ceat as
depreciation at the end of each year. Show the ledger account as it will appear during the
first four years. Pass journaf ehtries also.

Solution.
Journal Entries
. Amaount
Date Particulars LE
Debit Credit
X T
Ist year . ‘
Furniture A/c Dr, 4,000
To Bank A/c : 4,000
(Being purchase of furniture)
Dec. 31 | Depreciation Afc : Dr. 200
To Fumiture Alc . - 200
(Being depreciation on furniture @ 5% on ¥'4,000)
2nd year ’ .
Dec. 31 | Deprecjation A/c Dr. 200
To Furniture A/c ' 200
(Being depreciation charged on furniture :
@ 5% on ¥ 4,000) '
3rd year ; :
Dec. 31 | Depreciation Alc - Dr. 200
: To Furniture A/c : 200
(Being depreciation charged on furniture
@ 5%.on ¥ 4.000) '
4th year
Dec, 31 Dcprec'iation Ale Dr. 200 .
To Furniture A/c _ 200
{Being depreciation charged on furniture
@ 5% on ¥ 4,000)




Explanation. As per the instructions of question, depreciation on furniture has to be
charged @ 5% on original cost. The original cost of the furniture is ¥ 4,000, so depreciation
on furniture will be charged every year on its original value, i.e., ¥ 4,000. This is why,
every year ¥ 200 has been charged as depreciation.

Fixed Instalment Method
Furniture Account

Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars JFE | Amount| Date Particulars JE | Amount
4 T
1st year 1st year
Jan, 1 To Bank A/c 4,000 | Dec, 31 | By Depreciation Alc 200
By Balance c/d ’ 3,800
4,000 4000
2nd year 2nd year -
Jan.1 To Balance b/d 3,800 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c 200
By Balance c/d\ 3,600
73,800 T3.800
3rd year 3rd year -
Jan. 1 | To Balance b/d " 3,600 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation Alc 200
| " | By Balance c/d 3,400
3,600 3,600
4th year 4th year -
Jan. 1 { To Balance b/d 3,400 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation Afc . 200
' By Balance ¢/d 3,200
3,400 3400
5th year
Jan. 1 To Balance b/d 3,200

Ilustration 2, (Straight Line Method: Original cost, expected life and scrap value).
On January I, 2003 M/s Ram & Sons purchased a Machinery for ¥ 2,00,000. They spent
X 12,000 on its freight and X 8,000 for its installation. The exj;ec_tea’ life of the machine
is 10 years. It is expected that the machine will be sold for T 20,000 after its useful life.
Prepare machinery account and depreciation account for 3 years, Books of Accounts are
closed on December 31, every year. '

Solution.
Machine Account
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars J.F. | Amount | Date Particulars J.E | Amount
k4 4
2003 2003 |
Jan. 1 To Bank Alc 2,20,000( Dec. 31 | By Depreciation Afc 20,000
‘ Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 2,00,000
2,20,000 2,20,000

-

Depreciation

NOTES

Self-Instructional Material 167
. 1



Fin_aricial Accounting

NOTES

168 Seif-Instructional Materigl

2004 ' _ 2004

Jan. 1 To Balance b/d| 2,00,000( Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c 20,000
. ‘Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 1,80,000
2,00,000 _ 2,00,000
2005 | . 2005 _
Jar_). 1 To Balance b/d 1,80,000 .Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c | _ | 20,000
' Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 1,60,000
_ 1,80,000 . [isoe00
2006 . ' : 2006
Jan. 1' | To Balance b/d 1,60,000

Depreciation Account

Dr. - ’ . ] Cr

Date- Particulars J.F | Amount| Date Particulars | LE| Amount
3 ] : 3

2003 : 2003 i

'D.ec. 31 | To Machine A/c 20,000 | Dec. 31 |By P/L A/lc . 20,000

-2004 | ‘ 2004 .

‘Dec. 31 | To Machine A/d [ 20,000 | Dec. 31 | By P/L Afe 20,000

2005 ' . 2003 -

Dec. 31 | To Machine A/d | 20,000 | Dec. 31 | By P/L Are 20,000

Working Note :

Calculation of Depreciation :

_ Cost of maching — Scrap value _ 2,20,000 - 20,000
Expected life of machinery 16

= T 20,000

Hlustration 3, (Straight Line Method; Additions to assets). On ht January, 2001 a
Company bought Plant and 'Machinery costing T 35,000. It is estimated that its working life
is 10 years, at the.end of whick it will fetch X 5,000. Additions are made on lst January,
2002 to the value of T 20,000 (Residual value T 2,000), - More additions are made on
July 1, 2003 to the value of T 10,000. (Breakup value ¥ I, 000), The working life of both the
additional Plants and Machmery is 20 years.

Show the Plant and Machmery account for the first four years, if depreciatior.; is
written off according to Straight Line Method. The accounts are closed on 31st December
every year.



Solution. :
Plant and Machinery Account
Dr. ’ Cr.
Date | Particulars J.E | Amount | Date Particulars J.E | Amount
‘. | ) | )
2001 2001 '
Jan, 1 To Bank A/c 35,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c 3,000
Dec. 31 | By Balance ¢/d 32,000
35,000 35.000
2001 2002 ] N
Jan, 1 To Balance b/d 32,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c
Jan, 1 To Bank A/c 20,000 (i) ~ ¥ 3,000
’ i) ¥ 900
_ 3,900
Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d
@M. 29,000
(i) T 19,100
- ' 43.100
52,000 52,000
2003 2003 :
Jan, 1 | To Balance b/d | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation Alc
(i) 29,000 () . .¥3,000
(in T 19,100 (ii) T 900
48,100 (iii) T 225
July, 1 | To Bank A/c 10,000 (for 6 mionths) 4,125
Dec. 31 | By Balance ¢/d
(" T 26,000
(i) ¥ 18,200
(iif) ¥-9,775 53,978
58,100 58,100
2004 2004 . '
Jan, 1 | To Balance b/d Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c{ -
() T26,000 6] T 3,000
(i) T 18,200 (i) T 900
(i) ¥ 9,775 53,975 (i) T 450 4,350
: July, 1 |By Balance c/d
) T 23,000
(if) % 17,300
(iii) T 9,325 49,625
53,975 53,975
2005 : _ -
“Jan, 1 To Balance b/d
T 23,000 @ % 3,000
(i)~ 17,300 (i) - T900
(i) %9,325 49,625

Depreciation

NOTES

Self-Instructional Material 169 -




Financial Accounting

NOTES

170 Self-lnstructi.tmal Muterial

(1)
)

@)

Notes 1. Calculation of Depreciation = Cost of plant and Machinery — Residual value

Working life

_ 35,000 — ¥5,000 30,000
10 years 10°

= T 3,000 per year.

_.X20,000 - 32,000 18,000

= ¥ 900 per year.

20 years | 20
_ E4 10,000 - 1,000 - 9,000 =% 450 per year.
20 years 20 :

2. The amount of depreciation on all the three machines will be ascertained separately)
as above. -

Hllustration 4. (Straight Line Method: Sale of assets). On Ist July 2003 Raj &. Co.,
purchased machinery worth T 40,000. On 1st July, 2005 it buys additional machinery worth
R 10,000, On 30th Juné, 2006 half of the machinery purchased on Ist July, 2003 is sold for
T 9,500, The company writes off. 10% on the original cost. The accounts are closed every
year on 31st December

Show the machinery account for four years. Accounts are closed on December 31, every

year.
Solution. - .
Machinery Account’
Dr ' Cr.
Date Particulars JE |Amount| Date Particulars JE | Amount
Ed - . ’ L4
2003 . . 2003
- Jan, 1 | To Bank A/c 40,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation
: (On 40,000 for . | 2,000
six months)
Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 38,000
40000 = | . |-40.000
2004. | ‘ 2004 ‘
Jan, 1 To Balance c/d 38,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation
(On_ 40,000 for - 4,000
, .
one yedr) )
Dec. 31 | By Balance ¢/d 34,000
- 38,000 . ~ [38.000
2005 ) 2005 : ; .
Jan, 1 To Balance c/d 40,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation
July 1 To Bank Alc, 10,000 (On 40,000 for one
. ’ year and on 10,000 |.
.| for six months) 4,500
Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 39,500
) J 44,0006 - 44.000




2006 2006 [ .
Jan. 1 | To Balance b/d 39,500 | June 30 | By Bank A/c 9.500
: By Depreciation
(On 20,000 for
six months) 1,000
By profit and Loss 4,500
Dec. 31 | By Depreciation '
(On 20,000 for
one year + on
10,000 for one year) 3,000
' Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 21,500
39,500 39.500
2007
Jan. 1 | To Balance b/d 21,500
Notes. () Calculation of loss on sale of Machinery :

2006

June 30,

Loss on sale of machinery

Bank A/c
Profit and Loss Afc

Depreciation Afc

Te Machinery A/c

1,000
2,000
2,000
1,000

_ Bock-value of half machinei’y {on July 1, 2003) = 40,000 x %
Less: Depreciation on half machinery @ 10% on straight line method :
2003 (July 1—Dec. 31) '

2004 (for full year)

2005 (for full year)
2006 (Jan. l—jJune 30)
Book value as on June 30, 2006 -

Less : Amount received from sale

(i) Journal entry for sale of machinery:

Dr.
Dr.
Dr.

Bock value of full machine (on Jﬁly 1, 2003) = 40,000

9,500
4,500
1,000

15,000

= 20,000

Calculation of Depreciation on Additions to Asset

-

Business is a continuing activity, so we may purchase additional assets or we may add
to the existing assets. Addition to the fixed assets, such as land and building, plant and

machinery, vehicles and furniture etc., are capital expenditure. It will increase the value rf |

assets, so depreciation will also be charged on these additions. Depreciation on addmons
will be charged since the date of additions at the specified rate.

For example, if addition to machinery worth ¥ 20,000 on Tuly 1,2005, will be depreciated
at the rate of 10% (specified) for six months together with the depreciation on the book
value of old machinery, depreciation on the additions during the first year will be the same
* under straight line or written down value method. ’

I
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Treatment of Sale of Asset

The firm may sell 'asset_,‘if it is obsolete. It may also be sold when it is not in perfect
order. The disposal of asset will take place, when purchase of fresh, up-to-date asset is made

-and the old asset becomes unwanted. In any case, the sale of asset has to be accounted for.

‘The treatment of asset in case of sale will be made as under:

Treatment of Sale of Asset
© () If asset is sold at the book.value
. Bank A.{c - Dr.»
"To Asset Afc . -

(i) If the asset is sold at lesser than book value (loss) -

Bank A/c . . Dr.
Profit and Loss A/c Dr . | ' N
To Asset Afc ‘ |
(iif) If the asset is sold for more than the book value
Bank A/c : ~Dr.
To Asset Afc . -

To Profit and Loss A/c

2. 'D_iininishing or Written Down Balance Method

. This method has been developed to remove the-short com—ings- of straight line 'method..
Equal amount of depreciation is charged every year under straight line methed. The method
is criticised for showing disfavour to final years of the life of the assets. During final years
repairs and maintenance charges are more but the depreciation is the same. It shows that
the final years are over burdened with charges. Diminishing balance method was developed
to_reniedy the weakness of straight line method.

.Under the diminishing balance ethod, the value of asset upon which depreciation is to
be calculated goes on diminishing, so the amount of depreciation to be charged every year
also goes on declining. For example, if a machine has been acquired for ¥ 1,00,000 and
depreciation is charged @ 10% according to writien down value method the depreciation 10

be charged will be made as under:
. E * N 10 -
1st year on ¥ 1,00,000 @ 10% = 100 % 1,00,000 =¥ 10,000

. - 10
2nd year on ¥ 90,000, i.e, ¥ 1,00,000 — 10,000 = 90,000 x 100 =¥ 9,000

_ - o 10
3rd year on T 81,000,"i.e. ¥ 90,000 - 9,000 = 81,000 x - < 8,100

o . 10 .
4th year on ¥ 72,900, i.e, ¥ 81,000 — 8,100 ='72,900 x . = T 7,290.

anda so on.



It w111 be observed from the above calculatlon that the balance of machine upon which

depreciation is being calculated goes on diminishing or reducing or it is being written down.

It should also be noted that thc amount of depreciation goes on declining year after year.
In the first year it was ¥ 10.000, in the second year, it came down to ¥ 9,000. It reduced
further to ¥ 8,100 in the third year. la the 4th year, it remained only ¥ 7.290. In this way,
depreciation will go on declining year after year.

Advantages of Diminishing Balance/Written Down Value Method

Dimmmhmg balance method bas got the following advantagcs :

1.

Easy calculation. Caleulation of depreciation is easier as compared to othel methods
of calculating depreciation except straight line method. Depreciation is calculated

"every year on the opening balance of asset. Depreciation on additions is separately

calculated.

Balanced effect on the profit and loss account of different years. In the initial years
depreciation is more and" the maintenance charges are lesser. In the final years,
depreciation is lesser but repairs and maintenance charges are more, SO €Very year
bears the charges almost the same as regards depreciation and maintenance,

Approved metiiod by income tax authorities. The method is approved by income
tax authorities. '

Logical methoﬂ It seems logical even 1o layman that the value of asset goes on
dummshmg year after year, so the depremahon should also be charged on the
reducing balances.

Suitable for assets having long-life. This method is suitable for those assets which

have long-life, It is also suitable for those assets, where additions and extensions

are common feature, such as land, building and plant and machinery.

Disadvantages or limitation of the Diminishing Balance Method

Diminishing balance method of providing depreciation suffers from following weaknesses:

1.

2.

The value of asset cannot be reduced to zero. It is very difficult to determine
the rate by which the value of asset could be written down to zero,

No funds for replacement Though depreciation is charged every year but the amount
charged is retained in the business and used in routine business operations. At
the time of replacing assets, ﬁﬁ'n has to bother for making arrangement of funds,
although it has charged depreciation every year. '

Loss of interest. The amount charged as depreciation is not invested outside the

business. so no interest is received. In certain methods, the amount is invested

outside the business in securities and interest is received.

Higher rate ‘of depreciation. The rate of depreciation in this method is higher,
because it will require longer period to write off the asset, if the rate is lower and
the assets may become useless earlier.

Inequal burden on profit and loss account. The amount of depreciation goes on
declining year after year, whereas the asset is used equally by every year.

Uses of Diminishing Balance Method

Diminishing balance is the method for assets having long-lifé. It is also suitable for

those assets which are subject to additions and extensions from time to time, such as land

and building. plant and machinery etc.

’
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Difference between Straight Line and Diminishing Balance Method

Difference between straight line and diminishing balaice method can be made as under: .

Points of Difference

Straight Line Method

Diminishing Balnce Method

1. Amount of

Depreciation

2. Calculation of

Depreciation

Equal amount of depreciation is
charged cvery year.

.| Depreciation is calculated on the

originyl cost of the assets,

The value of assets can be written
down to zero,

3. Zero level

4. Effect on The initial years of the life of the
" profit and loss | asset bear lesser amount as depre-
account ciation and repairs but final years

bear the same amount of deprecia-
tion but moe repairs and mainte-
nance charges.

This method is useful for assets
of lesser value such as patents,
furniture and fixtures etc.

5. Suitability

’Evew year bears almost the same

6, Recognition by

Income tax law

Straight line method is not recog-
nised by Income tax law.

The amount of depreciation goes
on reducing year after year.

Depreciition is calculated on the
reducing balcane of the assets.

The value of assets cannot written
dovyn to zero.

charges. Depreciation goes on
declining, whereas repairs and
maintenance charges go on
increasing.

The method is suitable for assets
having longer fife and more
value such as land and building,
plant and machinery etc.

Written down value method s
recognised by Income tax law,

i

Ilinstration 5. (Diminishing Balance Method): Sale of assets), Kaushal Traders -
purchased a second hand machinery on Ist January, 2002 for ¥ 23,000 and spent ¥ 2,000
on its repairs, It was decided to depreciate the machinery at 20% every year, according. to
diminishing balance melhod Prepare the machinery account from 2002 1o 2004 and show
profit or loss as it was sold on 31st December, 2004 fo; T 10,800, The accounts are closed
on December 31 every year, :

Diminishing Balance Method

Solution.
. - Machinery Account
Dr Cr
Date Particulars JE | Amount | Date Particulars JE | Amount
T 4

2002 ‘ 2002 '
Jan. 1 To Bank Afc 23,000 | Dec. 3] By Depreciation Afc | 3,000

To .Bank A/c 2,000 |'Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 20,000

(Repairs)

' 25000 ) 25.000




2003
Jan. 1 | To Balance b/d

2004
Jan. 1 | To Balance b/d

[0 ]
20,000 | Dec, 31
20,000

2004
16,000 | Dec. 31

Dec, 31

Dec. 31
16,000

By Depreciation A/c
By Balance ¢/d

By Depreciation A/c
By Bank A/c

By Profit & Loss
(Loss on sale)

4.000
16,000

20.000

3,200
10,800
2,000

16,000

Less: Depreciation:

2002 (for full year)

Nete. The amount of de:precia_tion has been calculated @ 20% on diminishing
(reducing) balances of machinery. In 2062, depreciation has been calculated on 25,000.
Amount spent on repaii‘s to second hand machinery is ca;;ital expenditure. It was
necessary to bring the old machinery in working order, It is the part of the cost of
machinery, so it has been added to its cost. The balance of machinery reduced to
20,000 in 2003 and further reduced to T 16,000 in 2004, so depreciation for 2003
has been calculated. on 20,000 and for 2004 on ¥ 16,000.

Loss on sale of machinery has been calculated as under;

Book value of machinery as on January 1, 2002 ¥ 25,000

5,000
2003 (for full year) 4,000
2004 (for full year) 3,200 )
12,200
Book. value. of machinery as on December 31.2001'1 12,800
Less: Amount received from sale of machirery ) 10,800
Loss on sale of machinery WO—

IHustration 6. (Diminishing Balance: Assets sold partly). A company whose accounting

year is the calendar year purchased on Ist April, 2001 machinery costing ¥ 30.000.

It further purchased machinery, on ist October, 2001 costing X 20,000 and on Ist July,

2002 costing T 10,000.

On st January, 2003 one-thi;*d of the machinery which was installed on st April,
2001 became obsolete and was sold for T 3,000.

Show how the machinery account would appear in the books of company. The

depreciation is charged at 10% p.a. on Written Down Value Method.

Depreciation
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Solution, - Written Down Value Metligd _
. Machinery Account
Dy o ' L Cr.
Date | Particulars JF | Amount| Date Particulars 1 JF ) Amount
L . N
2001 - . 2001 .
April 1 [ To Bank A/c 30,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c 2,750
Oct. 1 | To Bank A/c .| 20,000 | Dec. 31 | By Balance ¢/d 47,250
: o 50,000 " [ 50.000
2002 . =] 2002 : : . .
Jan.1 | ToBankbd | 47,250 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c 5,225
July 1 To Bank Afc 10,000 - | By Balance c/d - 52,025
_ 57,250 | J 57,250 .
2003 ) 1 2003 , . B "
Jan. 1 To Balance b/d 52,025 | Jan. 1 By Bank A/c . 3,000
. ' "~ | Jan. 1 | By P&L A/c (Loss) 5,325
Dec."31 By Depreciation A/c | - 4,370
Dec. 31 | By Balance c¢/d 39,330
52,025 T 52.025
2004 )
Jan. 1 To Balance b/d 39,330

Working Notes: '
(i) Calculation of depreciation for year 2003: 4

Total Written Down Value as on January 1, 2003 . 52,025
Less: Written Down Value of 1/3td of '

plant sold (10,000 - — 750 — 925) o - 8,325
Written do;»rn value of remaining machine - o 43,700 -
Depreciation at 10% on Written Down‘Value (43-7QDX%J : 4;370~

(i) Calculation of loss on safe of machinefy :

Book value of '1/3rd machinery purchased on Ap}il 1, 2001 as bn‘Japuary 1, 2003

(10,000~ 750 - 925) = - . 8,325
Less Amount received from safe . o (-) 3,000

Loss on sale of machmery } : 5,325

Hlustration 7. (Diminishing Balance: Sale of assets). A manufaciuring concern,
whaose books are closed on 3rd December, purchased machinery for T 50, 000 on
1-1-2000. Additional machinery was acquied for ¥ 10,000 on 1-7-2001 and for T 16, 061 on
1-1- 2()04 Certain machinéry ‘purchased for I 10 000 on 1-1- -2000 was sold for T 3,000 on
30-6-2003.

" Give the machinery account Jor 5 years. Dep: ‘eciation is written off at 10% per annum

-on written down value method.



Written Down Value Method

Solution.
Machinery Account )
Dr. Cr
Date Particulars {J.F. | Amount| Date Particulars JE| Amount
N o » ? ?
2000 . 2000
Jan. 1 | To Bank Alc 50,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c 5,000
] Dec. 31 | By Balance c¢/d 45,000
50,000 - 50,000
2001 _ 2001 .
Jan. 1 To Ba‘lance'b/d 45,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation A/c 5,000
July 1 To Bank Nc 10,000 | Dec. 31 | By Balance c/d 50,000
55,000- 55,000
2002 2002, -
Jan. 1 To Balance b/d 50,000 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation Afc 5,000
; Dec. 31 | By Balance b/d 45,000
. 50,000 50.000
2003 2003 .
Jan. I To Bank b/d 45,000 | June 30 | By Bank A/c 5,000
) June 30 | By Profit & Loss Alc 1,925
Dec. 31 | By Depreciation Afc 4,136 -
Dec. 31 | By Balance b/d 33,939
1 45.000 45,000
2004 2004 .
Jan. | To Balance b/d 33,939 | Dec. 31 | By Depreciation Alc 5,000
Jan. 1 To Bank A/c 16,061 Dec..31 By Balance c/d 45,000
50,000 ' 50.000
2005 -
Jan, 1 . To Balance b/d 45,000

Working Notes:

(i) Calculation of loss on sale of machinery :

Book value of machinery as on January 1, 2000

Less: Depreciation according to diminishing balacne method:

" 2000 (for fyll year)
2001 (for full year)
2002 (for full year)

2003 (for six months)

Book value of Machine sold as on _June 30, 2003

Less: Amount received from sale

Loss on sale of machine

¥
10,000
1,000
900
810
365 :
3,075
6,925
(=) 5,000

1,925

Depreciation
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(#ii) Calculation of depreciation for the year 2003 :

Book value of all machineries as on January 1, 2003 45,000
Less: Book value of machinery to be sold as on January 1, 2003  (-) 7,290
' 37,710

Depreciation on 37,710 @ 10% for full year 3,771
Add: Depreciation on 7,290 @ 10% for six months 365
Total depreciation for 2003 4,136

Replacentent Cost Method

Under this method an asset is depreciated over a period of time and a fund is maintained
for the replacement of that asset by the amount of decreasing its value. For example, if there
is an asset purchased on 1st Jan. 2008 for ¥ 10,00,000 and straight line method is applied

-at 10% then at the end of the year 2008 the depreciation’ will be ¥ 1,00,000. The company

will maintain a fund for the replacement of the asset with ¥ 1,00,000 as balance at the end
of the year 2008. This means that the amount depreciated is set aside in the form of a fund
for future replacement of the asset.

REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions:

L. Mention any three important features of depreciation,

2. Mention names of three factors affecting the amount of depreciation.

3. Mention the formula for calculating depreciation under strajght line method.

4.  What is depreciation ?

5. A pharmaceutical manufacturer has Just developed and registered a patent for a rare

medicine. Which term will appear in its profit and loss account rggarding the cost
* of patent written off.

B. Short Answer Type Questions:
1. Explain the following terms:
(a) Obsolescence h ' {(b) Depletion
(¢) Fluctuation .- (d) Amortisation.
2. What are the different causes of depreciation ? Explain them briefly.

3. You are looking at the profit and loss account of three business enterprises. You find
the term depreciation in first, depletion in case of second and amortisation in case
of third enterprise. State the type of business each of the enterprise is into.

4. There are two dentists Dr..Aggarwal and Dr. Mehta in your locality who are
competitors. Both of them have recently bought machire for patients. Dr. Aggarwai
has decided to write off an equal amount of depreciation every vear while Dr. Mehta
wants to write off a larger amount in earlier years. They.do not know anything
about the methods of depreciation. Can you inform them more about the methods
of depreciation they are applying even without knowing anything about accounting
in formal. Who is more wise in your opinion ? Give reasons in support of your

- answer.



C. Long Answer Type Questions: | Del;reciatioh

1. Explain the meaning of depreciation. Enumerate different methods of depreciation,
Explain straight line method.

2. Why is it necessary to provide for depreciation ? Explain the effect of depreciation. )
on Profit and loss account and Balance Sheet. - - NOTES

3. Differentiate between straight line method and written down value method of providing
" depreciation. )

4. Discuss the advantages and dis;adVantages of fixed instalment method and diminishing
balance method.

5. Explain the following:
(a) Obsolescence, (b) Amortisation, (¢) Depletion, (¢) Fluctuation.
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cHAPTER 11. ISSUE OF SHARES

% STRUCTURE

%r Shares

ve Share Capital

<t Public Subscription

¢ Accounting of Equity Share Capital

vt Accounting of Preference Share -Capital
¥r Preparation of Cash Book

™ Over-subscripfion of Shares

% Under Subscription of Shares

% lIssue of Shares at Par

¥ Issue of Shares at Premium

¥ Calls in Advance

% Calls in Arrear .
v Issue of Shares for Consideration Other than Cash

MEANING OF COMPANY

According to Chief Justice Marshal, “4 company is a person, artificial, invisible, intangible
and existing only in the eyes of law. Being a mere creation of law, it possesses only those properties
which the charter of its creation confers upon if, either expressly or as incidental to its very
existence.” )

SHARES

Meaning . ' -

The capital of a company is divided into units, called shares. In other words, shares are the
denomination of share capital. In the words of Farwel, “4 share is the interest of a shareholder
in the company measured by a sum of money.” According to the Indian Companies Act, 2013 a
company can issue only two types of shares, namely :

1. Equity shares 2. Preference shares

Types of Shares

1. Equity or ordinary shares

- A share which is not a preference share is an equity share. It means that if the shareholder
is not entitled to a fixed dividend in preference to others or-if there is not prior right for the
capital to be repaid, the share capital will be treated as eqliity share capital. In other words,
equity shares participate in profits of a company, after all preferential rights have been satisfied.
Equity sharehelders are the virtual owners of the company. They get dividend after payment of all
expenses and dividend to preference shareholders.



2. Preference shares .

(According to section 43 of the companies act 2013. Person holding prefrance share is called
prefrance share holder). Preterence shares are those shares which are entitled to a priority in the
payment of dividends at a fixed rate and sometimes also in the return of capital in the event of the
winding up of the company. Preference shares can be divided into following classes if the Articles
of Association of the Company permit:

Classes/Types of Preference Shares

On the basis of ’ On the basis of
dividend rights convertibility
‘ v
Cumulative Non-cumulative ‘Convertible Non-convertible
-y i .
I Y +
On the basis of Guaranteed

On the basis of
recovery of capital

o
— —

Redeemable Irredeemable Participating Non-participating

participation preference shares

(i) Cumulative prej‘erenée shares. The holders of this class of shares are entitled to all arrears
before dividend is paid on equity shares. Suppose, a company has issued 1,500 i)reference shares
of % 10 each carrying dividend at the rate of 10% and suppose dividend was not paid for 2017 and
2018. In 2019 company earns is good amount of profit: In that case dividend for the two years 2017
and 2018 will be payable. :

(i?) Non-cumulative preference shares. 1n this case, arrears are not payable. In the ‘above
example in 2019 only the dividend for 2019 will be paid and not for 2017 or 2018.

(iii) Redeemable preference shares. If preference shares are redeemable out of the profits by the
creation of a “capital redemption reserve fund” or by new issue of shares or out of the sale proceeds
of the property of the company, they are called redeemable preference shares.

(iv) Irredeemable preferénce shares. Preference shares, which do not carry any provision for
redemption of shares are known as irredeemable preference shares.

(v) Convertible preference shares. The holders of these shares have the option to convert their
preference shares into equity shares as per terms and conditions of their issue.

(vi) Non-convertible preference shares. The holders of these shares do not have any right of
converting their shares into equity shares, as such it is known as non-convertible preference shares:
.These are non-convertible unless otherwise stated. )

(vii) Participating preference shares. When preference shares participate like equity shares in
profits of a company in addition to their fixed dividend, they are known as participating preference
shares.

_ (viif) Non-participating preference shares. These shares are not entitled to participate in surplus
Profit, Dividend at fixed rate is given to them. -

—

Issue of Shares
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(ix) Guaranteed preference shares. Guaranteed preference shares are the shares at which a
fixed dividend is guaranteed by the vendors or some other party, if the profits in a particular year are
msufficient to pay the dividend, the guarantors will pay the amount. The company itself cannot give

arantee. The guarantee can be given by the vendor or promotor,
NOTES ‘gu & - g y P

SHARE CAPITAL

What is Share Capital?
“Funds generated through issue of shares is known as share capital.”

The capital of the company is divided into shares, This is why, it is known as share capital.
Company is large sized business structure, so it requires very large amount of capital. As it cannot
be supplied by sole proprietor or limited number of persons, so the entire share capital is divided into
shares, ) ' ’

NaturefFeatug'es of Share C_apital
Following are the special features of share capital:

(/) Widely held capital: Unlike sole proprietorship and partnership, share capital is generally
N widely distributed. In case of private companies, there are maximum 200 subscribers. On the other
hand, there can be unlimited subscribers for public company. Each subscriber is termed as the
meinber of the company, )

(1) Legally regulated capital: As a large number of investors are involved with share capital,
It is regulated by specific regulations like SEBI regulation, Companies Act 2013, Cooperative
Societies Act etc. Legal complications are relatively less in sole proprietorship and partnership.

(iii) Associated with heavy investment projects: Share Capital oriented concerns are generally
-heavy investment projects. Hence, it has a heavy risk Capital.

PUBLIC SUBSCRIPTION

The company intending to issue shares makes an offer or invitation to the génera[ public to
subscribe for its shares through a Prospectus. The Prospectus specifies the number of shares offered
to the Public, the face value of shares and the amount to be paid on application, allotment and calls,
The intending subscribers to the shares are required to send their application forms together with the
application money by the specified date,

Subscription of shares is generally made in instalments termed as application, allotment
and calls. When an investor applies for ‘shares, he deposits application money. The company
allots these shares and receives allotment money and the rest of the amount is received in calls,
For example, for a ¥ 10 share, Company may have application of ¥ 3, Allotment ¥ 4 and First and
Final Call of ¥ 3, .

ACCOUNTING OF EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Legal provision pertaining to Allotment of shares:

Sec. 39 of Companies Act 2013 deals with Allotment of Securities by Company. The main
features of the provision are as below:
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. Restriction on allotment: The condition is that no allotment of any securities of a company
offered to the public for subscription shall be made unless the amount stated in the prospectus as
the minimum amount has been subscribed and the sums payable on application for the amount
so stated have been paid to and received by the company by cheque or other instrument.

. Restriction on amount payable on application: The amount payable on application on every
security shall not be less than five per cent of the nominal amount of the security or such other
percentage or amount, as may be specified by the securities and exchange board by making
regulations in this behalf.

. Consequences of non-compliance of points 1 and 2 stated above: If the stated minimum

amount has not been subscribed and the sum payable on application is not received within a
period of thirty days from the date of issue of the prospectus, or such other period as may be
specified by the securities and exchange board, the amount received under sub-section (1) shall

be returned within such time and manner as may be prescnbed

Steps for Accounting Treatment for the Issue of Shares

Step 1: Application money received.

Step 2: Share application money to be transferred to share capital.
Step 3: Share application money returned on unalloted shares,
Step 4: Share allotment money to be made due.

Step 5: Share allotment money received.

Step 6: Share call money to be made due.

Step 7: Share call money to be received.

Stép 1: Application money received by the company is deposited into a Scheduled Bank and
retained until certificate to commence business is obtained by the new company and
minimum subseription is received by the existing company. This proyision does not
apply to private companies.

On receipt of the application money the following
journal entry will be made:’
‘Bank Afc Dr.,
To Share Application A/c
(No. of shares applied x Rate of application)

Step 2: Share application money is simply a part of the Share Capital of the compary, so it
is transferred to Share Capital Account. For transferring share application money to
Share Capital the following journal entry is passed:

Share Application Afc Dr
To Share Capital A/c

Step 3: Sometimes, the application money received by the company is rejected or returned to
some applicant when Board of Directors do not allot any shares to them. On the return
of application money the following journal entry will be made:

Share Application Afc Dr.
To Bank Afc
(No. of share which is Rejected x Rate of application)

Issue of Shares
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Step 4: Share Allotment is made due on actual number of shares issued in case of full
subscription or over-subscription. For example, the company issues 10,000 shares and
application is reccived for 12,000 shares or 10,000 shares. In both the cases allotment
will be made due on 10,000 shares. If applications were received for 8,000 shares, share
allotment will be made due on 8,000 shares. The journal entry for making allotment
due will be made as under:

NOTES

Share Allotment A/c - Dr
To Share Capital ;ﬂ;/c . -
. Step 5: On Receiving Share Allotment:
Bank A/c Dr. ~
To Share Allotment A/c

(With the actual amount received on allotment)

Combined Share Application and Allotment Account. In certain cases, the company maintains
combined account for share application and allotment. In such case separate journal entries for share
application and share allotment are not made. A combined account known as “Share Application and
Allotment A/c” is opened. The following journal entries are passed:

For receiving share application and allotment money
Bank A/c Dr.
Ta Share Application and allotment A/c

For transfer to share capital ‘ )

Share Application and Allotment A/c  Dr.
To Share Capital A/c

Step 6: After receiving allotment, the company makes the call due. The company can cal the
money on first call, second call, and third call. No call shall exceed one-fourth of the
Nominal value of share. At least 14 days’ notice. must be given to sharcholders for
payment of the call. Journal entry for making the call due will be made as under

Share Call Afc Dr.
To Share Capital Afc

Step 7: Share call is made due on actual number of shares allotted irrespective of share call
money received or not received.

Bank Alc ‘ Dr.
To Share Call A/c

This journal entry is made with the actual amount of call received.

Points to be Considered While Issuing Shares to the Public
The following points should be kept in mind while issuing the share capital for public subscription:
1. The application money should be at least 5% of the face value of tl;e share.
2. Calls are to be made as per the provisions of the articles of association.

3. Where there is no ‘articles of association of its own, the following provisions of Table F of
Companies Act 2013 will apply:

(a) Aperiod of one month must elapse between two calls;

{0) The amount of call should not exceed 25% of the face value of the share;
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{(¢) Aminimum of 14 days notice is given to the shareholders to pay the amount; and

(¢) Calls must be made on a uniform basis on all shares within the same class.

Tlustration 1 (Full Subsgfiption of Shares). The Guardians Ltd. issued 30,000 shares of
R 10 each, payable T 2 on application, T 3 on allotment, T 3 on First call and the balancé ? 2 on Second
and Final call. The shares were fully subscr:bed and all the amount dug was received.
Pass necessary Journal Entries.

Solution. ) Journal

Date . Particufars LE Debit Ty | Credit ()

Bank Afc : Dr. 60,000 .
To Share Application Alc 60,000

(Being application money on 30,000 shares @3 2 per share
received)

Share Application A/c Dr.| ~ 60,000

To Share Capital A/c ) . 60,000

(Being application money on 30,000 shares @3 2 per share
transferred to Share Capital A/c)

Share Allotment Afc i . Dr. 90,000
To Share Capital A/c - 50,000

(Being allotment mongy gn 30,000 shares @ 3 per share
made due)

Bank A/c Dr. 90,000

To Share Allotment Afc 90,000

(Being allotment money on 30,000 shares @ T 3 per share
received)

Share First Call Al ' ‘ Dr. 90,000

To Share Capital Alc ) ) 90,000

+

(Being first call money on 30,0” shares @ ¥ 3 per share
made due)

Bank A/c : l Dr. 90,000
Tn_:) Share First Call Afc 90,000

+

(Being share first call money on 30,000 shares @ T 3 per
share received)

Share Second and Final Call A/c Dr. 60,000
To Share Capital Afc ) ' 60,000

(Being final cali money on 30,000 shares @ T 2 per share
made due) )

Bank A/c " Dr. 60,000
To Share Second and Final Call A/e 60,000

(Being final call money on 30,000 shares @I 2 per share
received) . p

Issue of Shares
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Combined Call of Share Application and Allotment’

In certain cases application and allotment money can be called together. Such call is known as
combined call. Its treatment in the books of aceounts will be made as under:

Hustration 2 The Deceney Ltd. issued 10,000 shares of T 10 each, payable T 5 on application
and allotment, X 3 on first call and X 2 on final call, All the shares were applied and fully subscribed,
Pass necessary Journal Entries,

Solution. In the Books of Deceney Limited
Journal
Date . Particulars LE" | Debit @) Credit (T)

Bank A/c ) ' Dr. 50,000 '

To Share Application and Allotment A/c 50,000
(Being application and allotment money on 10,000 shares N
@3 5 per share received)
-Share Application and Allotment A/c Dr. 50,000

To Share Capital A/c 50,000

(Being apph'cati;.m and allotment money on 10,000 shares
@3 3 per share transferred to Share Capital A/c)

Share First Call A/c . Dr. 30,000
“To"Share Capital A/c ' 30,000
(Being first call money on 10,000 shares @ T 3 per share

made due)

Bank A/c Dr. 30,000
‘ To Share First Call A/c : 30,000
(Being first call money ont 10,000 shares @ % 3 per ~ ’

share received)

Share Second and Final Call A/e Dr. 20,000
To Share Capital Afe . 20,060
(Being final call money on 10,000 shares @3 2 per

share made due)

Bank A/c . Dr. 20,000

To Share Final Call A/c . . 20,000
(Being final call money en 10,000 shares @ T 2 per ‘
share received)

ACCOUNTING OF PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL

According to Indian Companies Act 2013, a company can issue two classes of shares—
() Equity or ordinary shares and; (ii) Preference shares. In order to take benefit of the psychology
of those investors, who want regular source of income, the Company issues preference shares,
where dividend at fixed rate is received. Priority reparding the payment of dividend at fixed rate and
refund of capital is provided to preference shareholders. This is why, these shareholders are cailed
Prefererice Shareholders.

Accounting Treatment. Preference shares are issued by the same procedure and in the
same manner, in which equity shares are issued. The entire face value of share is called up



in certain instalments, known as preference share application, preference share allotment and
preference share calls. '
This can further be explained with the help of following illustration:

Combined Call of Preference Share Application and Allotment

There may be combined call of preference share application and allotment also. In this case
following accounting treatment will be made:

Tlustration 3 (Combined Call of Preference Shares application and allotment). Efficiency
Limited issued 40,000 preference shares of T 10 each, payable T 6 on application and allotment
and the balance on first and final call. Shares were fully subscribed and all amounts received,
Pass necessary Journal Entries.

Solution. . Journal .
Date ’ Particulars LF | Debit (%) | Credit %)
Banlg Alc Dr. " 2,40,000
To Preference Share Application and Allotment Afe 2,40,000

(Being application and allotment money on 40,000
shares @ % 6 per share received) :

Preference Share Application and Allotment A/c Dr. 2,40,000
‘To Preference Share Capital A/c 2,40,000

(Being transfer of preference share application and
allotment money to preference share capital)

Preference Share First and Final Call A/c Dr. 1,60,000

- To Preference Share Capitat Afc ] ‘ 1,60,000

(Being first and final call on 40,000 shares @ 4 per
share made due)

Bank A/c Dr, 1,60,000

To Preference Share First and Final Call Afc 1,60,000

(Being final call money on 40,000 preference shares @ 4
per share received) .

PREPARATION OF CASH BOOK

Why-Cash Book is Prepared?

Cash book is prepared to record cash transactions of the company. In case of a company, most
of the payments are made through bank and receipts are also banked. The company has got its
account in the scheduled bank and the shareholders are asked to deposit their application, allotment
and calls money direct to the bank. As such cash book bears bank column only.

What is the Significance of Cash Book?

The significance of cash book is to disclose the balance of bank at a glance at any moment.
The preparation of cash book is also useful in the sense that it reduces the burden of Journal entries
as all transactions relating to cash i.e., receiving application, allotment, calls money and refunding
application money are posted direct into the cash book.

Issue of Sf;ares
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Rules Regarding 'Cash-Book.‘

The debit side of cash book as usual records receipts, as bank being a personal account is
debited for receipts. Bank account belongs to assets and assets are debited for increase. In the same
way, when excess money received on application is refunded, it is shown at the credit side of the
cash book, ’ )

Steps for Preparation of Casli Rook
Step 1: Prepare format of cash book.
Step 2: Write the opening balance of cash at the debit side as ‘To Balance b/d’. -

Step 3: Post all receipts of Share application, Share allotment, Calls ete. at the debit side with
respective date. -

Step 4: Any refund of application money on account of over-subscription of shares will be
credited. ' ’ )

Step 5:Find out the closing balance.

Specimen of Cash Book .
Dr. (Bank Colummn only) ) : Cr.
Date Particulars Amaunt Date Particulars Amount
To Balance b/d (if any) — _| By Share Application -
To Share: Application A/c ) * (If excess on app- .
(—shares @ ¥—) — "lication is refunded) . -
To Share'Allohn;:nt Alc By Balance c/d (closing
(—shares @ ¥ —) = balance) —
To Calls paid in Advance _ ' '
Alc (if any) —

To Share first cali
’ (—shares @ ¥T—)’ —
To Share final call Afc . ) -
(~—shares @ T—) -—
To Share Capital Afc ’
(in case of reissue

of forfeited shares)  R—

OVER-SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

N

| Meaning . .

"Over—subscr@ulibn is a-situation when applications received are for more shares than the
nwmber of shares offered to the public for subscription through prospectus by a company.” For
example, if a company offers 30,000 shares of ¥ 10 each for public subscription _ﬁznd the application
is received for more than 50,000 shares i.e, 60,‘000, this will be a case of over-subscription.



Accounting Treatment of Over-Subscription of Shares
Steps to be followed
Step 1: Receive application money on all shares applied.
" Step 2: Make pro-rata allotment.
Step 3: (i) Determine successful candidate from each category by draw;ing lots, if required.
(i R;zfund the application money of unsuccessful applicants from each category.

(#if) Refund the money of successful applicants, if it exceeds the full amount due on
" shares allotted to them.

Step 4: Transfer the excess application money of successful applicant, whom shares have
- been allotted to Share allotment and Calls A/c or Calls Paid in Advance Alc.

Step 5: Pass the requisite journal entries:
(7)) Refund of application money:
Share Application A/c Dr.
.To Bank Afc
(Being application money refunded)

(i} Transfer of application money to allotment/calls
Share Application A/c Dr.
.To Share Allotment A/c
" To Share Calls A/c/Calls Paid in Advance A/c

(Being transfer of application money to share allotment and calls)

. Tustration 4 (Over-subscription of Shares). A company issued 20,000 shares of % 10 each,
payable 4 on application, T 4 on allotment and the balance of final call. Applications were received
for 30,000 shares. The board of directors re]ecred applications for 6,000 shares and allotted 50% to
the applicants of 8,000 shares. The company did not make the final call.

Pass the necessary Journal Entries.

Solation. . Journal
Date Particulars - ) LE | Debit®) | Credit ()
Bank A/c ‘ : Dr, | . [,20,000
To Share Application A/c 1,20,000

(Being application money on 30,000 shares @3 4 per
share received)

Share Application Alc . ‘ . be| | 1,220,000
To Share Capital Afc - ' 80,000
To Share Allotment Afc ' _ 16,000

To Bank A/c : ) 24.000

{Being application money on 20,000 shares @ 4 per
share transferred to Share Capital A/c and excess on
4,000 share transferred to Share Allofment and on
6,000 shares refunded) ' .
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Share Allotment A/c : Dr. 80,000

To Share Capital A/c ' ‘ 1 80,000
) I(Being allotment money on 26,000 shares @ % 4 per
NOTES ' share made due)

Bank Alc o o Dr. 64,000 |
- To Share Allotment A/c . 64,000

{Being allotment money on 20,000 shares @ T 4 per
share after adjusiing T 16,000 received in advance
Jor allotment, received)

No. gf Shares  No. of Shares Share Credited 1o Credited fo Credited
. Note. applied aliotted Application  Share capital  Share Allotment fo Bank
- & ) R) )
6,000 — 24,000 — — 24,600
8,060 4,000 32000 16,000 © 16,000 - —
16,000 16,000 64,000 64,000 - -
30,000 20,000 1,20,000 80,000 16,000 24,000

IMustration 5 (Over- subscr:phon, Calls paid in Advance and Calls in Arrears). The Wye
Ltd. was registered with a capital of ¥ 5,00,000 divided into 20,000 shares as T 25 each, payable as
follows : X 2.50 per share on application, ¥ 7.50 per share on allotment and the balance in two.
calls of X 7.50 per share each. The company offered to the public for subscription 10,000 shares but
applications were received for 10,500 shares. A applied for 400 shares, paid T 1,000 on application,
but was allotted only 200 shares. B applied for 800 shares, paid the full amount, T 20,000 of his share
money on application, was allotted only 500 shares and the surplus money was returned to him. C
applied for 1,000 shares paid his application and allotment money in order, paid ¥ 2,000 on first call
and did not pay for the second call at all. Make Journal Entries to record the above transactions.

Solution. . In the Books of Wye Limited
' Journal
Date Particulars - LEF | Debit(®X) | Credit ®)
Bank Afc . . ) Dr. 44,250
To Share Application A/c 44,250

(Being application moncy on 9,700 shares @3 2.50
and on 800 shares @ T 25 per share received)

Share Application A/c - ' . Dt 44,250
To Share Capital Afe 25,000 ,
To Share Allotiment Alc . I 4250
To Share First Call Ale . 3,750
To Share Final Call A/c ’ 3,750
To Bank A/c i 7’500

(Being application money on 10,000 shares @T 2.50
per share transferred to Share Capital A/c, on 300
shares refunded and on 500 shares sransferred to share

aflotment, first call and final call @ T 7.50 per share) ' .
Sharc Allotment A/c Dr. 75,000 .
| To Share Capital A/c - 75,000

(Being allotment money on I0, 000 shares @ 7.50
per share made duc)
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Bank A/c Dr. 70,750
To Share Allotment A/c 70,750
(Being alltment money on 10.000 shares @3 7.50
per share received after adjusting T 4,250 received in
advance)
Share First Call Afc Dr. 75,000
To Share Capital Afc ’ 75,000
{Being first call money en 10,000 shares @3 7.50 per
share made due)
Bank Alc Dr. 65,750 |
To Share First Call Alc 65,750
(Being first call money on 10,000 shares @ X 7.50 per
share after adjusting call in arrears of X 5,500 and
T 3,750 as calls paid in advance received)
Share Final Call A/c Dr. 75,000
To Share Final Call A/c 75,000
(Being first call money on 10,000 shares @ X7.50 per
share made due) .
Bank A/c . Dr. 63,750
To Share Final Call A/c 63,750
(Being first call money on 9,000 shares @ X7.50 per
share after adjusting calls in arrears and ¥3,750 as
calls paid in advance received)
Working Notes
0] "Caleulation of application money received: T
On 10,500-800 = 9,700 shares @ ¥ 2.50
per share = 9,700 x 2.50 * =24.250
+on 800 shares @ T 25 =800 x 25 = 20,000
. © 44,250
(i) Adjustment of aver-subscription: -
Total money paid on application 800 x 25 = 20,000
Less; money refunded on unallotted shares
(ie., 300 x 25) (-) 7,500
: 12,500
Less: amount utilised for application (-) 1,250
i.e. 500 x 2.50
11,250
Less: amount retained for allotmerit on (-) 3,750
allotted shares ie., 500 x 7.50
Surplus amount after allotment 7.500
Less: amount retained for first call on allotted (=)3.750
shares, i.e., 500 x 7.50
Surplus amount after first call 3,750
Less: amount retained for final call on (-) 3,750
allotted shares, i.e., 500 x 7.50
N Nil
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(iii) Total money transferred to Allotment:

On 200 shares applied by 4 @ T 2.50 = - 500
On 500 shares applied by B @ T 7.50 = 3,750
4,250

fiv) Amount received on First Call:

"Total amount due on 10,000 shares @ ¥ 7.50 = 75,000
Less: amount received in wdvance = ' (3.750)
Less: calls in arrears from ¢ (7,500 - 2,000) = ) (5,500)

) 65,750
Amount reeeived on Final C :ill (75,000 - 3,750 — 7,500) = 63,750

UNDER SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

Under subscription of shares indicates lesser shares subscribed by the public than
what was offered to them. For example, if 10,000 shares of ¥ 10 each are offeréd for public
subscription and actually share applications are received for 9,500 shares, the issue is said to be
under subseribed to the extent of 500 shares.

ISSUE OF SHARES AT PAR

Issue of shares at the face value is known as issue of shares at par. For exampfe, if a share of
T 10 is issued-for ¥ 10 or a share of T 100 for Z 100 that means the shares have been issued at par. The
face value of shares may be called in full or in certain instalments as per the decision and requirement

_of the company. :

ISSUE OF SHARES AT PREMIUM

- A company can issue its shares at more than its face value. Excess of issue price of share over-
its face value is termed as securities premium. If a share of 10 is issued at T 12 per share, the
excess of T 2 i.e., 12 - 10 will be termed as securities premium, '

Note. According to section 53 of the C ompanies Act 2013, A company cannot issue share at o
discount, '

Securities Fremium is a gain to the company, because the Compan.y is receiving more than
the par value (face value) of share. While passing journal entry Securities Premium A/c is credited.
Securities Premium Account should be treated on share allotment, unless otherwise mentioned. X
Securities Premium Account may be credited at the time of making allotment due or receiving
allotment. Both the treatments are correct. :

» Accounting Treatment 1 (Due Method or Due Basis) _
(/) Share Allotment Afc . Dr.
To Share Capitél
To Securities Premium
{ii) Bank A/c _ Dr.
To Share Allotment . '

-__-..___-..___-..__-..___-__-..__..__-..___-__-..___..___...______..'_____.._--..__ _________




¥ Accounting Treatment 2 (Receipt Method/Receipt Basis)

() Share Allotment Afc Dr. [Excluding Premium]
To Share Capital
(i) Bank-Alc ' : Dr.

To Share Allotment

To Securities Premium

Ilustration 6 (Issue of Shares at Premium, Partially called up), A cbmpany issued 20,000

shares of T 10 each at T 12 per share. The amount was payable at T 3 on application, T-5 (including
premium of X 2} on allotment and the balance on First and Final call. The company did not make the
final call. All the shares were subscribed and amount duly received. Pass necessary Journal Entries
regarding allotment under Due Method and Receipt Method.

Solution. Journal (Traditional Method)

Date

_ Particulars LE | Debit (¥) | Credit (X)

Under Due Method (Also knewn as Due basis)

Share Allotment A/c ' Dr. 1,00,000
To Share Capital A/c : 60,000
To Securities Premium A/c 40,000

(Being allotment money on 20,000 shares @35
including a premium of X 2 per share made due)

Bank A/c Dr. 1,00,000
To Share Allotment A/c 1,00,000
(Being share allotment money on 20,000 shares @3 5

including X 2 per share as premium received)

Journal (Alternative (Recent) Method)

Date

Farticulars . LF | Debit X) | Credit %)

Under Receipt Method (Also known as Receipt basis)
Share Allotment A/c ' Dr. | 60,000
To Share Capital Afc : 60,000
(Being allotment money on 20,000 shares @3 3
per share made due)
Bank A/c Dr, 1,00,000
To Share Allotment A/c 60,000
To Securities Premium A/c 40,000

{Being a”otmen.r-manq’ on 20,000 shares @3 3
per share and premium money @ 2 per share received)

Notes. (/) In view of the restrictions placed on the utilisations of securities premium money under
Section 52(2), of Indian Companies Act, 2013 alternative method should be preferred.

(7i) Traditional method being commonly used by most.of the authors as yel, the same
method has also been followed in this book.

(iii) The balance of Securities Premium A/c is shown af the Reserves and Surplus part of
schedule I Balance Sheet.
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Iiustration 7 (Issue of Shares at Premium). Good Luck Limited issued 25,000 shares of ¥ 10
each, at a premium of T 2 per share and asked the shareholders to pay the entire amount with the
application. 15,000 shares were applied and fully paid. Pass the necessary Journal Entry.

NOTES Solution. . ) Journal
Date Particulars LFE | Debit(®) | Credit (T
Bank Afc . Dr. 1,80,000
To Share Capital A/c ’ 1,50,000
To Securities Premium Afc . 30,000

(Being amount of Share Capital on 15,000 shares @
T 10 per share and amount of securities premium @
T 2 per share received)

Mustration 8 (Over-subscription and Securities Premium). X-company issued T 10,00,000
new capital, divided irito 100 shares at a premium of T 20 per share payable, thus: '
T 10 per share on application;
¥ 40 per share and X 10 premium on allotment; and
X 50 per share and X 10 premium on final payment.

Over-payments on application were to be applied towards sums due on allotment and over-
payments on application exceeding sums due on allotment were to be returned. Where no allotment
was made, money was to be returned in full. The issue was over subscribed to the extent of 13,000
shares, Applicants for 12,000 shares were allotted only 1,000 shares and applicants for 2,000 shares
were sent letters of regret and application deposit were returned to them. All the money due on
allotment and final call was duly received.

Make the necessary Journal Entries in the Company’s books to record the above transactions.

Solution, In the Books of X Company
Journal
Date Particulars LE | Debit ) | Credit (T)
Bank A/c ) Dr. 2,30,000
To Share Application Afc ’ , 2.30,000
(Being application money on 23,000 shares @ ¥ 10 per
share received)
Share Application A/c Dr. - | 2,30,000
To Share Capital A/c . 1,00,000
To Share Allotment Alc ) 50,000
- ToBankA/c . ' : | 80,000

(Being-application money on 10,000 shares transferred
to share capital and the balance transferred to Share
Allotmem A/c and refunded)

Share Allotment A/c Dr. 5,00,000
To Share Capital A/c 4,00,000
To Seccurities Premium A/c 1,00,000

(Being allotment money on 10,000 shares @ T 50 per
Share including a premium of X 10 per share made
due)
Bank A/c ) i Dr. 4.50,000
) To Share Allotment A/c . 4,50,000
(Being allotment money on 10,000 shares @ T 50
including premium was received except allotment
received in advance)
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Share First and Final Call Afc Dr. 6,00,000
To Share Capital Afc 5,00,000
To Securities Premium A/c 1,00,000

(Being final call on 10,000 shares @3 60 per share

including premiwm of T 10 made due)

Bank A/c ‘ “Dr. 6,00,000
To Share Final Call Afc | : " | 6,00,000

(Being final call money on 10,000 shares @ T 60
including T 10 as premium per share received)

Working Note

Adjustment of over-subscription (allottee of 12,000 shareé):

Application money received on T 12,000 sharés @ X 10= 1,20,600 ' ‘
Less: amount utilised as application money on 1,000

allotted shares i.e., 1,000 x 10 o {-) 10,000

Less: money retained for allotment on 1,000

shares @ ¥ 50 ‘ () 50,000
Excess money to be refunded as per terms of issue : —6(.'!,_00_0
Those applicants, who applied for 2,000 shares were not allotted any share, so their application money i.e.,
2,000 x 10 = 20,000 will be refunded. )

Total money to be refunded 60,000 -+ 20,000 = ¥ 80,000.

1,10,000 -

CALLS IN ADVANCE

»

The company may receive calls in advance, if the Articles permit. It is the amount paid by the
shareholder of a company even before the particular call is made due. Table ‘F’ of the Companies

Act permits to receive calls in advance.

Disclosure in the Balance Sheet:

Calls in Advance is shown in Notes to Accounts of sub-head “Other Current Liabilities”
of main head Current Liabilities.

*  The articles should specify the rate at which interest is to be paid. Table F of Companies
Act 2013 leaves the matter of rate of interest to the Board of Directors subject to maximum of
12 per- cent per annum.

For example, a company issues 10,000 shares of X {0 each payable ¥ 3 on Application, X 3 on
Allotment and the balance of T 4 on First and Final call. The company made its allotment due but A,
-the holder of 100 shares paid the entire amount of shares together with allotment, In this case the
payments of T 400 i.e., 100 x 4 on allotment for First and Final Call is calls paid in advance.

-~ Issue of Shares
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The journal entry in the above example will be made as under:

Date Particulars . LE | Debit®) | Credit(®)
_ (?} | For making allotment due _
NOTES | Share Allotment Afc p Dr. 30,000
To Share Capital A/c ' -~ 30,000
(Being allotment money on 10,000 shares @ 3 I
per share made due) :

(#9) | For receiving Share allotment . .
Bank A/c . Dr. 30,400

To Share Allotment A/c ' . 30,000
To Calls in Advance A/c . 400

(Being altotment on 10,000 shares @ % 3 and call
money on 100 shares @3 4 received)

(#i) | For making Share First and Final Call due
Share First and Final Call A/c : " Dr. 40,000

To Share Capital A/c . 40,000
(Being final call money on 10,000 shares @34
per share made due) -

() | For receiving Share First and Final Call .
Bank A/c - T Dr. 39,600
Calls in advance A/c o Dr. 400

To Share First and Final Call A/c S 40,000-
(Being First call money on 9,900 shares @3 4 pershare |
received after adjusting calls paid in advance on 1 00 shares)

Calls in Advance account is cloged when the particular call on which advance money is received
made due alongwith the amount received on that call, which can be seef in the entry (iv).

Ll

The company may receive calls paid in advance, if the Articles of Association of the
Company permits. Table ‘F° of the Companies Aét, 2013 permits the shareholder to pay calls
in advance. Articles should specify the rate at which interest on calls paid in advance has to
be paid. Table ‘F” specifies 12% per annum as maximurn rate of interest. Interest is calculated
for the period between receiving the call in advance and the date on which the call is due for
payment.

CALLS IN ARREAR

This is the amount called by the company, but remains unpaid. When a person applies for the
shares of company, he makes an offer. If the company accepts the application and allots the shares to -
the person, it becomes a valid contract. The shareholder, thus becomes liable to pay the entire amount
of shares. In case, he fails to pay the allotment and calls on shares held by him, the unpaid amount
is known as calls in arrears. For example, A was allotted 100 shares. He paid application money
- @73 3 per share and allotment @ ¥ 3 per share but did not pay first call of ¥ 2 and final call of T2

per share. In thi_s case, calls in arrears will amount to ¥ 400 j.e., 100 2+2).

¥
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Interest on Calls in Arrear

A member is generally liable to pay interest on calls made but not paid. Table F of Companies
Act 2013 provides a rate of interest of 10% per annum or such lower rate as the Board of Directors
may deterinine. However, the Board of Directors is at liberty to waive payment of any such interest
wholly or partly. '

Treatment of Calls in Arrear in the books of Accounts. While recexvmg the particular call on
which a certain amount remains unpaid calls in arrears account is debited or the entry is passed with
the actual amount received. Calls in arrears account may not be opened or may be opened. This can
be explained with the following illustration:

Illustration 9 (Calls in Arrears). A company issued 10,000 shares of T 10 each, payable T 3 on |

application, T 3 on allotment and the balance of T 4 on first and final call. Final call was not received on
1000 shares. Pass necessary journal entries regarding Final Call.
Solution. Journal

Date ’ Particulars ' LF } Debir (%) 1" Credit &

{(f) Without opening calls in Arrears Account

Share First and Final Call A/c . Dr. 40,000
To Share Capital Afe ' - 40,000

(Being Final Call on 10,000 shares @ T 4 per share ’

made due) .

Bank A/c Dr. 36,000
To Share First and Final Call A/c a 36,000 '

(Being Final Call money on 9,000 shares @ % 4 per
share received)

(7)) Alternatively. By opening Calls in Arrears Account. Entry for receiving Share Final Call will

be: . .
Bank A/c . Dr. 36,000
Calls in Arrears A/c Dr. 4,000

To Share First and Final CallA/c - | 40,000

(Being Final call money on 10,000 shares @3 4
per share except on 1,000 shares received)

Difference between Call in Arrears and Calls Paid in Advance

Bases of +alls in Arrears Calls Paid in Advance
Differ ace
1. Meaning Calls remaining uripaid by the | Calls paid by theghareholders before it is
: specified date is known as calls in | made due is known as calls paid in advance,
arTear. -
2. Interest Interest on calls in arrear is charged. | Interest on calls paid in advance is paid. -
Rate of Interest The maximum rate" of interest as | The maximum rate of interest as per table
per table ‘F’ is 10% p.a. ) ‘F’is 12% p.a.
4. Disclosureinthe |It is shown  as deducted from |1t is shown as a separate item under the
Balance Sheet capital, ' head current liabilities.

Disclosure in the Balance Sheet

Calls in Arrears is shown as deduction in Notes to Accounts of Share Capital from the
Subscribed but not fully paid up Capital under Subscribed Capital.

Issue of Shares
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Notes to Accounts
Note 1: Share Capital
Particulars Amount (%) Amount )
. : Current Year Previous Year
Authorised Capital ’
... Shares of T ... each
Issued Capital
... Shares of ¥ ... each
Subscribed Capital
Subscribed and fully paid up
....Shares of ¥ ... each XXX
Subscribed but not fully paid up
... Shares of ¥ .... each ... Called up XXX
Less-calls in-Arrear (xxx) ® %X
Total X X X

ISSUE OF SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH

_ The.company purchases certain assets from vendors (sellers or suppliers) on credit. Instead of
making payment to vendors in cash, the company issues them certain agreed number of shares at an
agreed rate as a consideration (payment in exchange) of assets purchased. Shares may be issued to
vendors at par or at premium. The requisite journal entry to be passed is as under:

1. On purchasing the asset
Particular Asset A/c Dr.

or .
Sundry Assets A}c Dr.
To Vendor A/c [Purchase Consideration]
2. On purchasing the business of a going concern .
Sundry Assets A/c Dr. [Agreed value]
Goodwill Afe Dr. )
To Sundry Liabilities * [Agreed value]
To Vendor A/c " [Purchase Consideration]

To Capital Reserve

Notes:
(#) If the name of assets and liabilities are given individually, it is advisable to write thexr
name individually alongwith there agreed value.
’ (i) Purchase consideration means the amount paid or payable for. purchase of assets or
business‘as the case may be, : .
(iify Net Worth means the value of the business.
Net Worth = Total Assets — External Liabilities
(i) Either Goodwill A/c or Capital Reserve will appear in (2} journal entry depending upon
the below conditions:
(@) In case Net Worth is less than the purchase consideration, then the difference is
debited to Goodwill A/e. o
(b) In case Net Worth i$ more than the purchase consideration, then the difference is
credited to Capital Reserve A/c.
(¢) In case Net Worth is equal to purchase consideration then nenher Goodwill A/c nor

Capital Reserve A/c will appear.




-

3. On part payment to Vendor
Vendor A/c Dr. [Amount Paid]
To Bank/Cash A/c ' '
4. On issue of shares '
(#) Issue at part

Vendor Afc A Dr. [Amount payable]
To Share Capital A/c . [Nominal value of shares issued]
- (if) Issue at premium .
Vendor Afc Dr. . [Ameunt payable]
To Share Capital Afc [Nominal value of shares issued]
To Securities Premium [Premium on issue of shares]

Nates:
(a) Amount Pairab_le = Purchase Consideration — Amount Paid
(&) Number of shares issued will be calculated as follows:
Amount payable
Issue Price of a Share

No. of Shares Issued =

Disclosure in the Balance Sheet

Shares issued for consideration other than cash is shown in Notes to Accounts of sub head
“Share Capital” under the sub-head of “Subscribed Share Capiraz'

Iustration 10 ITC Ltd., whose subscribed shares capital is of ¥ 1,00,00,000 equity shares of
T 10 each, purchase Plant and Machinery from Sunil Ltd. and issued 20,000 fully paid equity shares of

T 10 each fo Sunil Ltd. Show the following:
(a) Share Capital in the Balance Sheet of ITC Ltd. as per Schedule III Part I of the Compames Act,

2013.
(b) Also prepare ‘Notes to Accounts’for the same.
Solution. Extract of Balance Sheet of ITC Ltd.
As ate.ieeniinnn
Particulars Note No. Amom_:! ® Am?unt )
Current Year Previous Year
1. EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. Shareholder’s funds:
(a) Share Capital 1 1,02,00,000
. Notes to Accounts
Note 1: Share Capital )
] Amount (%) Amount (3)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Authorised Capital
... Shares of ¥ ... each .

Issued Capital
.. Shares of ¥ ... each

Subscribed Capital
Subscribed and fully paid up
10,20,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 1,02,00,000

(out of the above 20,000 shares, have been issued
for consideration other than cash)

Total 1,02,00,000
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Mustration 11 Pass necessary journal entries for the following transactions in the books of

Rajan Ltd.:

Rajan Ltd. purchased a running business from Vikas. Ltd Jora sum of X 2,50,000 payable as

% 2,20,000 in fully paid equity shares of T 10 each and balance by a bank draft. The assets and
liabilities consisted of the following:

Plant & Machinery I 90,000; Burldmg T 90,000; Sundry Debtors ¥ 30,000; Stock ? 50,000; Cash
%20,000; Sundry Creditors T 20; Otp ’ . -

Solutlon ' _ Rajan Ltd.
’ Journal
Date Particulars LF Debit (7). Credit (%)
Plant & Machinery Alc - Dr. 90,000
Building A/c ' Dr. 90,000 -
Sundry Debtors A/c Dr. 30,000 .
Stack Ale o Dr. 50,000
CashAle Dr. 20,000
To Sundry Creditors Afc - . - 20,000
To Vikas Ltd. . ’ : - 2,50,000
To Capital Reserve A/c (Balancing Fig.) ‘ 10,000
(Business piirchaséd from Vikas Ltd,) ) )
Vikas-Ltd. . Dr. 2,50,000 -
. To Equity Shares Capital A/c - : 2,20,000
To Bank A/c : . 30,000
{Shares issued and draft given to Vikas Lid) ' -

SUMMARY"
Joint Stock Company It is an artificial person, created by law, with a fixed capital,
divisible into transferable shares, with perpetual succession and common seal.
Types of Shares:

1. Equity/Ordinary Share. A share, which is not a preference share is called equity
share (Section 43 of Companies Act). . \

2. Preference Shares. Share entitled to priority in the payment of d1v1dend at.a ﬁxed_
rate and also in return of a capital in the event of winding up are known as preference -
shares.

Types of Preference Shares.

’

Preference Shares; Cumulative and Non- cumulative, Redeemable and Irredeemable,
Participating and Non-pamcxpatmg, Convertible and Non-convertible and Guaranteed
preference shares.

Status of Preference Sl:iareholde::s, if Articles of Asso_cietion_is silent

Preference Shares will be presumed to be (/) Cumulative (i7) Nop-Participating
-(iify Irredeemable and (iv) Non-convertible.

Bases of Difference between Equity Shares and Preference Shares

1. Priority of dividend 2. Predetermined rate of d1v1dend 3. Refund of sliare capital
4. Right to vote 5. Right to participate in the management.



Preparation of Cash Book. All money transactions of the company are made through
Bank. As such, we should always use Bank Account for money transactions and

- aveoid using cash account. While preparing cash book all the receipts are shown at

the debit side of cash book (having bank column only).

Share Capital. Capital consisting of denominations/parts of capital are known as share
capital. . _ '

Types of Share Capital.

1. Authorised, 2. Issued and unissued, 3. Subscribed and unsdbécribed, 4. Called up and
uncalled up, 5. Paid up and calls in arrears and 6. Unreserved and reserve capital.

Capital in the balance sheet is disclosed under three headings (i) Authorised (i) Issued
and (#if) Subscribed capital. Calls in arrears is deducted from subscribed capital and
forfeited shares is added. Capital Reserve and Securities Premium, etc., are shown
under the heading of ‘Reserve and Surplus’ in the Balance Sheet calls paid in ‘advan.ce
is shown as current liability.

Private Placement of Shares. Issue and allotment of shares to a selected group of
persons is known as Private Placement of Shares.

Under-subscription/Over-subscription of Share, Short subscription of shares is known
as under-subscription. Excess Subscription (Receiving applications more than issued
number of shares is known as over-subscription.

Bases of difference between Over-subscription and Under-subscription

() Number of shares subscribed (/) Refund or Adjustment (iif) Investors mindset (iv)
Retaining over subscribed capital (v) Issued capital.

Issue of Shares at Par and Premium

(i) Shares may be issued at their face value (at par) or more than the face value (at
premiumy,

(if) If shares are issued at premium we shall be crediting Securities Premium Account
with the amount of premium. Securities Premium Account may be credited while

making the instalment due or receiving the call. Securities Premium Account

shouid be shown in Schedule III under the heading ‘Reserve and Surplus,’

REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions:

e

Name the different kinds of the share capital of Company.

Point out the main point of difference between called up and paid up capital.
What do you mean by Reserve Capital? '

Mention the side of cash book where you will record refund of application money.
How will you deal with over-subscription?

Is there any legal restriction on issue of shares at premilum?

Give the meaning of ‘called-up capital’.

What are preliminary expenses?

Issue of Shares
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B. Short Answer Type Questions:
1.
2.

Exhibit different kinds of capital in balance sheet of a company with imaginary figures,
Explain briefly the accounting treatment of the following {tems: )
(a) Issue of shares for consideration other than cash.
(b) Issue of shares to promoters, -
Write notes on: ‘.
(a) Over-subscription
{b) Calls in Arrears
' {c) Issue of shares at premium
(d) Calls paid in advance. ‘
" Discuss the treatment of securities premium in the books of accounts,
Are there any restrictions on the issue of shares at premium?
State the purposes for which Securities Premium can be utilised.
What do you mean by calls in advance? -

Distinguish between over—suchnptron and under—subscrlptlon of shares issued by .
company. ‘

C. Long Answer Type Questions:

1.

What are the- different kinds of shares issued by a corrlpany? Explain in brief the
classification of preference shares.

What is authorised capital? What is its mgmﬁcance" How does it differ from issued
capital? | - :

Discuss the legal provisions regarding issue of shares at dlscount How is it recorded
in the books of accounts?

Practical Questions - ' .

1. A company was formed with an authorised capital of ¥ 18,00,000 divided into 18,000 shares

of T 100 each. It issued to the public 15,000 shares, payable as ¥ 30 on application, ¥ 30 on
allotment and the balance on first and final call. Applications were received for ¥ 12,000 shares.
The amount df allotment was duly received except from Mahesh, who held 1,000 shares did not
pay allotment. The company did not make call.

How will you show share capital in the Balance Sheer?

-A company issued 40,000 shares of ¥ 10 each, payabie T 4 on application, ¥ 4 on allotment and

the balance of final call. Applications were received for 60,000 shares. The board of directors
rejected applications for 12,000 shares and allotted 50% to the applicants of 16,000 shares. The
company did not make the final call ’

Pass the necessary Journal Entries.

. Efficiency Co. Ltd., issued 20,000 shares of ¥ 10 each, at.a premium of T 4 per share, payable

% 1 per share on application, ¥ 6 per share on allotment (including premium), ¥ 3, on first call and-
% 4 on final call. The shares were all subscribed and money was duly received except the first call

_money on 4,000 shares and the final call money on 6,000 shares.

Give the Jowrnal and Cash Book entries to record the above rransactr'ons. P
[Ans. Total of Cash Book ¥ 2,44,000]



4. Competency Limited Company offered for subscription 3,90,000 shares of ¥ 25 each, payable
T 5 per share on application, ¥ 10 per share on allotment (including ¥ 5 per share as premium),
¥ 5 per share as first call on the shares and the balance in two équal amounts at intervals of three
months. All the shares were applied for and allotted. All the money were received excepting the
2nd call and the fina! call money on 7,800 and 15,600 shares respectively.

You are asked to show the entries in the Company 5 Journal, Cash Book and the Ledger. Show
also the Company s Balance Sheet on completion of the abové transactions.
[Ans. Total of Cash Book, ¥ 1,15,83,000, Total of Balance Sheet ¥ 1 ,15,83,000]

. X, Y, Z Co. Ltd., issued 90,000 Equity shares of T 10 each at a premium of ¥ 2 per share and
9,000, 10% Preference Shares of T 100 each payable as follows:

Equity Shares Preference Shares
% ‘ g
On Application ‘ 2. : 20
On Aliotment 5 (including 35
< premium) )
On First Call 3 25
On Final Call 2 20

" All the shares offered were subscribed for by the public and cash duly received. Pass recessary
Journal Entries to record the above issue of shares.

. J.P. Ltd., purchased building costing ¥ 70,00,000 from M/s Construction Ltd. The company
paid ¥ 20,50,000 by cheque and for the balance issued equity shares of ¥ 100 each in favour of
M/s Construction Ltd. Pass necessary journal entries in the books of J.P. Ltd. for the purchase
of building and making payment if shares were issued at a premium of 25%.

"
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ciapTER 12 FORFEITURE AND REISSUE OF
SHARES |

i

- % STRUCTURE: % -

Forfeiture and Reissue of Shares

-

T
¢ Accounting Treatment of Forfeiture of Shares

¥e Forfeiture and Reiésue of Shares, Earlier Issued at Premium

FORFEITURE AND REISSUE OF SHARES

Meaning
AN
Forfeiture of shares means cancellation of shares. The sharehelder, who applies for

the shares of the company makes an offer on the one hand, and on the other hand company by
accepting shares or allotting shares accords acceptance, In this way offer and acceptance with
the lawful consideration make a valid contract between the shareholder and the company. The
contract makes it binding upon the share holders (allottees) to pay the instalment of allotment and
calls, whenever due.

‘Effect of Non-Payment of Instalments

If the shareholder fails to pay allotment or calls money or both, the company sends reqﬂnderé
to the shareholder to make the payment of calls in arrear. In case the reminders do not produce the °
desired result, the company, if permitted by its Articles of Association, serves a clear 14 days’ notice
to the shareholder concerned to pay the amount due with interest, if any, by a certain specified date,
failing which shares are forfeited.

Effcct on Amount Already Paid

Forfeiture means the seizure of shares, as such whatever amount has already been received
on shares, being forfeited is seized. While passing journal entry regarding forfeiture, Share Capital
Account is debited with the called up amount on shares. The logic behind debiting Share Capital Afc
is to cancel the share capital on forfeited shares. Forfeited shares A/c is credited with the amount
received on forfeited shares, because whatever the amount has been received will be seized, as
such it is a gain to the company and thus credited (being Nominal Account, where rule goes ‘Debit
all losses and credit all gains’). Calls in Arrears A/c or Specific Call A/c is credited to close these
‘accounts, '

Reissue of Shares

The shares forfeited can also be reissued. The reissue of shares involves a decision to be taken
by the board of directors of the company. It should be noted the shares can be reissued only when
they are forfeited and they cannot be reissued only on the basis of unpaid calls.



Forfeiture and Reirsiue

of Shares
ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF FORFEITURE OF SHARES
In the context of accounting treatment of forfeiture of shares there are following cases:
! {a) If shares are forfeited but not Reissued. : NOTES

(b) If shares are forfeited and Reissued.

A. Shares are Forfeited but Not Reissued
When shares are forfeited, following journal entry is passed:
Share Capital A/c Dr.
To Forfeited Shares Afc
To Unpaid Calls.(.)r Calls in Arrears Alc  »
(Being forfeiture of shares for non-payment
of allotment or calls)
Explanation of the Journal Entry

*  Share Capital A/c. It is debited, because the amount of share capital will decrease on forfeited
shares. As forfeiture means cancellation of shares, so the capital structure built upon the |-
cancelled shares cannot stand. It will have to fall. For demolishing the structure i.e., reduction
in Capital, Share Capital A/c will be debited (Rule-Decrease in the capital is debited). *

In order to calculate the amount to be written against Share Capital A/c the following hint will
be very useful:

Share Capital = Number of forfeited shares x Amount per share called

(i) Number of forfeited shares means only those shares which have been declared forfeited by
the company. It is just possible that the number of defaulting shareholders (those shareholders,
who have not paid share allotment and calls) may be more, but lesser number of shares may be
forfeited.

We are concerned with the number of shares declared forfeited not the defaulters. There may
be different categories of defauliers, such as first category may not have paid since allotment,
other may not have paid since first call and another since final call. In these cases shareholders,
who have not paid their final call may be provided an opportunity to make payment and their
shares may not be forfeited. Shares owned by those shareholders, who have not been paid
since allotment and their first call may be forfeited.

(i) Amount per sharve called means amount which has been asked to be paid by the shareholder to
the company.

Suppose the company has issued shares of the face value of ¥ 10, and the amount payable is
T 3on appﬁcﬁ_!ion, T 3 on allotment and the balance on final call. If the company has asked the
shareholder to pay all the application, allotment and call moviey (i.e., ¥ 3 + 3 + 4), the called
up amount will be treated to be T 10. In case, the final call has not been made the called up
amount will be T 6, i.e., T 3 for application and < 3 for allotment.

»  Forfeited Shares A/c. Holders of forfeited shares have not paid the amount due, so their
contract stands repudiated {cancelled). This is why, the amount paid by them on the shares,
being forfeited is seized by the company. The forfeited amount is a gain for the company 50
it has to be credited (Credit all income or increase in revenue \is to be credited). In order to
calculate the amount to be written against forfeited shares A/c, the following hint will prove to

be very useful:
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Forfeited Shares = Number of forfeited shares x Amount per share received from them
Amount per share received means the amount per share paid by the defaulters on the forfeited
shares. . ;

Suppaose in the above case, if the shareholder has ﬁaid application money of X 3 per share only,
amount per share received wil beX 3 only. If he has paid upto allotment, i.e., X 3 for application
and T 3 for allotment, amount per shave received will be ¥ 6, i.e, T3+ 3.

*+  Unpaid Calls or Calls in Acrears. It is the amount which has been called up but still remains
unpaid or it is.still in arrears. It should be specifically noted that Calls in Arrears A/c should
be credited in the journal entry if this account has 'aiready been debited while receiving -
the instalment remaining unpaid. Call in Arrears A/c may be credited, if the name of the
instalment remaining unpaid is not specified, whether it is on allotment or calls.

Accounting Treatment

In place of Calls in Arrears A/c, we will eredit share allotment or share call A/c (remaining
unpa:d) 1f we have passed eatry while receiving the call with the actual amount received. The
amount of calls in arrears or the unpaid calls can be easﬂy ascertained-by the following under
mentioned hint:

Calls in arrears = Number of forfeited shares x unpaid amount per share.

Joumnal entry regarding forfeiture is further explained with the following illustration: -

IMustration 1 (Forfeiture of Shares). A compaﬁy forfeited 100 shares of X 10 each
Jor non-payment of allotment of X 3 and final call of T 4 per share.

Pass journal entry regarding forfeiture.

Solution, In the Books of Company
. Journal
Date Particulars LF | Debit @) | Credit @
Share Capital A/c . Dr. - 1;00 ‘
To Forfeited Shares Alc . 300
* To Share Allotment Afc ' _ _ ' 300
To-Share Final Call A/c’ 400
(Being forfeiture of 100 shares for non-paymcm of allofmem .
and call) .

Note. As the company has called upto final call (r’.e., ¥ 3 on application,. T 3 on allotment and
T 4 on final call) share capital account has been debited with the full value of shares, ie.,
00 = 10 = 1,000. We have received T 3 on application only, se the company can forfeit
T 300, the amount received by it. Share allotment and final call Afc have been credited with the
unpaid amount on these instalments. .

Alternatively, we can credit Calls in Arrears Afc with ¥ 700 instead of crediting share
allotment and Share Final' Call AJe.

Mlustration 2 (Forfeiture of Shares). B Company Lid. forfeited 500 shares of T 10
-each, I 8 pershare calledup, onwhichT 3 onapplication, and¥ 3 on allotment was received,
X 2 on first call remained unpaid.

Pass journal entry regarding forfeiture



Solution. - In the Books of B (fompany
Journal
Date Particulars | LE | Debit (3) | Credit )
Share Capital A/c Dr. 4,600 .
To Forfeited Share A/c 3,000
“To Share First Call A/c or Calls in Arrears Alc : 1,000
(Being forfeiture of 500 shares, X 8 called up for non- _
payment of first call of X 2 per share)

" Effect on the Balance Sheet. Forfeited shares account will be shown as part of Share Capital
. (under note to Balance Sheet) in Schedule III with * 300 in Illustration 1 and ¥ 3,000 m Hlustration 2
(If shares are forfeited but not reissued, shares forfeited account is shown in the balance sheet).

B. Shares are Forfeited and Reissued

(f) Reissue owafeited Shares. Shares, after being forfeited, become quite fresh to be resold or
reissued to the same or other shareholders. The amount received from reissue is debited to Bank
account. Share capital account is credited with paid up value of reissued shares and forfeited

shares account is debited with the difference between the paid up value of shares and the amount |-

received on their reissue.

The Journa! Entry will be as follows:

Bank A/c Dr. (with amount received)
Forfeited Share A/c  ~ Dr. (with amount not received)
To Share Capital (Total paid up amount)

(Be::ng Reissue of shares as fully paid up)

(i) Transfer to Capital Reserve. After reissue of shares, the balance of ‘Forfeited Shares Afe’ on
reissued shares is transferred to Capital Reserve A/c. -

Capital reserve is the profit of capital nature. It is not a revenue of routine nature, earned by the
company in its day-to-day affairs. In case of companies, such gain arises, when forfeited shares are
reigsued for more than the unpaid amount on these shares.

1 * The Journal Entry_will be as follows:
| Forfeited Shares A/c ) Dr.
To Capital Reserve ’

(Being remaining balance of forfeited shares account transferred to Capital Reserve A/c)

‘ For example, if the company forfeits a share of T 10 for non-payment of T 4 and reissues it @
T 7. The capital reserve will be the difference between the amount receivéd from the reissue, i.e., T 7

| less unpaid amount on forfeited shares, i.e., T 4, as such Capital Reserve will be 7 —4 = 3. In other

| words, it may be difference between the amount gained on forfeiture, i.e., X 6 and lost on reissue
i.e., T 3. This will also be the same, i.e, T 6-3=3.

If all the forfeited shares are reissued, capital reserve will be the -bal.ancing figure of forfeited
shares account. In this example, forfeited shares account would have been credited with T 6, the
amount already received from forfeited shares and debited with T 3, so the forfeited shares account
will show a credit balance of T 3, which will be transferred to capital reserve.

Forfeiture and Reissue
of Shares
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Please Remember

- If forfeited shares are not reissued, there will be no capital reserve, and the money
will be retained in forfeited shares account. /n case a part of the forfeited shares are reissued
capital reserve will be formed only on reissued shares.

Capital Reserve Account is shown in the notes to Account under “Reserve and Swrplus™ in
Schedule T Balance Sheet.
The amount of the capital reserve is utilised to meet capital losses

Journal entries regarding forfeiture and reissue of shares and transfer to capital reserve are

explained with the help of the following illustrations:

INustration 3 (Forfeitiure and Reissue of Forfeited Shares). The company forfexted
1,000 shares of X 10 each for non-payment of final call of ¥ 2. AH the forfeited shares
were issued at'X 6 per share, fully paid.

Pass journal entries regarding forfeiture and reissue of shares.

Solution. ) In the Books of ...
' Journal
Date R Particular . ' Debit (T) | Credit (%)
" | Forfeiture of Shares : . ’
Share Capital Alc . e 10,000
" ToForfeited Shares Alc - ; ) 8,000
To Share Final Call A/c or Calls in Am:arsAAIJc . 2,000

(Being forfeiture of 1,000 shares of T 10 each far non-
payment of final call f T 2 per share)

Reissue of forfeited Shares

_| Bank Afc ; - . Dr|- e000
Forfeited Shares Alc Do | 4,000 |,
To Share Capital'A/c L . 10,000

(Being reissue of 1,000 forfeited shares @3 6 per share)

Transfer of Forfeited Shares A/c to Capital Reserve A/c
Forfeited Shares A/c Dr. 4,000
To Capital Reserve A/c . 4,000

(Being transfer of balance in the forfeited shares
account fo capital reserve account) .

Notes, () The balance of the forfeited shares account is transferred to capital reserve account, in case ail the
Jorfeited shares are reissued. Capital reserve is formed on the reissued forfeited shares.

(if) While reissning shares, forfeited shares account is debited with amount of loss on reissued shaves. As
the profit on forfeiture of shares accotnt was credited to forfeited shares account, it will be proper to
debit the same account in case of loss on reissue of the same shares.

Ilustration 4 (Forfeiture and Reissue of Forfeited Shares at Different paid up
Values). Democracy Lid. forfeited its 200 shares of T 10 each on which ¥ 5 pershare was

* received. Pass entry regarding reissue of all the shares if:

(i) Shares are reissued at X 8 per share, fully paid up.
(i1} Shares are reissned a1 X 7, X 8 called up.
(iii) Shares are reissued at T 4.50, T 7 called up.



Solution. Journal in the Books of Democracy Ltd.

Date - Particulars LE | Debit®@ | Credit(®

Share Capital A/c : Dr. 2,000
To Forfeited Shares Alc . 1,000

“To Calls in Arrears Afc o 1,000
(Being forfeiture of 200 shares for non-payment of X 5
per share) -
() |BankAfc Dr. 1,600
Forfeited Shares A/c . Dr. 400
To Share Capital Afc ) 2,000
(Being reissue of 200 forfeited shares @3 8 fully paid)
Forfeited Shares Alc - T Dr. 600
To Capital Reserve A/c ] 600

' (Being transfer of forfeited shures account to Capital -
Reserve A/c) ) .
(i) | Bank Afc : Dr. 1,400
Forfeited Shares A/¢ Dr. 200
- 'To Share Capital Afc : . 1,600
(Being reissue of 200 shares @ X 7 per share, T 8 called

up)
Forfeited Shares Afc ] Dr. 800-

To Capital Reserve Ale . A 800
(Being transfer of forfeited shares account to Capital
Reserve A/c) . .
(i) | Bank A/c "Dr. 900
Forfeited Shares Alc ’ Dr. 500

To Share Capital Alc 1,400
(Being reissue of 200 forfeited shares @ 4.50 X 7 called ~
up) )
Forfeited Shares A/c Dr. 500

To Capital Reserve Afc 500
(Being transfer of forfeited shares A/c to Capital
Reserve A/c) -

Notes. (/) In case of reissue, Share Capital Account is credited with the called up or paid up value of

’ shares. o
(i) Ifall the forfeited shares are reissued the bc;lancing figure of forfeited shares A/c is transferred
to Capital Reserve A/c. Balancing figure means excess of the credit side of forfeited shares Alc

over ifs debit side.

Ilustration 5 (Forfeiture and reissue of shares). Mlimited forfeited 2,000 equity shares of
¥ 10 each, issued at a premium of X 5.per share, held by Ram for non-payment of the Final call
of ¥ 3 per share. Of these, 100 shares were reissued to Vishu at a discount of T 4 per share.

Pass Journal Entries.

Solution. * Journal Entries in the Books of M Limited

- (i) | Equity Share Capital Afc . Dr. | 20,000
To Forfeited Shares A/c 14,000
To Equity Share Final Call A/c 6,000

(Being jbr;'fei'mre of 2,000 equity shares of T10 each for non-payment
of final call) .

\
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Bank A/c . > _ Dr. 600 .
Forfeited Shares Afc . Dr | = 400
To Equity Share Capital A/c. : : 1,000

) NOTES (Being reissue of 100 fwfeited. shares at a discount of ¥ J"per share) ‘
. . Forfciied Shares A/c ‘ Dr. 300
' o Capital Keserve Alc, - 300

(Being transfer of forfeited shares 4/¢ to € apital Reserve A/c)

Wurking Note .
Gain on forfelture of 100 shares [M X 100]
00

1

I

700

Less loss on reissue of 'I(‘JO shares (100 x 4) (400)
Net gain (Capital Reservé) on 100 shares = 300

I

Illustration 6 (Forfeiture and reissue of shares).'A compzmy Jorfeited 100 shares of

X 10-each, on which B, the shareholder failed to pay allotment of T 5 per share including.
a premium of X 2 per .s'hare and final call of X 3 per share These shares were reissued at

" X 8 per share. )

Pass Journal Entries i-egarding forfeiture and reissue of shéres.

Solution. If convention of coriservatism is applied and Secunt:es Premlum Alcis uot
reinstated as originally intended entries will be passed as under:
Journal ’

Date ’ Particulars LE | Debit(%) | Credit ®)
(i) | Share Capital'A/c . Dr. 1,000
Securities Premium A/c . " Dr. 200
To Forfeited Shares A/c ’ . 400

,To Share Allotment A/lc .2 500

To Share Final Call Ale ) ' _ - 300

L . (Bemg Sforfeiture of 100 shares ﬁ;r non-payment of share . .
' -{ atlotment and final cal!) ]
(i) |BankAfc : . ) Dr | 800
Forfeited Shares Afc - b ) Dr. 200 R .
| To Share Capital A/c ' . ’ ) 1,000
'(Being reissue of 100 shares @ 8 per share) . :
(iii) | Forfeited Sharés A/c ; . - Dr 200

To Capital Reserve Afc ' RE ) 200
"(Being transfer of. forfeited shares to Capital Reserve) :

¢ Alternative Treatment

- : Date Particulars L.F | Debit (%) | Credit ()
: (d |Bank A/c . : . Dr. 800
Forfeited Shares A/c . o Dr. |~ | 400
To Share Capital Afc : o S ' 1,000
To Securities Premium A/c p . ] . 200
{Being reissue of 100 shares @ T 8 per share) : )
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. lustration 7 (Forfeiture and Reissue of F o::ferred Shares) Ahmed Trading
Co. Ltd. had issued share capital of T1,40,000 in Equity Shares of X 10 each, on which
% 7.50 per share was called and paid. When the final call of X 2.50 per share was made,
all the shareholders paid their money in full excepting two shareholders, one holding N OTES

200 shares and the other 100 shares. The shares were forfeited in due ¢ourse and were
reissued to @ new shareholder who paid T 5 per share.

You are to pass the Journal Entries recnrdmg the above transactions in the books
of the company.

Solution. Journal in the Books of Ahmed Trading Co. -
Date _ Particulars . LE | Debit(T) | Credit (%)
Bank Afc Dr. 1,05,000
To Equity Share Application and Allotment Alc . 1 1,05,000

(Being application and allotment money on 14,000 equity
shares @ 3. 7.50 per share received)

Equity Share Application and Allotment A/c Dr. 1,05,000
. To Equity Share Capital Afc ) . 1,05,600

(Being equity share application and allotment money on
14,000 shares @3 7.50 per share transferred to share ,
capital account)

Equity Share Final Call Afc Dr. 35,000
To Equity Share Capital A/e 35,000

(Being equity share final call money on 14 000 shares
@7 2.50 per share made due)

Bank A/c Dr. 34,250
To Equity Share Final Call A/c 34,250

(Being equity share final call money on 13,700 shares
@ T 2.50 per share received)

Equity Share Capital Afc _ Dr. 3,000
TFo Forfeited Equity Shares Afc . 2,250
To Equity Share Final Call A/c 750

(Being forfeiture of 300 shares for non-payment of final .-
call)

Bank Afc _ Dr. 1,500 -
Forfeited Equity Shares Afc Dr. 1,500
To Share Capital Afc 3,000

(Being reissue of 300 forfeited equity shares @3 3 per

share)

Forfeited Shares Afc Dr. . 750 ‘
To Capital Reserve Afc 750 .

(Being transfer of farfened shares account 1o capital
reserve A/c)

Working Notes

(i) As the defaulting shareholders failed to pay Equit-y Share Final Call of T 2.50 each, it has been
assumed that T 7.50 per share are for the Share Application and Allotment.

(ir} Calculation of Capital Reserve:
"Amount received from Forfeited shares
(per share) = -7.50
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Less: Amount of loss on reissued Forfeited shares
5.00
2.50

(per share)
Still gain (per share)

Total gain on reissued shares or Capital Reserve = 300 x 2.50 =% 750.

FORFEITURE AND REISSUE OF SHARES, EARLIER ISSUED

AT PREMIUM

Meaning

Premium is the excess of issue price over the face value of shares. Premium once received
cannot be cancelled as per the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013. Jt means that
if securities. premium has already been received on shares being Jorfeited, Securities Premium A/c
will neither be debited nor credited in the entry regarding forfeiture or reissue of forfeited shares.

Forfeiture of Shares, Originally Issued at Premium (Premium Not Received)

In case the defaulting shares have not paid the instalment contammg premium, the entry
regarding forfeiting these shares will be:

Share Capital A/c ’ Dr.
Securities Premium A/c Dr.
“To Forfeited Shares A/c '

To Unpaid Calls or Calls in Arrear A/c

(Being forfeiture of shares issued at premium)

The logic for debiting Securities Premium account is that securities premium should be cancelled -
to the extent it has not been received, so that Securities Premium A/c should show the actual amount .

received. When the instalment containing securities premium is made due, Securities Premium
Account is credited on all shares, whether received or not. While receiving the same instalment
defaulting share did not pay the instalment containing securities premium, so it is proper to debit
Securities Premium A/c, while forfeiting these shares to bring the balance of Securities Premium
Alcto [the actual amount received.

Relssue of Forfeited Shares, Originally Issued at Premlum (Premium Recewed)

In case of Rexssue of the forfeited shares from whom Secunnes premium was not received,
Securities Premium A/c on reissued forfeited shares is not credited or credited to the extent it was
debited in the forfeiture on reissued shares if extra amount is available. The Journal entry regarding
reissue is passed as under: ‘

Bank A/c ‘ Dr.
Forfeited Shares A/c Dr. -
To Share Capital A/c

While reissuing forfeited shares, originally issued at premium, Securities Premium Afc is
not credited (reinstated) in accordance with the convention of conservatism. According to this
convention, Gains are not anticipated. They are recorded in'the books of accounts only when they
have been actually realised. On the other hand, all possible losses are recognised and is recorded



in the books of accounts. The business adopts the policy of playing safe under the protection of
this convention. The convention of conservatism is criticised because it fails to disclose the correct
picture and deliberately understates the income.

Ilustration 8 (Forfeiture of Shares Issued at Premium and their Reissue at Pur).
A company forfeited 100 shares of T 10 each, on which B, the shareholder failed to pay
allotment of T 5 per share including a premium of ¥ 2 per share and final call of T 3 per
share. These shares were reissued at X 8 per share.

Pass journal eniry regarding forfeiture and reissue of shares.

Solution. If convention of conservatism is applied afﬁd Security Premium A/c is not
reinstated as originally intended: o

Journal
Date Particulars LE | Debit(X) | CreditX)
(#) | Share Capital Afc Dr, 1,000
Securities Premium A/c Dr. 200
To Forfeited Shares A/c 400
To Share Allotment Afc ' . 500

To Share Final Call A/c 300

(Being forfeiture of 100 shares for non-payment of share
allotment and final call)

(i | Bank A/c Dr. 800
Forfeited Shares Afc . B Dr. 200
To Share Capital A/c 1,000
(Being reissue of 100 shares @7 8 per share)
(#if) | Forfeited Shares Afc Dr. 200
To Capital Reserve A/c . - 200

(Being transfer of forfeited shares to Capital Reserve)

Working Notes

() Entry rcgérding capital reserve account will not be made as forfeited shares account is closed, because
it was both debited and credited with the same amount ie., T 400.

(i) Securities Premium A/e will be debited in the entry regarding forfeiture in both treatments, even if |
alternative treatment is applied. Students are advised to prefer the first treatment as most of the authors
have been using it.

Nlustration 9 (Issue of Shares at Preminm, their Forfeiture and Reissue). X Y
Z Limited has an authorised capital of ¥ 4,00,000 divided into shares of T 20 each, the
whole of which is issued and subscribed at a premium of X 2 per share. The amount was
payable as follows:

On application and allotment: X 10 per share;
On 1st Call T 4 per share (including premium);
The balance as and when required.

The company made both the calls. The application and allotment money was duly
received, but a shareholder holding 2,000 shares failed to pay both the calls and his
shares were forfeited. They were later on reissued at T 14 per share as fully paid.

-Give Journal Entries regarding the above,

Forfeiture and Reis}ue
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“Selution. ) Journal in the Books of X ¥ Z Ltd.
, Date | Particulars ' " | LE Debit (%) | Credit ()
. Bank A/c o Dr | 2,00,000 o
NOTES . , . To Share Application and Allotment A/c - '2,00,000

 (Being application and allotment money on 20,000
shares @ % 10 per share received) . .
Share Application and Allotment Afc Dr, T ] 2,00,000

To Share Capital A/c - - . . | 2,00,000

(Bemg application and allotment money on 20 00
. . shares @ X 10 per share transferred to Share
s Capital A/c) . -

* { Share First Call A/c - - Dr | 80,000

. _ To Share Capital A/c . - | 40,000

. . To Securities Premium A/c o g 40,000

) (Being share first call money on 20, 000 slmres : - '
: @3 4 including a premium of T 2 made duc) ' : o

' Bank Alc - Dr. 72,000

S To Share First Call A/c : 72,000

. ‘ {Being share first call money on 18,000 shares ’ .

. ) @ X 4 per share received)

Share Final Call A/c Dr. 1,60,000

e To Share Capital Ale - : _ - 1:60,000

' | (Being share final call money on 20,000 shares - . o
. | @ 8 per share made due) ) .
. ‘ . {BankAlc Dr. 1,44,000

' ' : To Share Final Cali Alc  * - - © | 1,844,000 °
{Being share final call money on 18,000 shares ' T

. @?X 8 per share received) .
Share Capital A/c . Dr. |, | 40,000
Securities Premium A/c - D {© - . '4,@00
To Forfeited Shares A/c - : : - | 20,000
, : To Share First CallAle. =~ . 1 " 8,000
- To Share Final Call A/c ‘ s . 16,000
(Being forfeiture of 2,000 shares for non-payment ) ' )
of share first and ﬁmﬂ call) .
‘Bank Alc | D |- 28,000
Forfeited Shares Afc ) < - D ) 12,000
To Share Capital A/c - ol | 40,000
(Being reissue of forfeited shares for T 28,000 .
. ) Forfeited Shares A/c Dr. 8,000
* ' . . To Capital Reserve Alc . 8,000
(Being transfer of, fm:ﬁi{ed shares A/c to Capital
Reserve A/c)

‘Notes. (i) Treatment of Securities Premiam. Securities Premium h'as-no_l'lbeen received on 2,000
" shares together with first call money so Securities Premium A/fc has been debited in
the forfeiture to cancel the excess amount Jor which it was credited.

. (ify Balancing figure of forfeited shares account has been treated as capual reserve,
. becaunse ali the forfe:!ed shares-have been reissued. )

\ .
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Illustration 10 (Over Subscription of Shares issued at Premium, partially called
up with different classes of Defaulters). Rajendra & Co. issued 10,000 shares ofT 10
each at a premium of X 2 per share payable as to X 3 per share with application; X 5
per share on allotment (including premium) and X 2 per share on each of the two calls,
Applications for 12,000 shares were received, of which applications for 1,000 shares
were declined altogether and those for 2,000 shares were allotted 50 per cent of their
demand, while those for the remaining 9,000 shares were allotted in qu The calls were

duly made and thé payments for them were received as follows:

7,000 shares X 12 per share; 1,000 shares X 10 per share; 1,500 shares f & per share
and 500 shares X 3 per share.

The Directors, there, upon forfeited those shares on which less than T 10 per share
was paid. They reissued them as fully paid up to Shri Kailash Chand at < 18,000.

Show the Journal and Cash Book entries in the Books of the Company.

Solution. Rajendra & Co. .
' Cash Book
(Bank Column only)
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars Amount %) | Date Particulars Amount (T)
To Share Application Afc 36,000 By Share Application A/c 3,000
»  Share Allotment A/c 44,500 . *  Balance c/d 1,25,500
» Share First Call Alc 16,000 '
" Share Final Call A/c 14,000
”*  Share Capital Afc 18,000
1,28,500 1,28,500
Journal in the Books of Rajendra & Co. -
Date Particulars L.F | Debit () | Credit @)
Share Application Afc ’ . Dr. 33,000 .
To Share Capital Afc 30,000
To Share Allotment Afc 3,000
(Being application money on 10,000 shares @3 3 per
share transferred to share capital account and on 1,000
shares @ T 3 per share transferred to share allotment
account) .
' | Share Allotment ' _ Dr. 50,000
To Share Capital Afc 30,000
To Securities Premium A/c 20,600
(Being allotment money on 10,000 shares @3 5 per share
including a premium of X 2 per share made due) ‘
Share First Call Afc ) Dr. Z(Q 00
To Share Capital A/c ' 20,000 )
(Being first call money on I 0,000 shares @ T 2 per share $
made a.ie) ]
Share Final Call Afe . Dr. 20,000
To Share Capital A/ 20,000
(Being share final call on 10,000 shares @ 2 per share }
made due)

Forfeifure and Reissue
of Shares
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Share Capital A/c - Dr. 20,000
Securities Premium A/e | . Dr. 1,000
To Forfeited Shares A/c . 10,500

To Share Allotment A/c . ' 2,500

‘To Share First Call A/c . | 4,000

. To Share Final C_all Alc . ’ 4,000

(Being forfeiture of 2,000 shares for non-payment of
allotment and calls)

Forfeited Shares A/c . . - Dr. 2,000
To Share Capital Afc 2,000

(Being loss on reissue of forfeited shares) .
Forfeited Shares A/c . Dr, 8,500
To,Capital Reserve A/c . ) 8,500

(Being transfer of forfeited shares account to caplral
reserve A/c)

(#ff) Balancing figure of Forfeited Shares A/c will be the Capital Reserve.

Working Notes * = - ;
(#) Though defauiters are 3,000 shares but the directors decide to forfeit shates of defauiters of the worse
" categories i.e., those who have paid lesser than ¥ 10. Such shares are 2,000 i.e;, 500 + 1,500.

(i5) As securities premium has not been receiv'ed on 500 shares, so it has been debited while passing entry
‘regarding forfeiture of shares.

-

SUMMARY

» Forfeiture and Reissue of Shares. . .

Forjb:ture means the seiztive of the amount received from the defaulting shareholders
whose shares have been Jforfeited. Tt has been our experience that calls remain unpa:d
inspite of reminders and notice served to the shareholder. As we know that it is
obligatory on every sharcholder to make a full payment of all the calls made due. If
the shareholder commits default the company serves reminders and fourteen days’ notice
to make the payment of arrears, If the notice proves futile, the company forfeits the
shares i.e., whatever the amount is received from the defaultmg shareholders is forfeited
or seized. - \

» Journal Entry Regarding Forfeiture
Share Capital Afc . Dr. - —
To Forfeited Shares A/c _
To Unpaid Calls A/c (may be allotment and calls)

Note. Share capital A/c is debited with the amount called up on forfeited shares.
Forfeited Shares Account is credited with the amount actually received on
JSorfeited shares. Share Calls account (by name) or Calls in Arrears accouni
is credited with amount remaining unpaid on these shares,




Reissue of Forfeited Shares

Bank A/c Dr. ) —

Forfeited Shares A/c Dr. . — , y
To Share Capital A/c —

Note. Bank account is debited with the amount actually received, forfeited shares
account is debited with the amount remaining unpaid on reissue and share
capital account is credited with the tofal amounnt of capital on these shares
(called up value).

Capital Reserve

It is the excess of amount received on forfeiture of shares over the amount unpaid on
reissue of forfeited shares. It shows that, we gain by the forfeiture of shares and
we lose by the reissue of forfeited shares. Excess of gain over loss on forfeited and
reissued shares is capital reserve.

Bases of Difference between Cépital Reserve and Reserve Capital
(1) Meaning (2) Accounting records (3) Utilisation (4) Amount received
Forfeiture and Reissue of Shares, earlier Issued at Premium

If the forfeited shares have been issued Earlier at premium, we will have to ascertain

whether Premium on forfeited shares has-been received or not received. If the premium

has been received, we shall neither debit nor credit Securities Premium account while
passing entry regarding forfeiture. If Securities Premium has not been received on
these shares, we shall be debiting Securities Premium Account while passing entry
regarding forfeiture because the amount of Securities Premium has not been actually
received. While reissuing forfeited shares, Securities Premium account may not be
credited (if convention of conservatism is followed). Securities premium account may
be credited to the extent it has been received, if we ignore the convention. As most
of the authors have not been crediting Securities Premium account on reissue of
forfeited shares, students are advised to follow the majority.

REVIEW QUESTIONS -

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions:

What do you mean by forfeiture of shares?

Can we show forfeited Shares A/c and Capital Reserve Afc gn the same shares
simultaneously if not why?

What is meant by Capital Reseive?

Can forfeited shares be reissued at discount? If yes, to what extent.

While passing entry regarding- forfeiture of shares, with what amount Share Capital
Account is debited?

B. Short Answer Type Questions:

1
2.
3.
4

Explain_the procedure for forfeiting shares.

Differentiate between Reserve Capital and Capital Reserve.

What are the uses of Securities Premium?

Explain the relationship between calls in arrears, forfeited shares A/c and Capital Reserve.

Forfeiture and Reissue
of Shares
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C. Long Answer Type Questions:

What do you mean by forfeiture of shares? Explain procedure for forfeiture of shares. |
Explain the treatment of forfeiture of shares if shares were issued earlier at premium.

Explain procedure with accounting treatment, if shares issued at par were forfeited for
non-payment of calls,

Practical Questions

1.

2.

A company forfeited 150 shares of T 10 each for non-payment of allotiment of ¥ 3 and final call
of T 4 per share. Pass journal entry regarding forfeiture,

A company forfeited 1,050 shares upon which ¥ 7.50 per share were called up, and ¥ 5 per share
were paid for applzcauon and allotment. The first call of % 2.50 per share was not paid. Calculate

‘capital reserve in the following cases:

{?) Ifall the forfeited shares were reissued at ¥ 5 per share, T 7.50 per share paid up.
(¢} Ifonly 700 shares were reissued @ ¥ 5 per share, T 7.50 per share paid up.
(i#f) 1f350 shares were reissued @ ¥ 4 per share, T 7.50 called up.
(#v). 1f 525 shares were reissued @ T 6 per share fully paid up.
[Ans. Capital Reserve (J) 2,625, (i) T 1,750, (iif) ¥ 525, (w) 5235]

. A company issues 5,000 shares of the face value of ¥ 10 each, payible ¥ 3 on application,

% 3 on allotment, ¥ 2 on first calt and T 2 on final call. All the shares are subscribed and duly
allotted and both the calls are made. All ¢ash-is duly received, except the final call on 100
shares. These are subsequently forfeited by the directors and are resold as fully paid for ¥ 250.
Give entries necessary Io record these (ransactions in the company s journal.

' [Ans. Capital Reserve ¥ 50]

A company forfeited 490 shares of ¥ 10 each, on which B, the shareholder failed to pay aliotinent
of T 5 per share including a premium of ¥ 2 per share and final call of T 3 per share, These shares
were reissued at ¥ 8 per share. Pass journal entry regarding forfeiture and reissue of shares.

[Ans. Capital Reserve T 980]
A holds 290 shares of ¥ 10 each on whn:h he has paid ¥ 1 per share on application.

B holds 580 shares of ¥ 10 each on which he has paid¥ 1 and ¥ 2 per share on application and
allotment respectively.

C holds 870 shares of T 10 each and has pald ¥lon apphcatlon ¥ 2 on allotment and ¥ 3 on first
call.

They all fail to pay their arrears and the second call of T 2 per share. Shares are forfeited and
subsequently reissued at ¥ 11 per share as fully paid. Jowrnalise the above.

. [Ans..Capital Reserve ¥ 7,250]
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# STRUCTURE %%+ 5.

¥r Meaning of Debentures
wr Bond

% Types/Kinds of Debentures
¥ Ulility/Advantages of Debentureé
¥ Accounting for Issue of Debentures for Cash
@r Calls in Arrears ‘
v Calls Paid in Advance
¢ 'Over-Subscription of Debentures
Yt Issue of Debentures at Par
tc Issue of Debentures at Premium
% Debenture Interest

MEANING OF DEBENTURES -

The word ‘debenture’ has beep derived from a Latin word ‘debre’ which means to borrow.

Debenture is an instrument issued by the company acknowledging its debits to the holder
under its seal. Debentures carry interest at certain per cent. As it is a loan taken by the company,
it is repaid after ceriain specified period or at the option of the company as per the terms of their
issue. There are no legal restrictions on the price for which debentures are 1ssued Debentures may
be issued at par, at dlscount or at premium like shares.

According to section 2(30) of Companies Act, 201_3, debenture includes “debenture stock,
honds and any other securities of a company whether constituting a charge on assets of the company
or not”. In this way, important features of debenture may be summarised as under:

* Debentures are certificates acknowledging debt of a spécified amount to the person named in it.
+ -Periodic payment of interest at specified rate.
* Mentioning the period after which it will be redeemed.

* Mentioning details of security, if any.

Status of Debenture-holders

Debenture-holders are the creditors of the company. They are paid interest on their debentures |

regularly at fixed rate. It is usual practice to preﬁx the rate before debentures 1.e., 12% debentures.
Debenture-holders have priority as to their interest and refund of their Joan in case of winding
up of the company over shareholders. Debenture-holders are not concerned with the management
of the company. They are not involved in the administration and control of the company.

A debenture is a loan certificate issued by the company to its holders. The cormpany instead

of borrowing entire funds from an individual, divides the funds into certain small denominations
or parts. These parts are known as debentures. Suppose the Company wants to borrow T 10,00,000

Issue of Debentures
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as loan by issuing debentures, it may issue debentures of ¥ 100 each and thus 10,000 debentures
will be issued. In case of T 1,000 debentures only 1,000 debentures will be required for the loan of
¥ 10,00,000.

| BOND -

Bond. A bond is negotiable certificate evidencing indebtedness. It is normally unsecured.
A debt security is generaily issued by a company, municipality or government agency. A bond
investor lends money to the issuer and in exchange, the issuer promises to repay the loan amount on
a specified maturity date. The issuer usually pays the bondholder periodic interest payments over
the life of the loan. .

TYPES/KINDS OF DEBENTURES

Debentures may be classified as under:

» « From payment/tenure point of view:

(i) Redeemable debentures. The amount of the debentures whxch are to be repaid within certain
specified period as per the terms of their issue. ‘

(i) Irredeemable or perpetual debentures. These are perpetual debentures. The company has
no right to make the payment of the principal of these debentures during its life time. These
'debentures are repaid in case of winding up of the company.

» From transferability point of view

(i) Bearer debentures. These debentures are transferable by mere delivery. The name - of the
holder is not registered with the company. :

(if) Registered debentures. These debentures are not transferable by mere delivery. The names of
the debenture-holders are registered with the company.

« From safet_vlsecurlty pomt of view

(i) Simple or naked debentures. These debentures are not mortgaged and they are issued thhout
any charge on company’s assets. The issue of these debentures is not popular with the company.
These are unsecured debentures.

(i) Secured or martg&ged debentures. These debentures are secured by a charge on company’s
assets. This charge may be fixed or floating. )

(@) Fixed Charge: Charge created against specific assets held by enterprise is called fixed
charge. These assets are not meant for sale. On the basis of rank of order of payment,
charge may be classified as First charge/Second charge/Floating charge. It means that
the amount received from the sale of specific asset will be utilised for making payment '

. to first charge holder-and if there remains surplus it will be used for making payment
to second charge holders. Finally, if there is any surplus left it will be used in making
payment to floating charge holders,

(b) Floating Charge: The charge for which no specific assets are given is known as floating
charge. All assets except those given for specific charge to secured creditors are under
charge of such creditors. The claims of floating charge holders will be settled first before
making payment to unsecured creditors. Amount unpaid to second charge holders will be
added to unsecured creditors.



« From redemption point of view

Convertible and non-convertible debentures. In certain cases the company provides an option
to its debenture-holders to convert their holdings of debentures into shares after certain specified
period. As such, the debenture-holder becomes the sharehiolder i.e., the lender becomes the owner of

company. Debentures may be fully convertible partially convertible and non-convertible.

= From coupon point of view

The term coupon rate means a specified rate of interest on debentures. Debentures can be
classified into two categories from the point of view of coupon rate:

() Zero coupon rate debentures.

(#} Deep discount debentures.

-~

(i) Zero coupon rate debenture. These are the debentures which do not carry a specified rate of
interest. In order to compensate the debenture-holder for the fall in the value of money due to
price rise debentures are issued at discount and redeemable at par. For example, if the price level
index is 80 in 2011 and increases to 100 in 2013 then T 20 will be the fall in value of rupee. In
similar situation, if a debenture is issued at ¥ 80 in 2011 redeemable at T 100 in 2013, the investor
will be compensated for the fall in the value of money. However, the rate of interest remains nil
because ¥ 20 discount only compensate investor for the fall in value of money'but not the interest
eamed on debentures. Hence, it is called zero coupon rate debenture. The formula will be

Redeemable Price
a+°
As per the above example, issue price will be ¥ 80, redeemable price will be ¥ 100, 7 will

indicate the discounting rate for fall in value of money and n will indicate number of years debenture
is redeemable .

Issue Price =

g0 = 100
(1+9?

By solving the above equation, discount rate can be found out.

(i) Deep discount debenture. This concept is similar to the concept of zero coupon rate debenture
with the only difference that additional discount is offered on the issue price of the debenture to
benefit the investor over and above compensation for the fall in value of money due to price rise.
For example, price level index in the year 2011 is 80 and the price level index in the year 2013 is

" 100. If a debenture is issued at T 70 in 2011 redeemable at T 100 in 2013, there will be a discount
of ¥ 30. This discount will have two elements, T 20 as compensation for the fall in the value of
money and ¥ 10 as additional discount offered over and above the fall in value of money. Hence,
it will be called deep discount debenture.

= Collateral debentures

Debentures may also be issued to banks and financial institutions as an additional or subsidiary
security in addition to certain principal security. Lending institutions can exercise their right as
debenture-holders, if the company does not pay loan and the principal security falls short.

UTILITY/ADVANTAGES OF lDEBENTURES

Advantages to the Company

» Availability of necessary funds. If the company is not able to obtain the necessary funds by
issue of shares, it obtains the required amount by issue of debentures.

Issue of Debentures
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+ Non-interference in the management, Debenture-holders do not have votmg rights, so.they
cannot participate in the election of directérs who manage the company As such the management
of company is not disturbed by the presence of debenture-holders. .

* Fixed rate of interest. Intcrest is paid at prescribed ﬁxed rate to debenturée-holders, so the
company c¢an arrange the ameunt of interest in a planned way.

+ More dividend to shareholders. A good company after payment of interest at prescribed fixed
Jrate to debenture—holders declares dividend at higher rates to shareholders.

* Facility to retum funds. Debentures can be redeemed and the company can reduce the burden
of loan, if: the company becomes financially sound. ;

Difference, between Shareholders and Debenture-holder

v

Bases of Differcnce

their holdings,

Shareholders’ Debenture-holders
1. Meaning The sulgséribers to the shares are The subscribers to debentures are
: . shareholders, Shares are the parts of | debenture-holder, Debentures are
, share capital.. | parts of Joan. ’
2. Status | They are the owners of the They are the creditors of the
| company. .+ | company. . ]
3. Return Shareholders are paid dividend on | Debenture-holders are paid interest

on debentures held by them.

return

4. Regularity of

Dividends are paid, when there
is sufficient profits. The rate of
dividend is not fixed. Dividends are

'not the regular source of income.

Interest on debentures is paid at
fixed-rate regularly.

.

5. Security

Shares are not secured.

Debentures are ordinarily secured. ..

mellings

6. Right to attend.

Sharcholders are invited to attend
the annual general meeting of the
company. .

Debenture-holders ate not invited,
unless any decision affecting their

interest is taken.

7. -Repdymen;f

Share Capital is not returiied except
in case of redeemable preference
shares, :

Debentures being loan is repaid by .
the company,

refind

8. Priority of

In case of winding up of the
company, sharcholders funds
are refunded after every claim:is
settled.

Debenture-holders have a priority

of the refund of their loan pefor to
shareholders.

on Issue -

9. .Restriction -

There are cerlain restrictions on
issue of shares at discount.

There are no restrictions as to issue

| of debentures at discount.

10. Control

Shareholders control the affairs

of the company. It is managed by
the Board of Directors, the elected
representatives of the shareholders.

They are not involved in the

‘management and control of the

company.

Accounting for Issue of Debentures

Whenever debentures are issued, accounting entry needs to be made so that itisrecorded in the
books of account. Debentures can be issued either in cash or conslderatlon other than cash orasa
collateral security. In this section, we will study:




Issue of Debentures

(@) Accounting for Issue of Debentures
» Calls in Arrears
* Calls Paid in Advance _
» Over Subscription of Debentures ’ ' ' NOTES
» Issue of Debentures at Par '
« Issue of Debentures at Premium
+ Debenture Interest

(b) Issue of Debentures for consideration other than cash.

{(¢) Issue of Debenture as Collateral Security.

ACCOUNTING FOR ISSUE OF DEBENTURES FOR CASH

Issue of debentures is ordinarily the same as the issue of shares. The entire money can be

received in lump sum with the application or it can be received in certain instalments kncwn as
debenture application, debenture allotment and debenture calls. The following joumnal entries are

v

made regarding issue of debentures for cash:

L]

Issue of Debentures for Cash

Case A: If the entire amount is received in lump sum with the debenture application:
Bank A/c © Dr
To Debentures Application and Allotment A/c
(Being debenture money received) ]
Debenture Application and {\1 lotment A/c Dr.
To % Debenture A/c '
(Being transferred to debenture A/c)
Case B; If the value of debenture is received in certain instalments:

Step 1: On receiving debenture application
Bank Afc . . Dr. .
To Debenture Application Afc :
{Being application morey on—debentures (@ I-~per debenture received) . -
Step 2: On transferring debenture application to debentures account
Debenture Application Afc . ' Dr.
To % Debentures Alc .
(Being application money on—debentures @, T—per debenture transferred to
debentures A/c) :
Step 3: For making debenture allotment due .
"Debenture Allotment Alc . Dr.
To % Debentures Alc ! .
(Being allotment money on—debentures @ I—per debenture made dne)
Step 4: On receiving debenture allotment .
Bank A/c Dr.
To Debenture Allotment A/c -
(Being allotment money on—debentures @ T—per debenture received)
Step 5: For making debenture call due
Debenture Call Afc . ] Dr.
To % Debentures Afc ’
(Being call moncy on—debentures @ T—per debenture made due) -
Step 6: For Receiving Debenture Call _
Bank A/c ’ b Dr.
To Debentures Call A/c ‘
(Being call money on—debentures @ I—per debenture reéeived)
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Illustration 2 (Calls in Arrears on Deb'entures). Proficiency Limited issued 5,000
debentures of ¥ 100 each. The amount was payable as X 20 on application, T 30 on
allotment and % 50 on first and final call. All the debentures were applied for and money
duly received except final call on 200 debentures.

Pass necessary Journal Entries.

Solution. - In the Books of Proficiency Limited
. i Journal )
Date Particulars LF | Debit(X) | Credit )
Bank A/c Dr. 1,00,000
To Debenture Application A/c 1,00,000

(Being application money on 5,000 debentures

@3 20 per debenture received)

Debenture Application Afc Dr. 1,00,000
To Debentures Afc | 1,060,000

{(Being application money on 5,000 debentures

@7 20 per debenture transferred to debentures A/c) .

Debenture Allotment Afc . Dr. 1,50,000
To Debentures Afc : 1,50,000

(Being allotment money on 5,000 debentures

@ T 30 per debenture made due)

Barnk A/c ) Dr. 1,50,000
To Debenture Allotment A/c .1,50,000

(Being allotment money on 5,000 debentures ’

| @ 30 per debenture received)

h Debenture First and Final Call A/c Dr. | 2,50,000
To Debentures A/c 2,50,000

(Being final call money on 5,000 deberttures

@ T 50 per debenture made due)

Bank-Alc : Dr. 2,400,000
To Debenture First and Final Call A/c 2,40,000

(Being final call money on 4,800 debentures :

@I 50 per debenture received)

Working Notes

Treatment of Calls in Arrears. Debenture first and final call has been made due on 5,000 debentures
@ T 50 per debenture but it was received anly on 4,800 debentures, so the entry regarding receipt of
debenture final call has been made with the actual amount received i.e., 4,800 x 50 = 2:40.000.

CALLS PAID IN ADVANCE

Calls paid in Advance on debentures may be received on certain debentures before the call is
actually made due. Entries will be made in a fashion similar to the calls paid in advance on shares.
The interest payable on such calls in advance will depend upon the terms of issue of debentures or
on agreement between the company and the debenture-holders. Interest will be calculated for the
period, the advance has been received. Journal entries regarding calls in advance on debentures is
explained with the following illustration.-

lustration 3 (Calls paid in Advance and. Calls in Arrears on Debentures).
Efficiency Limited issued 15,000 debentures of T 100 each, payable ¥ 15 on application,

Issue of Debentures
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’

X 25 on allotment dnd T 60 on Sfinal call. All the debentures were applied. A, the applicant

* of 100°debentures paid the entire amount on his holding on allotment and B, the holder

of 200 debentures failed to pay the allotment and final call.
Pass necessary Journal Entries, ' :

Solution. o In the Books of Efficiency Limited
Journal ’
Dare ) Particulars 1 LE| Debit@ | Credi ®)
Bank A/c ' Dr. 2,25,000

To Debenture Application A/c * . 2,25,000
(Being application money on 15,000 debentures B
@R IS5 per debenture received) -
Debenture Application A/c Dr. 2,25,000

To Debentures A/c : 2,25,000
(Being application money on 15,000 debentures ' s
@3 IS per debenture transferred to debentures account)
Debenture Allotment Alc . Do 3,75,000
_ ToDebentures Ae .. ' 3,75,000
(Being allotment money on 15,000 debentures
@ X 25 per debenture made due)

BankA/c - . Dr. 376,000
Calls in Arrear Afc. . . Dr. 5,000 C
To Debenture Allotment A/c . ' 3,75,000
“To Calls paid in Advance on Debenturés Afc o ' 6,000,

(Being allotment money on 14,800 debentures @325

per debenture received. Calls money on 100 debentures .

@ZX 60 per debenture received in advance)

Debenture First and Final Call A/c B Dr. 9,00,000 .
To Debentures Ale ' 9,00,000"

(Being final call money on 15,000 debentures ' ‘

@3 60 per debenture made due)

Bank A/c R ) Dr. 8,82,000
Calls Paid in Advance on Debenture Afc ) Dr| 6,000

To Debenture Final Call Afc : : 8,88,000

(Being final call money on 14,800 debentures @3 60 per -
debenture after adjusting calls paid in advance received)

iy

Working Note .

Calls paid in advance aceount will be credited when the allotment is received. It will remain as calls paid in
advance and shown at other Current Liabilities of Revised Schedule IV of Balance Shicet, so far the call is not
made due. Calls paid in advance account will be written off ot closed by debiting, when the call is received.

Hlustration 4 G Lid., issued 75.00,000, 6% Debenture of T 50 each dt par payable
¥ 15 on application and ¥ 35 on allotment, redeemable at par gafter 7 years from the date
of issue of debenture. Record necessary-entries in the books of Company. -

Solution. - - Books of G. Ltd.
. ] : . Jqurnal- )
Date | - Particulars . LF Debit. (%) . Credit (D)
| Bank A/c Dr 11,25,00,000 ’

To 6% Debenture Application Afc . 11,25,00,060

(Application money @ ¥ 15 each received
Jor 75,00,000 debentures) ‘




Issue of Debentures

6% Debenture Application A/c Dr. 11,25.00.000 .
To 6% Debenture Afc 11,25,00,000
(Application money of 75,00,600 :
debentures transferred to 6% Debentures
Account) .
6% Debenture Allotment Afc Dr. 26,25,00,000
To 6% Debentures Alc . ' 26,25,00,000
(Allotment money @3 35 each due for T
75,00,000 debentures)
Bank A/c Dr. 26,25.00,000
To 6% Debenture Allotment Afc 26,25,00,000

(Alotment money received @ X 35 each on
75,00,000 debentures)

NOTES

OVER-SUBSCRIPTION OF DEBENTURES

Meaning

In case, applications are received for more debentures than issued, it is known as over-
subscription. Application ‘money received on over applied debentures is returned, if the company
rejects application for certain number of debentures or adjusted towards allotment and calls as per | - ;
the decision of the company.

Accounting Treatment

In case of refunding application money the following entry is passed:

Debenture Application Afc Dr.
To Bank Afc
" (Being refund of debenture application money on debentures @ T ....ouee.s per debenture)

In case, certain applicant is allotted lesser number of debentures, his application money on
unallotted debentures is transferred to debenture allotment and calls. Requisite journal entry is
made as under: | _ ‘

Debenture Application Alc Dr.

To Debenture Allotment Afc
To Debenture Call AJc ‘

(Being transfer of application money on debentures @ T ............. per debenture to

allotment and calls) -

This can be further explained by the following illustration:

Illustration 5 (Over-subscription on Debentures). A Company‘ Limited issued
20,000 debentures of ¥ 100 each, payable T 10 on application, T 30 on allotment and
balance on first-and final call.

Applications were received for 24,000 debentures. Ram, the applicant of [,000
debentures was refused allotment and Mohan, the applicant of 8,000 debentures was
allotted 5.000 debentures. Excess application money was adjusted towards allotment.

Pass necessary Journal Entries.

v

v
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Solution. - In the Books of A Compaﬁy Limited
. . ) Journal
-Date " Particulars LFE | Debit®) Credit (3)
Bank A/c Dr. 2,40,000
To Debenture Application A/c : 2,40,000

(Being application money on 24,000 debentures
@3 10 per debenture received)

Debenture Application A/c Dr. 2,40,000
To Debentures A/c - . 2,00,000
To Debenture Allotment A/c 30,000
To Bank A/c 10,000

(Being application money on 20,000 debentares
@ T 10 each transferred to debentures Ac, on
1,000 debentures @ % 10 returned and the balance
transferred to allotment)
Debenture Allotment A/c Dr. 6,00,000
To Debentures A/c 6,030,000
(Being allotmeént money on 20,000 debentures
@3 30 per debenture made due)
Bank A/c Dr. | 570,000
To Debenture Allotment A/c 5,70,000
(Being allotment money on 20,000 debentures
@ T 30 per debemure, except allotment received in
advance, received)

Debenture First and Final Call A/c Dr. 12,00,000
To Debentures A/c . "1 12,00,000

(Being final call money on 20,000 debentures
@ X 60 per debenture made due) ]

Bank A/c Dr. 12,00,000
- To Debenture First and Final Call A/c 12,00,000

(Being final call on 20,000 debentures @ T 60 per
debenture received)

Working Note

Over-subscription on application has been returned on 1,000 debentures as they were refused allotment,
Mohan, the applicant for 8,000 debentures was allotted only 5,000 debentures. His excess application money
on unallotted debentures ie.. 3,000 x 10 = 30,000 transferred to allotment. While receiving allotment,
advance for allotment has been deducted:

ISSUE OF DEBENTURES AT PAR

Debentures can be issued at par which indicates the face value or registered price of a debenture.
This is a normal case of issuing a ¥ 100/- debenture at the same price without charging any premium
or discount on the face value of ¥ 100/-. Generally, new companies or companies having limited
presence in Capital market go for this option of debenture issue.

ISSUE OF DEBENTURES AT PREMIUM

Meaning

Debentures can be issued at a price, more than their face value. The excess of issue price over
the face value of debentures is the premium. The premium is the gain for the company, so it is



credited to securities premium account, when the instalment containing premium is made due. The
instalment is received including premium.,

Accounting Treatment
Premium on issue of debentures is a capital gain, so it is shown under the head ‘Reserve and
Surplus’ of Schedule III of Balance Sheet, The premium can be utilised in meeting capital losses.
The journal entry regarding securities premium is as under:
For making instalment containing premium due
Debenture Allotment A/c . Dr.

To % Debentures Alc } B

To Securities Premium reserve A/c
(Being allotment money on... debentures @R ......including premium made due.)

While receiving Debenture applicat-ion Securities Premium A/c will neither be debited nor
credited. Ordinarily premium is called up when Debenture Allotment is made due. If premium is
received with application, Securities Premium Account is credited while transferring Debenture
application money to Debentures Account. In case, the premium is called up with calls, it will be
credited when call is made due.

Issue of debentures at premium is explained through the following illustration:

Hlustration 6 (Issue of Debentures at Premium). X Y Z Company Lid. issued
10,000, 10% debentures of T 100 each at a premium of X 3, payable as follows:
On Application T 40 (including Premium)
On Allotment 65 -
All the debentures were subscribed for and the money was duly received..

Pass necessary Journal Entries to record the ahove issue of debentures.

Solution. In the Books of X Y Z Company Limited
Journal )
Date Particulars . LE | Debit ) Credit %)
Bank A/c Dr. 400,000
To Debenture Application Afc 4,00,000

(Being application money on 10,000 debentures
@ T 40 incinding a premium of X § per debenture

‘received)

Debenture Application Aflc - ' Dr. 4,00,000
To 10% Debentures A/c 3,50,000
To Securities Premium A/c 50,000

(Being application money on 10,000 debentures

transferred to debentures A/c and securities

premium A/c)

Debenture Allotment A/c Dr. 6,50,000
To 10% Debentures Afc 6,50,000

(Being allotment moncy on 10,000 debentures ’

@3 65 per debenture made due)
Bank A/c Dr. 6,50,000

To Debenture Allotment A/c . . | 6,50,000
(Being allotment money on 10,000 debentures
@ T 65 per debentiire received)

Issue of Debentures
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DEBENTURE INTEREST

Meaning

Debenture interest is.an obligation of issuer ‘company to pay ‘fixed rate’ of interest to the
debentureholders. The interest is paid till the repayment of debenture. The interest is calculated on
the face value of the debenture.

interest T 10 (i.e., 100 x 11“606.) is payable per debenture every year till the maturity of debenture term.

For example, if a compar_fy_ issues T 100 face value of debentures at an interest of 10%, then

Treatment of Debenture Interest

1. Debenture interest is a charge against the profit of the company. It is debited to profit and loss
account. ‘

2. The company must deduct income tax at a prescribed rate from: interest. payable on
debentures if it exceeds the prescribed limit. According to Income Tax Act 1961, it is
calied Tax Deducted at Source (T, DS). |

Accounting Treatment

The following Journal entries are recorded in the books of a company in connection with
the interest on debentures: ’

1. When interest is due .
Debenture Interest A/c : Dr.
Ta TDS Payable A/c ‘
To Debentureholders A/c

(Being amount of interest due on debentuie and T. DS deducted at source)

2. For amount of interest to debenturcholders
Debentureholders A/c ’ Dr.
~ ToBank A/c -
(Being amount of interest paid to debenturéholde;'s)
3. On transfer of debenture interest account to statement of profit and loss
Statement of Pr‘oﬁt and Loss Dr.
_To Debenture Interest A/c
(Being débenture interest transferred to statement of profit and loss)
4. On payment of tax deducted at source to government
TDS Payable A]c ‘ | . : " 7 Dr
To Bank A/c .

(Being payment of TDS deducted at source on interest on debentures) .

Ilustration T W Ltd., issued 5,000, 10% debentures of X 100 each on January 1,
2018 at a discount of 10% redeemable at a premium of 10%. Give journal entries relating .
to the issue of debentures and debenture interest Jor the period ending December 31,
2018 asswming that interest was paid half ‘yearly on June 30, and December 31, and tax
deducted at source is 10%. W Ltd., Jollows calender year as its accounting year.



Solution. 1n Books of ¥ Ltd.

Journal

Date

Particulars

LF

Debit (3)

Credit (3)

1.1.18

30.6.18

311218

31.12.18

31.12.18

31.12.18

Bank A/c *

To Debenture Aplecatlon & Allotment Afe
(Being application rece:ved on 5,000, 10%
debentures) :

Debentures Application & Allotment Afc
Loss on Issue of Debenture Afc -

To 10% Debentures Afc )

To Premium on Redemption of Debenture Afc
(Being allotment of debentirres at a discount of 10%
and redeemable at a premium of 10%)

Dr.

Debentures Interest Afc
To Debenturcholders Afc
To TDS Payable Alc”
(Being interest due for 6 months and tax deducted at

source)

Debentureholders Afc
To Bank A/c
(Being payment made for interest)

Debenture Interest A/c

To Debentureholders Afe

To TDS Payable Afc
(Being interest transferred to debenturefiolder .
account and tax payablie)

Dr.

Debentureholders A/c
To Bank Afc
(Being payment made for interest)

TDS Payable A/c

To Bank A/c
(Being payment made for tax deducted at source fo
the government) -

Statement of Profit and Loss

To Debenture Interest Afc
{Being debenture interest transferred o Statement of
Profit and Loss)

Dr.

4,50,000

4,50,000
1,00,000

25,000

22,500

25,000

22,500

5,000

50,000 -

4,50,000

5,00,000
50,000

22,500
2,500

22,500
22,500

2,500

22,500

5,000

' 50,000

Illustration 8 BG Lid. issued 2,000, 12% debentures of T 100 each on Ist Apr"r'l,
2012. The issue was fully subscribed. According to the terms of issue, interest on the
debentures is payable half-yearly on 30th September and 31st March and the tax deducted
af source is 10%. Pass necessary journal entries related to the debenture interest for the

half-yearly ending 31st March, 2013 and transfer of interest on debentures of the year to
the Statement of Prof t and Loss.

Issue of Debentures
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Solution, . Books of BG Ltd, -
Journal )
Date Particiiars LFE | Debit(%) | Credit 3)
NOTES 2013 Interest on Debentures A/c .Dr. 12,000
March 31 To Debenturcholder’s Afc , 10,800
To TDS Payable Alc 1,200
{Being half Yearly Interest due on debemures and tax
deducted at source)
, March 31 | Debentureholder’s Afc Dr. 10,800
- To Bank A/c . -10,800
- | (Being Payment of Interest) ’
March 31 | TDS Payahle A/c Dr. 1,200
** To Bank Alc - . 1,200
' (Bemg TDS deposited with Income Tax authorities)
March 31 . | Statement of Profit & Loss ) Dr, 24,000
. - To Interest on Debentures A/c 24,000
. ) “(Being Interest transferred to statement of Profit & .-
Loss) ’
SUMMARY

= Debentures. Debentures are loan certificates acknowledging the debt of a specified
amount mertioning the rate of interest, period of loan and details of securities.

+ Bonds. Bonds are similar to debentures in terms of contents and texture. The basic
difference is regarding interest. Bonds can be issued without predetermined rate of
interest. ) .

= Zero Coupon Rate Debenture. The discount compensating only for the fall of value if
money- is termed as zero coupon rite debentures. It does not specify rate of interest.

+ Convertible Bord. A bond giving the investor the option to convert the bond into equity -
shares at a fixed conversion price.

» Deep Discount Bond. The bond which is heavily- discounted and does not carry
predetermined rate of interest is deep discount bond. The discount here compensate
for the fall in value of money and interest.

» Charge. Charge is an obligation under trust deed to mortage specific asset by way of
first or second of floating charge.

+ Debenture Trust Deed. The document created by company to appoint trustees to protect
the interest of debenture-holders is known as Debenture Trust Deed. The company
. can make public issue of debentures after the appointment of Debenture Trustees.

» Types of Debentures. Redeemable and Irredeeméble Bearer and Registered, Simple or
Naked and Secured or Mortgage, Convertible and Non—convemble and Co]lateral

. Advantages of Debentures,

(1) Availability of necessary funds (ii) Non-interference in the managerﬂent (#fi) Fixed
rate of interest (/v) More dividend to shareholders (v) Facility to return funds.

282 Self-Instructional Material




« ‘Bases of Difference between Share (Equity) and Debentures,

" 1. Meaning 2. Return 3. Assured return 4. Security 5. Rep.;ayment 6. Status. ‘

Bases of Difference between Share-holders and Debenture-holders

(1) Meaning (2) Status (3) Return (4) Regularity of retum (5) Security (6) Right to-attend meetings
(7) Repayment (8) Priority of refund (9) Restriction on issue (10) Control.

Accounting for Issue of Debentures for Cash,

Debentures can be issued at par, at premium and at discount like shares, These debentures
may also be payable in certain instalments known as debenture application, debenture
allotment and debenture calls. In these cases the journal entry is the same as we have
been passing in case of issue of shares. The simple difference is that the word share
is substituted by debentures i.e., share application is known as debenture application
and so on. Share. Capital is replaced by the word debentures. It is customary that

the rate of interest on debentures is used as prefix before the word debenture just as -

12% Debentures.

If debentures are issued at premium and at discount and the amount is payable in certain
instalments we repeat the procedures followed in case of issue of shares with the
simple difference as explained above.

REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions:

L.

._.
e

11.

e A A

What is meant by debenture?

Define redeemable debentures.

What is meant by conve-rtible debenture?

Define a bond. .

In what respect a debenture is different from bond?
What do you mean by charge?

What is a bearer debenture? _
Mention one point of difference between share and debenture.
What islzero coupon rate? .

What is coupon rate debenture?

What is meant by ‘Convertible Debentures’?

B. Short Answer Type Questions:

1.

A o

Explain different.types of debentures on the basis of tenure and security.
Differentiate between shareholder and debenture-holder. '

Explain briefly the advantages to the company by iSSue.of debentures.

Differentiate between debenture calls in arrears and debenture calls in advance.

How will you deal with over subscription on debenture?

What journal entry will you.pass, if ¥ 40,000 12% debentures were issued at a discount
of 5% and repayable at a premium of 5%?

What is meant by debentures? Name any four types of debentures.

Issue of Debentures
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C. Long Answer Type Questions:

1.

What do you mean by debenture? Describe bneﬁy various types of debentures.

2. Discuss the accounting treatment of issue of debentures to vendors-against assets at par,

Practical Questions

1.

premium and dlSCOUDt

4

A company issued 15,000, 12% debentures of ¥ 100 each, payable ¥ 10 on application,
¥ 40 on allotment, T 25 on first call and the balance ¥ 25 on final call. All the money
was received when due. Pass necessary Journal Entries.

Xrz Company Ltd issued 18,000, 10% debentures of T 100 each at a premlum of
¥ 5, payable as follows:

On Application T 40 (including Premium)
On Allotment . T 65 N ‘
All the debentures were subscribed for and the money was duly received.
Pass necessary Journal Entries to record the above issue of debentures.
Raj limited plirchases furniture costing T 6,60,000. It was a'gfced that the purchase consideration
be paid by issue of 15% debentures of ¥ 100 each. Assume debentures have been issued
(i) at par (ii) at a premium of 10%.

[Ans. Number of debentures to be issued (7) 6,600 (u') 6,000]
A company borrows ¥ 5,00,000 from the bank and deposits debentures worth ¥ 5,50,000

as collateral security (in addition to certain other prmclpal security). Make its accounting
treatment.

Swastik Ltd., issued 16,000, 8% Debentures of T 100 each. Assuming that all the debentures
issued are taken up and paid for, pass the Journal Entries in the books of the company in each
of the following cases:

(i) The Debentures are issued at T 90 cach.

(i) The Debentures are isstieq ata prerﬁium of 10%.
(7ify The Debentures are issued to a supplier of ﬁ.l.mitm'e amounting to ¥ 17,00,000.



caapTER 14 ACCOUNTING RATIOS

STRUCTURE

[ntroduction
Ratio and Accounting Ratio
Classification of Accounting Ratio

Profitahility Ratios

¥ R W oR %

Turnover or Peri‘ormance.or Activity Ratios

pAg

Financial Ratios

g

Solvency Ratios

INTRODUCTION

Accounting ratio is one of the methods of analysing financial statements. It has been our

experience that financial statements in their original form are collection of monotonous figures. The
statemnents are detailed and do not present the required information at a glance. Accountants have to
toil very hard in digging out the needed information. Accounting ratios are therefore, an attempt to
present the information of the financial statements in simplified, systematised and summarised form.
Accountants introduced ratio analysis to meet this end. : . -

Ratio analysis measures the profitability, efficiency and financial soundness of the business.
The relationship between two facts i.e., gross profit and sales or current assets and current liabilities
is.studied and the result is presented in the form of simple ratios.

RATIO AND ACCOUNTING RATIO

Meaning of Ratio and Accounting Ratio

The dictionary meaning of ratio is “a figure showing the number of times one quantity contains
another: It is used tv show the relationship benween fwo amounts.” A ratio is an arithmetical
expression of relationship between two items. When ratios are calculated on the basis of accounting
information, they are called “Accounting Ratios”,

Meaning of Ratio Analysis

Ratio analysis refers to a technique of analysing the financial statements by computing
various types of ratios, In simple words, it is a process of determining and interpreting relationship
between the items of financial statements to provide a meaningful result of the performance and
financial position of a business. According to Myeres, “Ratio analysis is a study of relationship
.among various financial factors in a business.”

Accounting Ratios

NOTES
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CLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS

Classification of ratios depends upon the objectives for which they are calculated, It
may also depend upon the availability of data. Analysis of financial statement is made with
a view to ascertain the efficiency and financial souridness of the company, as such ratios can
be classified on the basis of profitability, turnover and financial capability.

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

_Proﬁiability refers to the ability of the business to earn profit. It shows the efficiency of the '
business. These ratios measure the profit earning capacity of the company. Profitability has direct
link with sales. This is why, we calculate these ratios on the basis of sales. Return on investments
and capital is calculated on the basis of capital employed. The proﬁtablllty of the business can be’
measured with the following ratios.

1. Gross Profit Ratio !

- It shows the relationship between the Gross Profit and Revenue from Operations (Net Sales). This
ratio shows the margin of gross profit on revenue, In order to calculate this ratio we require gross
profit and revenue. Gross profit, if not given, can be calculated on the basis of the following formula:

. Gross Profit
(ross Profit Ratio = ; - x
. Revenue from Operations
Gross Profit = Revenue from Operations — Cost of Revenue from Operations
-Cost of Revenue = Cost of materials consumed + purchase of stock-in-trade- +
from Operations change in Inventories (Finished Goods; Work-in-progress and
or Stock-ln trade) + Direct Expenses

Cost of Goods Sold ' Or _

Opening Inventories + Net Purchases + Direct Expenses —

Closing Inventories.

Or

Revenue from Operations — Gross Profit.

Gross Profit can be ascertained by preparing Trading Account also. The ferm revenue JSrom
operations means sales less sales return. If sales return is not given, sales will be assumed 1o be net
sales. The formula for its calculation is as under:

Gross Profit

Bt ratio = - x 100
Grass profit ratio Revenue from Operations - .

Note: If, direct Expenses are not given, it is assumed that there are no direct expenses.

lustration 1 -Calculate gross profit ratio if:” -

Gross profit = 40,000
Sales .- = 2,20,000
Sales return = 20,000
’ G Profit 40,000
Solution. Gross profit ratio = o - x 100 = ——— x 100 = 20%.
Revenue from Operations 2,00,000

| Note. Revenue from operations = Sales — Sales Return = 2,20,000 — 20,000 =% 2,00,000.



Accounting Ratios
Purpose of Gross Profit Ratio
The purpose is to measure the gross profit in terms of total sales-of the company:

Ilustration 2 Calculate gross profit ratio from the following:

NOTES

S. No. Trems : Amount )
1. | Opening Inventories . 36,000
2 Purchases 1,50,000
3. | Returns outwards 20,000
4. | Wages ’ _ 10,000
5. | Revenue from Operations 2,350,000
6. | Closing Inventories 40,000
Solution.

Gross Profit
Revenue from Operations

" Gross Prdﬁt Ratio = x 100 -

Gross Profit = Revenue from Operations — Cost of Revenue from Operations

Cost of Revenue from Operations = Opening Inventories + Purchases - Returns outwards + Wages
— Closing Inventories

=¥ 50,000 +% 1,50,000 — ¥ 20,000 + % 10,000 - ¥ 40,000

= % 1,50,000
Gross Profit = ¥ 2,50,000 — ¥ 1,50,000
=% 1,00,000
"Gross Profit Ratio = Gross Profit x 100

Revenue from Operations

= M x 100 = 40%
2,50,000

2. Net Profit Ratios

This ratio establishes relationship between net profit and net sales. Net profit or net income is
the gross profit less selling, distribution and financial expenses. Net profit, for calculating this ratio
is picked up from the statement of Profit and Loss. It should be noted that the net profit is ascertained
after adding operation and non-operating income to Gross Profit and deducting both operating and
non-operating expenses therefrom. We can understand Net profit better in this way.

Net Profit = Gross Profit + Operating and Non-operating income (-) Operating and Non-
operating expenses.

Operating Income. Income eamed in the ordinary life of the business from trading activities
such as Gross Profit, Discount on creditors, Interest on drawings and Sale of scraps etc.

Non-operating Income. It includes income from non-trading operations, such as, refund of |
tax, interest and dividend received. Gain on sale of assets, compensation received etc.

Operating Expenses. It includes selling, administrative and distribution expenses incurred in
the day-to-day affairs of the business.

Non-operating Expenses. These expenses include all financial expenses such as interest on
" debentures dividend, depreciation, loss on sale of assets, abnormal loss such as loss by fire, discount
or loss on issue of shares and-debentures, goodwill and preliminary expenses written off, reserves,
dividend and interest paid etc.
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Net profit ratio can be calculated on the basis of the.following formula:

. Net Profit .
Net Profit Ratio = : x 100 ’
Revenue from Operations . '

Ilustration'3 Net Profit = ¥ 24,000
Revenue from Operations = T 2,00,000, Calculate Net Profit Ratio,

Net Profit N _ 24,000

= 0,
Revenue from Operations 2,00,000 % 100=12%.

Solution. Net Profit Ratio =

Purpose of Net Profit Ratio .
The purpt;se of this ratio is to measure the net profit in relation to the net sales‘of the business.

liustration 4’ Calculate (¢) Operating Profit’ ratio and (5) Net profit ratio in the
following cases:

(i) Net Profit . X 15,000
Revenue from Operations I ¢ 80,000
(if) Net Profit before interest 320,000
Net Profit after interest T 17,000
Revenue from Operations ' % 2,00,000
: ‘ . - Net Profit :
Solution. (i) (@) Operating Profit Ratio = Revente from Operations x 100
-2 00 is 75%
~ 80,000 ST

(6) Net Profit ratio will also be the same, because cperating expenses and operating income are
not given separately. B

(if) () Operating Profit Rati Net Profit before Interest -
eratin 0= -
ii) (a) Op g Frolit Rat Revenue from Operations

20,000
~ 2,00,000

% 100 = 10%.

| Note. Interest excluded because it is non-operating expenses.

Net Profit after Interest 17,000

x100= ———— x 100=85%
Revenue from Operations 2,00,000 8.5%

() Net Profit Ratio =

Concept of Income Tax

Income Tax is an direct tax which is paid by the firms and also borne by them. 1t is calculated
on the net profit, This is why, Net profit is classified as Profit before tax (PBT) and Profit after tax
(PAT). We can calculate, net profit ratio before tax and after tax, so its formula may be:

Net Profit Ratio:
. ) PBT
- (§) Net profit before tax ratio = Revenue from Operations x1
PAT

ii) Net profit after tax ratio = - %1
(i) Net prof Revenue from Operations -

Here Revenue from Operations (Net Sales) = Revenue from Operations (Gross Sales) — Sales Tax
and Sales Retumns., - . - |

INlustration 5 From the following data, calculate Net Profit Ratio.
Gross sales T 20,00,000 )

Sales Tax 7% on Gross Sales




Income Tax 40%
Profit before tax 4,00,000

Solution. Revenue from Operations = Gross Sales — Sales Tax

I

7
% 20,00,000 | =
[100 ] Z 18,60,000

4,00,000

I

Profit before tax (PBT)

40
Income tax = Too x.4,00,00 =% 1,60,000

4,00,000 - 1,60,000 =¥ 2,40,000

i

Profit after tax

Net Pr-ofit Ratio:

; . . BT 4,00,000
(i) Net Profit before tax ratio: P — x 100 = 400,090 x 100 = 21.5%
Revenue from Operations 18,60,000
s PA 2,40,000
(i) Net Profit after tax ratio: T - % 100 = ———— x 100 = 12.9%.
. Revenue from Operations 18,60,000
.| Note. PBT means net profit before tax and PAT means nel proﬁr'afler tax. '

3. Operating Ratio
Operating ratio indicates the ratio of operational cost to the sales, Operating cost consists of cost

of goods sold and other operating expenses. Operational efficiency of the business will be more in
case of lesser operating ratio and vice versa. The ratio can be calctlated on the basis of the following

formula:

Operating Cost

Operating Ratio -
P g £ Revenue from Operation

Operating Cost =  Cost of Revenue from Operations + Operating Expenses
Cost of Revenue =  Cost of materials consumed + purchase of stock-in-trade + change
from Operations in Inventory (Finished Goods; Work in Progress & Stock-in-trade) +
Direct Expenses
Or
Opening Inventories + Net Purchases + Direct Expenses — Closing
Inventories
Or
Revenue from Operations — Gross Profit
Operating Expenses =  Employees Benefit expenses + Depreciation + Other expenses

Other Expenses =  Office, Administrative, Selling and Distribution Expenses etc.

Operating expenses do not include loss on sale of assets, depreciation, reserve maintained and
goodwill written off ete. These expenses mear, only those expenses which are concerned with the
day-to-day affairs of the business.

Operating ratio is also related to net profit ratio. As such it can also be calculated by the
following formula:

Operating ratio = 100% — Net profit ratio.

In other words:

Operating Ratio + Operating profit ratio = 100%

[N
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The true efficiency of the business is increasing net profit ratio and decreasing operating ratjo.
An increase in the operating ratio means increased operating cost, which is against the interest of the
company. ' '
Purposé of Operating Ratio

The purpose is to calculate operating expenses in relation to total sales of the company.

Iiustration 6 -
From the following Calculate operating Ratio ) )
S. No. : . Htems Amount (T)
L Cost of Revenue from Operations - 50,000
2 Revenue from Operation . 150,000
| other Operating Expenses 20,000
Solution.
Operating Ratio = Operating Cost x 100

Revenue from Operation

50,000 + 20,000
= —*0-— x 100 =46.67%
1,50,000 .
Operating Profit Ratio

The ratio establishes relationship between operating net profit and net sales. Operating proﬁt.
is ascertained as under; ’

Operating Profit=Net Profit as per Profit and Loss + Non-operating expenses ~ Non-operating
income ' .

Alternatively. Gross Profit + Operating income — Operating expenses

Operating Profit Ratio = Operating Pmﬁt_
. Revenue from Operations

Operating Profit = Net Profit (After Tax) + Non-Operating Expenses/Losses — Non-

Operating Incomes

Or
. Gross Profit + Other Operating Incomes — Other Operating

Expenses
Non-Operating = Fimance cost + Other Non-Operating Expenses
Expenses ’
Finance cost ' = Interest on Long-Term

- Borrowings ete,

Other Non-Operating = Loss on sale of Non-Current
Expenses ' ' Assets etc.
Non-Operating Incomes = Qther Incomes
Other Income = Interest received on investments + Profit of sale of Non-Current

Assets efc.



Hiustration 6 From the following calculate:
() Net Profit Ratio
() Operating Profit Ratio

S. No. Items Amount (%)
1. | Revenue from Operations 2,00.000
2. Gross Profit 75,000
3 Office Expenses 15,000
4, Selling Expenses 26,000
5. Interest on Debentures . 35,000
6. Accidental losses 12,000
7. " | Income from Rent 2,500
8. Commission received ‘ 2,000
Solution. _ -
(@) Net Profit Ratio RevenueN fi(t)rl:lr(())fgeraﬁ s
Net Profit " Gross Profit — Indirect expenses and losses
+ Other incomes
Indirect expenses and losses Office expenses + Selling expenses + Interest on
debentures + Accidental losses
% 15,000 +3 26,000 +3 5,000 + T 12,000
) ¥58,000
Other incomes Commission received + Income from rent
' %2,000 +% 2,500 _
4,500 - ‘
Net profit ¥ 75,000 — T 58,000 + ¥ 4,500 '
. T21,500 '
Revenue from Operations ¥2,00,000 ' h >
Net Profit Ratio 21500456 _10.75%
.. - 2,00,000 )
(b))  Operating Profit Ratio Rcvegf:’f‘::;gg;:f;ions % 100 °
Operating Profit Gross Profit + Other Operating Income — Other

Revellnue from Operations

Operating Profit Ratio

. Operating Expenses
75,000 +% 2,000 - 15,000-F 26,000
7 36,000 :
¥ 2,00,000
36,000 a0
= 3,00,000 <100=18%

4. Return on Investment or Return on Capital Emplnyed or Yield on Capital

This is one of the most important ratios for the measure of overall profitability. It indicates

the relationship of net profit with capital employed in the business. Here, return for calculating
return on investment will mean the net profit before interest, tax and preference dividend. Net
profit means net profit of the year excluding undivided profit and reserves. Investment, here means

capital employed meaning long term funds which consists of the following:
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Return on Investment of Return on Capital Employed

Net Profit before Interest and Tax % 100 P
Capital Employed :

.NOTES. . Capital Employed may be calculated by any of the following two Methods.

(1) Liabilities Side Approach : (2) Assets Side Approach
Shareholders Funds (Share Capital + Reserves | Non-Current Assets +
and surplus) + Non-Current liabilities (Long- | Working Capital
term borrowings + Long-term Provisions) Non-Current Assets =

Tangible Assets + Intangible Assets + Non-Cur-
rent investments + Long-term Loans & Advances
Working Capital = Current Assets-Current
Liabilities . )

Note: It is assumed that all Investments are Trade Investments.

Illustratfon 8

~ From the following calculate Return on Investment (or Refurn on Ca;;ital Employed)

S.No. |- . Items Amount %)
L Share Capital ; 50,000
2. "7 | Reserves and Surplus . 25,000
3. | Net Fixed Assets ) 2,25,000
- 4. Non Current Trade Investments 25,000
- 5. Current Assets ’ 1,10,000
6. 12% Long-term borrowings 2,00,000
7 Current Liabilities 85,000

Net Profit before tax ¥ 60,000. s -

Solution.

Return on Investment or Return on Capital Employed
— Net Profit before Interestand Tax , 109

Capital Employed
Net Profit before interestand tax = ¥ 60,000 + T 24,000
= ¥ 84,000
Capital Employed = Share Capital + Reserves and Surpluses +12% long
term borrowings
N = ¥ 50,000 + ¥ 25,000 + ¥ 2,00,000
= ¥2,75,000
Return on Investment or. Return on Capital Employed
) = 2—?;—'5’% x 100 = 30.54%
. ) Uses of Return on Investment
(i) Return on Investnent is a very s:gmﬁcan! ratio for measuring operanon eﬂ?crency of the
management.’
(i) It measures overall profitability of the business. .

(ifi) It is used for comparing the performance.of the di ﬁérenr depar:‘mems and sections of the
enterprise.

(iv) It can also be used to compare the profitability of the firm with other firms of the industry. '
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(v) Return on Investment helps in making investment decisions. -
(vi) It also assists in planning capital structure of the company. It enables the enterprise in
deciding the ratio of various long term sources in the capital structure of the company.

(vii) Return on Investment helps in determining the price of the product.

.

TURNOVER OR PERFORMANCE OR ACTIVITY RA’I:IOS

Turnover means ‘sales®, so turnover ratios are related to sales. It is an accepted fact that sales
has direct relationship with the performance of the business. Higher sales means better performance,
which really means better eﬂicxency and productivity of the business. ngher sales also means more
production, which is undoubtedly the result of the best possible utilisation of physical resources
i.e., material, machine, and active participation 6f human resource. In this way, words turnover,
performance and activity are synonymous. These three words carry the same sense. In other words,
more sales means the business is more active and has better performance.

Lesser sale shows inactivity of the business, poor performance and lesser ‘productivity. All
business activities revolve round the sales. It is the sales budget, which is prepared first of all.
Production budget is made to produce the desired quantity of goods, required for sale. Production
concerns raw material workers, machines, tools, equipments and management. Every company
should try to multiply its sales, because it is an indicator of all round development of the business.

Kinds of Turnover Ratios

Turnover ratios consist of the following important ratios:
ON Stock or Inventory tumover ratio

(i) Working capital turnover ratio A

(i) Trade Receivables turover ratio

(iv) Payable turnover ratio

(v) Fixed assets turnover ratio

(vi) Current assets turnover ratio

1. Stock or Inventory Turnover Ratio

This ratio establlshes relationship between cost of goods sold and average Inventory and reflects
the speed of turning over the stock into sales. '

This ratio is calculated as under:

(a) Inventory .= Cost of Revenue from Operations
Tummover Ratio _Average Inventory = Items
Costof Revenue = Cost of materials consumed + purchase of stock-in-trade + change in
from Operations inventory (Finished Goods; Work in Progress and Stock-in-trade) + Direct
Expenses
Or

Opening Inventory + Net Purchases + Direct Expenses — Closing
Inventories
Or

Revenue from Operations — Gross Profit

Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory

Average Inventory = 3

Accounting Ratios
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Purpose of Inventory Ratio

The purpose of this ratio is to calculate the number of times inventory is covered by the cost of

goods sold or sales.

Ilustration 9 Calculate Inventory turnover ratio in the following cases:

(i)  Cost of revenue from operation T 2.60,000
Average Inventory T . 40,000
(i)  Revenme From Operations (Gross) T 2,20,000
Average Inventory X 40,000
Sales return T 20,000

Gross Profit - 20% on sales.
(iit)  Opening Inventory ' T 21,000
Closing Inventory _ T 29,000
Purchases ' ' _ T 1,00,000
Wages o .~ % 10,660
Solution. (i) Inventery turnover ratio = Cost of revenue from operations

' ) Average Inventory
. 2,00,000

40,000 5 times.
(i) Revenue from Operations (Net sales)= Revenue from operations {Gross) — Sales retumn
= 220,000-20,000=%2,00000 .
Gross profit = 20% on sales
= 2,00,000 x < 00 —?40 000
Cost of Revenue from Operations = Revenue from Operation (Net Sales)
— Gross Profit = 2,00,000 — 40,000
= ¥ 1,60,000°

Cost of good sold _ 1,60,000
Average Inventory 40,000

(i)  Costof revenue from operations= Opening Inventory + Purchases + Wages
— Closing Inventory

= 21,000 + 1,00,000 + 10,000 — 29,000 =% 1,02,000

- = 4 times.

Inventory turnover ratio =

 Average Inventory = Ope‘mng Inventory ; Closing Inventory
_ 21,000 + 29,000
iR ) '
Cost of goods sold  1,02,000
Average Inventory 25,000
102

=25 =4.08 tlmes

=25,000

Inventory turnover ratio =

Ilustration 10 Inventory turnover ratio is 2.5 times. Average Inventory is T 20,000
Calculate cost of revenue from operations and also Revenue from Oper'gtions,-if
* profit earned is 25% of cost.

Cost of Revenue from Operations -

Solutien. Inventory turnover ratio = =2.5 times (given)

" Average Inventory



It shows that cost of revenue from operations is 2.5 times of average inventory, i.e.,

20,000 x 2.5 =% 50,000
25% of cost

Cost of Revenue from Operations
. Profit,

25 '
50,000 x 100 =% 12,500

Cost of Revenue from Operations + Profit
50,000 + 12,500 = ¥ 62,500

Revenue from Operations (i.e., Net Sales)

2. Working Capital Turnover Ratio-

This ratio measures the relationship between working capital and sales. The rdtio shows the
number of times the working capital results, in sales. Working capital as usual is the excess of

current assets over the current liabilities. The following formula is used to measure this ratio.

Revenue from Operations Times
Working Capital -

Working Capital turnover Ratio =

Working Capital = Current Assets — Current Liabilities

Current Assets = Current Investments + Inventories + Trade Receivables + Cash and Cash
' . Equivalents + Short Term Loans and Advances + Other Current Assets

‘Current Liabilities = Short-Term Borrowings + Trade Payables + Other Current Liabilities -+

Short-term Provisions

Purpose of Working Capital Turnover

The purpose of this ratio is to measure the working capital performance of the business in terms
of total sales.

Illustration 11 Calculate working Capital Turnover Ratio from the following:

§. No. : Items ) Amount (3)
1 Current Asset 9,00,000
2 | Revenue from Operations - 24,00,000
3. Current Liabilities 1,00,000

Revenue from Operations
Working Capital
¥ 24,00,000

Solution.Working Capital Turnover Ratio =

Il

Revenue from Operations

Working Capital = Current Asset — Current Liabilities
= ¥9,00,000 - ¥ 1,00,000
' = ¥ 8,00,000
24,00,000
Working Capital Turnover Ratio = "8.00.000 =3 Times

3. Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio

It is also known as receivable turnover ratio. It establishes relationship between credit revenue
from operation and average trade receivables. This ratio is calculated on the basis of the following
formula:

Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Nﬂ credit Revenue from Operations
. Average trade receivables
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Net credit revenue from operations = Revenue from Operations — Cash Revenue from Operations

Credit sales is separately given or it may be the difference between total sales and cash sales.
Credit sales may also be calculated by preparing Account Receivable Account. In other words,
excess of the total of cash received from Account Receivable, Sales Return, Bad Debts and bills
drawn over the opening balance of Account Receivable is credit sales.

Opening Trade Receivable + Closing Trade Receivable
2

In case of receivable turnover ratio Account Receivable and B/R are added together to
determine the receivable;

Average 'I\'ade Receivables =

Purpose of Receivable Turnover Ratio

The purpose is to measure the Account Receivable coverage through total credit sales of the
business.

INustration 12 Calculate Trade Receivables turnover ratio, if tofal sales are
¥ 2,50,000, cash sales T 70,000. Account Receivable in the beginning are ¥ 16,000 and
at the end is T 8,000 more.

Solution. Credit sales = Total revenue from operatiohs — Cash revenue from operations
= 2,50,000 — 70,000 = 1,80,000
Receivables in the beginning = 16,000
16,000 + 8,000 = 24,000

il

Receivables at the end

Opening Trade Receivables + Closing Trade Receivables

Average Receivable =

2
_ 16,000 -;24,000 — 20,000
. . Credit Revenue from Operations _ 1,80,000 |
Receivable Turnover Ratio = Average Trade Receivables 20,000 9 times,

4. Trade Payables or Creditor’s Turnover Ratio

The ratio explains the velocity with which Account Payables are paid and establishes relationship
between Account Payables dnd amount paid to them. Accounts payable includes Account Payables
and bills payable, The following formula is used to calculate it:

Net Credit Purchases
Accounts Payable

Payable turnover ratio =

Purpose of Payable Turnover

The purpose is to calculate the account payable coverage through credit purchases of the
business.

INlustration 13 Calculate payable turnover ratio from the following information:

Credit Purchases ' $4,50,000
Trade Payable % 1,00,000
Bills Payable I 50,000
4,50,000
Solution. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio = Credit Purchases _ %,90,000 =3 times.

Trade Payables  1,50,000



FINANCIAL RATIOS

Liquidity Ratios

Liquidity ratios are calculated to measure the short term financial soundness of the business.
The ratio assesses the capacity of the company to repay its short term liability. Banks and other
moneylenders for short period are interested in the current assets of the company ie., short-term
financial position of the business. This ratio is also an effective source to ascertain, whether the
working capital has been effectively utilised. Liquidity in the ratio means ability to repay loans. .

Following ratios are calculated to determine the liquidity or short term solvency of the company:

(f) Current ratio or Working capital ratio (if) Liquid ratio.

1. Current Ratio or Working Capital Ratio

The ratio indicates the short term financial soundness of the company. It judges whether current
assets are sufficient to meet the current liabilities or not. The company must be able to meet its
current obligations out of the current assets. It should not depend upon its long term sources to pay its
short term liabilities. The ratio is calculated on the basis of the following formula:’

Current Assets
Current Liabilities

(@) Current ratio =

Current Assets = Current Investments + Inventories + Trade Receivables + Cash and Cash

Equivalents + Short Term Loans and Advances + Other Current Assets

(prepaid expenses + accrued incomes + advance tax)

Current Liabilities = Short-term Borrowings + Trade Payables + Other Current Liabilities + |

Short-term Provisions

Purpose of Current Ratio

The purpose of current ratio is to measure the liquidity position of the company in terms of
its short term working capital requirement. This is a widely used ratio to analyse the short-term
solvency of the business.

2. Liquid Ratio

This ratio is also known as Acid test ratio or Quick assets ratio. The ratio shows liquidity
of the business in real sense. According to Soloman, J. Flink, “Liguidity is the ability of the firm
to meer its current obligations as they fall due.” Liquid assets are current assets less stock and

‘prepaid expenses. These assets are called liquid assets, because they can be converted into cash

promptly or very shortly. The following formula is used to calculate this ratio:
Liquid Assets
Current Liabilities

(b) Liquid ratio =

Liquid Assets = Current Assets — Inventories — Other current assets

Current Liabilities = Short-term Borrowings + Trade Payables -+ Other Current Liabilities +
Short-term Provisions

The standard liquid ratio is thought to be 1 : 1 i.e., liquid assets should be equal to current

liabilities. If the ratio is higher i.e., current assets are more than the current liabilities, the short-term
financial position is supposed to be very sound,
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Alternative lCal«:ulaﬁon of Currént Assets and Current Liabilities:

Current Assets may also be calculated by adding working capital and Current Liabilities.
Current Liabilities are excess of Current Assets over working capital. Current Liabilities may also
be calculated by deducting long term-debts from Total debts. It can be summarised as under:

Current Liabilities = Total Debts ~ Long-term Debts
" Current Liabilities = Current Assets — Worléing Capital
~ Current Assets = Working Capital + Current Liabilities
Purpose of Liquid Ratio

The purpose of liquid ratio is to calculate the very short term (i.e., 6 months) availability of cash
to meet day-to-day requirement.

IMlustration 14 Calcﬁlate current and liquid ratio from the following information:
Statement of Profit and Loss

Particilar ' As at Current
. Year
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholder’s Funds
(a) Share Capital
Equity Share Capital . ' 1,00,000.00
2. Non-current Liabilities
(a) Long-term Bomwings Debentures 1,15,000.00
3. Current Liabilities 65,000.00
Total ' . i 2,80,000.00
II. ASSETS
1. Non-current Assets _
(a Fixed.Assers | . L,50,000.00
2. Current Assets
(@) Inventory . R 10,000.00
() Trade Receivables . 1,20,000.00
Total - ' 2,80,000.00
Solution. (i) Current Ratio = ——rentAssets __ 1,30,000 _ , ;0

Current Liabilities . 65,000 ,
Current Assets = Trade Receivables + Inventory = 1,20,000 + 10,000
=%1,30,000

Liquid Assets _. 1,20,000

(i)  Liquid Ratio = Current Liabilities 65,000 =1.84 times

Illust-ration 15 Calculate current assets:
(1) If current ratio is 2.5 times and current liabilities are 20,000.
(if). Calculate current liabilities, if current assets are 1,20,000 and current ratio is three times.

Gif) If current labilities are 30,000, current ratio 2.25 times and liquid ratio 1.25 times.
Calculate current assets, liquid assets and stock in trade.




Current Assets’

Current Liabilities =2.5 times (given)

Solution.( /) Current Ratio =

It shows that current assets are 2.5 times of the current liabilities, i.e., 20,000
 x25=¥50,000. '

(i) ; Current Assets

% 1,20,000 (given)

Current Assets
Current Liabilities

I

Current Ratio =3 times

The ratio shows that current liabilities will be 1/3rd of the current assets, i.e.,

1,20,000 x 1/3 = _?40,000.
(i)~ Current Liabilities = ¥ 30,000
. _ _ Current Assets _ .
Cu‘rrent Ratio = —_qurent Liabilitics 2.25 times

“The ratio shows that current assets are 2.25 times of current liabilities, i.e.,

30,000 x 2.25 = ¥ 67,500 = Current Assets
. . Liquid Assets  _ .
Liquid Ratio = Current Ligbilities 1.25 times

Hence, Liquid Assets = 30,000 x 1.25 =% 37,500
) Inventory = Current assets — Liquid assets
' 67,500 — 37,500 = ¥ 30,000.

!

IMustration 16 Smrita Limited has current ratio of3:1 Ifits Inve;wtory‘is T 40,000
and total current liabilities are ¥ 75,000. Find out its quick ratio and comment upon
the short term financial position of the company. '

. z

. ., _  Current Assets _ Current Assets _
Soluho:¥. Current Ratio Current Liabilities 75,000 3

Current Assets = 75,000 x 3 = ¥2,25,000
Current assets — Inventory = 2,25,000 — 40,000 = 1,85,000

o . _ _ Quick Assets _ 1,85000 .. .. _ .
Quick Ratio = Current Liabilities 75,000 37:15=247 times.

Comment ,

~ Liquid (Quick) Assets

Short-term financial position of the Smrita limited is sound because its qutck ratio is 2.47
times, whereas ideal standard quick ratio is 1 : 1.

Illustration 17 Calcula!e the current ratio from the fo!lowmg information:

Total Assets ' ¥ 3,00,000

Non-current Ligbilities 80,000

Shkareholders’ Funds ¥ 2,00,000

Non-current Assets:

Fixed Assels ¥ 1,60,000

Non-current Investments ¥ 1,00,000

Solution. Total Assets = Non-current Assets + Current Asséts

¥3,00,000 = ¥ 2,60,000 + Current Assets

Current Assets = ¥3,00,000 - ¥ 2,60,000 = ¥ 40,000
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Total Assets = Equity and Liabilities
= Shareholders’ Funds + Non-current Llabllltles + Current
Liabilities
¥ 3,00,000 = ¥ 2,00,000 + ¥ 80,000 + Curtent Liabilities .
Current Liabilities = ¥ 3,00,000 - ¥2,80,000
= ¥ 20,000

Current Assets _ 140 000
Current Liabilities ?20 000

Current Ratio

SOLVENCY RATIOS

‘Solvency’ means the ability of the business to repay its outside liabilities. These liabilities may
be categorised as short term liabilities and long term liabilities. Ratios concerning the short term
solvency (financial soundness) of the business have been discussed under liquidity ratios. Here,
the term solvency ratios has been used to mean long term financial position of the business. It is an
accepted financial truth that the company must have sufficient long term funds to meet its lon g term
liabilities. Long term funds include long term loans and shareholders’ funds. Solvency ratios also
measure the relationship between external equities and internal equities.

Objectives of Solvency Rafios

Solvency refers to the financial capability of the enterprise in honouring their long term
commitments (obligation). These ratios serve our following purpose:

1. Ascertaining capability to honour Iong term obligations, such as repayment of loan and .
interest thereon.

2. Ensuring long term financial stability of the business. .

3. Measuring relationship between internal and external equity. \

Long -term requirements must be met out of long term funds, such as funds for purchase of
fixed assets i.e., Land and Building, Plant and Machinery must be provided out of share capltal or
long term loans. These ratios indicating long term financial position are as under:

1. Debt to Equity Ratio

2. Total Assets to Debt Ratio
- 3. Proprietary Ratio

4. Interest Coverage Ratio,

1. Debt to Equity Ratio

Debt Equity Ratio - Equity Shalr)eib;lders Fund

Debt ' = Long-term Borrowings + Long-term Provisions

Equity/Shareholders' Funds = Share Capital + Reserves and Surplus

Share Capital To= Equity Share Capital + Preference Share cqpital
Or

Equity/Shareholders' Funds Non-current Assets + Working Capital — Non-current Liabilities

Non-current Assets

il

It

Tangible Assets + Intangible Assets + Non-current
Investments + Long-term Loans and Advances
Current Assets — Current Liabilities

Working Capital
Non-current Liabilities

Long-term Borrowings + Long-term Provisions



This ratio is calculated to judge the long-term financial policy of the business. The ratio
establishes relationship between long term loans and owners’ funds. -

" The ideal debt equity ratio in India is accepted as 2 : 1, meaning that the long-term liabilities of
the business should be two times of shareholders’ funds. In other words, shareholders’ funds should
be 0.5 times of long-term loans. Higher debt equity ratio shows lesser margin for long-term lenders,
This ratio indicates to what extent the firm depends on outsiders” funds for existence. It also shows
the cushion or ¢over of owners’ funds available to creditors. '

Purpose of Debt Equity Ratio

The purpose of debt equity ratio is to measure the long-term solvéncy of the business. A higher
debt to equity ratio is not considered good for the business.

Illustration 18 From the following balance sheet of a company, calculate Debt-Equity Ratio:

Balance Sheet
’ Amount in (T)
Particular Note Amount as on Amount as on
No. current year (3) previous year (3)
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES .
1. Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share capital 10,00,000
(b) Reserves and surplus 1. 1,00,000
2. Neon-current Ligbilities
{a) Long-term borrowings 1,50,000
3. Current Liabilities 1,50,000
Total 14,00,000
IL ASSETS :
1. Nen-current Assets
(a} Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 2 11,00,000
2. Current Assets
(a) - Inventories 100,600
(b) Trade receivables 90,000
(¢c) Cash and cash equivalents 1,10,000
Total 14,00,000

Notes to Accounts
Note 1
Share Capital

Particulars Amount as on Amount as on
’ current year (%) previous year ()
Equity Share Capital 8,00,000
Preference Share Capital 2,00,000
10,00,000

Accounting Ratios

NOTES

Self-Instructional Material 251




" Financial Accounting

NOTES

" 252 Selfnstructionel Material

Notes 2 . . ) ’ . s
Tangible Assets )
Particulars - Amount as on Aimount as on
o . current year (%) previous year (3)

Plant and Machinery _ *5,00,000 .

Land and Building . " 4,00,000 .

Motor Car ‘ 1,50,000

Furniture . 50,000

: ' 11,00,000

Long-term Debts
Equity (Shareholders Funds)

Solution. Debt-Equity Ratio

LE)ng-term Debts = Long-term Borrowings -
’ = ¥ 1,50,000 ‘ '
Equity = Share capital + Reserves and surplus - '
) = ¥10,00,000 + ¥ 1,00,000 = ¥ 11,00,000
DebtEquiyRatio = 250000 _ 56,9
11,00,000

INustration 19 (a) From the follaw'r'ng information, compute ‘Debt-Equity Ratio’:

. g
Long-term Borrowings 2,00,000 .
.- Long-term Provisions ‘ . - 1,00,000 -
Current Liabilities ' 30,000
Non-current Assets ) 3,60,000
Current Assets : : " 90,000

. (b) The current ratio of X Ltd., is 2 : 1. State with- reason which of the jollowing

transactions would (i) increase; (ii) decrease; or (iti) not change the ratio:
(i) Included in the trade payables was a bills payable of T 9,000 which was met on maturity.

(1)) Company issued 1,00,000 equity shares of T 10 each to the Vendors af machmery
purchased.
Debts .
Equity .
Debt = Long-term borrowings + Long-term Provisions
= ¥2,00,000 + ¥ 1,00,000
= ¥ 3,00,000
Equity = Current Assets +Non-current Assets — Debt — Current
Liabilities
= 90,000 + 3,60,000 - 3 00,000 — 50 000
= ¥ 1,00,000
¥ 3,00,000 ' '

Debt —Equity Ratio= ——___ =3:1.
. ' ¥ 1,00,000

¢

Solution. (c;) Debt — Equity Ratio =

() Change Reason

() Increase: Both Current Assets and Current Liabilities are decreasing with same
amount.

(#) No change: Neither Current Asgets nor Current.Liabi]ities are changing.



2. Total Assets to Debt Ratio

This ratio represents the relationship between Total Assets and Debt. Total Assets include all
those assets which have been purchased from long term resources. These assets do not include
Fictitious Assets, like, Preliminary Expenses Undcrwrmng Comumission and Discount or loss on
issue of shares and Debentures etc.

Total Assets to Debt Ratio = Total Assets
Debt

Total Assets = Non-current Assets (Tangible Assets + Intangible Assets + Non-current
Investments + Long-term Loans and advances)
Current Assets (Current Investments + Inventories + Trade Receivables
+ Cash and Cash Equivalerits + Short-term Loans and Advances + Other
Current Assets).

Debt = Long-term Borrowings + Long-term Provisions

Significance

The ratio is sigrificant, because it informs the Account Payables that how far loans advanced
by them are safe. It also provides knowledge regarding the protection provided by assets of the
company to their debts. This ratio facilitates the lenders and investors to take a decision regarding

" grant of loans in future.

Note. The Standard Total Assets to Debt Ratio is 2 : 1.

Purpose of Total Assets to Debt

The purpose—is to analyse the coverage of total assets on the total debt of the company.

3. Proﬁrietary Ratio

This ratio indicates the relationship between proprietors funds and total assets. The proprietor’s

funds include equity share capital, preference share capital, revenue, capital reserves and accumulated

surplus. Total assets include fixed, current and fictitious assets.

This ratio is very important for the Account Payables, because they know the share of proprietors
funds in the total assets and satisfy how far their loan is secured. The higher the ratio, the more safety

will be to the creditors, The ratio also shows the general financial position of the cdmpany also. 50%

is supposed to be the satisfactory proprietary ratio for the Account Payables. Lesser than 50% is the
sign of risk for Account Payables. The following formula is used to calculate propnctary ratio:

Proprietary Fund or Shareholder's Fund
Total Assets

Proprietary Ratio =

Share Capital + Reserves and Surplus
Equity Share Capital + Preference Share Capital

Proprietor's Fund
Share capital

Or
Proprietor’s Fund = Non-current Assets + Working Capital Non-current Liahilities
Non-gurrent = Tangible Assets + Intangible Assets + Non-current Investments +
Assets Long-term Loans and Advances
Working Capital = Current Assets — Current Liabilities
Non-current = Long-term Borrowings + Long-term Provisions
liabilities
Total Assets = Non-current Assets (Tangible Assets + Intangible Assets + Non-current

Investments + Long-termn Loans and advances + Other Non-current Assets).
Current Assets (Current Investments + Inventories + Trade Receivables
+ Cash and Cash Equivalent + Short-term Loans and Advances + Other
Current Assets).
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Purpose of Proprietary Ratio .
The purpose of this ratio is to calculate the consistency of proprietor’s fund in the overall

- business profits. This is used to indicate the control of proprietors of the business.

4. Interest Coverage Ratie

Profit before Interest and Tax
Interest on Long-term Debt .

Interest Coverage Ratio =

Profit before interest and tax = Proﬁt after interest and tax + Interest. on long term debt + tax

This ratio calculates the cover or CUSthI] available for fixed interest payment on loans availed
by the company. Higher ratio indicates business stability while lower ratio indicates business risk.

INlustration 20 From the followmg compute
(a) Debt to Equity Ratio
(b) Total Assets to Debt Ratio
{(c) Proprietary Ratio

Items ' " Amount (%)

S. No.
1. |Long-term Borrowings 1,00,000
2. | Long-term Provisions - 50,600
3. |Current Liabilities ' 25,000
4. | Non-current Assets , 1,80,000
5. | Current Assets ' . 45,000
Solution, - -
. . ' Debt
(@) Debt to Equity Ratio ~ Equity/Shareholders’ Funds .
Debt = Long-term Bdrrowing + Long-term Provizions
= ¥ 1,00,000 + ¥ 50,000
= ¥1,50,000 .
Equity/Shareholders’ Funds = Non-current Assets + Working Capital — Non-current
Liabilities
= Non-current Assets + Current Assets — Current Liabilities —
" Long-term Borrowings — Long-term Provisions
= ¥ 1,80,000 + ¥ 45,000 — ¥ 25,000 — ¥ 1,00,000 — ¥ 50,000
= ¥ 50,000
. Debt-Equity Ratio o= l’gsol?[’:'_%}TU =3
() Total Assets to Dbt Ratio = o Assels
Total Assets = Non-current Assefs + Current Assets
= ¥ 1,80,000 + ¥ 45,000
= ¥2,25,000 i
Debt ) = Long-term Borrowings + Long-term Provisions
' -= ¥ 1,00,000 + ¥ 50,000
= ¥ 1,50,000

) 2,25,000
- Total Assets to Debt Ratio = m =1.5:1



. . Shareholder's Fund
(c) Proprietary Ratio = Total Assets
Shareholders’ Funds = T 50,000
Total Assets ' = ¥2,25,000 .
¥ 50,000
. Proprietary Rati = ——— =022:1
roprictary Ratio 2,25,000

Illustration 21 Akshara Ltd., has 8% Debentures of X 5,00,000. Its profit before
interest and tax is ¥ 2,00,000. Calculate Interest Coverage Ratio.
Solution.

Profit before Interest and Tax
Interest on Debentures

Interest Coverage Ratio

Profit before Interest and Tax ¥ 2,00,000

S _
¥5,00,000 x 7o = 340,000 '

: ) 2,00,000 .
Interest Coverage Ratio = 740,000 = 5 Times

Interest on Debenture

Illustration 22 Calculate Current Ratio of a company from the following information:
Inventary Turnover Ratio: 4 times; Inventory in the end was T 20,000 more than stock in the
beginning; Sales ¥ 3,00,000. Gross Profit Ratio 25%. Current Liabilities T 40,000, Quick Ratio
0.75 : L

Solution. Gross profit Ratio = Gross profit/Sales x 100
’ 25 = Gross Profit ¥ 3,00,000 x 100
= Gross profit = ¥ 75,000 '

We know that, Cost of Goods sold + Gross Profit = Net Sales
Cost of Goods sold = T 3,00,000 — T 75,000 =X 2,25,000
Stock turmover Ratio = Cost of goods sold/average inventory
4
Average inventory = ¥ 56,250

1l

¥ 2,25,000/average inventory,

Average Inventory = (opening inventory + closing inventory)/2
Let Opening inventory be x then Closing Inventory = x + ¥ 20,000
©T56,250 =. (x++x+ T 20,000)2
$356,250x2 = 2x+% 20,000 = x =% 46,250
Hence, Opening inventory = ¥ 46,250 and closing inventory = ¥ 66,250
’ Liquid Ratio = Liquid Assets/Current Liabilities
0.75 = Liquid Assets/< 40,000
= ) Liquid Assets = ¥ 30,000
Liquid Assets = Current Assets-inventory — Prepaid Expenses
¥ 30,000 = Current Assets — ¥ 66,250 -0
éunent Assets = 96,250 .
Current Ratio = Current Assets/Current Liabiljties
= ¥96,250R% 40,000 = 2.41

1l
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Ilustration 23 From the following, Ca]cuiate any two ratios (/) Current Ratio,

" (#f) Debt equity ratio (i#/) Inventory Turnover Ratio

Net Sales T 5,00,000, Openingllnvemmy T 7.000; Closing Inventory T 4,000 more than
the Opening Inventory, Net Purchases ¥ 1,00,000 less. than Net sales, Operating Expenses
¥ 30,000; Liguid assets X 75,000; Prepaid expenses T 2,000; Current Liabilities T 60,000, 9%
Debentures X 3,00.000; Long-term loan T '11,00,000, Equity Shares Capztal T 10,00,000; 8%
Pref. Share Capital T 2,00,000.

Solution. (i) Liquid Assc_ts = Current Assets — (Inventory + Prepaid Expenses)
T 75,000 = Current Assets — (3 7,000 -+ 4,000 + T 2,000)
Current Assets = ¥ 83,000 .
" Current Liabilities = Bills payable+ Account Payable + Expenses Payable
= ¥ 60,000 '

1

Current Assets/Current Liabilities

1 88,000/ T 60,000 =1.467: 1 J
Debentures, Mortgage, public deposit, etc.
¥3,00,000 +¥ 11,00,000 = ¥ 14,00,000,

+ Shareholders’ funds = Paid up Equity Share + Pref. Share + Reserves and
Surplus

¥ 10,00,000 + ¥ 2,00,000 = ¥ 12,00,000
Debts/Equity
= ¥ 14,00,000/ ¥ 12,00,000=1.167 : 1

Current Ratio

I

(i) Debts

Debt-Equity Ratio =

(i) Average Inventory = (Opening Inventory +'Closing Inventory)/2
' = (37,000 +% 11,0002 = T 9,000
= Opening Inventory + Purchases + Direct expenses ,

Cost of goods sold
’ — Closing Inventory
¥ 7,000 +3°4,00,000 + T 30,000 — ¥ 11,000

= T 4,26,000
(iv) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of Goods Sold/Average Inventory
¥4,26,000% 9,000 =47.33 Time -~
Hlustration 24 (a) Nef profit after Interest but before tax: T 140,000; 15% long-

term debts X 4,00,000; Shareholders funds T 2,40,000; Tax rate 50%. Calculate Return
on Capital Employed.

l

(b) Opening InventoryX 60,000; Closing Inventory T 1,00,000; Inventory Turnover Ratio
8 times Selling price 25% above cast. Calculate the Gross Profit Ratio,

Solution. (@) Net'Profit after interest but before tax = ¥ 1,40,000
Interest — 15% of 400,000 = ¥ 60,000
No profit before interest and tax = ? 1,40,000 +3 60,000 =T 2,00,000
.Capital Employed = Long-term debts + Shareholders funds
- % 4,00,000 +  2,40,000 = ¥ 6,40,000
Net profit before interest and tax/capital employed
¥ 2,00,000/ T 6,40,000 % 100 = 31.25%

I

Il

Retiirn on capitals employed



(b) ' .Average Inventory = (Opening inventory + Closing inventory)/2
T 1,60,000/2 = ¥ 80,000

Cost of revenue from operations/Average inventory

It

Inventory Turnover Ratio
8
Cost of Revenue from Operation

Cost of revenue from operations/ ¥ 80,000
% 6,40,000

Selling price = 25% above cost .
= ¥ 6,40,000 x'1/4 + ¥ 6,40,000 T §,00,000
Gross.profit ratio = Gross Profit/Sales x 100
= (¥ 1,60,000% 8,00,000) x 100 = 20%
SUMMARY
(a) Profitability Rati:os:
L Gross Profit Ratio = Gross Profit x 100

Revenue from QOperations

Gruoss Profit = Revenue from Operations (Net Sales) — Cost of Re{fenug from

Operations

. . ¢ 'Net Profit
2. ' Net Profit Ratio = —__ x 100
. Revenue from Operations

Net Profit = (Gross Profit + operating and non-operating income — Operating and
non-operating expenses)
Operating Net Profit

x 100
Revenue from Operations

3. QOperating net profit ratio =

Operating Net Profit = (Ner Profit as Statement Profit and Loss +
Non-operating Expenses — Non-oper atmg

Income)
4 Operating Ratio = (Cost of Revenue from Operations + Operating expenses) « 100
. . Revenue from Operations
) Net interest, tax and divident
5. ] Return on Investment (ROI) = et profit before interes and dividen

Capital employed
Capital Employed = Shareholders' fund (Share Capital +
Reserves and Surplus) + Non-Current
Liabilities (Long-Term Borrowings +
Long-Term Provisions)
. . Or
= Non-Current Assets + Working Capital
Working Capital = Current Assets — Current Liabilities.
Non-Cur rentAssers = TangibleAssets + Intangible Assets +Non-
Current Investments + Long-term Loans
and Advances

() Turnover or Activity or Performance Ratios:

Revenue from Operations
Working Capital

1. Workmg Capital Turnover Ratio =

Working Caprlal = Current Assets — Current Liabilities
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Cost of Revenue from Operations _
Average Inventory

Cost of Revenue from Operations = Revenue from Operations — Gross Profit

2. Stock or Inventory Turnover Ratio= :

or
Opening Inventory + Net Purchases +
Direct Expenses

Less: Closing Inventory
Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory
2

Net Credit Revenue from Operations
Average Receivable

Average Inventory =

3. Debtors Turnover Ratio =

Average Debtors ‘ :
- Receivable in the beginning + Receivable at the end

2
Receivables = Trade Receivable + Bills Receivable.
Net Credit Purch
4. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio = — - o cte

Trade Payable

(¢) Liquidity Ratios: A
L. ' Current Ratio = Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Liquid Assets

2. ' Liquid or Quick or Acid Test Ratio= Current Lizbilities

_ Current Assets — (Inventory + Prepaid expenses)

or Current Liabilities

{d) Solvency (ldng-term) Ratios:

Debt B
1. Debt to Eq““y Ratio = Equity Shareho]ders’ Funds
Debt = Long-Term Borrowing + Long-Term

. Provision.
Shareholders’ Funds = Equity and Preference share capital +
Reserves and Surplus

Total Assets
Debt

Total Assets = Non-Current Assets + Current Assets:

2. Total Assets to Debt Ratlo =

Proprietors’ Funds or Shareholders’ Funds
Total Assets

3. Proprietary Ratio =

Proprle&ors’ Funds = Share Capital + Reserves and Surplus or
Non-Current Assets + Intangible Assets
than Current Investments than Current

] Loans and Advances.
Total Assets = Non-Current Assets + Current Assets

Profit before Interest and Tax
Interest on Long-term Debt

4. Interest Coverage Ratio =



REVIEW QUESTIONS

A. Very Short Answer Type Questions:

1
2
3.
4
5

Name two ratios measuring profitability.

What is the ideal proprietary ratio?

Name the items required for calculating liquid ratio.
What do you mean by Accounting ratios?

Assuming that the Current Ratio is 2 : 1, state giving reason whether the ratio will
improve, decline or will have no change in case a Bill Receivable is dishonoured.
b

B. Short Answer Type Questions:

I N R S

._.
e

Name the classification of ratics on the basis of the purpose.

What are the different names of activity ratios? Name two activity ratios.

Describe three ratios based upon sales.

Explain the uses of profitability ratios.

What do you mean by ratio analysis?

Write any two advantages of ratio analysis.

Write any two objectives of solvency ratio.

What do you mea'n by Accounting ratios? Give any three limitations of ratio analysis.
What do you mean by Ratio Analysis? What are the objectives of solvency ratio?

What is meant by Accounting ratios? How are they useful?

C. Long Answer Type Questions:

L.

What do you mean by ratio analysis? Explain briefly the different methods of ratio
analysis with suitable examples.

Explain the various objectives or uses of ratio analysis.
Explain the importance of ratio analysis.

What do you mean by profitability ratios? Explain the calculation of Gross Profit
ratio. What can be the possible causes for the decline of gross profit ratios?

Explain the meaning and calculation of Net profit and operating net profit ratio.
What do you mean by Accounting ratios? Discuss its four uses.
- Explain the concepts of following ratios and also point out their significance:

(#) Current ratio (if) Fixed assets turnover ratio

(#if) Operating ratio . (iv) Debt to equity ratio

(v) Receivable turnover ratio {vi) Net working capital tumover ratio

(vif) Stock or Inventory turnover ratio {viii) Gross profit ratio

{ix} Quick ratio/Acid test or liquidity ratio  {x) Net profit ratio

(xi) Return on investment (xff) Proprietary ratio

Accounting Ratios
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Practical Questions

l. Calculate gross profit ratio in the following cases: .
(i) Gross Profit ‘ . . 60,000

NOTES o . :
Revenue from Operations - ¥4,00,000
(i) Gross Profit ¥3,00,000
Revenue from Operations ’ ¥ 15,08,000
Sales Return , ¥ 8,000
j(iii) Revenue from Operations . : ¥1,20,000
Gross Profit is 25% on cost l -
(D) Rever;uc from Operations . % 4,00,000
Gross Profit is 20% on sales . . ) ' .
() Revenue from Operations ' ¥ 4,00,000 -
’ Cost of Revenue from Operations © %3,60,000 '

[Ans. () 15%, (ii) 20%, (ni) 20%, (w) 20%, ) 10%]
" 2. Caiculate stock turnover ratio in the following cases:
(%) Cost of goods sold T 6,00,000 average mvent'ory ¥ 1,20,000 )
(i) Gross Sales ¥ 2,05,000; Sales return ¥ 5,000; Gross Profit 20% on Revenue from Operations
and average stock ¥ 40,000 -
(i)

Opening Inventory ) " 82,000 - Closing Inventory . 59,000
Purchases 2,04,000  |Purchaseretun - 4,000
Wages .. - - N 20,000 Salaries 15,720

[Ans. () 5 times (i) 4 times (fif) 3. 45 tlmes]

3." Calculate inventory turnover ratio fitm the data given below:

Inventory at the beginning of the'year | ¥ 20,000 Carriage T 5,000
. inwards :
Ihventory at the end of the year. - ¥ 10,000 Sales ¥ 1,00,000
-" Purchases . % 50,000 '

[Ans. 4.33 times or4 33: 1] .

4. Calculate Receivables turnover ratio from the following information:

Credit sales for the year . ¥ 22,50,000
. Account Receivables . : T 2,25,000
Bills receivable - - © % 1,50,000

[Ans. Receivables Turnover Ratio = 6 times]

5. Caleulate payable turnover ratio ﬁom the following information:

Credit purchases - - ¥ 4,59,000
Account payable - ' - % 1,20,000
Bills payable o ' 33,000

[Ams. 3 times]

260 Self-Instructional Material



6. (i) If cument ratio is 2 tites and current liabilities are X 20,000. Calculate current assets.
(ity Calculate current Iiab}lities, if current assets are ¥ 4,20,000 and current ratio is 2.5 times.

) (iif) If current liabilities are 30,000, current ratio 2.20 times and liquid ratio 1.20 times, calculate
current assets, liquid assets and inventory in trade.

[Ans. (i) Current assets =3 40,000 (i) Current liabilities |

' . =% 1,68,000 (m') Current assets = ¥ 66,000,
Liquid assets = ¥ 36,000, Inventory = ¥ 30,000]

7. (i) Current Liabilities of a company are ¥ 6,00, 000. Tts current ratio is 3 : 1 and liquid ratio is
1: 1. Calculate value of Inventory-in-trade. - N

(u) A Company’s Inventory turnover is 5 times; Inventory at the end is ¥ 10,000 more than that
of the beginning; Sales (all credit) are ¥ 4,00,000; Rate of gross profit on cost 1/4; Current
Liabilities ¥ 1,20,000 acid test ratio 0.75 times. Calculate Current Assets.

= [Ans. (7) 12,00,000 (i¥) 1,59,000]

8. Calculate Return on Investment, Inventory furnover ratio from the figures given below:

Particulars Amount (3) Particulars Amount ()
Opening Inventory 30,000 | Closing Inventory 40,000
Carriage Inward -~ 10,000 | Purchases . 1,00,000

" Current Assets, . 50,000 | Current Liabilities - 20,000
" Fixed Assets 80,000 | Indirect expenses 15,000
Sales ' 2,00,000

[Ans. Return on Investment = 77.27%; Inventory turnover ratio = 2.86 times]

9. Calculate the amount of opening receivable and closing receivable from the following
-~ Account Receivable Turnover ratio 4 times
Cost of goods sold ¥ 6,40,‘000‘
Gross Profit ratio 20%

Closing Account Receivable were T 20,000 more than at the beginning. Cash sales
being 33.33% of credit sales,

[Ans. Opening Account Receivable X 1,40, 000 and closing account receivable ¥ 1,60,000]

10. Assuming that the Debt-Equity ratio is 2, State giving reasons whether this ratio would increase,
decrease or remain unchanged in the following cases:

(@) Purchase of fixed asset on a credit of 2 months.
- (b) Purchase of fixed asset on a long term deferred paymem basis. -
() Issue of New shares for each.’
(d) Issue of Bonus shares.
(e)- Sales of fixed asset at a loss of ¥ 3,000,
' [Ans. (@) No Change; (5) Increasé; (¢) Decrease; () No Change; (¢) Increasé]
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